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WE SEE JOB CREATION

Formerly home to a BP fuel distribution hub, we have since
transformed this 65 acre site into the new Bay Campus for
Swansea University. It opened in September 2015 to 917
new students, providing 775,000 sq ft of academic space and
student accommodation. Future phases will increase facilities
to allow the Campus to accommodate 2,000 students by
September 2017.

A true catalyst for economic growth and regeneration across
South Wales, the Campus is expected to deliver positive
economic impact for the Swansea Bay City region of £3bn and
create up to 10,000 jobs over the project’s lifetime and beyond.
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WE SEE COMMUNITIES

Previously owned by the Ministry of Defence, this
479 acre site is quickly transforming into a new Warwickshire
community known as ‘Meon Vale'. The mixed-use
redevelopment includes 800,000 sq ft of commercial
space, employing over 200 people, a leisure hub, public
open space and a 1-mile extension to the Greenway foot
and cycle path into Stratford-upon-Avon. With planning
for 1,050 homes, of which 230 have already been built,
Meon Vale offers a sustainable solution to the demand for
both housing and community facilities in this region.
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WE SEE INCOME

The 10 year, £90m regeneration programme for Wembley
Central completed in March 2015. This prominent Town Centre
scheme comprises an 86-bedroom Travelodge and 120,000 sq ft
of new retail and leisure space leased to major national retailers
including TK Maxx, Tesco, Sports Direct, Iceland, Costa and Argos.
It also includes 273 apartments, a new public square and a
refurbished and upgraded tube and train station which services
over 2.5m users each year. This asset is now generating an
annualised rental income of £2.2m.
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At a glance
This has been a year of achievement where we
have reached significant milestones in all areas
of regeneration across our portfolio.
ACTIVE LAND BANK PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

6,000 £1.7bn
acres

2014 2015

consent granted for 148,000 sq ft of

°w: see job creation Pages22 and 23

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY PIPELINE

1.6m
sq ft

IMAGE
REMOVED
DECEMBER APRIL JUNE
Letchworth Business North West acquIsitions - of Half Year Results
Park, Letchworth two strategic sites, Moorgate Point - record half year profits
— works commenced FEBRUARY Liverpoot and Old Mill, Preston, of £203 1m announced
for 90,000 sq ft of Access 18 Avonmouth - plannin adding £1 7m of net rental income
specutative development . P & Technology Retait
Subsequently 100% speculative space of which 80,000 sq ft Meon Vale, Warwickshire - Park, Rugby - sale
let and investment was subsequently let and solé upon tenant planning permission secured for an of this retail park,
sale agreed occupaton A further 68,000 sq ft of additional 550 homes at thrs mixed- 100% pre-fet to major
y lers, for £17 4m
speculative space 1s bein ed use new community, bninging the retailers,
peculative Space Is Seing progress total number of consented homes to Aberdeen Asset
to 1,050 Management

JANUARY

DPD (UK) - following
2 60,000 sq ft unitin

Exeter, planning consent
granted to build two |MAGE
additional depots for REMOVED

DPD (UK)in Liverpool and
Stoke-on-Trent All three
totalling 189,000 sq ft,
subsequently sold upon

tenant occupation MARCH

Wembley Central, London
Branston Leas - completion of this 10 year, £90m
Woods, Burton regeneration project. This asset s generaung
upon Trent - planting an annualised rental income of £2 2m

of 21 000 trees and
14,000 bluebells
commenced at this new
woodland adjacent to the | @ We seeincome Pages 28 and 29
growing community of
Branston Leas

@ 4 L —T @ | ®

MAY

Burton Gateway, Burton
upon Trent - an additional
230,000 sq ft of iIndustrial space
granted planning permission

at this major employment site,
bringing total development
consented to 1m sq ft

Whitley Business Park,
Coventry - land sale and site
start for a 214,000 sq ft regional
distribution centre for Travis
Perkins and sale of land te
Jaguar tand Rover
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£1.7bn* portfolio overview
* On a proportuonally
consokdated basts
including share of jonit
hote 3 tothe Growp CHART
Rnancial Statements REMOVED
TOTAL RESIDENTIAL PORTFOLIO NUMBER OF DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS TRACK RECORD
32,516 100 30
IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED
AUGUST NOVEMBER

New Covent Garden Market,
London - further to securing unconditional
status in Apnl 2015, works commenced to
the New Cavent Garden Market site in Nine
Elms, London

Longbndge, Birmingham - pPhase 2
of the Town Centre opened with 150,000 sq ft
Marks & Spencer store and other national
retailers, delivening £3 2m annualsed
income as part of this £1bn regeneration

Q We see communities Pages 24 1o 27

project

° We see income Pages 2B and 29

JuLy

Brentwood,
Essex -
development
agreement signed
with Brentwood
Council for 1m

sq ft of Industriat,
logistlcs and office
space, close to
the M25

?

IMAGE
REMOVED

SEPTEMBER

Bay Campus, Swansea Unwversity
- opens its doors to 917 new students and
'St Modwen Student Living established

to manage the recurring income from the
student accommodation which will increase
to 2,000 rooms by September 2017

°Wemjub creation Pages 22 and 23

OCTOBER

Kirkby Town
Centre,

Liverpool -
acquisition of this
key retail centre,
with additional
retail and housing
development
potential, for
£358m

Celtic Business
Park, Newport
- steel frames
erected at this
major new
business park in
South Wales

?

LOGO
REMOVED
2016:
OUR 30™ ANNIVERSARY

2016 marks 30 years of 5t Modwen’s status
as a lsted company Throughout the year we
will be launching a senies of CSR inibatives,
In addition to reflecting on 30 years of
successful regeneration and looking forward
to delivering shareholder value in the years
to come
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Chairman's Statement

“This exceptional set of results is
testament to our expertise across the
many facets of regeneration.”

BILL SHANNON
Chairman

IMAGE
REMOVED

CHART
REMOVED

As we approach our anniversary marking 30 years as a listed
company, | am extremely pleased to report on a record set of
resulis for the year ended 30" November 2015 The business
has achieved a 27% increase in shareholders' equity NAV per
share to 413 5p (2014 325 1p) and profit before all tax of
£258 4m (2074 £135 4m)

This excepuonal set of results 1s testament (o our
expertise across the many facets of regeneration, ranging
from remediation and planning skills, to construciion

and development, through to project delivery and

assei management

These skills and expertise are driven by our set of core values
that define both the business and the approach we adopt to
manage, develop and extract maximum value from our land
bank. At every point of the development Iifecycte ‘we think
long-term, ‘we are innovative’ and ‘we do what we say

Our 30 anniversary in 2016 will provide an excellent
opportunity to reflect on how the business has grown with
these values at its core, whilst also looking forward to the
next 30 years of progress

Locking back over the last 12 months alone, there are many
examples that Wlustrate these values in action

We think long-term - continually restocking the development
pipehne with new opportunities

AT Our successful busmess models based on a long-
REMOVED | [erm approach to regeneration and development

Be it a new acquisition offering excellent potential
for development and income, entering a new marketplace that
offers a recurrning revenue stream or bullding speculatively

in an area with good prospects for economic growth, this
long-term approach ensures we are continually adding value
to our existing 6,000 acre land bank as well as creating new
opporunities for ts growth

In this way, we have maintained an active commercial
development pipeline this year, which now stands at 1 6msq ft
As we complete our developments, we seek to restock

the pipeline with new opportunities For example, Longbridge
has been transformed from a disused car factory to a lving,
breathing new community and a key business destunation

for Birmingham At i1ts heart 1s a new Town Centre for which
the second phase completed i November 2015 marked

by opening of the 150,000 sq ft Marks & Spencer and other
national retallers

In the coming year, new opportunities include a variety of
schemes throughout the UK, such as a 214,000 sq ft design
and build project for Travis Perkins in Whittey, Coventry and
148,000 sq ft of speculative development in Avonmouth, Bristol
of which over 50% 1s now let and sold

We are innovative - creaung new revenue streams

We have the confidence 1n our own abilities
s | to tackle complex schemes and we embrace
challenges, always adopung a pragmauc approach
which enables us to manage risk and make the night decisions
for business growth whilst delvering shareholder value

Thus year 1S no exception as we completed a major milestone
for the New Covent Garden Market site which achieved
uncondiional status in Apnl This 1s a particularly complex
and innovative development interms of planning, design
and engneerng
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We also demonstrated innovation through the introduction of
Income Producing Residential’ to our portfolio This comprises
two new revenue streams for the business that highlight our
ability to increase the flow of development profits and create
further sources of Income

St Modwen Student Living, Bay Campus - to coincide with
the opening of the Bay Campus for Swansea Universiy, we
established a team of facilittes management professionals to
manage the retained student accommodation and associated
facilines for this major new asset in South Wales

Private Rented Sector {(PRS) - having monitored this
growing marketplace over the last couple of years, in 2015 we
completed two initial PRS schemes in Wembley and Rugby
We expect to grow in this market in 2016/17

Finally, the growth of 5t Modwen Homes shows how we
can assess our existing land bank carefully and bring new,
value-adding opportunities (o Ife

We do what we say - deivering for all our stakeholders

As a trusted developer, we can be relied upon to
speak plainly and knowledgeably to our curreng
and prospective partners In addition, when

we know a decssion 1s the night one, having undertaken the
appropriate analysis, we will atways follow through

GRAPHIC
REMOVED

During 2015 we have taken advantage of strong investar
interest by disposing of a nurmnber of mature assets to which
we could no longer add matenal value At the sarme time
we acquired new assets from which we can extract good
latent value

The acquisition of Kirkby Town Centre is a good example

of our commitment to acquire valuable new property Ina

£35 8m transaction, we added this Town Cenire scheme,
which combines development and income producing potential,
to the carrying amount of our £1 7on* portfolio

We also deliver on our promises in terms of the development
of design and build projects for major UK occupiers

This ncludes Screwfix, which in 2015 extended its existing
distribution hub In Stoke-on-Trent by 310,000 sq ft to
630,000 sq ft Following the completion of this project, we
converted it INto an opportunity (o delver further value for
shareholders by disposing of the asset for £18 1mto the
Prudential Assurance Co Ltd

From a major project perspective, n 2013 we made a
commitment io Swansea University that we would complete
the new Bay Campus by September 2015 This year we
achieved exactly this, opervng the first phase, comprising
775,000 sq ft, to 917 new studenis on tme and within budget

* On a proportienally consolidated basis meluding share of joint ventures
Please see note 2¢ to the Group Finanaal Staternents

Dividend

Our policy 1s to increase our dvidends in ine with the growth

in net asset value and to reflect the Company's results For the

year ended 30" November 2015, the Board 1s recommending

a 25% increase in the total dividend for the year to 5 75p per

share (2014 4 6p per share), gvng a final dvidend for the year \
of 3 85p per share (2014 3 137p per share) The final dividend

will be paid on 1% April 2016 to shareholders on the register at |
4" March 2016

People

These record results would not have been possible without the
passion of our talented team of dedicated staff Embodying our
values of Innovation, comrmiiment and long-term thinking,

they are cntical to the success of the business and | would

like to express my thanks to everyone at St Modwen for their
continuing valuable contribution

Board changes

In March 2015 John Salmon retired from the Board after more
than nine years' service His position as Audit Committee
Chairman has been assumed by lan Bull, who joined the Board
in September 2074 lan 1s currently Chief Finanaial Officer and
main board director at Ladbrokes plc

We welcomed Rob Hudson to the Board in September 2015
on his appointment as Group Finance Director Rob, previously
Group Financial Controller at Briush Land Company plc, has
wide-ranging financial skills and expenence together with
property sector knowledge which makes him an excellent
addmion to the Board

Prospects

We have a long track record of unrvalled regeneration
expertise, robust asset management skills and a proven ability
to realise value from our extensive land bank 2016 marks

30 years of such success and we see continued progress in
each of these areas of the business in the year ahead

Whilst we are currently experiencing macro-economic
uncertainty, we anticipate a continued, if slow, overall
improvement in the UK economy with sustained growth in

the regions Our extensive regional portfolio provides us with

a good base from which we will continue to realise residential
and commercial development opportuniies, either from our
existing land bank or through new acquisitions In addition, our
retained portfolio of assets and new ventures, including income
producng residental, should ensure a continued stream of
recurning ncome that conunues to underpin the business
running costs

We therefore look towards 2016 with a sense of optimism and
look forward 1o growing the business further and enhancing
shareholder value

Bill Shannon
Charrman

1% February 2016
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Chief Executive’s Review

“It is extremely pleasing to achieve
record profits and growth from a year
of excellent delivery across all areas
of the portfolio.”

BILL OLIVER
Chief Executive

IMAGE
REMOVED

CHART
REMOVED

CHART
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Photo We achleved unconditional status for the New Covent Garden
Market site in Apnil 2015

This has been anather record year for the business, resutung
In an unprecedented increase n profit before all tax of 91%
to £258 4m (2014 £135 4m) and a significant 27% increase in
NAV per shareto 413 5p (2014 3251p)

It has been a year of major achievement across the portfolio,
where we have recycled capital through disposals of mature
assets such as Cranfield University Technology Park into added-
value acquisitions including Kirkby Town Centre purchased off a
net initial yreld of 9% on the main Shopping Centre

This was a year in which we brought forward a further
400,000 sq ft into the commercial development pipeline,
underhning our ability to secure new opportunities and extract
maximum value from our 6,000 acre land bank

It was also a year during which we established two new
revenue streams the first through the managerment of income
from student accommodation at the Bay Campus for Swansea
University by our newly created ‘St Modwen Student Lving’
business and the second through delivery of our first two
developments for the Private Rented Sector (PRS) at Wembley
Central and Rugby

We also saw continued growth of our housebuilding business,
cutminating in an overall profit increase of 21% to £29m
(2014 £24m), of which St Modwen Homes contributed £12m
(2014 £8m) and the Persimmon jomnt venture* contributed
E17m (2014 £16m)

Our achievements in 2015 were exemnphfied by the completion
of key milestones across all major projects, making a strong
contribution to this excellent set of results Each of these
projects reflected a specific facet of our business model

New Covent Garden Market demonstrated our ability 1o add
sigrificant value to brownfield land through our planmng skills,
as we achieved uncondivonal status in the first half of the
year, adding a net £127 4m of value to our property portfolio
Works to the new market commenced in the second half

of the year, signifying a major step towards securing vacant
possession of the 10 acre Nine Elms Square site and we will
explore our options to either sell, joint venture or develop the
site duning 2016

* Aserles of commernial corracts with Persmmon.
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+ As the second phase opened in Novemmber 2015, Longbridge  Strategy overview

Town Centre highlighted our skill in generating an increased
stream of Income from our development projects that helps
to underpin the running costs of the business Anchored by
a 150,000 sq ft Marks & Spencer store, the largest in the
Midlands, and additional retall already leased to a number of
major national occupiers, the Town Centre will now generate
£3 2m of annuahsed income

* The Bay Campus developed for Swansea University 1s a
prime example of our expertise in cleaning up brownfield
sites to develop thrving new communities that contribute
positively to the local and broader economy, whilst delivering
substanual recurnng income and shareholder value
We have retained ownership of the income from the student
accommodation, the first phase of which opened its doors In
September 2015 housing 917 new students and the second
phase opened in January 2016 Demonstrating our long-term
approach to development, the flexibility of our land bank and
our ability to deliver cononued growth, in December 2015 we
signed a development agreement with Swansea University
to develop Phase 3 which will be available to new students In
Septernber 2017 and will bring the total number of student
rooms to 2,000

We are constantly adding value to our 6,000 acre land
bank and growing our development pipetine through
initiatives carried out by our regional tearms of property and
construction experts

These initiatives include remediating brownfield land and
successfully securing planning permissions in order for sites

to be carefully and sensitively redeveloped We also keep our
retained properties, both mature and newly developed, under
constant review, running them for income for a period of ume
uniil we take a strategic decision to erther therr redevelopment
or disposal This income stream underpins the running costs of
the business

We are always looking for the next opportunity and actively
working our land bank at all stages of the development cycle
As our major projects reach their peaks, new prospects
across our regional portfolio are already being identified and
prepared in order to deliver maximum value for shareholders
In the future

Development

Number of % pre let/ expenditure Ghv
Commercial development pipeline schemes sq it pre sold £m £m
Movement during the year
Posimon at 30" November 2014 32 2,045,000 62% 136 259
Sold/transferred to investment properties (10) (855,000}
Schemes added to the pipeline 11 400,000
Position at 30 November 2015 33 1,550,000 51% 114 213
Analysis of position at 30* November 2015
Retall 10 305,000 50% 28 64
Industnal 23 1,285,000 52% 86 149
Total 33 1,590,000 51% 114 213
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Chief Executive's Review (continued)

Market overview
°\Ne See oppartunity Pages 10 and 11

As a regeneration specialist, our activities touch many sectors
of the property market The way we manage our land bank and
Implement our strategy ensures that we have the flexibility to
alter our development focus at any time in the economic cycle

Our biggest project by value, New Covent Garden Market, 1s
located in London but our regional presence in the UK defines
the business and has done so for the last 30 years

Overall, our commitment to the regions has continued to
produce results during the year

Active commeraal marketplace

Our commercal marketplace, predominantly spanning retail
and industrial space, has fared well with our major projects
expenenang an exceptional year in terms of delivery and
income generation Overall, our programme of commercial
development s now at 1 6m sq ft and we will continue to add
new opportunities to the pipefine as schemes complete

Qur programme of speculative space 1s now at 775,000 sq ft
for which we have been successful in securing a number of key
tenants over the last 12 months We expect this momentum to
continue In lIne with current occupler demand

We have also secured a number of significant design and build
projects this year, demonstrating appetite from larger tenants
for new premises as they expand or relocate These include
the Defence Infrastructure Organisation (B1O) which has
committed to a £32m residentiat facility for military staff
working at the Royal Centre for Defence Medicine (RCDM)
Birrungham, to be delvered at Longbnidge and Trawvis Perkins
for which we started on site with a 214,000 sq ft regional
disinbutton centre in Whitley, Coventry

We are experiencing a steady flow of tenant demand for our
existing space, enablng us to grow our siream of recurring
income which, in turn, helps 1o underpin the running costs of
the business and provides a firm financial footing from which
we operate

Our asset management capabilities continue to deliver strong
net rental ncome from our retained development portfolio

In particular, the regeneration of Wembley Central, completed
in March 2015, combines an excellent mix of retail, leisure,
residential and office space which is now generating an
annualised net rental income of £2 2m

The Company completed or secured a number of acquisitions
this year for a total value of £95m in order to grow the portfolio
and extend its development pipeline further In addition to
Kirkby Town Cenire, other highlights inctude industrial estates
at Moorgate Point in Liverpool and Old Millin Preston

The retail market remains competitive across the UK as
retailers face the challenge of meeting ever-changing customer
demands in an increasingly crowded space Nevertheless, we
have managed to remain successful in this market and have
created a good level of retaifer demand for our schemes which
are well-located, predominantly mixed-use and therefore offer
a one-stop-shop for the iIncreasingly busy consumer

Strong investment market

This year saw strong nvestor interest for commercial property
which we captured through the sale of a number of our
mature sites and newly developed assets This included the
delivery of three distribution centres, comprising a total of
189,000 sq ft, for express delwvery service DPD (UK} at three

of our sites across the UK Demonstrating the appetite within
the invesior marketplace, we disposed of all three assets in
two separate transactions at the tme of tenant occupation at
yields of 5% and 5 3%

IMAGE
REMOVED

Photo One of the three distribution centres bullt for DPD (UK) and
subsequently sold




Strategic Report

2-45 46-99

Corporate Governance

Financial Statements
100-164

Additional Information
165-176

Strong residential market

The residential part of our business 15 a core element of our
strength in the regions The planning process continues to
prove chaltenging nationwide and has presented a delay to
some site starts during the year However, across our extensive
portfolio we have successfully secured over 1,438 homes
through planning permissions granted in the year

Demand still remains high for new homes across the UK with
regional house price inflation surpassing bulld cost inflation
The Help to Buy initiative has contributed posiiively to sales
rates, underlining the need for affordable properties to meet
demand from first time buyers

We have continued to grow in this market and remain strong
in the regions due to our ability to realise development
opportunities from our own land bank and our skill in adding
value through planning which enables us to satisfy quickly third
party housebuilder demand for land

Qur residential development activities have grown out of the
Midlands and we are now active across many other parts of the
UK including the South West, South Wales, the North West and
in parts of London

Business outlook

During the next 12 months we will continue to add value

to the portfolic and realise milestones across our projects

New Covent Garden Market will be a particular focus, where
we will progress towards vacant possession of the 10 acre Nine
Elms Square site and we will explore our options to either sell,
joint venture or develop the site duning 2016

Across our commercial portfolio, we anucpate an ongoing
steady stream of tenant demand At the same ume, our
development pipeline will continue to be restocked with new
opportunities as we embark on new speaculative schemes and
design and bulld projects

We expect an equally keen investor market in 2016 and will
progress with the disposal of those assets from within our
portfolio which have reached maturity Simularly, we will remain
acquisitive, seeking new opportunities to grow our land bank,
generate more income and ulumately convert into our ongoing
programme of development

We anticipate steady demand for our residential land from
third party housebuilders On the development side, we
antiaipate the continued growth of St Modwen Homes
which will become more dominant and replace profits from
the Persimmen joint venture as it draws to s natural close
by 2018

The newly established Income Producing Residential route to
market will experience further growth as new opportunities
come on line and as we look for other prospects within our
own Jland bank that enable us to enter emerging or existing
markets, with the aim of continually bolstering levels of
recurring INCome

Finally, 2016 marks our 30" anniversary as a histed company
and provides for an opportunity to celebrate the positive
impact we have made to the UK landscape during this time,
creating new communities that lead to job creaton, helping io
boost the local, regional and national economy and delivenng
sigruficant shareholder value

8ill Oliver
Chief Eaecutive

1%t February 2016
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Our marketplace

WE SEE OPPORTUNITY

As a regeneration specialist, our activities touch many sectors of

the property market. Our regional presence has defined the business

for the last 30 years. Our commitment to this marketplace has
continued to produce results during the year with our commercial

development pipeline now at 1.6m sq ft.

Market trends and focus*

GRAPHIC
REMOVED

GRAPHIC
REMOVED

GRAPHIC
REMOVED

GRAPHIC
REMOVED

COMMERCIAL

Market trends

The commeraal marketplace 1s performing well,
particularly the industrial sector where there 1s good
demand across most UK occupational and investment
markets

Despite a steady pick up in speculative development, the

supply constraints 1n the big bex and mult-let sectors
show hitle signs of easing, which is forcing occupiers

RETAIL

Market trends

Qutside of Central London, the retail market remasins
compeutve as retallers are trading in an increasmgly
crowded spate, with the added challenge of having

to continually diversify thelr offering to meet the ever
changing demands of the consumer

Technology, accessibihiy and the combination of
demand for aleisure offering and night time economy

RESIDENTIAL

Market trends

The planrning process continues to prove challengmng
nationwide

Demand for new homes remains high with regional
house price inflation surpassing bulld cost inflation

The Help to Buy mitiative 1s making a positive contribution
to sales rates and underlining the need for affordable
properues to meet dernand from first tme buyers

INVESTMENT

Market trends

The low interest rate environment, coupled with
relatively high and stable income yields of UK

commercial property, 1s still proving attractive to
new Investors

* Source Cushman & Wakefield

and investors to broaden their search criteria and
target good quality stock in well-located second tier
and secondary markets

Demand for prime office space in key regional business
hubs 1s strengthening, driven by the services sector,
although overall take up s constraned by the lack of
prirne stock

IS Browing i importance to satisfy customers’
continually evolving tastes

This considered, there 1s steady improvement in
spealfic areas of the country Secondary High Street
markets have yet to build notable momentum with
maoderate demand

The Private Rented Sector (PRS) 1s now the second
largest rental provider in England 19% of all households
are renung privately whilst home-ownership has fallen
to 64%

Investment activity has been arded by greater depth
and ligudity in the finanang market, particularly in
the regions, targeting opportunities across pnime and
secondary markets

As we enter 20186, yield compression is anticipated to
continue and swong demand and high pricing expected
to persist
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What does this mean for St. Modwen?

We will continue to add to our 1 6m sg ft
commet izl property pipeline as we reach
completion af those projects in builld

Our programme of speculative
development will be progressed across
the UK 1o meet ongoing demand

The mixed-use, well-lecated nature

of our predeminantly secondary retail
portfolio, combining a Town Centre
offering with leisure, work space and
housing, has enabled us to remain
successful in this market and attract
retailers 1o our schemes

Through our strong 1egional presence
we will continue to realise residential
development opportumties from

our own fand bank as well as making
appropriate acquisitions that suit our
portfolio and experuse

We will continue 1o capture this strong
investor interest through the disposal

of those properues within our portfolio

to which we can no longer add material
value remnvesting the revenue raised back
1n1o the business

We will continue to maximise revenue
streams through our asset management
capabilities and remain acquisitive for new
ocpportunities that enable value creation
through recurring sncome and ultimately
development

We will continue to rernain abreast of
consumer tastes and adapt our offering
accordingly to ensure maximum return
on investment across this marketplace

St Modwen Homes will become more
domunant and take over from the
Persimmon joInt venture as It draws to its
natural close by 2018

Having already expertenced good returns
from our two 1nitial PRS schemes, we expect
to grow in this marketplace in 2016

The disposal of retained property I1s not
confined to our mature assets We also
release assets for sale to satisfy specific
Investor demand in the marketplace

IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Our business model

WE SEE OURSELVES DIFFERENTLY

Our business model generates recurring revenue and
drives portfolio value It s successful because it enables
us to reinvest continually into the business, ensuring a
steady stream of development opportunities and income.

TABLE
REMOVED
OUR VALUES
GRAPHIC GRAPHIC GRAPHIC
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED

We think long-term We are innovative We do what we say
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Purpose and values How we create income
Sales income
GRAPHIC GRAPHIC GRAPHIC We retain acquired commercial properties or existing retall
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED centres for income as they await redevelopment Once a
development s completed, we either retain it, run it for income

Our business model generates recurring revenue and drives
portfolio value [t1s successful because it enables us to reinvest
continually Into the business, ensuring a steady stream of
development opportunites and income At It core Sits our
corporate values

+ We think long-term
We are innovative
We do what we say

These values drive the business madel, defining employee
behaviour and our approaches to development and
regeneration, ulimately resuiting in value ¢reation

Land bank cleaning

We have a land bank of 6,000 acres, of which 90% 1s previously
used (or brownfield) land

As the UK's leading expert in regeneration, cleaning up or
remediating brownfleld land 1s fundamental to everything we
do In doing so, we have a posiive iImpact on the environment
and we add value to this iow-cost development resource which
In turn enables us to breathe new life into previously neglected
areas of the country through redevelopment and without the
need for significant financing

New and existing industrial partners choose us as their
developer of choice as they trust our proven capability to
remove risk from any site through our expertise and innovation
in remediation, leaving them a legacy to be proud of

Asset development

Once a site has been cleaned we start to realise our wision for
its redevelopment through our regional teams

Our strong track record in securing consents to develop our
proposed schemes is testament to the skill of these regional
teams who, throughout the planming process, will actively
consult with the local community, the relevant local authonties
and associated agencies 1o ensure our proposals remain
sensitive to local need In addition, our close contact with these
key stakeholders ensures our plans include the nght balance
of housing, commercial space, supporting Infrastructure and
community facilites

Our skills in this area can be applied to small developments or
long-term and complex regeneration projects

and then sell on ence we can add no further matenal value,
or we release it immediately to satisfy investor demand within
the market

Similarly, we sell remediated brownfield land with planning |
permission to housebulders at a significantly higher value than
tiwally acquired

Rental Income

Whether awaiting redevelopment or newly completed, our
iIndividual properties are worked hard by our teams of hughly
skilled asset managers via regular rent reviews, lease renewals
and careful property maintenance which delivers a strong
revenue stream for the business

Furthermore, our Innovatie approach 10 development

enables us to assess our existing land bank for other sources
of revenue This year we added a new Income stream 1o

our portfolio by way of Income Producing Residential’ which
Includes revenue receved from our properties held in the
Private Rented Sector (PRS) and through the newly created

‘St Modwen Student Living' business to manage retained
incomne fram student accammedation at Bay Campus, Swansea
University Both streams will increase as we grow into these
new areas of the business

How value is returned to shareholders/reinvested
The revenue raised from rental income and properiy sales
either helps to underpin the running costs of the business or1s
reinvested into new land or properties that are run for iIncome
inially, before their ultimate redevelopment which n turn
triggers the cycle of the business model once more

This underhying and recurring source of Income reduces
dramatically our reliance on bank finance and third party
funding and prowides us with a firm financial footng from
which to fund our own development opportunities and delver
shareholder value

Simularty, our regeneration activities in terms of brownfield
renewal, the creation of new communities and business
destinations as well as our Investment in new opportunities
help to promote NAV growth and deliver strong
shareholder returns

Outputs and outcomes \
The business model enables us to invigorate once neglected

spaces, former industnal estates and disused brownfield land

and create thrming new communities, business parks and new

Town Centres that help to satisfy housing demand, create

new jobs and provide a boost to the immediate, regiona! and

national economy It also helps to ensure that we put into place

the right mix of uses and supporting infrastructure and create

new places that can be enjoyed for generations to come
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Regeneration and remediation

IMAGE
REMOVED

WE SEE POTENTIAL

Photo Reclamation at Glan Liyn,

The clean up and renewal of previously used
(brownfield) land is central to the progress of
development in the UK and is fundamental to
St. Modwen’s business model. We are experts in
this field, having reclaimed thousands of acres of
brownfield land over the last 30 years.

site of the former Utanwern steelworks, Newport,

South Wales where we are now delivering a £1bn new community
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Cleaning up, recycling and reusing this previously developed
land goes hand in hand with safeguarding the countryside and
presenving natural habitats It also helps to tackle the blight of
dereliction by transforrming poor quality sites into flourishing
new communities and successful business destinations that
trigger future economic growth

Our expertise in this area rests with our team of highly

skilled consiruction experts who work closety with the
Environment Agency and other associated Government
regulators to ensure that we employ the latest and most
sustainable, environmentally responsible techniques across
our remediation and construction projecis In doing so, we

pay close attention to energy consumption, use of sustainable
resources, minirmising waste and reduaing our consumption of
raw matenals

Across our developable fand bank there are currently hundreds
of acres of land n the process of being remediated, reclaimed,
remodelled and redeveloped The following ¢ase study brings
our rare skill in this fundamental area of regeneration to Ife

Longbridge, Birmingham

Remediation works commenced on the 468 acre Longhridge
site n 2001 At the time, it compnsed four main sub-sites
namely North Warks, South Works, East Works and West
Works, with two smaller sites known as Flight Shed (formerty an
engine test and fuel storage facility) and Cofton Works All were
located around the (still operational) Shanghal Automotive
works Phased remediation works were agreed with the
Ervironmental Authorities in ine with an evoling masterplan
and programme

The main elemenis of the remediation strategy included

removal of any hydrocarbon impacted material, including soil
and ground water,

- use of biophysical techniques to clean up soil in compliance
with risk-based remediation targets agreed with the
Ervironmental Authorities,

moniioring and validation of shallow and deep
groundwater quality,

careful monitoring of dust, noise, odour and surface
water levels,

- placement of remediated sail to an engineering specification,

- regular samples taken of remediated matenals to
demonsirate targets have been achieved,

- Installation of gas monitoring boreholes and subsequent
monitoring to confirm any preventative measures required
for future development, and

- producuon of reports for approval by the Environmental
Authorities to support planning

Particular remediation challenges at Longbndge included
East Works - preparation of development plateau at the
East Works site which required the transfer and placement of
approximately 120,000 tonnes of soil,

Flight Shed - this site has been subject to a six-year long
hydrocarbon extraction, recovery and recycling exercise to
remove a plume within former tunnels and the surrounding
sotls, and

East Works (northern area) - this site was prepared to
include a cut off wall 1o protect the site from surrounding
impacted areas and has since been redeveloped into a
housing scheme under our joint venture with Persimmon

This meticulous approach to remediation has been
instrumenta! in the transformation of this brownfield site

from a former car plant to a thriving new community for this
part of Birmingham which now comprises a Town Centre,
£66m Bournville College, Technology Park, employment centre,
residential development and two new parks

IMAGE
REMOVED

Photo Remediation at the Longbridge site

Corporate Social Responsibllity Pages 42-45

For more information on our CSR activitles
please see our February 2016 CSR bocklet or
visit, www.stmodwen-csr to uk
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Resources and relationships

WE SEE PROSPECTS

Our long lasting partnerships with key stakeholders
are pivotal to the success of our regeneratton activities,
These relationships are complemented by a key set of
resources, and together they enable us to create value

and generate strong returns.

Resources

Relationships

Employees
Qur employees are the driving

Local communities
and tenants

force behind our success and We seek 10 maintam good working
we aim to atiract, develap and relationships with our extensive
;‘3‘3'” the best people AC“’;S ail ed IMAGE tenant base through our regional IMAGE
1sciphines we empiloy a highly shille: and local asset management teams
team to safeguard our values and REMOVED Wae en REMOQVED
gage with communities
delver excellent returns whilst throughout development to ensure
protecting assets we remain sensitive ta the impact of
our schemes
Financial capital Private sector and jvs
Our recurning Income stream We have a number of long term
underpins the running costs of the refationships with private sector
buseness Whilst we maintain strong partners either In joint venture
relationships with key banks, we are IMAGE or through land acquilsitions or IMAGE
not reliant on bank finance and have development agreements Qur
diversified our sources of funding REMOVED core vaiues help to maintain these REMOVED
through equity and debt Issues relationsheps from which we seek to
secure maximum mutual value
Land bank Public sector and regulators
Qur £1 7bn property portfolio We work with local authentles
1s managed across our 6,000 and public sector arganisations
acre land bank At any pomntin at a regional level throughout the
time we are continually adding IMAGE Ifecycle of an asset. We also wark IMAGE
value 10 1t through remedlation closely with the HSE, Environment
planning, development, disposals REMOVED Agency and other Government REMOVED
and new acquisiions regulators to ensure best practice 1s
met at all stages of delwery
Buildings Supply chain
Where possible we seek to Our supply chain partners are
reuse existing bu:ldings during required to share our core principles
development. However where of deltvering to the hrghest quality,
demolition 1s necessary we will |MAGE on ume and within budget Many |MAGE
reclaim and recyde as much of our contractors work with us on
existing maienial as is possible to REMOVED anumber of schemes enhancing REMOVED
reduce both cost and the impact mutual understanding and trust
on the environment
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Bay Campus, Swansea University

Professor Iwan Davies,
Pro-Vice Chancellor, Swansea University

"The Bay Campus has been recogrised as among the most
ambitious projects in the UK higher education sector for decades

"Its realisation, in partnership with St Modwen, heralds a new era
and new status for Swansea University which 1s transforming
Into a global exemplar of a 21 Century University and one that
promotes and champions the student experience

"St Modwen has been fundamental in adopung this vision and
enabling the University to deliver the first stage of this ambitious
development on time and on budget This has been achieved
through the excepuional and dedicated project management
of St Modwen's seror team and the relatonship with the
construction supply chain that they have managed throughout
the process

"In additton, St Modwen has respecied the University's pohcy

N prometng regional opportunities wherever that 1s possible
The impact has been 170 contracts being awarded within Wales
and almosi 7,000 jobs during the 26-month construction period

IMAGE
REMOVED

Longbridge, Birmingham

Sacha Berendji, Director of Retail,
Marks & Spencer

"At £50,000 sq it. ME&S Lengbridge is one of our biggest
stores Thewibrancy and cannectivity of the area plus the
diverse, growing populatuon made it the perfect location and
St Modwen's ongoing regeneration of Longbridge is establishing
it as a truly mixed use model of sustainability

Richard Burden,
MP for Birmingham Northfield

"For a hundred years, Longbndge was not only a byword for car
making - one of the defining industries of the twenueth century
It has also been central to the dentity of this part of Birmingham,
part of the s culture and the way people thought about
themselves and their communities

"So the coltapse of the former MG Rover plant in 2005 was a
huge blow, not only to the ecanomy but to the self-confidence
of local people Therefore redeveloping the site has been about
rebulding anidentity and a commundy's self-confidence as much
as the massive physical scale of the challenge involved

St Modwen's - and St Modwen Homes' - role in taking this
forward has been and remamns pivotal - from the reclamation of
acres upon acres of industrial land to the construction of new
homes, a town centre and the attracuon of new businesses
The developer has also been prvotal In proactively engaging with
local people both directly and through therr representatives

"There 15 sull a long way 1o go unul the project 1s complete butitis
umportant 1o recognise how much the developer has contnbuted
it )s gooed to have them as partners on Longbndge’s cimb into
the future "

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Our strategy and KPIs
As the UK's leading regeneration specialist, our expertise
In remediation, planning, asset development and
construction supports our strategy of securing excellent
returns through a focus on long-term significant added
value while protecting our assets.
Secure excellent Our broad regeneration expertise and land bank
GRAPHIC returns of 6,000 acres prowvides us with the flexibility to
REMOVED "es mave with market demands and pursue those
opportunities that generate the greatest value at
any one time
...thl'Ol.lgh a We have the financial strength and wision to
GRAPHIC . acquire sites opportunisticatly that have clear
REMOVED focus ‘!“ I?'.‘g potential to benefit from our specialist value-
term S|gn|flcant adding skills and which can generate profits
added value... from commercial and residental development at
every stage of the property lifecycle
..While As the UK's leading regeneration specialist we strive
GRAPHIC H to adopt only the most sustainable approaches to
REMOVED prOteCtlng regeneration and development We operate from
our assets a firm financral footing, carefully monitoring cash

flow and debt, whilst our development actvities are
underpinned by a reliable and recurring income
stream that enables us to fund our cost base and
progress our longer-term regeneration projects at
low nisk and n a profitable manner
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crarHc | Secure excellent
REMOVED | returns...
Objectives Progress Next steps

Invest at a point In the property lifecycle
from which we can achieve maximum
development returns

Maximise indimdual asset values through
our locally-based expertise

Recycle assets where significant
opportunities to add value are exhausted in
order to generate capital for reinvestment

Principal risks

We have expenenced an exceptionat year,
achieving key value-added milestones
across our £1 7bn property portfolio,
resultng in a valuation gam of £201 7m
Maost notably for all major projects Phase 2
of Longbridge Town Centre completed,

Bay Campus for Swansea University opened
and NCGM reflected on the Balance Sheet.

Net asset value has continued to grow with
gans predominantly secured through our
own asset management inibiatives, handled
in each region and including remedistion,
planning gains, rental growth and strategic
disposal of mature assets

Against the backdrop of sorme economic
uncertainty, our prevalence in the regions,
our strong finanaal position and the
diverse nature of cur UK-wide property
portfoho enables us to avoid overexposure
to a single scheme, tenant or sector and
safeguards our strong financial position

Conuinue to grow development profits and
generate valuation gains through planning
gan, strategic acquisitions and identfying
new opportuniues from our existing

6,000 acre land bank

Continue to promote and enhance the
Group's inherent value and long-term
prospects

Develop and grow our net asset base so
that dividends can grow in line Continue to
secure profitable development to generate
consistent future returns

Link to remuneration

Market/economic changes affect market
confidence and in turn, property and equity
valuations

Changes to local and national planning
processes could adversely impact our
strategy by imibng our ability to secure
viable permissions and/or removing
competitive advantage

The management of development 1s a
complex process, with successful delvery
dependent on our expertise

Key performance indicators

Profit before all tax, total dividend for
the year and post dwidend-growth in
shareholders’ equity net asset value
per share were corporate performance
measures of the annual bonus
arrangements for executive directors in
the year

CHART
REMOVED

* Restated

CHART
REMOVED

CHART '
REMOVED
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Our strategy and KPlIs (continued)

GRAPHIC
REMOVED

Objectives

...through a focus on long-term
significant added value...

Progress

Next steps

Build our land bank to delver future
opportumues and secure planning gam,
with a focus on brownfield renewal and
sustainable development

Adapt our asset strategies over the long-
term to meet changing market demands
Employ highly-skilled and motivated
people to deliver our asset strategies and
future growth

Principal risks

We continue to acquire brownfield sites

at low cost and prepare for development
through remediation and securing planring
permissions which in turn realises value

We have completed a number of strategic
acquisitions during the year, predominantly
in the North West, including Kirkby Town
Centre for £35 8m and our appointment

as development manager on the 200 acre
MeD Ashchurch site In this way, we have
added value to the portfolio in terms of
securing immediate rental income and
presenting good future development
potential

The business has grown throughout the
year, expanding each regional team and
St Modwen Homes through a number

of serwor appointments The Group's
management team has grown by 5% to
63 (2014 60), with all having completed a
comprehensive development programme
during the year

The CSR Steering Group 1s now established
and all 10 objectives set at the start of the
period either exceeded, achieved or on
target to achieve

Selective and capital efficient acquisitions

Continue to adopt the latest, most
sustainable, development and
remediation techniques

Continued recycling of assets with

hmited opportunity for further significant
added value Capitalise on heightened
nvestor interest

Continue to retain, recruit and motivate
tughly-skilled people throughout the
business and implement an ongoing
programme of staff training and
management development

Link to remuneration

Unforeseen or fallure to manage long-term
environmental tssues relating to brownfield
or contaminated sites

Inabulity to recrui, develop and retain staff
with the nght skills and expertise, resulting
n disruption/loss of intellectual property
Employment of inadequate practices to
remediate contaminated sites results in
reputational damage

Key performance indicators

Executive directors’ indmdual objectives
for the year's annual bonus arrangements
included people-related targets and

CSR actmties

CHART
REMOVED

CHART
REMOVED

CHART
REMOVED




Strategic Report Corporate Governance Financial Statements Addmional Information 21 !
2-45 46-99 100-164 1653-176
arartic | -..While protecting |
REMOVED | our assets
Objectives Progress Next steps

Maintain an appropnate capital structure
to meet our future development and
funding needs

Generate cash-backed incorme streams
to substantially cover the running costs
of our business

Promote positive Group-wide
Culture towards safety, health and
environmental matters

Principal risks

We continue to nnovate and secure vaiue
from our existing land bank with new
value-added initratives such as ‘iIncormne
producing residential (PRS and 5t Modwen
Student Lving) which generates substanual
recurring income

Recurring income levels are enhanced by
retained income, strategic acquisitons and
robust asset management

No facility refinancing 1s expected before
2018, with refinanctngs staggered between
2018 and 2021

Sufficient headroom now exists with

our cerporate faciliues to enable us to
meet future development and funding
requirements At the date of reporung we
have £554m of facilities against year-end
net barrowings of £443m

Acctdent frequency rates for our
development sites and for St Modwen
Homes significantly outperformed the
industry benchmark in the year

Manage existing finance facilhties to support
ongoing growth

Continued management of investment
and development programme to mamtain
appropriate debt ratios

Continue to enhance levels of recurring
wncome through robust asset management
Actively seek to de-gear and sell more
assets INto a receptive investment market
Continue to attamn or exceed 2016 health
and safety related CSR objectives

Link to remuneration

Reduction in availability of funding, resulting
in lack of hquidity that impacts borrowing
capacity and reduces saleability of assets

Failure to antiipate market changes
through poor market intelligence leads
to selecton of inappropnate schemes,
ulumately impacting commercaal and
residental profit levels

Safety, health and environment
culture leads to a major incident,
resutting in financial penalties and/or
reputational damage

Failure to monitor major projects effectively
leads to higher costs/reduced margins

Key performance indicators

CHART
REMCVED

Gearing levels were a corporate
performance measure of the annual bonus
arrangements for executive directors in
the year

CHART
REMOVED

CHART
REMOVED

CHART
REMOVED

* Adjusted gearing is the ratio of net borrowings
{excluding finance leases) to net assets See note 2
ta the Group Fnandal Statements,
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Commercial land and development

IMAGE
REMOVED

WE SEE JOB CREATION

Our commercial land and development portfolio
has fared well, with our major projects experiencing
an exceptional year in terms of delivery and
income generation. Overall, our programme
of commercial development is now at 1.6m sq ft
and we will continue to add new opportunities
to the pipeline as schemes complete.

Photo Remediation werks at Coed Darcy, the site of the former Llandarcy Oil Refinery
Neath Port Talbot, South Wales where we are now delivering a £1 2bn new community
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Commercial land

Commeraal land and development makes up 9% of the
overall portfolio by value, representing £152m Over the last
12 months, with a view 10 adding value to our commercial
development pipeline, we have continued to secure sites,
predominantly brownfield, at low cost and prepare them for
development through remediation and planning

Once an asset or new community 1S built, we either dispose
of tor retan it as a long-term income producing asset In line
with the Company's strategy, many of our assets have further
development potential

During the penod, we have secured a number of commercal-
led brownfield land opportunities

Highlights

Kirkby, Liverpool - an existing Town Centre with potential
for the development of 120,000 sq ft of new retail and leisure
space including a foodstore which, subject to planning, could
starton site In 2017

Brentwood, Essex - a straiegic 58 acre site, situated at
junctien 29 of the M25, for which a development agreement
was signed with the landowners in July 2015 The site will
now be progressed through the planning system and

then developed inta 1m sq ft of industrial, logistics and
office space

Formby, Merseyside - a 40 acre site to be progressed
through ptanning with a view to developing 100,000 sq ft of
retail, 350,000 sq ft of new employment space and enhanced
sparts faalities

Commercial planning and development milestones
We are active across our 6,000 acre land bank at every stage
of the development cycle, and throughout the year we have
continued 1o secure planning approvals for commercial-led
schemes which have enabled us to add to our prpeline of
development and delivery

Planning highlights

- Burton Gateway, Burton upon Trent - planning consent
has been secured for an additional 230,000 sq ft of
distribuuon and industrial space at this key site for East
Staffordshire, takung the total amount of planned employment
space to Tm sq ft Construction works began speculatively
on the first warehouse of 87,000 sq ft In the second half of
the year

- Centurion Park, Tamworth - plans to buitd 200,000 sq ft of
industrial accommodation have been granted permission by
North Warwickshire Borough Councll Works to a 53,000 sq ft
unit started speculatvely in August 2015, this 1s now under
offer to a tenant for occupation in June 2016 Once complete,
works 0 another speculative uni, comprising 153,000 sq ft of
space, will commence

+ Nunnery Park, Worcester - planning permission has been
granted by Worcester City Councit for a 20 acre mixed-use
developmeni which provides up to 160,000 sq ft of business
and industral units as well as a car showroom, public house
and ‘drive-thru’ restaurant

Commercial development highlights

» Letchworth Industrial Estate, Letchworth - commenced as
a speculative development in January 2015, this 90,000 sq ft
industnal estate 1s now complete and fully let to two major
operators, Tyco and Titan Logistics {a DPD (UK)-ranchisee)
have leased 75,000 sq ft and 15,000 sq ft, respectively
Generating an annual rental ncome of £680,000, the
investment has been sold post year-end at a yield of 5 2%

Whitley Business Park, Coventry - following a land sale

and agreement to build a 214,000 sq ft regional distribution
centre for Travis Perkins, for which works are due to complete
In Spring 2016, jJust seven acres now remain on this 93 acre
site which 1s under offer for sale to Jaguar Land Rover

Access 18, Avenmouth - further to securning a pre-let

with parcel distnbuton firm ‘MyHermes' for a 43,000 sq ft
warehouse which was sold to Associated British Foods for

£5 6 at ayield of 59%, Kent Foods took a 37,000 sq ft
speculative unit as an owner-occcupier for £3 6m On the back
of these two transaciions we are progressing with a further
68,000 sq fi of speculative space

+ DPD (UK) - three distribution centres were successfully
developed, totalling 189,000 sq ft of space, for express
delivery service DPD (UK} at our sites at Skypark in Exeter,
Etruria Valley in Stoke-on-Trent and Stonebridge in Liverpool
The three assets were subsequently sold in iwo separate
transactions at yieids of 5% and 5 3%, both completed upon
tenant occupation

+ Technology Retall Park, Rugby - this 100,000 sa ft retall
park was already 100% pre-let to major retallers including
Homebase, Wickes, Bensons for Beds and Pets at Home
before construction started in 2014 Prior to works
completing It was so'd to Aberdeen Asset Management for
£17 4m, reflecung a net imial yield of 5 75%

- Screwfix, Stoke-on-Trent - having extended an existing
320,000 sq ft distribution hub to 630,000 sq fi for this natonal
retaller of trade tools, accessones and hardware products,
within two months of completion the asset was sold to the
Prudential Assurance Co Lid for £18 1m

Outlook

We anticipate sustained actvity in the commercaial sector
during 2016 and we will cantinue to build on our 1 6m sq ft
commercaal development pipeline {o meet ongoing

regional tenant demand

23
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Residential

IMAGE
REMOVED

WE SEE COMMUNITIES

The residential part of our business is a core element
of our strength in the regions. We have continued
to grow in this area due to our ability to realise
development opportunities from our own land bank
and our skill in adding value through planning.

Photo Meon Vale, a new £500m Warwickshire community
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We acquire potential residential fand at low cost and add to its
value through remediation and secuning planning permissions
Residenual land and development 1s now the largest part of the
portfolio, by value, representing 46% or £772m To date, we
have realised this value through three routes to market

- Residenual land sales
St Modwen Homes
* Perssmmon joint venture

This year we added another route to market, namely Income
Producing Residential which demonstrates our ability to
increase our flow of development profits and create a further
source of recurnng income from our residentiat land bank
There are two facets to this retained income from student
accommodation at the Bay Campus managed by the newly
established St Modwen Student Living business and our

first two PRS developments at Wembley Central and Rughby
Combined, these represent a further £106m, or 6% of the
wider portfolio by value

Performance - Residential fand

Qur ongoing ability to secure planning permissions for
residential land has contnued this year and 80% of our
portfolo {over 26,000 plots) has either planning permissions
or allocations within locaf plans Cverall, we have increased the
size of our residential portfolio to 32,516 plots (2014 28,790)
as we contnue to top-up this part of the land bank with

new opportunities

Hightights
MoD Ashchurch, Gloucestershire - ViNCI St Mocdwen (VSM)
was appointed as Development Manager by the Defence
Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) for the regeneration of MaD
Ashchurch This 200 acre site provides an opportunity to
deliver a new mixed-use community comprising up to 1,900
new homes and around 15 acres of land for employment
use VSM will work closely with DIO to fund, manage and lead
the developmeni

Whittington Road, Worcester - an 18 5 acre site from the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA)

Once planning permissions are secured we either retain

the site to develop ourselves or we sell on to third party
housebullders This year we sold or agreed for sale 70 1 acres
of land secuning £87m of value

Highlights
- Millbrook Park, Mill Hill - the sale of 6 9 acres of land to

Taylor Wimpey and Prime Place (part of Wilmott Dixon Group)
for atotal of £43m

Pirell, Burton upon Trent - the sale of 16 5 acres of land to
Persimmaon for £8 ém

* Pye Green, Worcestershire - the sale of 17 4 acres of land
to Barratt Homes for £8 2m

Planning consents achieved - highlights

New Covent Garden Market, London - for 3,019 homes
(600 affordable) and 100,000 sq ft of office and retail space,
plus a 500,000 sq ft new market

Meon Vale, Warwickshire - for 550 homes at this 479 acre
leisure-led development in addion to planning already
abtained for 500 homes, of which over 230 have been
developed by 5t Modwen Homes and Persimmon

Hendrefoilan, Swansea - for up to 300 homes on this
site which 1s currently accommadating an existing Swansea
Unmversity student village

Apphications submitted - haghlights

Wolverton Works, Milton Keynes - for a mixed-use
development including 375 homes on this rall-related site

Leegate, London - for 229 homes as part of a retail-led
mixed-use development

- Locking Parklands, Weston-super-Mare - for an additional
165 homes at this 200 acre site which, when complete, will
compnise 650,000 sq ft of employment space, 1,450 homes,
a district centre including retad, library, school and addiional
leisure and community facilines

Performance - Residentlal development

We have experienced a year of strong growth across our
residential business, with the resulting development translating
into an overall profit increase of 219% to £29m (2014 £24m) of
which St Modwen Homes contribuied £12m (2014 £8m) and
the Persimmon joint venture £17m (2014 £16m) Sales rates
remain strong with a total of 867 house completions achieved
for the year (2014 820) compnsing 315 for St Modwen Homes
(2014 258) and 652 for the Persimmon joint venture

{2014 562)

We expect ta mamntain performance n 2016 which will be
atransitional year as St Modwen Homes becomes more
domenant and replaces the profits from the Persimmon joint
venture to give sustainable future profit levels

St Modwen Homes

At the core of St Modwen Homes' success Is the competitive
advantage that our land bank provides We are able to

use our extensive experuise in planming from across the
business and select those sites that are best suited to the

St Modwen Homes brand As a result, we invest by providing

a good quality product which, in comparison with the average
new home, benefits from larger gardens, greater celing heights
and a higher specificaton

St Modwen Homes continues to grow and 1s now gperating
across the UK with 13 sites under development and

five due to start on site in 2016 Those currently under
development include

Gregory's Bank, Worcestershire - a scheme of 165 homes,
all under development by St Modwen Homes which has
already completed 76 units

Edison Place, Rugby - part of a large regeneration scheme
being carned out by 5t Modwen and comprising a new
college, retall park and assocated facilities, along with a total
of 600 new homes of which St Modwen Homes 1s delivering
350 and to date has completed 132 units
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Photo Radley Park Liverpool, a St Modwen Homes scheme of 161 homes
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Littlecombe, Dursley - part of the broader redevelopment
of the former Lister Petter factory, this 92 acre scheme
has planning for 40 acres of public, open green space,
150,000 sq ft of employment space and 450 homes of
which St Modwen Homes 1s delivering 258 To date,

St Modwen Homes has completed 88 homes

The five sites to come on stream during 2016 include

+ Meon Vale, Warwickshire - for 258 new homes as part
of this 479 acre leisure-led, mixed-use community of 1,050
homes, 800,000 sq ft of commeraial accommodation, primary
school, a community centre, gym and leisure hub

Longbridge East, Birmingham - for 175 new homes at

this 468 acre major regeneration project which has planning
permission for a total of 2,000 homes This latest housing
phase 1s In addition to the 360 homes already delivered on
site and will add to this growing community which already
camprises 750,000 sq ft of commercaal space, ncluding a
new Town Centre, the £66m Bournville College, Longhndge
Technology Park and Cofton Centre, and the £2m Austin Park.

St Andrew's Park, Uxbridge - for 71 homes at this 110 acre
former RAF site Once complete, this new community will
compnise 1,340 new homes, 2,000 sq ft of commercial space,
a theatre and other key community faciliies including a new
40 acre park for Greater London

Persimmon joint venture

Our joint venture with Persimmon 1s now at s peak with

all eight sites and the majonty of the 2,300 plots under the
agreement now In development This partnership will reach

its natural end by 2018 with the first sites reaching compietion
during 2016

Income Producing Residential

This 1s the latest route to market for cur residential portfolio
and underlines our ability to extract value from our existing
land bank, embrace new markets and produce a recurring
stream of income It currently comprises two key areas

Private Rental Sector {PRS} - we have been monitoring
this growing marketplace closely over the last two years and
have started to realise private rental opportunities from our
existing portfollo We have already delivered and let PRS
properties at Wembley Central, London and at Edisen Place,
Rugby where we have completed the leasing of a total of

64 apartments which are generating an annualised income
of £07m

We are progressing other opportunities in this sector, having
recently submitted a planning application for 77 private
rented apartments at Edmonton Green, London and we
plan to commence construction of up to 200 apanments at
St Andrew's Park, Uxbridge during 2016, for which we have
receved detalled planning permission

We will continue to monitor this emerging marketplace closely
and selectively designate those sites that are best suited to
extract maximum value

* Swansea University, Student Accommodation - coinciding

with the opening of the Bay Campus in September 2015,

we established ‘St Modwen Student Living specifically to
manage the student accommaodation which by 2017 will
compnise 2,000 rooms This area of the business 1s generating
£1 8m of annualised net incorme which will continue to grow
as the future phases of student accommedation come

on line At the same uime, these new phases will provide
additional scope for further revaluation gains

Outlook

We expect a continued focus on the regions next year

with some opportunities in the London market also corming
through In terms of development actmty, we expect

St Modwen Homes to further expand and for 2016 to

be a year of transition dunng which St Modwen Homes
becomes more dominant and replaces the profits from

the Persimmon joint venture to give sustainable future
profit tevels

There 1s still strong demand for new homes to be built
across the UK, consequently we expect continued
steady demand from third party housebuilgers for our
residential land

Income Producing Residential, our newest route to
market, will expand as we grow the number of sites for
the PRS business and as Swansea University welcomes
new students to the next phases of accommodation at
Bay Campus

Overall, we anucipate continued growth of the residential
business, good profit levels and ongoing delivery across this
segment of our portfolio
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WE SEE INCOME

Our asset management capabilities continue to
deliver strong rental income and we are experiencing
a steady stream of tenant demand for our existing
space. We continue to take advantage of heightened
investor demand by disposing of properties to which
we can add no further value. The revenue generated
from these activities helps to underpin the running
costs of the business and provides a firm financial
footing from which we operate.

Photo Kirkby Town Centre, acquired for £35 8m in October 2015
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Performance

Representing 45% by value of the total portfolio, our ncome
producing properties have grown in value this year by 37%
to £768m (2014 £562m) This growth reflects the strategic
acquisitions that we have secured during the period which
include a regional Town Centre and industral opportunities
across the UK

Growth can also be attributed to a number of newly developed
assets which we have retained for income, all adding to the
annual rent roll, including Wembley Central which completed in
March 2015

We manage all of these assets on behalf of over 1,700
occupters for which there have been negligible tenant
administrations in the year Any tenant vacations have been
more than offset by new occupiers with new lettings of £13 1m
(2014 £5 3m), all contnbuting to an annualised gross rent roll
of £584m (2014 £45 4m)

Income highlights
Student Accommodation, Bay Campus, Swansea
University - the £450m Bay Campus opened in September
2015 welcoming 917 new students Phase 2 opened in
January 2016 and Phase 3 will open in September 2017,
bringing the total number of student rooms to 2,000
Currently this asset provides an annualised net income
of £1 8m

Longbndge Town Centre, Birmingham - Boois, Poundland
and Mountain Warehouse have iaken 17,500 sq ft of space
next to the 150,000 sq ft Marks & Spencer store in Phase 2
of Longbridge Town Centre The High Street is also filling

up with new lettings to EE, Countrywide Estate Agents and
Tallor Made, all contributing to an annualsed rental Income
of £32m

+ Wembley Central, London - the redevelopment of this
prominent Town Centre scheme completed in March 2015
It comprises an 86-bedroom Travelodge and 120,000 sq ft of
new retall and feisure space leased to major national retailers
including TK Maxx, Tesco, Sports Direct, Iceland, Costa and
Argos This asset Is now generating an annualised rental
income of £2 2m

Acquisitions

We have remained predominantly acquisitive during the
year, adding a number of key opportunities to the portfolig,
parucularly in the North West

Highlights

+ Kirkby Town Centre, Liverpool - comprising 400,000 sq ft of
retail and leisure space leased to 80 tenants and providing an
immediate gross rental income of £3m, we acquired this site
from Tesco, along with 80 acres of residential development
land and the opportunity to develop up to 120,000 sq ft of
new retail space, for £35 8m, reflecting a net initial yield of 9%
on the main Shopping Centre

* Moorgate Point, Liverpool - comprising 445,000 sq ft
of ndustnal and office accommedation with 6 5 acres of
development land, this new asset provides an iImmediate
gross rental income of £1 3m It was acguired from a private
vendor for £10m

Disposals

We continue to assess our portfolic of retained assets for the
value they bring to the business This year we disposed of a
number of properties which we developed for income or to
which we could no longer add any matenal value, including

+ Cranfield University Technology Park - this 110,000 sq ft
business park, almast fully let to over 60 businesses, was sold
in two separate transactions for a total of £16 5Sm

Eccles, Greater Manchester - this 22 6 acre site was fully let
to Akcros Chemicals and was sold to Fnends Life for £8 27m,
reflecting a net intial yield of 7 4%

Outlook

We expedi continued activity in the investment market and
we will seek to dispose of those assets to which we can no
tonger add value, and recycle the Income to secure new
opportunities across the business Equally, we wall remain
acquisitive for the nght opportunities in 2016

We predict a steady occupatonal market duning 2016,
however rental income will continue to grow as the
business benefits from those rental streams that have
come on line towards the end of the period, including
income producing residenttal opportunities such as
Swansea University, as well as Longbnidge and Kirkby
Town Centres
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“Growth has been delivered during the year
and we have achieved significant financial
milestones across all major projects.”

ROB HUDSON
Group Finance Director
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PROFIT BEFORE ALL TAX

£258.4m

+91%

NET ASSET VALUE {PER SHARE)

413.5p

+27%

Overview

The Group has had an exceptional year, achieving sigruficanit
financkal milestones across all of its major projects and
culminating in the delivery of a record set of results, with profit
before all tax increasing by 91% to £258 4m (2014 £1354m)

Our major project, New Covent Garden Market (NCGM),
achieved unconditional status in April 2015 and has played a
significant part in these results, with the Group share of the
valuation gain on inital recogrition contributing £127 4mtoa
total revaluation gainv of £201 7m (2014 £93 5m)

Growth has also been delivered during the year from
strong undertying performance in the business through the
steady smprovement of the regional property markets and
our ability to perform development, iInvestment ang asset
management actions

As aresuli, our NAV per share increased by 27% to 413 Sp over
the year (2014 325 1p), and the value of our UK-wide property
portfolio (on a proportonally consolidated basis including share
of joint ventures) increased by 34% to £1 7bn

The year can be defined as one of net investment, with
borrowings increasing as a result of some major straiegic
transactions including the £35 8m acguisiion of Kirkby Town
Centre, Liverpool, together with the retention of Longbridge
Town Centre Phase 2 and the student accomrnodation at Bay
Campus, Swansea Unversity

We cover our recurnng overheads and interest costs
substantially with revenue from our income producing
portfolio In the year, coverage of 91% (2014 88%)
demonstrates a good rate, and would be over 100% excluding
direct residential overhead costs The retention of major
completed developments in the second half of the year,
including the Bay Campus student accommodation and the
second phase of Longbridge Town Centre (incorporating Marks
& Spencer and additional retall), provides a platform for further
Increases to net rents in 2016 and continued iImprovement to
our coverage of business running costs
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Presentation of financial information

As we use a number of joint venture arrangements, the
statutory financial statement disclosures do not always
provide a straightforward way of understanding our business
To enable a better understanding, we have also provided
information (including the Group's share of joint ventures
and a full reconciliation between the numbers reported
below and statutory numbers) in note 2 of the Group
Financial Statements

Income Statement

Our 6,000 acre land bank sits at the heart of everything we
do, enabhng us to create long-term added value and generate
strong returns from our £1 7bn portfolio of property assets,
amongst which our Income producing propertes represents
45% by value

These properues are assets that we own and manage, both
directly and through joint venture arrangements, for income
whilst we progress the sites through the planning process

and ulumately redevelop and regenerate We also retain a
proportion of our newly developed commeraial assets for
income, untit such tme we feel it (s right to dispose and reinvest
the proceeds into acquinng and delivering new opportunities

Year ended Year ended
30 November 30" November
2015 2014
Profit and loss £m £m
Net
Rental Income 38.7 3N
Property Profits 67.4 513
Other Income 4.2 36
Overheads __(265) (23 2)
Operating
Profit 838 (+22%) 68 8
Interest o (20 5) &3y
Trading Profit 633 (+39%) 457
Added Value
Valuation Gains 386 359
NCGM
Valuation Gain 1274 -
Market
Valuation Gain 357 576
Other
Finance Charges {(6.6) (38

Profit Before

All Tax 258.4 (+91%) 1354 (+68%)
Earnings
Per Share 97.9p 538p

The above figures are stated on a proportionally consolidated basis inchading share of joint
ventures Please see note 2 to the Group FAnanczl Statements

Rental and recurnng income

Net rental income increased to £38 7m (2014 £37 1m), largely
driven by retained income secured from our development
portfolio In particular, the last quarter of the financial year saw
the completon of the first phase of the Bay Campus student
accommodation for Swansea Unversity and the completion of
the second phase of Longbrdge Town Centre (incorporating
Marks & Spencer and addiuonal retall) Swansea University
coninbutes an annualsed netincome of £1 8m and
Longhridge Phase 2 contributes an additional £2 2m of
annualised net rental ncome

The reducuion in rent roll from the disposal of Cranfield
University Technology Park has been offset by a number of
acquisitions, most notably Kirkby Town Centre towards the
end of the financial year, which provides an iImmediate gross
rentalincome of £3m Together, these aciions have increased
our gross rent rofl In the year to £58 4m (2014 £45 4m), and
will provide a source of continued growth 1n our reported rents
for 2016

Occupancy levels remain stable at 89% and average lease
length has improved to six years (2014 five years) A degree
of void period 1s important for the Group as we prepare our
retained income produang properues for redevelopment

Property profits

Property profits from development for the full year have
Increased by 31% to £67 4m (2014 £51 3m) This comprises

+ £34m (2014 £22m) from commercial development, Including
£5m from Longbridge Town Centre, as our pipelne converts
INto realised profits,

+ £4m {2014 £5m)from the completion of 775,000 sq ft of
academic buildings as part of the Bay Campus development
at Swansea University, and

£29m (2014 £24m)from residential development which
provides positive, tangible returns and improved levels of
development It 1s underpinned by the continued growth of
St Modwen Homes which will offset the natural wind down
of the Perssmmon joint venture over future years, gving a
sustainable level of profits
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QOverheads

Ongaing growth in the business has been supported through
investment in additional staff to service both the development
pipeline and St Modwen Homes This brings our average
headcount to 309 full-ume equivalent employees (2014 287)
Our recruitment drive, coupled with the bonuses paid for
successful business delivery, means that administrative
expenses for 2015 increased o £26 5m (2014 £23 2m)

Finance costs and income

Finance costs have reduced duning the year, despite average
debt levels increasing over 2014 with iIncreased investment
actvity We are sull expenencing the benefit of the extensive
refinancing actvity carmned out during 2014 This, together
with increased investment at lower marginal interest rates,
has reduced our weighted average cost of borrowing to 3 9%
(2014 4 8%) At the year-end, 48% of our net debt position
was fixed This proportion will increase as the convertible bond
reverts to fixed rate in March 2017 Netinterest charges have
reduced to £205m (2014 £231m)

Trading profit

Overall we have achieved a trading profit ncrease of 39%to
£63 3m (2014 £45 7m), this strong result being driven by our
management actions

Durning 2016, we will continue to focus on generating value
across our land bank and ensuring that our rental and
recurring income underpins the running costs of the business

Investor appetite continues to be strong for commercial
property and we will dispose of mature assets selectively

and seek to reinvest in additional added value opportunities
Combined with a residential market that continues to perform
at sustainable levels and our active management acimties,

we anticipate further good prospeas to grow the net asset
value of the Group

Basis of valuatton

All of our iInvestment properties are ndependently valued
every six months by our external valuers Cushman &
Wakefield (formerly DTZ) and Jones Lang LaSalle (for NCGM
only} Our valuers base their valuations upon an open market
transaction between a willing buyer and a willing seller at

the Balance Sheet date Therefore, no value 15 taken for any
fuiure expected increases but discounts are applied to reflect
any future uncertainties In accordance with accounting
standards, valuation movements are reflected as ga:ns or
losses in the Income Statement Where appropriate, we

will also independently assess our work in progress for any
IMpairment ISsues

Valuations in all our asset classes have been validated wherever
possible by open market transactions during the course of
the year

Property portfolio

The value of our UK-wide property portiolio which includes
our share of joint venture arrangements stands at £1 7bn
{2014 £1 3bn) Dunng the year, we contnued to add
appropriate sites to our development portfolio, most notably
NCGM which achieved unconditional status in Apnl and, more
recently, the acquisition of Kirkby Town Centre in October
2015 The portfolio includes the retained major completed
developments such as the second phase of Longbridge Town
Centre and the Bay Campus student accommodation for
Swansea University, the latter providing future scope for further
revaluation gains as new phases of accommaodation come

on stream

Movements in the year

Property valuation movements are made up of two main
elements those resulting from our own actions that we
undertake specifically to add value to our assets (land renewal,
planning gain, robust asset management), and those resulting
from changes in the overall property market

Our valuers prowvide this split as part of their independent
property valuations

Property valuation
Portfolio - shape Valuation movement
Updated St Modwen

£m Now 2014 Addinons Reducuons parifolio Market added Nov 2015
Residential land (46%)
- Residenua! portfolio 553 167 (187) 533 2 17 552
- NCGM 3 90 - 93 - 127 220
Commercial land (9%) 146 86 (77 155 - (3) 152
Income producing (45%)
- Industral 248 2?2 (14) 256 15 5 276
- Retall 220 102 - 322 16 - 338
- Residenual 33 52 - 85 1 20 106
- Office 61 - (15} 46 2 - 48

1,264 519 (293) 1,490 36 166 1,692

Stated on a proportionally consolidated bass induding share of joint ventures See note 2¢ to the Group Finandla!l Statements

Additions inchude purchases, caprtal expenditure and inward reclassifications
Reductions include disposals and outward reclassifications
Income Produang Residenual indudes PRS and Bay Campus Student Atcommodabon.
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New Covent Garden Market

2015 saw the culmination of several years of development
acuvity resulung in NCGM achieving uncondiional status in
April 2015 and being included on the Balance Sheet As a
resuit of completing the following development actvities
condiionality was removed

+ documentation and agreement of a section 106
agreement together with entry Into statutory roads and
services agreements,

expiry of the subsequent judicial review penod,

+ delivery of a Deed of Grant with the US Embassy to provide
a road from the Embassy on surplus Covent Garden Market
Authority (CGMA) lang,

formal issue of planming consent and confirmation of
acceptability from CGMA and VINCI St Modwen, and

independent certification that the market can be procured
within CGMA'S affordability Imit

Al the year-end, Jones Lang LaSalle reached its valuation of this
57 acre site by starung with a serviced land value of £643m,
based on static residential sales prices

This was reduced over the half year position of E660m as a
result of build cost inflation, partly offset by a discount unwind
as we move closer to vacant possession of the first 10 acres
(Nine EIms Square)

Enabling costs and overage at the year-end of £203m have
reduced from the £220m at the half year as a result of reduced
overage on lower serviced land values, resulung in Jones Lang
LaSalle’s net valuation of £440m remaining unchanged from
the half year

After deducuion of the inial land value recognised and
subsequent costs incurred 1o date, totalling £185m, the
resulting gross valuation gan was £255m Therefore, the 50%
Group share of the valuation gain also remains consistent with
the half year at £127m

Other movements

In addition to this gain, we have continued to generate a
particularly strong level of added value from the balance of
our portfolig, with further gains of £38 6rm as we successfully
managed assets through the planning process Our portfolio
of residential and commercial land has remained broadly in
line with 1ast year, with demand remaining steady The growth
of St Modwen Homes continues to provide additional hguidity
to our residenual land bank.

During the year, in hne with market movements and the
growth of our lower yielding residential portfolio, yields for our
ncome-producing properties have improved, with equivalent
yields now at 7 7% (2014 8 9%) Thss yield compression, and
some kmited regional rental growth, led 1o a market driven
valuation increase for our portfolo of £35 7m across the year
(2014 £57 6m)

Added value growth for the full year has therefore increased
to £166 0m (2014 £359m) of which NCGM contributes
£1274m

Yield analysis (weighted average including Group share of joint
ventures)

Equivalent Net initial

30" Nov 30"Nov 30" Nov 30" Nov

2015 2014 2015 2014

Retall 7.6% 89% 6.1% 71%

Office 8.9% 9 2% 6.6% 73%

Industnal 8.4% 88% 7.3% 77%

Residential 5.0% n/a 5.0% n/a

Portfolto 7.7% 8 9% 6.5% 74%
Profit before all tax

Our profit before all tax I1s stated before tax on joint venture
Income and after moverments In the market value of our
Interest rate derivatives (hedges and swaps) and our
convertible bond The dervaive valuations are based on
the financial market's forward prediction curves for interest
rates As a result of the convertible bond trading above par
at the end of the financial reporting period, and together
with other finance charges, this caused a charge of £6 6m
(2014 £3 8m charge)

Including the recognition of NCGM and a net valuation gain of
£127 4m, profit before all tax increased substanually by 91% to
arecord level of £258 4m (2014 £135 4m)

Taxation and profits after tax

Our record profitability increased our tax charge (including joint
venture tax and deferred tax included in negatve goodwill) for
the year to £41 1m (2014 £154m) Despite this, we achieved a
substanual result for the year with profits after tax up by 81% to
£2173m (20714 £1200m) The resultant earnings per share of
97 9p (2014 53 8p)1s up 82% year on year

As a property group, tax and Its treatment is often an integral
part of transactions The outcome of tax treatments, including
tax planning, 1s recognised by the Group to the extent that the
outcome Is reasonably certain The effective rate of tax for the
year 1s 14% (2014 11%) and benefits from certain nvestment
gains not being taxable as a result of ndexation and the
property ownership structure within the group As a result of
proposed changes In the Group structure the effective tax rate
15 expected to move towards, but remain below, the standard
rate of tax
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Balance sheet

Balance sheet 30" Nov 2015 307 Nov 2014
Property assets 1,265 1,058
Investments i joint ventures 232 134
and other assets

Debtors 112 72
Pensions - L ~
Gross assets 1,609 1,264
Net borrowings (443) (337)
Finance leases (55) (23)
Trade payable etc (189) {180)
Gross liabilities (687) {540)
Net assets 922 724
Non-controlling assets (7) I )
Shareholders' funds 915 718
NAV per share 414 (+27%) 325p
EPRA NAV per share 446 (+30%) 342p
Restatements

Dunng the period we were required to adopt a number of
new accounting standards including IFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements The adoptton of this standard requires
that we equity account for VSM Estates (Holdings) Lid on the
basis this 1s jontly controlled with our joint venture partner,
VINCl investments Lid This entity was previously consolidated
under SIC 12 as a resu't of our greater economic INterest
Comparative Information has been restated accordingly and
details are included in the Accounting Policies note to the
Group Financial Statements

Following receipt of the first rental Income, further
consideration was given to the revenue streams associated
with the first twa phases of student accommaodation at the
Bay Campus development for Swansea Uniersity Due to
the fixed (subject only to annual RPI adjustment) nature of
the Group's annual rental payments to M&G, meaning that
the Group retains exposure (both positive and negative) to all
vanability in nef rentals generated from the properues, it has
been concluded that the transaction 1s more appropnately
accounted for as a finance lease arrangement, rather than

as the sale of 50% of the assets Consequently, we have
restated our 2014 results and opening Balance Sheet to reflect
recognition by the Group of the following elements

* the whole (rather than 50%) of the property Interest in the
student accommodation,

+ to account for the amounts due to M&G as a finance
lease hability,

to eliminate the construciion contract accountng recegrused in
respect of the proportion of the development work performed
on these sites that was funded by M&G, and

- to revalue the site during the course of construcuon

Details of both restatements are included in the accounting
pelicies note to the Group Financial Staternents

Funding levels

During the year our Balance Sheet borrowings increased
reflecting recent investment actmvities, Including the acquisition
of Kirkby Town Centre for £35 8m and the retention of major
completed developments at the Bay Campus for Swansea
University and the second phase of Longbridge Town Centre
As aresult, net baorrowings (as detalled in note 2g to the Group
Financial Statemenis) stand at £443m (Nov 2014 £337m)

At the same tume, the value of our property portfolio rose
throughout the year This reflected our actions in the
management of our existing and new assets, continued
market driven increases and, more specifically, the NCGM site
achieving unconditional status in April 2015

The measure most widely used n our indusiry 1s see-through
loan-te-value Our see-through ioan-to-value ratio of 30% has
decreased slightly from last year (2014 31%) Geanng and
adusted geanng (at amortised cost angd excluding finance
leases) ncreased with our net Investment actvities

The Company's capital siructure remans strong We will
contnue to dispose of assets as they mature and acquire
opportuniuies selectively as they anse

CHART
REMOVED

CHART
REMOVED

CHART
REMOVED

* Adjusted gearing 1s the ratio of net borrowings
(excluding finance leases) to net assets See note 2
1o the Group Financial Statements
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New Covent Garden Market

With the contract for NCGM now fully unconditional as of April
2015, in the first half of the year we recogrused the Group’s
interest In the value of the surplus 19 acres of NCGM land as
an asset and the cost of procuring the new market as a liability
The contract 1s in joint venture with VINCI Investments Ltd and
therefore appears as part of joini ventures within our Balance
Sheet This represents a step-change to our asset base and
on a see-through basis the value cf our property portfolio 1s
now £1 7bn

Works to the new market commenced in the second half

of the year, signifying a major step towards securing vacant
possession of the first 10 acres of surplus land, known as Nine
Elms Square, and we will explore our options to either sefl, joint
venture or develop the site during 2016

Net assets

At the year-end the shareholders’ equity value of net assets was
£915m (2014 £718m)or 413 5p per share which represents

a 27% increase over the year (2014 325 1p per share)

This growth 1s after payment of iIncreased dividends of £11 1m
(504p per share}in 2015 (2014 £9 1m or 4 13p per share)
This represents a 25% increase in ine with dwvidend payable
for 201510 5 75p (2014 46p) In line with NAV growth

EPRA net asset value

in ine with industry best practice we also report net assets per
share using the EPRA (European Public Real Estate Assoctation)
methodology* Our diluted EPRA niet asset value rose 30%

1o 446p from 342p per share A full reconciiation of our net
assets Is provided in note 2 to the Group Financaal Statements

Corporate facilities

Following the comprehensive refinancing of our banking
portfohio, the bulk of which was achieved during 2014 and
completed in January 2015 with an extension to the HSBC
facility to 2020, we have no faciity refinancing expected before
2018 and going forward refinanangs are staggered between
2018 and 2021

Furthermore, we have sufficient headroom with our corporate
facilities to enable us to meet future development and funding
requirements At the date of reporung we have £554m of
facilities against year-end net borrowings of £443m

Hedging and cost of debt

We aim to have predictable costs attached to our borrowing
and therefore hedge a significant portion of our interest rate
rsk At the year end, 47% of our borrowings were fixed or
hedged (2014 63%) With forward starting swaps in place, and
the expiry of swaps to floating, our proportion of borrowings
hedged will Increase over tme As any new financing (s put In
place we will ensure that our hedging positions are appropriate
for our future development expectations

As a result of our refinancing actvities and our net investment
at lower marginal costs of borrowing, our weighted average
cost of borrowing now stands at 3 9% (2014 4 8%)

* As a development business many of the EPRA metncs are inappropriate as they are geared
1o property Investment. Relevant EPRA metrics are reported on page 124

Corporate funding covenants

We are operating well within the covenants that apply to
both our corporate banking facllities and to the retal bond
These are

Bank
* net assets must be greater than £250m {actual £922m),

+ geanng must not exceed 175% (actual 54%), and

* interest cover ratio (that excludes non-cash items such
as revaluation movements) must be greater than 1 25x
(actual 4 1x)

Retaif bond

+ see-through loan-to-value ratio must not exceed 75% (actual
30%), and

interest cover ratio must be greater than 1 5x {actual 5 4x)

Covenant compliance continues to be met at alt levels and
across all metrics We continue to operate with headroom on
loan-to-value, net asset value and gearing and even allowing for
a market decline, expect these to be met comforiably

Pension scheme

Our defined pension scheme continues to be fully funded on
an IAS 19 basis With the scheme being closed to new entrants
and closed to future accrual we do not currently expect any
significant matenal future increase in scheme contributions

Outlook
The past year has been an exceptional one for the

business, particularly with the recogrition of NCGM in the
first half

Actmity across our commercial portfolio 1s progressing in
kne with the regional market recovery We are witnessing a
steady stream of occupational demand, demonstrated by
the performance of our weildet Income producing portfolic,
and are experienang encouraging results from our
speculative commercial development programme As we
realise our pipeline of development opporturities these are
contributing positively to property profits

Investor appetite continues to remain strong for
commercial property and we will selectively dispose of
mature assets and seek to replenish these with new
opportunities in the marketplace Combined with a
residential market that 1s performing at sustainable levels,
we anticipate delivening further NAV enhancaing actmity

dunng 2016
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Risk management

Risk management and internal control

The Board recognises the importance of identifying and
actively monitoring the full range of financial and non-financial
risks facing the business Its policy 1s to have systems in place
which optimise the Company's ability to manage risk inan
effectve and appropnate manner By regularty reviewing the
nisk appetite of the business, the Board ensures that the risk
eXposure remains appropnate at any pointin the gycle

Importantly the Board perceves nsk not only as having a
potential negatve influence on the business but also as

an opportunity for financial outperformance as we have

the expertise to take and manage nsks that others cannot

As the UK leading regeneration specialist, exposure to risk is
inherent 1N our business but 1s subject to an extensive range of
mitigating controls

The Board 1s ulumately responsible for maintaining sound risk
management and internal control systems and for determining
the nature and extent of the principal risks it 1s waling to take

to achieve its strategic objectives The Board, through the

Audit Committee, has carried out a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the Company, Including those that would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency

or hquidity Its evaluation of these solvency risks s described
further in the Going Concern section on page 97 and a
descniption of how prinapal nsks are managed and mitigated 1s
set out on pages 38 10 41

The Audik Cornmittee also monitors the Company's risk
management and internal coniro! systems Durning the year

it considered a detalled report from management which sets
out the Group’s control environment, the manner in which
key business risks are identified, the adequacy of information
systems and control procedures and the manner in which any
required corrective action s (o be taken

The executive directors are responsible for delivering the
Company's strategy and managing operational risk. They in
turn place reliance on the Property Board and their teams to
monitor and manage operatonal risk on an ongoing basis,
as well as identifying emerging risks Risk regsters, which
exist at both a Group and regional level, provide a framework
for alt emptoyees to contribute to delivering our strategy

by recognising their shared responsibility for the effective
management of risk.

The work of the internal audit function 1s focused on the
controls that mitigate the principal rnisks faced by the Group
Key internal controls are reviewed by internal audit as part of its
annual audit plan and findings are reported to and considered
by the Audit Commuttee

Audit Committee Report Pages 58 to 65

Golng concern Page 97

Our approach to risk management

At St Modwen, assessment of nsk 15 a cornerstone of our
strategy and our rnsk management framework is fundamenial
to Its delvery Our integrated approach combines a top-
down strategic view with a complementary bottom-up
operational process

The top-cown approach involves a review of the external
environment in which we operate, to guide an assessment

of the nsks which we are comfortable exposing the business
to In pursuit of our strategy The bottom-up process invalves
the identification, management and monitoring of nsks i

each area of our business to ensure that nsk management

15 embedded n our everyday operations Oversight of this
process 15 provided through maintenance of regional risk
registers This approach ensures that operational risks are fully
cansidered in determining the risk appetite and corresponding
strategy of the business

GRAPHIC
REMOVED
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Key features of St Maodwen's risk management

and internal control systems

- an organisational structure with clear segregation of duties,
control and authorty;

.

arobust system of financial reporting, budgeting and
re-forecasting processes,

+ monthly operational reviews between the Chief Executive
and regional directors,

+ comprehensive monthly reporting to the Board through
development progress reviews, management accounts
and a comparison of committed expenditure against
avallable fachties,

+ clearly defined procedures for the authorisation of capital
expenditure, acquisitions and sales of development and
Investment properues, construction activity, and other
contracts and commitments,

» recent formation of a capital projects committee,
» a treasury policy,

a formal schedule of matters, including major investrment
and devetopment decisions and strategic matters, that are
reserved for Board approval,

a suite of policies and procedures in respect of ant-bribery
and corruption, fraud prevention and IT security,

- an independently operated whistteblowing facility to enable
employees to raise concerns on a confidential basis, with
Investigation overseen by the Audit Committee, and

other control measures outlined elsewhere in this Annual
Report, including legal and regulatory compliance and
health and safety

Viability statement

The directors have assessed the viability of the Company
over the period to November 2018, being the first three
years of the most recent strategy process as this imeframe
gwves more certainty over the forecasting assumptions

used The strategy process 1s conducted at Group level and
reviewed each year by the Board with key influencers within
the business having ownership of the outcomes from the
process Once approved by the Board, the plan provides
the basis for setting all detalled financial budgets and
strategic actions that are subsequently used by the Board t0
manitor performance

The strategy process considers the Group's cash flows
including the normal evel of capital recycling expected to
occur, funding requiremenis and other key financial ratios
over the penod, as well as the headroom in the financial
covenants contained In Its various loan agreements

In making their assessment the directors assessed the
potential Impacts, in severe but plausible scenarios, of the
principal risks set out on pages 38 to 41 together with the
Iikely degree of effectiveness of mitigating actions reasonably
expecied 10 be avalable to the Company

The most relevant potential impact of these risks on viability
was considered to be

« market/economic changes such as higher interest rates,
reduced demand for fand/new properties, reduced
avallability of credit and dechning investment yields
restricting business development and causing valuauon falls,

- significant poliucal events which may delay or impact
investment deasions and reduce returns, and

* a reductron In the availability of funding causing a lack of
hguidity that impacts borrowing capacity and reduces the
saleabilty of assets

On the basis of this and other matters considered and
reviewed by the Board during the year, the Board has
reasonable expectations that the Company will be able to
conunue in operation and meet ts liabilies as they fail due
over ithe penods used for the assessment Indoing so, it1s
recognised that such future assessments are subject to a
level of uncertainty that iIncreases with ume and, therefore,
future outcomes cannot be guaranteed or predicted

with certanty
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Our principal risks

Strategic objective:

o | Secure excellent returns..

Risk and potential impact

Mitigation

Market/economic changes such as higher interest rates,
reduced demand for land/new properues, reduced availability
of credit and decliming Investment yields restrict business
development and cause valuation falls Significant upcoming
political events which delay and/or impact invesiment
decisions and reduce returns

- Regional spread and portfolio dversity miiigates sector or location-
specific nsks

Active portfollo management achieves a better than market utilisation

of assets
Hedging policy reduces interest rate nisk.

Irnvestrnent and financing strategy I1s determined against a backdrop of

potenttal outcomes of political evenis

Changes to local and national planning processes
adversely impact our strategy by imiting our ability to
secure viable permissions and/or by removing our
competitive advantage

Inadequate due diligence on major new schemes,
programme management, construction delivery and/or
procurement leads 1o unforeseen exposures, quality 1ssues
and/or cost averruns causing custormer dissausfaction and/or
financial loss

Financial collapse of, or dispute with, a key joint venture
partner leads (0 financial loss

Use of hugh-quality professional adwsors
» Active Involvernent in public consultation
Constant monitoring of all aspects of the planming process by
experienced in-house experts
Contact with [obtwying both central and local Government

Acquisitions, development and ulumate disposals are reviewed and
financially appraised in detall, with dearly defined authority hrmits
Strong internal construction management team

Clearly defined formal tender process that evaluates qualitative and
quantitative facters in bid assessment

Use and close supervision of a preferred supply chain of high-quality
trusted supplers and professionais
Contractual habity clearty defined

Monthly review of performance ta identfy if senior management
Intervention Is required

Flexible but legally secure contracts with partners
Fewer but financially strong partners

Strategic objective:

GRAPHIC

rvoven | o..through a focus on long-term significant added value...

Risk and potential impact

Mitigation

Failure to manage long-term environmental issues relatng
to brownfield and contarminated sites and human health
1ssues leads to a major emaronmental madent, resulung in
financial and/or reputational damage

Fallure to recruit, develop and retain staff with the
necessary skilis resulting in significant disruptionAoss of
intellectual property

+ Use of high-quality external advisors

Highly quabfied, expensnced staff and proven track record as the UK's

leading regeneration specialist

Risk assessments conducted as part of due diligence process, with
contamination remediated following acquisiion and cost plans
allowing for unioreseen remediation costs

Full warranues from professional consultants and remedsation
contractors

Defined business processes to proactvely manage 1ssues
Annual independent audit of environmental nsk.
Reputation managed by a core team of skilled PR professionals

Succession planning monitored at Board leve! and below
Targeted recrutment with competitive, performance-drven
remuneration packages to secure highly-skilled and motvated
employees
Leadership and managemerit development plans in place

+ Exit Interviews undertaken
Key information s documented (o safeguard knowledge
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Key (movement in the year)
+ Exposure increased

= Exposure reduced

= Nosignificant change

GRAPHIC
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Movementin
Commentary the year

We choose to operate only In the UK, which s subject to relatvely low nsk and low returns from a stable and

mature, albeit cyclical, economy and property market By involvernent with ali sectors of that economy and

property market, we are as dversified as passible, without venturing overseas Our land bank of 6,000 acres

provides us with the flexibility to move with market demands and pursue those opportunites that generate the

greatest value at any one time The outcome of the UK referendum on EU membership has the potenual to +
impact the appeal and performance of nvestrment in the UK in general

Over the course of the last year, the continuing economc problems withun the Eurozone and in China and the
emerging markets mean that the overall market position continues to represent a risk

Our dally exposure {0 all aspects of the planning process, and internal procedures for sharing best practice,
ensure we remain abreast of most developments Furthermore, we continue our efforts to influence public

policy debate Although the ever changing nature of planning legislation means that future rules are uncertain, e
our expertise should enable us to prosper refative to our competitors, Irrespective of the planning environment
Cur programme for the year has been completed on time and within budget Our contractor selecuon and
management processes are rgorous and we continue to favour financially stable and robust contractors
]
]

Our key partners are Persimmon PLC, VINCI plc and Salhia Real Estate KS C of Kuwait These are financially
strong partners with good prospects and considerable financial resources We mantain detaled and ongoing —
dialogue with all our joint venture partners —

GRAPHIC
REMCVED
Movement in

Commentary the year
We are willing to accept a degree of environmental nsk, enabling higher returns to be made The inherent nsks
are passed on or minimised where possible but cannot be elminated, although the residual risks have been
accepiably low in recent years

e

.

Staff turnover rematns low and the proportion of management with more than three years' senice 1s at 76%
As competition to attract the best people Increases, we continue to adapt our recruttment strategy to source the
skills that will support the Company's long-term business objectves
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Our principal risks (continued)

Strategic objective:
wow | ...while protecting our assets

Risk and potential impact

Mitigation

Avallability of funding reduces, causing a lack of hquidity that
impacts borrowing capacity and reduces the saleability of
assets Unforeseen significant changes to cash flow
requiIrements (e g operating cost increases, pension fund
shortfall) which limit the ability of the business to meet its
ONEOINE COMIMItMents

Failure to anticipate market changes through poor market
intelligence leads to the selection of Inappropriate and,
ulbmately, unprofitable schemies

Fallure to identfy a pipeline of future residential sites or
reduced avallability of mortgage finance adversely iImpacts the
performance of our residential business

Falure to manage major projects effectvely (e g cvl
engineering and earth moving 1ssues) leads to higher costs/
reduced margins

Safety, health and environment (SHE) culture leads to a
major incident {e g. sertous injury to, or death of, an employee,
chent, contractor or member of the publc) or non-compliance
with legislation, resulting in finanaal penalties and/or
reputational damage

Inadequate security or business continuity and disaster
recovery planning for operations and T, leading to
significant business disruption, financiakiniellectual property
loss and/or reputational damage in the event of an accident,
act of terrorism or cyber-crime

+ Recurring income from rents provides funding for a large percentage
of overhead and interest Costs
Strong relationships with key banks, all corporate debt refinanced untl
atleast 2018
Finance successfully raised through alternative, unsecured means
(retall bond, equity placing and convertible bond)
Financial headroom maintained to provde flexibility and scenario
rmodelling tools employed to evaluate the hkelihood of a breach of
financing covenant himits
Regular and detalled cash flow forecasing enables monitoning of
performance and managemert of iuture cash flows

Regional offices in touch with their local market
Dedicated central resource supporting regional teams
Flexible and innovauve approach to acquisiions and schemes in order
to adapt to market changes

Acquisitions, development and ulimate disposals are reviewed and
finanaally apprarsed in detad, with clearly defined authority lirmits

Tearm of professionals with residential experience and expertise
Extensive land bank with a conunuing stream of planning applications
Fexible approach to mortgage financing (e g shared equity schemes)
Use of joint venture partners with residential expertise

{e g Persimmon)

Most of our big projects can be broken down into smaller, more
manageable projects (e g Longbridge)

Significant In-house expertise

High level of pre-sale agreements

Use of high-quality exterral SHE advisors

Annual cycle of SHE audits

SHE Sieenng Group chaired by the Group Construction Director
Regular Board reporting

Programme of employee training specific to roles and responsibilities
Defined business processes to proactively manage 1ssues

Assetl risk assessments (e g. secunty, emaronmental, health and safety}

Documented disaster recovery and crisis management plans in place
across the business

Dedicated IT team monitors security and performance of all
information systems

Comprehensive INsurance arrangements
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Key {movement in the year)
+ Exposure ncreased

= Exposure reduced

= No significant change
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Movement in
Commentary the year

Our geared financial structure means that there are inevitable risks attached 1o the avallability of funding and the
managemeny; of fluctuations in our cash flows Our prudent approach to forward commitments, speculative
development and asset disposals has enabled us to optimise operational cash flows and offset the impact of
fluctuating market conditions The success of our first retail bond {October 2012), a share placing (February
2013} and a convertible bond (February 2014) has further diversified our debt financing profile by prowding
access to unsecured funding

The excellent reputatron and financial capacity of the Company has enabled us to continue to win schemes and
grow the property portfolio in an improving but still challenging market and economy In this environment, with a
reduced number of active competitors, we expect to be able to continue {o source attractve acquistions

Whilst the planning environment remains challenging ang subject to inewitable delays, our scale and experuise
enables us to navigate the process with considerable success Demand for new homes remans strong,
supported by the NPPFs housing supply requirements and the availability of mortgage finance (due at least in
part to the Government’s Help 10 Buy scheme) Furthermore, the geographic spread of our business means we
are not overly exposed to any one region

We use our knowledge and expertise In remediation, planning, asset development and construction to manage
all of our development actiity, including our major projects Our existing skl base enables us to oversee each
stage of the development process, progressing actvities to completon before subsequent stages are
commenced Major projects are also subject to detalled monitoning by executive management, and progress
reported (o the Board at each Board meeting

Health and safety conunues to be a high prionity The assessment of environmental costs (and the
subsequent optimising of remediation sclutions) is an Integral part of our acquisition and post-acquisiton
processes We seek to minimise or pass on any such environmental risks, and believe that the residual risk
remains acceptably low In other sooal and ethical areas, our operations are underpinned by a simple but
ngorous set of operating commitrnents

whilst our exposure (o the loss of intellectual property 1s refatively low, we are mindful of the increasing
threat to corporate secunity from cyber-crime As the profile of cyber secunity continues to grow, our risk
management approach has adapted to further increase preventatve secunty and enhance the robustness
of existing procedures
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IMAGE
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WE SEE FUTURE GENERATIONS

Acquiring brownfield sites, remediating and
transforming them into cleaner, greener and brighter
environments where business and communities can
thrive: this is the essence of what we do.

Photo We regularly engage with the schools and communities related to our sites including pupils from the
newly built John Locke Academy, St Andrew's Park, Uxbndge, who created hoardings for the site
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Our approach

As a brownfield regeneration specialist Corporate Social
Responsibiity (CSR) lies at the very heart of who we are and
what we do We are constantly cleaning and greening up
brownfield Yand across the country and from dilapidated

and disused sites we seek to create thrving and inspirational
new communities We invest much needed ttme, money and
expertise Into these areas and across the entire lifecycle of our
projects, we continue to ensure that environmental, socal and
community considerations are integraied within our day-to-
day practices

We actively promote responsible construction and
development that reflecis our approach 1o CSR and look 1o our
employees, our partners and our supply chain to enable us to
achieve our short and long-term goals

Our CSR objectives

For the financial year ended 30" November 2015 we
established a set of 10 CSR objectves and are pleased to
report that these have been achieved, with good progress
made against longer-term objectives These obyectives have
since been reviewed and updated by the CSR Steening Group
to ensure that we continue to strive for improved performance
durnng 2016

Both strategic and long-term, our olyectives focus on
- ensuring sustanable business,

* creating better environments by greening and cleaning up
brownfield land (which makes up 90% of our developable
portfolio), and

* supporung the communiiies in which we build

IMAGE
REMOVED

Photo We engage the local community on our sites through events,
initiatives and projects

in addition, we also continue o support a number of CSR
imuatives which are not part of our 10 objectves These prove
our iInnovative and broad-minded attitude 1o CSR, we are
constantly mundful of the positive Impact our projects can have
on the community, the environment and the economy

Qur CSR results

CHART
REMOVED

For more information on our CSR results, goals and approach please see our
February 2016 CSR booklet or visit www stmodwen-csr co uk

CSR Steering Group

The CSR Steering Group, chaired by the Group Construction
Director, meets quarterly to review progress against our
CSR objectives and to ensure the Company maintains a best
practice approach to CSR actmvities across Its operations

IMAGE
REMOVED

Photo We create new, and preserve and enhance existing, public spaces
within and surrounding our developments
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Employee diversity

We recognise our responsibifity as an employer to look after
the wellbeing of our staff We are committed to providing

an inclusive working environment where everyone feels

valued and respected The diverse range of talent, skills

and experience across ihe business is reflected in the new
commumties that we build and ensures our continued success

The Company adheres to a clear equality policy which sets out
indmduals’ rights and obligations as defined by the Equality Act
2010 This policy covers the responsibilities and approach we
have to our employees and our duty to avoid discrimination in
all aspects of recrutment and employment

The charts below set out the number of men and women
employed {full-and part-time} as at 30* November 2015,
across our business and split between the Board, our senior
management and our employees

In considenng appointments to the Board and to senior
executive positions, it 1s our policy to evaluate the skills,
knowledge and experience required by a partcular role
with due regard for the benefit of dversity and to make an
appointment accordingly

Nomination Committee Report Pages 66 to 69

Board diversity

CHART
REMOVED

Senior management diversity

CHART
REMOVED

Employee diversity

CHART
REMOVED

All employee diversity

CHART
REMOVED

Training and development

We are proud to have a good level of staff retention
Well-motivated staff not only perform better but they

enhance business stability and this is reflected in the effective
management of our projects and the business as a whole

In the period, 76% of management had more than three years'
senvice (2014 84%) On face value there has been a dechine on
the previous 12 months but the proportion reflects the growth
of our management team by 5%to 63 (2014 60) We have
been successful in attracting more senior professionals into
the husiness over the period and this in turn is evidence of the
strength and appeal of the Company

During the first half of 2015, our management team completed
training sessions, produced by Farscape Developments and
Pinsent Masons, from which staff ninatives were identfied

and have since been implemented We have receved positive
feedback from this programme and we will continue to run
these sessions for new management staff throughout 2016
Further training opportunities have also been identfied and are
being pursued

In addition, due to the geographic spread of our UK-wide
development portfolto, many staff are required to drive
significant distances to fulfil ther role To ensure they are
safe and best equipped to do so, durning 2015 all staff with a
company car, van or car allowance were invited to attend a
driver traiming course in partnership with The Royal Society
for the Prevention of Acadents Following the success of this
exercise, we are seeking to carry out further traiming in 2016

All employees are encouraged o maintain their Continuing
Professional Development (CPD} and support 1s provided for
staff to attain qualfications and professionat memberships
relevant to their role

Finally, we remain committed to taking on bright new talent
and nurturing skills into appropriate areas of our business
We have increased our CSR target to create opportunities for
a total of 25 full-ume or equivalent trainees/graduates across
the business

Human rights

We support the United Nation's Universal Declaration of
Human Rights and have policies in place to ensure that we act
in accardance with our principles in relation to areas such as
antr-corruption, diversity and whistteblowing
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Photo We encourage staff to mantain their Continuing Professional
Development

Health and safety

We are committed to safeguarding ihe health, safety and
welfare of our employees, contractors, subcontractors,
customers and wisitors to our sites

We have a comprehensive safety, health and erwironmenital
{SHE) management system in place, which is integral to our
business This 1s supported by detailed policies and procedures
in respect of both our development and residential actmties,
these are continually refreshed to ensure they reflect any
changes to regulation or best pracuce

The SHE Steening Group, charred by the Group Construction
Director, morutors the Company’s SHE management sysiem

It receves reports from senior management, reviews incident
and accident prevention performance and agrees inibiatives
designed to continue the promotion of a positive safety culiure
across St Modwen's activities The Steenng Group reports on
Its actvities to the Board

We engage independent consultants to ensure compliance
with Construction and Design Management regulation,

with parucular focus on our residential actvities through

St Modwen Homes where we are the prinopal contractor

All St Modwen Homes' sites are registered with the
'Considerate Contractors Scheme' and a number have been
awarded certificates of performance beyond compliance, which
recogrise considerauon to the locality, the workforce and the
environment that goes beyond statutory requirements

Specialist external consultants carry out regular health and
safety audits of all our sites under development Regular risk
assessments of our properties are undertaken using an online
management system, with implementaton of any resulting
actions monored by the Property Board 5t Modwen also
operates a pre-qualification process to ensure the selection

of competent consultants and contractors

Photo We are committed to supporting chanties in the vicinity of our
development projects

We encourage responsibility for the identification and
mitigation of health and safety risks at an indmdual level
Regular and appropriate competence traning is provided for
our employees, contractors and subrontractors to ensure that
health and safety considerations remain at the forefront of
any activity

We measure our health and safety performance through
accident frequency rates (AFR), measured as the number of
reportable incidents x100,000 (being the number of hours a
person works in a hfetme) divided by the total hours worked by
all persons at risk

For the 12 menths to 30" Novernber 2015 the AFR for our
development sites and for St Modwen Homes was 009 and

0 00 respectively, both significantly outperforming the industry
benchmark (0 40) With the number of man hours worked in
the year exceeding 3m we are pleased to report that there
were no health and safety prosecutions, enforcement actions
or fatalities ansing from our acimties during the year

Working with charities

Due to the vanety of projects across our portfoho, we have
chosen not to focus on a single national chanty Instead, we
support a number of local charities inked or In close proximity
to our development sies

For more information and to see case studies on some of the charities we
have supported throughout 2014/15 please soe our February 2016 CSR booklet,
alternatively please visit

www stmodwen-csr co uk/charities

Approval of Strategic Report

The Strategic Report for the year ended 30" November 2015
has been approved by the Board and was signed on its
behalf by

Bill Oliver
Chief Executive

1% February 2016
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IMAGE
REMOVED

WE SEE STEWARDSHIP

Photo Technology Retail Park, Rugby which was 100% pre-let to major national
retailers before being sold to Aberdeen Asset Management for £17 4m




Strategic Report Corporate Governance Finanoal Statements Addwonal Information 47
2-45 46-99 100-164 165-176

Chairman'’s Introduction

“Good governance is crucial to ensuring
we are well managed and can deliver our
strategic priorities.”

BILL SHANNON
Non-executive Chalrman

As a Board, we are responsible for the stewardship of the
business and are committed to maintaining hugh standards
of corporate governance across the Group We believe good
governance enhances business performance as well as our
reputation within our marketplace and across relationships
IMAGE with our stakeholders

REMOVED

In ine with the development of our business, our governance
framework 1s kept under close review In order 10 ensure

that shareholders’ interests are safeguarded and o

sustain the success of the Company over the longer term
The composition of the Board is also refreshed and in the
year John Salmon retred from the Board as Audit Committee

The Board remains committed to: Chairman and Michael Dunn stepped down as Group Finance
Ormving the Group's long-term objectives Director Both have been ably replaced by lan Bull and Rob
Oversight of operations to ensure competent and Hudson respecively

prudent management Our approach to governance Is outlined in the following report,

* Sound planning and internal control which describes how we integrate into our business the mamn
pnnaples of the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code (the
Code) The Code's prinaiples on remuneration are addressed in
- Maintaining strong relationships with key stakeholders the Directors’ Remuneration Report which 1s set out on pages
70 to 93 5t Modwen's sk management and internal control
framework together with detatls of the prinaipal nsks and

Developing leadership and succession plans

Areas of facus for 2015/16: uncertainies that the Group faces are described on pages 36
e tender for the external " to 41 This 1s the first year that the Company has been subject
Competitw xternal auditor appointment to the 2014 Code and t am pleased to confirm that, throughout
+ Fult review of remuneration policy for executive directors the financial year ended 30% November 2015, we complied in
Monitoring of succession planring at Board and full with its provisions

senior management level | hope that you find the corporate governance section of this

report informative and look forward to seeing you at our AGM

In March
Bill Shannon
Chairrman
1¢ February 2016
Code principles - how they are applied
Leadership Effectiveness Accountability Remuneration Relations with
Conunued focus A strong, open and Close scrutiny of Prudent oversight shareholders
on strategy and effecive Board risks and controls of executive Open engagement
1S execution remuneragion

with shareholders
Pages 52 to 54 Pages 55 and 56 Pages 36to 41 Pages 7010 93 Page 57
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Bill Shannon
IMAGE No*n-executrve Chawrman
REMOVED NT R

Appointed November 2010 as non executive director and Chairman
Designate, March 2011 as non-executive Chairman

Key strengths significant management and board experlence across retall,
lelsure, financial services and property sectors

Expenience a 30 year career at Whitbread plc which culminated in his
appointment as a main board director for 10 years until his retirement in
2004 Former Charrman of AEGON UK ple, Gaucho Gnll Holdings Ltd and
Pizza Hut (UK) Ltd, and former non-executrve director of The Rank Group plc,
Barratt Developments plc and Matalan plc A qualified Chartered Accountant
(Scotland)

External appointments Deputy Chairman and Senior independent Director
of LSL Property Services plc, non-executive director of Johnson Service Group
plc and Councit Member of the University of Southampton

Steve Burke
Group Construction Director

IMAGE
REMOVED

Appointed November 2006

Key strengths strong operational leadership and project management
experience in the construction sector

Experience jomed St Modwen in 1995 as a Contracts Surveyor after a
number of years' construction experience In senior rales with national
contracting companies including Batfour Beatty and Clarke Construction
Appointed Construction Director in 1998 and Joined the Board as a director
n 2006

External appointments none

Richard Mully
IMAGE Senior Independent Director
REMOVED ANR

Appointed September 2013 as non-executive director, December 2013
as Senior Independent Director

Key strengths extensive expenence in iInvestment banking, fund
management, capital markets and real estate private equity investing with
considerable board expenence

Experience Partner and Managing Director at Bankers Trust Company
from 1992 to 1998 and Managing Director and Head of European Merchant
Banking from 1998 to 2000 Co-Founder and Managing Partner of Soros Real
Estate Partners LLC and its successor firm, Grove International Partners LLP,
a major real estate private equity firm from 2000 to 2011 Former Senior
Independent Director of Hansteen Holdings plc

External appointments Senior Independent Director of ISG plc,
non-executive director of Aberdeen Asset Management plc and Supervisory
Board member of Alstria Office REMT-AG

Bill Oliver
Chuief Executive

IMAGE
REMOVED

Appointed January 2000

Key strengths extensive strategic and cperational leadership and financial
management experience in the property industry

Experience over 30 years' expenence in the property industry with
residential and commercial development companies such as Alfred McAlpine,
Barratt and The Rutland Group Finance Director of Dwyer Estates plc from
1994 to 2000 Joined 5t Modwen i 2000 as Finance Director and was
subsequently appointed Managing Director in 2003 and Chief Executive In
2004 A qualified Chartered Accountant.

External appaintments Member of the adwsory board of the Government's
Regeneraton Investment Organisation

Rob Hudson
Group Finance Director

IMAGE
REMOVED

Appointed September 2015

Key strengths strong financial management, commercial and operational
experience in financial services, informaton seraces and commerciat
property sectors

Experience over 20 years experience infinance, most recently as

Group Financial Controller at Brivsh Land PLC from 2011 Joined
PricewaterhouseCoopers on graduating then moved to Expenan PLC in
2000 where he held a number of senior financial roles, including Global
Finance Director of its Decision Analytics business and UK Finance Director
A qualified Chartered Accountant

External appointments member of the Board of Governors of the Enghsh
National Ballet School and charr of ts Finance Committee

lan Bull

Independent non-executive
IMAGE director
REMOVED I

Appointed September 2014

Key strengths strong financlal management and operational experience
In major commercial businesses across a range of sectors,

Expenence Chief Finanaal Officer and main board director at Ladbrokes plc
since 2011 Over 20 years financlal expenence with companies such as
Whitbread plc, Buena Vista Home Entertainment (Walt Disney Company)
and BT Group Group Finance Director of Greene King plc from 2006 to 2011
and former non-executive director of Paypoint Ltd A Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants

External appointments Chief Financlal Officer and main board director of
Ladbrokes plc
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Kay Chaldecott Simon Clarke, DL
IMAGE I(;:?:c[:g?dent non-executive IMAGE Non-executive director
REMOVED AN R REMOVED

Appointed October 2012

Key strengths significant knowdedge of the retall property sector, including
the retail development process, retail mix and leasing and shopping centre
operauons

Experience joined Capital Shopping Centres Group pic (now Intu Properties
pic) on graduaung and held a number of senior management posittons,
including Managing Director, during a career spanning 27 years Also served
as a8 main board director from 2005 until feaving the group in 2011 Former
non-executive director of Boyer Planning Ltd A member of the Royal
institution of Chartered Surveyors

External appointments non-executive director of NewRiver Retail Ltd and
Adwvisory Board member of Next Leadership

Lesley James, CBE
Independent non-executive
IMAGE director
REMOVED N e

Appomted October 2009

Key strengths extensive executive remuneration and human resources
experience and considerable Board experience across public private
voluntary and education sectors

Expenence HR Director for Tesco pic fram 1985 to 1999 and a main board
director from 1994 Former non-executive director for various companies
including Alpha Airports Group plc, Anchor Trust, Care UK ple, Inspicio plc
Liberty International pic and the West Bromwich Bullding Society Former
trustee of the chanty | CAN Awarded a CBE in 2003 for senvices to the DTI
Pantnership at Work Assessment Panel A Companion of the Chartered
insttute of Personnel and Development.

External appointments none

Changes to the Board

+ John Salmon retired from the Board as independent non-executive
director and Audit Commuttee Chairman on 27% March 2015

+ lan Bull was appointed Audit Committee Chairman with effect from
27™ March 2015

+ Michael Dunn stepped down from the Board as Group Finance
Director on 31% May 2015

+ Rob Hudson joined the Board as Group Finance Director on
28™ September 2015

Appointed October 2004

Key strengths strong cormmercial and management expenence in both
farmtng and property and extensive knowledge of the Company's history

Expertence the son of Sir Stanley Clarke, the founder and former Charrman
of St Modwen, he represents the interests of the Clarke and Leavesley
familles the Company's largest shareholders, on the Board Former Deputy
Chairman of Northern Racing plc and director and Vice-Chairman of The
Racecourse Associatlon Ltd An Honorary Doctor of Staffordshire Unhversity

External appeilntments Chairman of Dunstall Holdings Ltd Trustee of
Racing Welfare and Chairman of Raang Homes Member of Staffordshire
University’s Development Board Deputy Lieutenant for Staffordshire

Tanya Stote
Company Secretary

IMAGE
REMOVED

Appointed March 2012

Expenence over 15 years of governance and compliance experience

tn FTSE listed companies, iIncluding Misys plc, Taytor Woodrow plc

{now Taylor Wimpey plc) and Travis Perkins plc Joined 5t Modwen

from GXN plc where she was Deputy Company Secretary and Head of
Secretanal Department A Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretanes

Key responsibilites these include board and board committee support,
corporate governance, statutory and regulatory compliance insurance
HR and penswons

Key:

A Member of the
Audit Committee

Member of the
Remureration Committee

* BDengtes

N Member of the
Commuittee Chairman

Nominatron Commitiee
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Richard Bannister

Regional Director

IMAGE - Yorkshire and North East

REMOVED

Length of service 7 years

Experience began his career at St. Modwen as Development Manager for
the Yorkshire and North East region in 2008 and was promoted to Regional
Manager in 2014 and Regional Director in 2015 Previously Strategic Director
of Pearson Devetopments Ltd and worked at Turner & Partners Chartered
Surveyors A member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

Key activity in the year continues to oversee the ongoing development of
Waterdale Shopping Centre, Doncaster, which has seen a 70% rise in overall
footfall and new letings announced in 2015 Managed thesaleof 3 1 2 acre
site to Aldi plus four new lettings in the year at Bilingham Town Centre
following its acquisition for £14 3m 1n 2014

Mike Herbert
IMAGE Regional Director
- The Trentham Estate
REMOVED

Length of service 25 years

Experience began his career as a chartered surveyor at Lous Taylor

Ltd adwising on commercial property projects before |joining St Modwen
as Development Surveyor and promoted to Regional Director in 1997
Delvered numerous major projects across the North Staffordshire regon
mcluding Trentham Lakes Etruria Valley and Festival Park

Key activity in the year continues to oversee the regeneration and
rmanagement of the Trentham Estate a 725 acre tounst, leisure and shopping
destination centred on the restored Trentham Gardens and attracting over
3mvisitors per year The Gardens were named BBC Countryfile Magazine
‘Garden of the Year' in March 2015

Steven Knowles

Regional Director

IMAGE CNorth West
REMOVED

Length of service 12 years

Experience has cver 20 years’ expernience in the property sector, including
in the investment and development division at Evans Property Group Ltd
Joined as Northern Development Surveyor tn 2003 and promoted to North
West Regional Director in 2014 A member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors

Key activity in the year managed the £10m acquisition of Moorgate Point,
Liverpoo! and the purchase of Kirkby Town Centre for £35 8m Continues to
oversee the regeneration of Great Homer Street, Liverpool and Skelmersdale
Town Centre

Guy Gusterson
Group Residential Director

IMAGE
REMOVED

Length of service 9years

Experience joined St. Modwen as Land Birecter for Project MoDEL in 2006
and became Residential Director in 2009 Previously Development Director
at Crest Nicholson PLC overseeing residential-led mixed use developments
in Lendon and the South East Led the establishment and development of
St Modwen Homes

Key activity in the year promoted to Group Residential Director in 2015
with responsibity for maximising the value of the Group's residential
land bank by optimising St Modwen's residential projects, delvery of
infrastructure, working with joint venture partners and co-ordinating
development with St Modwen Homes

Rupert Joseland

Regional Director

IMAGE - South West and
REMOVED South Wales

Length of service 14 years

Experience joined Chestertons on graduating before moving to Boots
Properties Ltd and then to Miller Developments Ltd to gain further
experience in commercal development and estate management Promoted
from Midlands Development Surveyor in 2004 and moved to Bristol to
establish the South West and South Wales regional office A member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

Key activity in the year regional deftvery of the first phase of the new
Swansea University Bay Campus compnsing both student accommodation
and academic faclites Responsible for the ongoing mixed-use regeneration
schemes at Coed Darcy, Neath and Glan Liyn, Llanwern, with the latter
welcoming its first resident in the year Project lead for the redevelopment
of MoD Ashchurch

Richard Powell

IMAGE Build Director

REMOVED

Length of service 9years

Experience held commercial management and quantity surveying roles

at a number of companies including Bowis Lend Lease Ltd Balfour Beatty
Bullding Ltd and Skanska Construction UKLtd Joined St Modwen in 2006

as Construction Manager and has delivered both mixed-use and commercial
schemes such as Wembley Central Farnborough Town Centre and Skypark,
Exeter Promoted to Build Director in 2015

Key actrwity in the year detlvery of 775,000 sq ft of accommodation and
academc facilities at Bay Campus, Swansea to welcome over 900 students
n September 2015 The second phase of the projectis on site and a
development agreement with the University to develop a third phase was
signed In December 2015
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Stephen Prosser Tim Seddon
Regional Director Regional Director
IMAGE - Midlands IMAGE - London and South East
REMOVED REMOVED

Length of service 18 years

Experience background in surveying property valuation and asset
management for both local counals and Allled London Properiies PLC
Established the Yorkshire and North East office in 2005 and became Reglonal
Director for the North in 2012 Promoted to Midlands Regional Director in
2014 A member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

Key activity in the year oversees the ongorng £1bn regeneration of
Longbridge, including the new 150,000 sq ft Marks & Spencer store which
opened In November 2015 Other regtonal activity includes the mixed-use
leisure-based Meon Vale scheme in Stratford-upon-Avon, and the extensive
redevelopment of a 280 acre former industrial site in Branston,

Burton upon Trent

Dave Smith
Managing Director
IMAGE -5t Iv%odwen Homes
REMOVED

Length of service Lessthan a year

Experience joined St Modwen in 2015 from Morgan Sindall where he

was Construction Managing Director with responsibility for the north of
England and Wales Previously worked for St Modwen from 2003 unul 2009
as a Construction Manager A mernber of the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors and a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Bullding

Key activity in the year responsible for the ongoing operation of
St. Modwen Homes, the Group’s housebuilding business, which has
13 schemes under development across the country and five due to
start on site in 2016

Rupert Wood
Regional Director
IMAGE - Northern Home Counties
REMOVED

Length of service 9 years

Experience previously worked for vanous retail agencies dealing in land
acquisition and property management Joined St. Modwen in 2006 from
Lendlease whera he was Semor Development Manager Established

the Northern Home Counties office In 2008 as Regional Manager and
promoted to Regional Director in 2009 A member of the Royal Insutution of
Chartered Surveyors

Key activity in the year 90,000 sq ft speculative development at Letchworth

Industrial Estate completed and fully let, with the tnvestment sold post
year-end at a yield of 5 2% Managed the disposal of the Group's assets at
Cranfield University Technotogy Park for £16 5min July 2015 Continues to
lead St. Modwen Energy, established in 2011 to promote large scale power
generation projects across the UK, including Wrexham in North Wales and
Meaford In Staffordshire

Length of service 3 years

Expenence began his career at Edward Erdman as Development Surveyor
before mowving to Land Securities PLC in 1994 Here he gained experience
in both the retail and commercial offices sectors and became Development
Director with responsibility for a number of town and aty centre
regeneration-led projects throughout the UK

Key activity in the year the regeneration of the 57 acre New Covent Garden
Market sites in Nine Eims London which achieved unconditional status in the

year and the mixed-use redevelopment of the former RAF site at Uxbndge
Will alsc oversee delivery of a development agreement fora imsq ft
business park in Brentwoaod, Essex which was signed in July 2015

Andy Taylor
Group Financial Controller

IMAGE
REMOVED

Length of service 8 years

Experience Joined Deloitte on graduating and became Senior Audit and
Assurance Manager Also held posions at Wilsen Bowden plc as Group
Financial Controller and David Wilson Homes as Southern Dmsion Finance
Director Became Group Financial Controller for St Modwen in 2007

Key activity in the year- led the Group’s finance team and with
responsibility for all areas of operational finance, together with the
management of corporate finance activity, treasury, tax and internal and
external financial reporting Appointed Acting Group Finance Director from
June to September 2015

Bill Oliver, Steve Burke, Rob Hudson and Tanya Stote are also
members of the Property Board See pages 48 and 49 for their
bographies
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Corporate Governance Report
Leadership

This report examines the members of the Board, their role,
thewr performance and their oversight It also looks at the
induction, succession, Independence and effectiveness of
the directors

The Board

The Board prowvides leadership of the Company and direciton
for management it 1s collectively responsible and accountable
to shareholders for St Modwen's long-term success

it sets the strategy, oversees implementation and reviews
performance, ensuring that only acceptable risks are taken
and the appropriate people and resources are in place to
delver long-term value to shareholders and benefiis o the
wider community

To assist the Board in carrying out its functions and to ensure
independent oversight of matters such as remuneration,
internat control and risk management, the Board delegates
certain responsibilives to its three principal Committees
Membership of these Committees consists primarily of the
Independent non-executive directors and, In some cases, the
Charrman The Charmen of each Board Committee report to
the Board on matters discussed at Committee meetings

Matters reserved to the Board
To help retain conirol of key decistons, the Board has putin
place a formal schedule of reserved matters that require its
approval The principal reserved matters include

strategy,
* new business or geographical areas,

* authonisation of transactions in excess of £10m and those
which are otherwise significant,

nsk management and internal control,
dwvidend policy;

+ documents to shareholders and the Annuat and Half Year
Report and Financial Statements,
matters relating to share capital, such as share 1ssues or
buybacks, and

the appointment/removal of directors and the
Company Secretary

The Board
Develops strategy and leads St Modwen to achieve long-term success

Audit Committee
Oversees financial and narrative reporting,
property portfelio valuations, internal control,
risk management systems, and internal and
external audit processes

Audit Committee Report

Nomination Committee
Oversees Board and senior management
succession planning leads the process
for Board appointments and monitors
membership of Board Committees

Nomination Committes Report

Remuneration Committee

Determines the remuneration arrangements
for the executive directors, the Chairman and
the Company Secretary

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Pages 58 10 65 Pages 66 to 69 Pages 7010 93
Supported by
Executive Capital Projects Property Safety, Health CSR Steering
directors Committee Board and Environment Group
Steering Group
Implement strategic Established during the Reviews performance Oversees Group Co-ordinates the
decisions approved by year to review significant and considers Group- strategy, procedure and Groups approach to and

the Board and monitor
operational performance

projects, esther In terms
of capital iInvestment
andfor nisk

wide cperational 1ssues
and initiatives

performance in relation
to safety, health and
ermaronmental matters

enhance the reporting
of its corporate social
responsibility actwities
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How the responsibilities of the Board are divided

The Board comprises the Chairman, three executive directors and five non-execuiive directors Their responsibilities are
summansed in the table below and their biographical details can be found cn pages 48 and 49 There is a clear dwmision of
responsibility between ithe Chairman, who 1s accountable for the leadership of the Board, and the Chief Executive, who manages

and leads the business

Chairman

Bdl Shannon's role 1s to lead the Board and ensure that it operates effectively His
responsibidities nclude

* setting appropriate agendas for Board meetings and ensuring that all matters are given
due consideration,

- maintaining a culture of openness, debate and constructive challenge in the boardroom,
ensunng effective dialogue takes place between St Modwen and its shareholders,

+ providing a tallored induction programme for newly appointed directors and agreeing any
traning and development needs with other members of the Board, and

+ ensunng the Board's effectiveness

Chief Executive

8ill Olver 15 responsible for the teadership of the business, managing  within the authorities
delegated by the Board His respensibiiities include

+ day-to-day managerment of the business,

* recommending propasals for St Modwen's strategic development and implementing the
strategy agreed by the Board,

- leading the executive management team, and
ensunng the efficient use of resources

Group Finance Director

Rob Hudson 1s responsible for devising and implementing the Group's finanaal strategy and
policies He also oversees investor relations, internal audit and IT

Group Construction Director

Steve Burke 15 responsible for procurement and programme delivery and oversees the
Group's major projects He also chairs the Company's Steering Groups for CSR and safety,
health and the envirecnment

Senior Independent Director

Richard Mully's rote involves
» acting as a sounding beard for the Charman,

serving as an intermedhary for the other directors when necessary; and
« providing an additional commuication channel for shareholders

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors work with and challenge the executive directors in the
development of 5t Modwen's strategy They offer an independent, external perspecive on
the business and bring wide and varied commercial expenence to both the Board and its
Commuttees With the exception of Simon Clarke, all non-executive directors are deemed to
be independent

Company Secretary

Tanya Stote

- supports the Chairman and Chief Executive in fulfiling ther duties,
1s availlable to all directors for advice and support,

+ keeps the Beard regularly updated on governance matiers, and

* attends, and maintains 3 record of the matters discussed and approved at, Board and
Cornrmittee meetings

She also aversees the Group's HR and Insurance functions and supporis the trustee of the
Group’s pension scheme
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board meetings

The Board discharges its responsibilities through an annual
programme of Board and Committee meetings which are
supplemented by wvisits to sites within the Company's property
portfoho In the year ended 30" November 2015 the Board
held nine meeungs, Indmdual director attendance 1s set out

In the table below

Sites visits in the year included the Trentham Estate, the
310,000 sq ft extension to the Screwfix distnbution facility
at Trentham Lakes, Stoke-on-Trent, the regeneration
scheme at Branston Leas in Burton upon Trent, comprising
both residential and commercial development, and

St Modwen Homes' sites at Manorfields, Swadlincote and
Edison Place, Rugby (including PRS units)

Key Board actimvity in 2014/15

Matters considered at each Board meeting
+ Strategic matiers

+ Acquisition and development opportunities

» Operavonal updates

+ Trading results and forecasts

Management accounts, key perfermance indicators
and financigl commentary

+ Health and safety
+ Board Committee actvities

tnvestor relations and shareholder feedback
+ Legal, company secretaral and regutatory matters
+ Minutes of previous rreetings
- Implementation of actions from previous meetings
* Rolling programme of agenda items

+ Considered annual renewal of

Insurance arrangements for

Appraved the Group's results for
the year ended 30% November

Considered acuons arising from
the internal Board evaluation

recruitment, retention

Dec the Group Jan 2014, including the Group's Mar Considered AGM-
Approved the Chairman's fee property portfolio vauation and related matters
final dwdend recommendation
Toured commercial Considered Group Toured commerctal and
development sites in finanang strategy I residental sites in the Midlands,
Apr North Staffordshire Jun Reviewed and approved the Ju including PRS schemes
Considered risks ansing from acquisiton of Kirkby Tawn
the Scotush referendum and the Centre, Liverpog!
UK General Elecuon
Annual strategy review, Reviewed and approved the Reviewed the Group's plans
including input from the 2016 budget In respect of employee
SEP Company's brokers Oct Nov

Approved the appaintment of
a professional trustee to the
Company’s pension scheme

Considered updates on Group
PR and environmental actwity

and development

Attendance at Board meetings

Meetings attended in year % attended
Director Role Director since out of maxtmum possible in year
fanBull  Non-executwe direcior _ Sep2004 99  100%
Steve Burke _Group Construcnion Director~~ Nov2006 _ e . 100%
Kay Chaldecoit Non-executve director Oct 2012 9/9 100%
Simen Clarke® Non-executve director Oct 2004 8/9 89%
Michael Dunn® Group Finance Direcior Dec 2010 444 100%
Rob Hudson® Group Finance Director Sep 2015 212 100%
Lesley James® Non-executive director Oct 2009 &/9 89%
Richard Mully Senior Independent Director Sep 2013 919 100%
Bl Olver Chief Executive Jan 2000 L 99 100%
John Salmornt Non-executive director Oct 2005 3/3 100%
Bill Shannon Charrman Nov 2010 9/9 100%

{1) Unzble to attend the Board meeting in June 2015 due to a prior personal commment

{2) Stepped down from the Board on 31* May 2015

(3) Appontad 1o the Board on 28™ September 2015

{4) Unable to sttend the Board visit n April 2015 due to ilness
{5) Retred from the Board on 27™ March 2015
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Effectiveness

Induction of a new director

The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, is
responsible for the induction of all new directors

On joining the Board, a dwector receves a comprehensive
induciion pack which includes background information on the
Company. material on matters relating to the activities of the
Board and its Commitiees and governance-related mformation
{Including the duties and respansibilities of directors)

Meetings are arranged with the executive directors, for
briefings on strategy and performance, as well as with the
external auditor and valuers Visits 10 key sites within the
Company's property portfolio are scheduled and external
training. particularly on matters relating to membership

of Board Committees, is arranged as appropriate

Major sharehotders are also offered the opportunity to meet
newly apponted directors should they express a desire to
doso

Director development

The Company 1s committed to the continuing development of
directors in order that they may build on their expertise and
develop an ever more detalled understanding of the business
and the markets in which 5t Modwen operates

Training and development needs are discussed with each
director by the Chairman as part of the annual indwidual
performance evaluation process and kept under review
Development actmvities include wisits to sites within the
Company's property portfalio, both as a Beard and indivdually,
regular presentations to the Board by regional directors

and senior management on key issues and projects, and
meetings with the external valuers to review their praperty
valuation repaorts

The attendance by members of Board Commuttees on courses
relevant to aspects of therr respective Committee specialisms (s
also encouraged

Director independence and re-election to the Board
The Board considers Bill Shannon to have been independent
on his appointment as Chairman in 2011 and that he
remains so

Simon Clarke, a non-executive director, represenis the interests
of the Clarke and Leavesley families on the Board Together the
farniles hold 14 4% of the Company’s 1ssued share capital and
are St Modwen's largest shareholder Consequently the Board
has determined that Simon Clarke Is not independent for the
purposes of the Code

The Board considers that all other non-executive directors
are independent and 1s not aware of any relationship or
arcumstance likely to affect the judgement of any director

At the 2016 AGM, and in accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association, Rob Hudson will retire and offer himself
for elecion All other directors will retire and offer themselves
for re-electuion in accordance with the prowvisions of the Code

The explanatory notes set out In the notice of meeting state the
reasons why the Board believes that each director proposed
for re-election at the AGM should be re-appointed The Board
has based, in part, s recommendation for re-eleciion on

its review of the results from the Board evaluation process
and the Chairman's review of individual evaluations It has
concluded that the performance of each director continues

to be effective, that they continue to demonstrate substanual
commitment to their respective roles, and that their respective
skills complement one ancther to enhance the overall
operation of the Board

Motice of AGM Pages 167 t0 174

External appointments !
On appointment directors are adwvised of, and requested to

make, the necessary tme commitment required to discharge

their responsibilities effecively This tme commitment 1s

also outined In the letters of appointment 1ssued to non-

executive directors

The Charman reviews annually the time each director

has dedicated to St Madwen as part of their indwdual
performance evaluations and Is satisfied that their other duties
and tme commitments do not conflict with those as directors
of the Company Similarly, the Board 1s content that the
Chairman's external appeintments do not Impact on his ability
to allocate sufficient time to discharge his responsibilities to

St Modwen

Conflicts of interest

The Board operates a policy todentfy and, where appropriate,
manage any confhicts of interest affecting directors

This enables the Board to consider and, if thought appropriate,
10 authonse a director’s actual or potential conflict of interest,
taking into consideration what 1s in the best interests of

the Company and whether the director's ability to act in
accordance with his or her wider duties 1s affected

IMAGE
REMOVED

Governance in action: Rob Hudson’s induction

“On joiring St Modwen as Group Finance Director |
received a comprehensive, tallored induction This involved
business briefings with members of the Board and
Property Board, meetings with semor rnanagers of
operaiing departments such as finance, internal audit, IT
and HR and a review of Board policies and procedures with
the Company Secretary

" was Introduced to key external advisors, including

the Company's joint brokers, key banking relationship
managers and our external valuers and auditor, and have
had meetings with our joint venture partners

“I have also taken the opporiunity to wisit 5t Modwen's
assets across the country and look forward to buillding
a more in depth knowledge of the Company's property
portfolio in the coming months *
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Performance evaluation

The annual Board performance evaluation review prowides an
opportunity for the directors to reflect on their collective and
individual effectiveness and consider any changes that could
improve the operation of the Board and ts Committees

The evaluation review for 2014 was led by the Chairman

and involved one-to-one discussions with each director,
together with a review of the effectiveness of the Commttees
constdered collectively by relevant Committee members
Progress against those areas for improvement identified by the
2014 review can be found in the table below

It was agreed by the Board that the evaluation for 2015

would commence after Rob Hudson had joined as Group
Finance Director at the end of September 2015 in order

that his initial views on the operation of the Board could be
considered In accordance with the Code, the assessment 1s
being faclitated by Dr Tracy Long of Boardroom Review Ltd
(BRR), who recewed a comprehensive brief from the Chairman,
including the outturn of areas idenufied for improvement from
the 2014 internal review Neither Tracy nor BRR has any other
connection with the Company and 1s considered by the Board
to be independent

The outturn of the 2015 evaluation will be considered by the
Board at a separate meeting to be held in March 2016 and
reported on in the 2016 Annual Report

The indmidual performance of the directors was evaluated
through one-to-one discussions with the Chairman

Richard Mully, as Senior Independent Director, led the review
by the non-executive directors of the Chairman’s performance,
which took into account the views of the executive directors
No actions were considered necessary as a result of these
evaluations and the Board 15 of the view that the performance
of all dwectors continues to be effecive, that they continue to
demonstrate commitment to ther respective roles, and that
their respective skills complement cne another to enhance the
overall operaton of the Board

Board Committee performance was also evaluated by means
of a questionnaire completed by relevant Committee members
and meeting attendees The outturn of these evaluations

will be considered as part of the Board performance review
meeting In March 2016

2014 Board evaluation

2015 EVALUATION PROCESS

Review of Governance Framework
A suite of Board and Committee information was sent
to BRR to provide information on the governance
framewark within which the Board operates

Il

One-to-One Interviews
Indnidual in-depth interviews were conducted by BRR
with each director and the Company Secretary

!

Board Meeting Observation
BRR attended a Board meeung to observe the
conduct and operation of the Board Copies of
meeting papers were circulated 1o 8RR In advance
for briefing purposes

I

Reporting
BRR will prepare a discussion document which
analyses current strengths and future challenges and
seis out objectves and recommendations

i

Discussion and Evaluation
Draft conclusions will be discussed with the
Chairman and subsequently considered by all
directors at a meeting with BRR The Board will agree
an action plan to imptement, where appropriate,
any recommendations made

2014 Findings The Board's annual schedule
IS to be reviewed in order

to reduce the frequency of
meetngs (currently nine per
annum plus two site visits)
Meeting duration will nstead
be increased 10 enable greater

in-depth discussion

Progress in 2015 Six Board meetings now held
annually, complemented by
two site visits Intra-Board
commumnication between
meetings co-ordmated by

the Chairman

The Board and Audit Committee
wil ensure that the Company’s

Board agendas are to include
topical areas for deep-dves to

enhance the ¢contnibutionthe  rnisk management systems
non-executve directors can  contnue to be enhanced
make to key matters affectng  through regular focus

the business and review, supported by

Improved reporting

Members of the management  Board workshop held and
team attended Board meetngs enhancemenis made to internal
to facrktate discussion on rsk reporting External advisor
Issues including PR, people- engaged to faciitate business-
strategy and the Group’s wide improvements 10 risk
environmental actvues awareness and culure
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Relations with shareholders Compliance statement

Dialogue with investors

The Board has a comprehensive investor relations
programme which aims to provwde existing and potential
investors with a means of developing therr understanding of
St Modwen The programme 15 split between institutional
shareholders {which make up the majonty of shareho'ders),
private shareholders and debt investors Feedback from the
programme of events is provided to the Board to ensure
that directors develop an understanding of the views of the
Company's major investors

As part of the programme, presentations on the half year
and annual results are given In face to face meetings and
conference calls with institubional investors, analysts and

the media Copies of these presentations, together with
trading updates, are published on the Company's website at
www stmodwen co uk Meetings with principal shareholders
were aiso held and the Company had regular dialogue with
its key relationship banks The Charrman 1s availlable to meet
with institutional shareho!ders and investor representatives
to discuss matters relating to strategy and governance
Private shareholders are encouraged to give feedback and
communicate with the Board through the Company Secretary

Annual General Meeting

The AGM provides an opportunity for all shareholders to vote
on the resolutions proposed and to question the Board and
the Chairmen of the Board Committees on matters put to the
meeting Resolutions for consideration at the 2016 AGM will

be voted on by way of a polt rather than by a show of hands as
the Board believes that this 1s a more transparent method of
voting as it allows the votes of all shareholders to be counted,
iIncluding those cast by proxy The results of the poll vote will be
published on the Company's website, www stmodwen co uk,
after the meeting

Notlce of AGM Pages 167 to 174

This Corporate Governance Report, together with the Audit
Committee Report, the Nominatuon Committee Report, the
Directors' Remuneration Report and the secoons of this Annual
Report entitled ‘Risk management and ‘Our prinapal nsks,
provide a description of how the main principles of the Code
have been applied by St Modwen in 2014/15 The Code s
published by the Financial Reporting Council and 1s available an
Its website at www frc org uk

It 15 the Board's view that, throughout the financial year ended
30" November 2015, the Company was In compliance with the
relevant provisions set out in the Code

With the exception of disciosures required by Rule 72 6
which are set out in the Directors' Report, this Corporate
Governance Report contains the information required by Rule
7 2 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authorty

The directors are responstble for prepanng this Annual Report
The statement of directors’ responsibilities on pages 98 and
99 1s made at the conclusion of a robust and effective process
undertaken by the Company for the preparation and review
of the Annual Report The directors believe that these well-
established arrangements, details of which are set out on
page 63, enable them ta ensure that the infarmation presented
In this Annual Report 1s fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Company's position and performance, business model
and strategy
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“The Committee continues to focus on
matters important by virtue of size,
complexity, level of judgement required
or impact on the Financial Statements.”

IAN BULL

Chairman of the Audit Committee

IMAGE
REMOVED

COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDEES {BY INVITATION)

Meetings

attended

Inyear out of
maximum % attended
Committee member  Member since possible n year
lan Bullm Sep 2014 3/3 100%
Kay Chaldecott Dec 2012 3/3 100%
Lesley James Oct 2009 313 100%
Richard Mully Sep 2013 3/3 100%
John Salmon'? Oct 2005 11 100%

(1) Appainted Chairman of the Committee with effect frem 27 March 2015

(2) Retired fram the Board and as Charman of the Committee on 27 March 2015

Chasrman
Bill Shannon
Group Finance Director

Mike Dunn (1% December 2015 ta 31= May 2015)
Rob Hudson {from 28" September 2015)

Non-executive director

Simon Clarke

Group Financial Controller

Andy Taylor

Internal Audit Manager

Dawid Edwards

Company Secretary and secretary to the Committee
Tanya Stote

External auditor

Represeniatives from Deloitie

External valuers

Representatves from Cushman & Wakefield and
Jones Lang LaSalle

External tax advisors

Representatives from Pw(

Principal role

Key activities in 2014/15

year restatements

these would be mplemented

Areas of focus for 2015/16

to be commenced

assurance framework,

Audit funcuon

Terms of reference

Continuing enhancements to the Group's nsk

Independent external review of the Internal

www.stmodwen co uk/ab {corporate-governance

Monitors the integrity of the Group's financial reporting and
audit processes and the development and maintenance of
sound systems of risk management and internal control

+ Considered Balance Sheet recognition of the Group's
interest in New Covent Garden Market and prior

Examined changes to the UK Corporate Governance
Code {the Code) on sk management and assessed how

« Contnibuted towards a smooth iransition following the
appointment of a new Group Finance Director and on the
change of Commitiee Chairman

Competitive iender for the external auditor appointment

- Ongong monitoring of cyber-security and the robustness
of the Group's preventative procedures
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As Chairman of the Audit Committee | am pleased to present
our report for the financial year ended 30 November 2015
The report 1s Intended to provide meaningful insight (nto the
Committee’s activities in the year and sets out how we have
performed our responsibiities in relation to financial reporting,
internal control and risk management and in relation to the
external auditor, Deloitte

Following the appointments of Cushman & Wakefleld, formerty
DTZ, (external valuers) and PwC (tax compliance advisors) in
2014, 2015 was anather key year for the Committee A new
Group Finance Director, Rob Hudson, was appointed in
Septemnber 2015 and the Committee has spent tme helping
to ensure a smooth transition from Rob's predecessor

As Committee Chairman | have also discussed with Rob

his instial prioribes and look forward to working with and
supporung him as he settles into hus role

We have made good progress to further reduce the level

of non-audit fees payable to Deloitte, our external auditor
Amounts pad to Deloitte in the year for non-audit services
represented 31% of the fees paid for audit and audit-refated
assurance services The Committee has approved the
continued engagement of Deloitte Real Estate for the provision
of property consulting services In respect of a long-term
development project, subject to a cap on fees

The tendering of external audit arrangements has been the
subject of considerable debate in recent years, both ata
national and European level Noting the requirements on audit
tendering set out In the Code, the Competition and Markeis
Authority Order and the Department for Bustness, Innovation
and Skills proposals to implement the EU's June 2014 Audit
Directive and Regulation, the Committee has agreed that

a competitive tender process be commenced dunng 2016

in readiness for the external audit for the year ending

30™ November 2017

In terms of risk, the Commiitee has agreed with management
that actvity should continue to focus on enhancing the nisk
management culture across the business, with sndmdual
ownership of nsks and associated mitigating actions This in
turn should further strengthen the linkage between operational
risk management and risk reporung, both internally and
externally, with focus being given to those areas of highest nisk

The Committee continues to focus on those matiers it
considers ta be important by virtue of their size, complexity,
level of judgement required or impact on the Financal
Statements In 2015 these included accounting for the funds
recenved from M&G in relation to the student accommodation
at Bay Campus, Swansea Unwersity and associated
restatements, and Balance Sheet recognition in respect of the
Group’s interest at New Covent Garden Market These and the
other 1ssues considered by the Committee during the year,
and the acticns taken to address them, are detailed within
this report

As | approach the anniversary of my appomtment as
Committee Chairman | would hke to thank both my fellow
Committee members and the management team for their
conunued support and commitment to ensuring effective
governance through the Committee’s activities | would also
like to take this opportunity to thank jahn Salmen for the
Insight, direction and focus that he prowvided over the years
as Committee Chairman and to wish him well for the future

I hope that the following report provides a useful guide
to the actmuies of the Committee duning the year

lan Bull
Chairman of the Audit Comrnittee

1% February 2016
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Commiittee membership

All members of the Committee are independent nor-executive
directors, with each bringing broad financial and commercial
experience at senior levels across a range of Industries

The Committee’s composiuion is kept under review by the
Nomeination Commuttee, which 1s responsible for making
recommendations io the Board as to its membership

In March 2015 John Salmon retired as Committee Chairman and
was replaced by lan Bull, Chief Financial Officer of Ladbrokes plc
lan 15 considered to have significant, recent and relevant financial
expenence as required by the Code

All members of the Commuttee receve an appropriate induction
0 ensure that they have an understanding of the principles of,
and recent developments in, financial reportng, key aspecis of
the Company’s accouniing policies and judgements, and internal
control and nsk management arrangements, as well as the

role of the internal and external auditors Ongoing training s
undertaken as required

How the Committee operates

The Committee met three times during the year as part of its
standard schedule of meetings No supplementary meetings
were necessary In the year Meetings of the Committee
generally take place just prior to a Board meeting to raximise
the efficiency of interaction with the Board and the Committee
Chairman reports to the Board, as a separate agenda item, on
the actmty of the Committee and matters of particular relevance
to the Board in the conduct of s work,

Representatives from the external audttor, Deloiite LLP, are
invited ta each meeting together with other Board members,
the Group Financial Controller, the Internal Audit Manager and
the Company Secretary Representatives from both Cushman
& Wakefield and Jones Lang LaSalle (LL), the external valuers,
are Invited to attend meetings at which the half year and annual
results are considered by the Committee Representatives from
the Group’s tax compliance advisor, PwC, are invited to attend
meetings as appropriate

At least once a year, immediately following a Committee meeting,
the Committee meets separately with the external audit
engagement partner and with the Internal Audit Manager to

gve them the opportunity to discuss matters without executive
management being present The Committee Chairman also
holds separate one to one meetings with the Group Finance
Director, the Internal Audit Manager and with Deloitte, typically
ahead of Committee meetings, in order to better understand the
Issues and areas of concerns and to make sure adequate tme is
devoted 10 these matters at the subsequent meeting

The Committee has direct access to the Internal Audit Manager,
the external audit engagement partner and the external valuers
outside formal Committee meetings Whilst permitted to do so,
no member of the Committee, nor the Commitiee collectively,
sought outside professional advice beyond that which was
provided direcily to the Committee dunng the financial year

in late 2015 the Commuttee’s performance was reviewed
internally try way of a questionnaire which was completed by all
members of the Committee, the Group's senior management
and external audit engagement partner The feedback receved
will be considered as part of the Board performance review
meetng n March 2016

Activities of the Committee during the year

Reporting

The Commiiteg’s primary responsibilty in relation to the
Group's financial reporting 1s to review with both management
and the external audrtor the integrity of the Half Year and
Annual Financial Statements with particular focus on

the consistency of, and any changes to, accouning policies
and practices,

+ matenal areas in which stgnificant judgements have been
applied or where significant financial 1ssues have been
discussed with the external auditor,

- the clanity of the disclosures and compliance with financial
reporting standards and relevant financiat and governance
reporting requirements, such as statements on viability and
gaing concern, and

whether the Annual Report, taken as a whole, 1s farr, balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Company's position and
performance, business model and strategy

Accounting policies and practices

The Commmittee receved reports from management in
relation to the continuing appropnateness of accounting
policies applied by the Group and any changes required
as a consequence of the implementation of new
accounting standards

During the year the Group was required to adopt a number
of new accounting standards including IFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, which replaced SIC 12 Consolidation

- Special Purpose Entities In 1ts entirety and changed the
accounting treatment to be applied in respect of VSM Estates
(Holdings) Ltd Whilst this entity 1s jointly owned with VINCI
Investments Ltd, under the funding agreement the Graup
obtains the majonty of benefits of the entity and also retains
the majority of the residual risks This entity was previously
consolidated under SIC 12, however the conditions for
conschdation in IFRS 10 do not exist and, as such, the entity s
now required 1o be accounted for using the equity method

Following consideration and discussions with Deloitie, the
Committee was satisfied that the accounting policies and
related disclosure in this Annual Report was appropriate

Atcounting palicies Pages 11010118

Significant jJudgements and financial 1ssues

The Committee pays particular attention to matters it
considers to be important by wrtue of their impact on the
Group's results, or the level of complexity, judgement or
estumation involved in ther apphcation to the Group Financial
Statements The significant financial 1ssues considered by the
Committee in relation to the 2015 Finanaial Statements, and
how these were addressed, are outlined on pages 61 and 62
The Commttee discussed these with the external auditor and,
where appropriate, how these were addressed by Deloitte’s
audit scope

Independent Auditor's Report Pages 100to 105
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Significant 1ssue

Work undertaken by and conclusion of Committee

Valuation of investment property

The independent valuation of St Modwen's
Irvestment property is a key deterrminant of
the Group's Balance Sheet and performance
as well as executive vanable remunerauon

Although the portfolio valuation 13 conducted
externally by independent valuers, the nature
of valuation estimates 1s inherently subsectve
and reguires significant judgements and
assumptions 1o be made by the valuers
These include market comparable yrelds,
esumates in refaton to future rental Income,
vord periods, purchaser costs, together with
remediation and other cests to complete,
some of which require management INput

The Commuttee adopts a formal approach by which the valuation process, methodology,
assumptions and outcomes are reviewed and robustly challenged This includes separate
review and scrutiny by both managerment and the Committee, with members of the Committee
discussing the valuations both prior to and at Committee meetings infanuary and June It also
includes the external auditor which 1s assisted by s own specialst team of chartered surveyors
who are farmiliar with the valuation approach and UK property market

The external auditor has direct access to the Group's valuers and their remit extends to
investigating and confirming that no undue influence has been exerted by management in
relation to the valuations The externat auditor reviewed the valuations and process and
reporied its findings to the Committee

Both Cushman & Wakefield (formerly DTZ) and JLL submit their valuation reparts tc the
Commuittee as part of the half year and full year results process Both valuers were asked to
attend and present to the Commdtee their valuation reports and highlight any significant
Jjudgements made or disagreements between themselves and management, there were none
with the background of continued strength in the property market, the Committee discussed in
detail the rationale underlying sigruficant increases to valuations, and considered these on a
case-by-case bass as appropriate

Based on the degree of oversight and challenge applied to the valuation process, the
Committee concluded that the valuation as a whole had each been conducted appropriately,
independently and in accordance with the valuers professional standards

Valuation of inventory

The Group’s Inventory, COMpsiNg property
held for sale, propenty under development
commenced with aview to sale and land
under option, 1s of sigrificant value

Al nventory Is carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value and appropriate
allowances are made for remediauon and
other costs to complete Far the majority of
inventories held management rely an their
own internal procedures for assessing the
carrying value of inventary

The Committee reviewad management's assessment as to whether any prowision was required
against the carrying value of inventory, either at Group levet or within any joint venture
arrangements The assessment pracess undertaken to determine net reahsable value was
considered by the Committee, which included ongoing monitonng by management as welt as
detailed reviews at both the half and full year External valuations were also prowided by the
external valuers for certain sites, typically new buiid units not yet sold

The Committee concluded that the judgements and estimates made by management were In
Ime with Group policy, reasenable and appropriate

New Covent Garden Market

2015 saw the culmination of several years of
development actmity resuling in this project
achieving unconditional status in April 2015
and being included on the Balance Sheet
The recognition comprised the Group’'s
interest in the value of the 19 acres of
surplus land as an asset and the cost of
procuring the 500,000 sq ft new market
facilities as a hability

As with the rest of our portfolio, significant
judgements and assumpuons were made by
JLL, our independent vatuers of this project, n
arrmving at the valuation, some of which
required management input

The Committee reviewed the decision for recogniuon in the year, and the associgted accounting
treatment

In considering the satisfaction of the requirements for unconditional contract status, and
resuliing Balance Sheet recognition, the Committee noted

documentation and approval of a section 106 agreement together with entry into statutory
roads and servces agreements,

expiry of the subsequent judicial review period,

delvery of a Deed of Grant with the US Embassy to provde a road from the Embassy on
surplus Covent Garden Market Authority (CGMA) tand,

+ formal Issue of planning consent and confirmation of acceptability from CGMA and VINCY
St Modwen, and

independent certfication that the market can be procured withun CGMA's affordability mit

The Committee alsa considered

accounung for the acquisihion of the interest in land, including reviewing with both JLL and
management the valuation assumpuons for the 19 acres of surplus land, enabling costs and
overage, and the costs of procunng the new market faciives,

measurerment of the hability to procure the new market facliies, and

+ the dassification of the Group's interest in the surplus land as investment property

The Committee concluded {and Delowte concurred) that the recogniion and accounting
treatment adopted was appropriate

61
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Activities of the Committee during the year (continued)

ggnlflcant issue

Work undertaken by and conclusion of Committee

Bay Campus, Swansea University

In respect of the Bay Campus development at
Swansea University, the Committee contnued
to monitor the appropriateness of the
accounung treatment in respect of revenue
streams In respect of the academic facilities at
the Campus

The Committee also reviewed the accounting
for the funds recerved from M&G in relation
10 the student accommodation at the
Campus and, as part of the valuaton of
Investment properties, consicered the
valuation of the Group's interests in the
student accommaodation facilities

Bunng the year, following receipt of the first rental income, further consideration was gven to
the revenue streams associated with the first two phases of student accommaodation at the Bay
Campus Due to the fixed (subject only 10 annual RPI adjustment) nature of the Group's annual
rental payments to M&G, meaning that the Group retains exposure (both positive and negatve)
to all variability in net rentals generated from the properties, it was concluded that the
transaciion was more appropnately accounted for as a finance lease arrangement, rather than

as the sale of 50% of the assets

Consequently the 2014 results and opening Balance Sheet have been restated te reflect

recogrition by the Group of the following elements

the whole {rather than 50%) of the property interest in the student accommaodation,

10 account for the amounts due to M&G as a finance lease habilty;

1o eliminate the construction contract accounting recagnised in respect of the proportion of

the development work performed on these sites that was funded by M&G, and
to revalue the site duning the course of constructon

Both the Committee and Deloitte agreed that the accounting for the project, including the

revised treatment applied (o the student accommodation, was appropriate

Detalls of the restatement are set out in the Accounting Policies note on pages 117 and 118

Tax provisions

As 3 praperty group, tax and Its treatment 15
often an integral pan of transacuons
undertaken by St Modwen The outcomes of
tax treatments are recognised by the Group
to the extent the outcome 15 reasonably
certain Where tax treatments have been
challenged by HMRC, or management beleve
that there 1S a nisk of such challenge, or new
tax regulation 1s introduced, provision 1s
made for the best estimate of potential
exposure based on the information available
at the reportng date

Based on reports from management, Deloitte and PwC (the Group's tax complance adwisor),
the Committee considered the indvidual judgerments made by management i respect of tax
provisions and was satisfied that the resultant level of tax provisioning at both the full year and

half year remained appropnate

Further disclosure n taxaton (s set out In Note 5 to the Group Financial Statements, page 128

and the Accounting Polictes noke on page 116

Viability and going concern

The Commuittee provides advice to the Board on the form and basis underlying both the going concern statement and the new,

longer-term viability statement

As both siatements rely on forecasts, the Commiitee considered the assumptions and judgements applied by management

in relation to the tming of receipt and payment cash flows, the ongoing avallability of funding and covenant compliance
The Committee also reviewed the sensitivity analysis prepared by management, including the assumptions made

The Committee concluded that  remains appropriate for the Financial Statements to be prepared on a going concern basis and
recommended the viability statement to the Board

Golng concern statement Page 87

Viability statement Page 37
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Fair, balanced and understandable External auditor

When reporting to shareholders the Board aims to present
afarr, balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's position and performance and 1s assisted in this
by the Committee This responsibility covers the Annual and
Half Year Reports and Financial Statements, as well as trading
updates and other financial reporting

The Committee 1s satisfied and has confirmed to the Board
that the 2015 Annual Report and Financial Statements are farr,
balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s position
and performance, business model and strategy

In reaching this view the Committee considered the robust
and well-established processes in place to prepare the Annual
Report and Fnancial Statements which includes

- clear guidance and instruction I1s given to all contnbutors,

- revisions to regulatory requirements and governance
prinaples, including the Code, are continualty monitored,

meetings are held with the auditors in advance of the year
end reporting process,

- Input ts provided by senior management {0 identify relevant
and material information and ensure accurate, consistent and
balanced reporting,

- detalled debates and discussions regarding pnnapal risks
and uncertaintes,

- focused review and approval of specific sections by the
relevant Board Committees, supported by regular reporting
by Board Commuttees to the Board on therr activities,

a review by the Committee of reports prepared by
management on accounting estimates and judgements,
audrtor reports on internal controls, accounting and reporting
matters and a management representation letter concerning
accounting and reporting matters,

» consideration of the draft Annual Report and Financial
Statements by the Committee in advance of final sign-off, and

review and approval by the external auditor

The Board takes into account the view of the Committee when
undertaking its own review of the document prior to gving
final approval

Deloitte, as the external audrtor, 15 engaged to express

an opinion on the Company's and the Group’s finanaial
statements Thewr audit iIncludes a review and tesi of the
systems of internal conirol and data contained in the Financial
Staternents 10 the extent necessary to express an audit opinion
on them

Audit plan

In respect of the audit for the financal year ended

30" Novemnber 2015, Deloitte presented their audit plan
(prepared in consultation with management and the Internal
Audit Manager) to the Committee The audit plan took into
account key changes in the business and the impact of these
on materiality, scope and risk assessment The audit fee, which
was approved by the Committee, was felt to be appropnate
given the scope of work whilst not adversely affecting Deloitte’s
independence or objectivity

Non-audit fees

To help safeguard Dejoitte’s objectvity and independence,
the Committee has approved a non-audit senvices policy
which sets out the arcumstances and finanaal limits within
which the external auditor may be permitted o provide
certain non-audit services (such as tax and other services)

This policy sets a presumption that Deloitte should only
be engaged for non-audi services where alternative
providers do not exist or where it is cost effeciive or in the
Group’s interest for Deloitte to provide such services [t also
precludes Deloitte from providing certain services such

as litgation support, actuanial services or internal audit
actmties Advance approval of both the Group Finance
Director and the Committee Charman 1s required if fees
for an engagement are antiapated to exceed £25,000

or where the fee 1s contingent in full or 1n part, no such
approvals were required in the year Approval below these
levels is required from the Group Finance Director and all
expenditure s reviewed annually by the Committee

Non-audit fees paid to Delaitie in the year totalled
£107,000, representing 31% of the fees paid for audit

and audit-related assurance services The reduction in
expenditure over prior years follows the engagement of
PwC for tax comphance work from June 2014 and the
conclusion of certain property consulung seniaces provided
by Drivers Jonas (now part of Deloitte Real Estate) on two
long-term development projects, their involvernent in which
pre-dated their acquisition by Deloitte It 1s anticipated that
further work will be required In respect of one project, and
the Committee has approved the continued engagement
of Deloitte Real Estate subject to an appropriate cap

on fees

Further information on the remunerauon of the
external auditor can be found in note 3b to the Group
Fnancial Statements
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External auditor (continued)

Independence

The Committee 1s responsible for monitoring and reviewing
the objectmty and independence of the external auditor
Inundertaking s assessment, the Committee has reviewed

+ the confirmanon from Deloitte that they maintain
appropnate internal safeguards in ine with applicable
professional standards,

the Finanaal Reporung Counail's May 2015 Audit Quality
inspection Report in respect of Deloitte’s audit engagements
and the firm's policies and procedures supporting

audit qualty,

the miugating actions taken by the Commuttee in seeking

to safeguard Deloitte’s Independence status, including the
operation of policies designed to regulate the appointment of
former employees of the external audit firm and the extent of
non-audit services provided by the external auditor,

* the tenure of the audit engagement partner (not being
greater than five years), and

the performance evaluation of Deloitte

Taking the above review into account, the Committee
concluded that Deloitte remained objective and independent in
their role as external auditor

Effectiveness

The Committee has undertaken a review of Deloitte’s
performance and the effectiveness of the external audit
process The review was primarily undertaken by way of

an extensie guestionnaire on external audit effectiveness
which was completed by management and assessed by the
Committee The Committee also considered a self-assessment
carned out by Deloitte on audit objectives, leadership,
qualfication, quality and independence, together with Deloriie’s
experience and expertise, the extent to which the audit plan
had been met, its robustness and perceptiveness with regard
10 key accounting and audit judgements, and the content of its
audit reports

The Commiitee remains satisfied with Deloitte’s performance
and s of the view that there is nothing of concern that would
Impact the effectiveness of the external audit process

Tender

Deloitte was appomnted in 2007 following a tender process

The current audit engagement partner, Jonathan Dodworth,
was appointed for the 201 1/12 financia! year audit and, in

line with ethical standards published by the Auditing Practices
Board, can remain in post until the 2015416 finanoal year audit

In ine with the various requirements on audit tendering in the
Code, the Competition and Markets Authonty Order and the
Department for Business, Innovaton and Skills proposals 1o
implement the EU's June 2014 Audit Directive and Regulation,
Deloitte 15 able to complete the audit for the year ending

30" November 2016 The engagement of an externat auditor
for the 2017 audit will need to be sulyject to a competitive
tender process and it 1s ntended that this will be commenced
during 2016

Having considered the performance of Deloitte (iIncluding
value for money and quality and effectiveness of the audit
process), its Independence, compliance with relevant statutory,
regulatory and ethical standards and objectmty, the Commuttee
recommended to the Board that a resolution to re-appoint
Delaitte to office for a further year be proposed at the

2016 AGM

There are no contractual oblrgations which would restrict the
Company's selection of an external auditor

Internal audit

The Group has aninternal audit function which reports to the
Committee and works under the supervsion of the Group
Finance Director Its key objectives are to provide independent
and objective assurance that each business area implements
and maintains approprate and effective controls An Internal
Audit Charter, which 1s reviewed annually, governs its remit and
sets out the standards against which acivities are undertaken

Internal audit I1s an agenda item at each Committee meeting
Reports from the Internal Audit Manager usually include
updates on audit actwvities, progress of the Group audit plan,
the resuits of nternal audits and the status of implementation
of recommendations to address any unsatisfactory areas

In 2015 internal audits were carried out across a number of
areas Including the Baglan Solar Park, Group-wide service
charge arrangements and the Group insurance function

On an annual basis the Committee reviews and approves

the audit plan for the year and has input into ensunng that
adequate resources are made avalable and that the necessary
support 1s provided by the business to accomplish the agreed
work programme The Committee Chairman meets with the
Internal Audit Manager regularly to discuss acivities and the
nature of any significant issues which may have arisen
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The effectiveness of the internal audit funciion is reviewed
annually by the Committee, primarnly by assessing performance | Whistleblowing and traud

against the Internal Audit Charter The Committee remained
satisfied that the function continued to operate effectively
throughout 2015

In the spirit of iImproving all audtt actevities, and 1o ensure that
It remains appropriate for the future strategic direction of

the Group, In 2016 the Committee will seek an independent
external review to ensure the continued suttability of the
Internal Audit function to the business Intial discussions have
also taken place with external providers to identify potential
co-sourcing relationships for agreed audit work and these will
be explored further during the coming year

Risk management and Internal control

During the year, the Committee monitored and reviewed

the effectveness of the Group’s Internal control systems,
accounting policies and practices, standards of risk
management and risk management procedures and
comphance controls, as well as the Company’s statements on
nternal controls, before they were agreed by the Board far this
Annual Report

In doing so the Committee considered

+ the Group's nsk register, including significant and emerging
risks, miigating controls 1n place and how exposures have
changed over the reporung period,

+ Internal audit reports on key audit areas and any significant
deficencies in the control environment,

* management reports on the systems of internal controls and
risk management, Inciuding tax compliance,

external audit reports from Deloitte which included details of
their nisk assessment process for the purposes of audit,

actual and potental legal claims and liugation involving
the Group,

+ internat audit reports on potentual fraudulent activities
perpetrated against the Group,

+ the effectiveness of the internal audit function, and
+ the Group's approach to IT, cyber-security and whistleblowing

Risk Management Pages 36 and 37

The Group's whistleblowing' policy encourages employees
te report, in confidence and anonymously if preferred,
concerns about suspected impropriety or wrongdomng

In any matters affectng the business Reports can be
made by confidental telephone reporung lines and a
secure website reporting facility which are operated

by an independent third party Any matiers reported

are investigated by the Company Secretary and, where
appropnate, reported to the Committee together with
details of any corrective action taken During the year there
were no whistleblowing incidents reported

The Group's fraud prevention policy requires employees
to be alert to the possibility of the threat of fraud

and to report immed:ately any concerns they have

The Company remains viglant against such risk, including
fraudulent payment requests, and continues {0 ensure
the adequacy of controls and procedures tc prevent
such fraud The Committee 1s made aware of all potential
fraudulent actvity
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Nomination Committee Report

“This year was again an important one
for the Committee, with the primary
focus on succession planning.”

BILL SHANNON
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Meetings
attended
in year out of
maximum % attended
Committee member  Member since possible n year
IMAGE lan Bul Sep 2014 7 100%
REMOVED Kay Chaldecott Mar 2013 77 100%
Lesley James Oct 2009 717 100%
Richard Mully Sep 2013 w7 100%
John Salmon™ Mar 2013 2/2 100%
Bill Shannon Nov 2010 77 100%

{1) Retred from the Board on 27 March 2015
COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDEES (BY INVITATION)

Chief Executive Principal role

Bill Otver Reviews ihe succession planning and leadership needs of
Non-executive director the Group and leads the process for Board appointments,
Simon Clarke ensuring that directors have an appropriate range of skifls
Company Secretary and secretary to the Committee and experience to deliver St Modwen's strategy

Tanya Stote Key activities in 2014/15

Selected and recommended the appointment of Rob
Hudson as Group Finance Director

* Reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of
Lesley James and Kay Chaldecott

- Reviewed succession plans for Board members and
senior management

Areas of focus for 2015/16
Continue to monitor Board and semor
management SUCCessIon

Ongotng assessment of Board and senior
management dwversity

Consider the re-appointments of Lesley James,
Bill Shannon and Richard Mully

Terms of reference
www.stmodwen co uk/about-us/corporate-governance
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The Commuitee plays a vital role in ensuning that

St Modwen 1s headed by a Board which is collectvely
responsible for the long-term success of the Company and
is best placed to operate effecuvely in the context of our
strategic objectives

This year was again an important one for the Committee,

with the pnmary focus on the process for identifying potental
candidates for the role of Group Finance Director | am very
pleased with the outcome of this process which resulted In
the appointment of Rob Hudson, previously Group Financial
Controller at British Land Company plc We announced Rob's
appointment in April 2015 and he formaily took up his position
on 28" September 2015

The Committee continues to monitor non-executive director
succession to identify any skills gap whilst ensuring an
appropnate balance of skills and experence Inthe year both
Lesley James and Kay Chaldecott were re-appointed and lan
Bull replaced John Salmon as Audit Committee Chairman
following John's retirement in March 2015

Dwversity in alt its forms, including gender, remains a key area
of focus for the Committee The composition and capabilities
of all directors 1s kept under review to ensure that Board
membership 1s sufficiently diverse and reflects a broad range
of skills, knowledge and experience to enable it to meet its
responsibilites We are supporting the Government and the
Equalty and Human Rights Commussion in their review of the
recruitrment and appointment processes adopted across the
FTSE 350 and awart ther findings with interest

Looking forward to 2016, we will continue 1o review
succession plans to ensure that arrangements are in place
for the orderly and progressie refreshing of the Board

and 1o identify indviduals with potential for appointment to
senior management and Board posiions Recognising the
benefits that diversity can bring, we wifl also continue to
support the Board in its commitrment to strengthening female
representation at both Board and senior management level

Further information in respect of the Commitiee and #s
activities during the year 15 set out in the remamnder of this
report which | hope you find informative

Bill Shannon
Charrman of the Nominaton Committee

1% February 2016

Committee membership

All members of the Committee are iIndependent non-executive
directors, with each bringing broad financial and commerqal
experience at serior levels across a range of industries

The Committee’s composition 1s kept under review by the
Nomination Committee, which 1s responsible for making
recornmendations to the Board as to its membership

The Chairman of the Board charrs all meetings of the
Commuttee unless they relate to the appointment of his
successor, for these meetings the Senior Independent Director
Is Invited to take the Chair

How the Committee operates

The Committee meets on an ad hoc basts, usually immediately
prior to or following a Board meeting, but on other occasions
as may be needed It met formally on seven occasions during

the year, prnmarily to progress the appointment of a new Group

Finance Director A number of informal meetings, conference
calls and discussions also took place between Committee
members, search consuitants and potential candidates

throughout the recruitment process The Committee Chairman

reports to the Board, as a separate agenda item, on the actmity
of the Committee and matters of particular relevance to the
Board in the conduct of its work

Only members of the Committee have the night to attend
meeungs However an Invitation to attend meetings 1S
extended to Simon Clarke, a non-executive director, and the
Chief Executve attends for all or part of meetings by invitation
as and when appropriate Tanya Stoie, Company Secretary, Is
secretary 1o the Committee

In 2015 the Committee’s performance was reviewed
internally by way of a questionnaire which was completed

by all members of the Commuttee and the Chief Executive
The feedback receved will be considered as part of the Board
performance review meeting in March 2016

Activities of the Committee in the year

Appointment and re-appointment of directors

The Committee leads the process for appointments to the
Board and makes recommendations 10 the Board when
suitable candidates have been identified in line with Board-
approved procedures When a vacancy anses, the Committee
evaluates the balance of skills, experience, independence
and knowledge on the Board before preparing a descripuon
of the role and capabilities reguired for that appointment
Where appropriate external recruitment consuliants are
engaged to assist with the search pracess Appomntments are
made based on merit whilst having regard to the need to
maintain Board diversity in all its forms
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Actlvities of the Committee in the year (continued)
Appointment of Group Finance Director

In December 2014 the Commuittee engaged Odgers Berndtson,
a leading executive search firm, to assist with the search for a
Group Finance Director to replace Michael Dunn, who stepped
down from the Board on 31% May 2015 Odgers Berndtsen
has no other connection with the Company other thann its
capacity as a search consultant

The Committee assessed the skills and expenence

required to fulfil the role of Group Finance Director and

a list of potenual candidates, both internal and external,

was drawn up These included both men and women that
occupted senior finance roles In both listed and private
companies across a range of sectors This list was reviewed
by the Committee In early 2015 and a shorthst prepared
Interviews were conducted, initially involving both the Chairman
and Chief Executive, with short-listed candidates meeting
members of the Committee and the Group Construction
Director Psychometric assessments were also undertaken
After consideration the Committee unanimously concluded
that the appointment of Rob Hudson, then Group Financial
Controller at Brinsh Land Company plc, be recommended

to the Board The Board unanimously approved the
recommendation and his appointment was confirmed in Apnl
2015 Raob joined the Company on 28" September 2015

Noting that the Company would have no Group Finance
Director in post for the penod from June to September 2015,
the Committee agreed with the Chuef Executive that Andy
Taylor, the Company's Group Financial Controller, be appoinied
Acting Group Finance Director for the period

Composition of the Board

IMAGE
REMOVED

Re-appointment of non-executive directors

Independent non-executive directers, including the Chairman,
are appointed by the Board for an iniual three-year term

and tymically serve a second three-year term Beyond this a
third term of up to three years may be served subject to a
particularly rgorous review and taking into account the need
for progressive refreshment of the Board Appointments are
subject to satisfaciory performance reviews, re-eleciion by
shareholders and statutory provsions relating to the removal
of directors

The terms of service of the Chairman and the other non-
executive directors are contained in letiers of appointment
These set out the tme commitment expected from each
non-executive director to ensure they perform their duties
satisfactorly Each non-executive director confirms that they
are able to allocate the tme commitment required at the tme
of their appointment and thereafter as part of their indmidual
annual effectiveness review undertaken by the Chairman

{or the Semor Independent Director In the case of the
Chairman's review)

During the year the Committee tonsidered the re-appointment
of Lesley James and Kay Chaldecott 1o the Board, who

had completed six and three years' service respectively

The Committee was satisfied that both Lesley and Kay
remained independent and would be able to continue to
dedicate sufficient time to fulfil therr roles as non-executive
directors of the Company The Committee recommended,

and the Board approved, the re-appointment of Kay for a
second three-year term Noting that Lesley had completed her
second three-year term, and the need to ensure continued
refreshing of the Board, the Board approved the Committee’s
recommendation that her appointment be renewed for a
further year, and annually thereafter as approprate to 2018

Length of directors’ tenures

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Succession planning

John Salmon, non-executive director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee, retired at the 2015 AGM Whilst his tenure
exceeded nine years, the Board was of the view that John
was independent in character and judgement and that it was
appropriate for him to conunue in office as Audit Committee
Chairman to provide continuity for the approval of the results
for the year ended 30" November 2014

The Committee recommended to the Board that lan Bul,
who was appointed as a non-executive director In September
2014 and 1s Chief Financial Officer and main board director of
Ladbrokes plc, be appointed as Committee Chairman in John's
stead His appointment took effect from 27 March 2015

The Board recognises the importance of developing employees
of St Modwen, particularly In relation to succession planning
for senior posiiions within the Company Peopte development
15 reviewed by both the Nomination Committee and the Board
to ensure that plans are in place to recognise and grow internal
talent For more information see page 44

independence and re-election to the Board

Following his appointment in September 2015 Rob Hudson

will retire and offer himself for election at the 2016 AGM

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code all
other directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election to
the Board

Each of the directors has been subject to a formal performance
evaluation process and both the Committee and the Board

are sausfied that all directors continue to be effective 1n, and
demonsiraie commitment to, therr respective roles on the
Board and that each makes a valuable contnibution to the
leadershup of the Company The Board therefore recommends
that shareholders approve the resolutions to be proposed

at the 2016 AGM relaung to the election and re-election of

the directors

with the excepuion of Simon Clarke, who 15 not deemed to be
independent by virtue of his representavion of the interests
of the Clarke and Leavesley families, the Committee has also
reviewed and confirmed the independence of each non-
axecutive director seeking re-election at the 2016 AGM

Directors’ core areas of expertise

IMAGE
REMOVED

Board diversity

All aspects of dwersity, Including but not imited to gender, are
considered guring the recruiiment process at every level within
the business, including appointments to the Board

Recognising the benefiis that diversity can bring, the Board
seeks to recruit direciors from different backgrounds with

a range of experience, perspectives, personalites, skills

and knowledge Both the Committee and the Board have

a fundamental obligation to ensure that appointments are

of the best candidates, selected on merit aganst objective
critena Subject to this, the avallability of sutable candidates
and compliance with the requirements of the Equality Act, the
Board I1s committed to sirengthening female representation
at Board and senior management fevel It has not however set
prescriptive largets as it does not believe these are in the best
interests of either the Company or «s shareholders

The Board currently comprises two female non-executive
directors, Lesley James and Kay Chaldecott, who together
represent 22% female Board membershup Gender dwersity
below Board level 1s set out inthe Corporate Sooal
Responsibility Report

In support of its diversity policy, the Commuittee will only engage
executive search firms who have signed up to the Enhanced
Voluntary Code of Conduct which supports more female
appointments to FTSE 350 boards

Corparate Soclal Responsibility Report Pages 42 to 45

Executive directors’ appointments

IMAGE
REMOVED
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“As the focus on executive pay
continues, the Committee remains
mindful of the developing
remuneration landscape.”

LESLEY JAMES, CBE
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

IMAGE
REMOVED

Committee meeting attendees (by invitation)

Meetings

attended

In year out of
maximum % attended
Committee member  Member since possikle n year
lan Bull Sep 2014 3/3 100%
Kay Chaldecott Dec 2012 373 100%
Lesley jJames Oct 2009 3/3 100%
Richard Mully Sep 2013 3/3 100%
John Salmont® Oct 2005 11 100%
Bill Shannon Nov 2010 3/3 100%

{1) Reured from the Board on 27 March 2035

Chief Executive

Bill Cliver

Non-executive director

Simon Clarke

Company Secretary and secretary to the Committee
Tanya Stote

Committee advisor

Representatives from New Bridge Street

Principal role

term strategic goals
Key activities in 2014/15

Finance Director

Determines the palicy for the remuneranen of the
executive directors which 1s designed to promote the
long-term success of the Cormpany, be compatible with nsk
policies and systems and be aligned to the Company's long-

* Monttored market trends in and the governance
environment of remuneration arrangements

+ Determined the application of the remuneration policy
In respect of the recruitment of Rob Hudson, Graup

Commenced preparation for remuneration policy activity

required ahead of the 2017 AGM

Areas of focus for 2015/16
+ fult review of remuneration policy, including proposals for
replacement long-term incenive arrangements

Consult with major shareholder on any proposed
changes 1o remuneration policy

Terms of reference
www.stmodwen co ui/about-us/corporate-governance
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Annual Statement

On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present the report
on directors’ remuneration for the financial year ended
30 Novermber 2015

This report includes an annual report on remuneraton (pages
82 10 93} which describes how the remuneration policy was
implemented for the year ended 30" November 2015 and
how we intend for the policy to apply for the year ending

30" November 2016 This report, together with my annual
statement, will be put to an advisory shareholder vote at the
2016 AGM

To ensure clarity and to enable you to cross reference our
remuneration practice against our palicy, we have also
republished the key elements of our remuneration policy

This pohicy recenved binding shareholder approval, for the first
time, at the 2014 AGM and came into effect on 1# December
2014 The Committee remains satisfied that the policy
continues to support the Company's strategy, to retain and
motivate our management team, to drive strong returns for
our shareholders and to promote the long-term success of the
Company Sharehalders will not therefore be asked to approve
any revisions to the policy at the 2016 AGM

Abgnment of remuneration with strategy

As the UK’s leading regeneration specialist, our experuse in
remediation, planning, asset development and construction
supports our strategy of secuning excellent returns through
a focus on long-term significant added value while protecting
existing assets Pages 18 to 41 of our Strategic Report
describes how we deliver this strategy whilst managing risk

To ensure that the interests of our management team are
aligned to those of our shareholders, the vanable elements of
our remuneration pelicy are relevant to and support our stated
strategy The link between our strategy and relative incentive
measures is described on pages 18 10 21

The annual bonus arrangements incorporate both corporate
and operational performance measures to ensure that
executive directors are Incentvised to deliver across a range
of key financial and strategic objectves Awards under our
Performance Share Plan are based on two separate TSR
measures (one being relative and the other absolute) which
are designed to promote clear alignment of interest between
executive directors and shareholders

Remuneration outcomes 1in 2014/15

You will see from our financial results that the Company has
had another exceptional year, delivening record profits and
strong growth in net asset value Performance highlights can
be found on pages 30 to 35 of the Strategic Report

Reflecting both the outstanding corporate resutts for the
year, which were ahead of both budget and at the top end
of market expectations, and strong indmdual performance,
each executive director was awarded the maximum bonus
potenual of 125% of base salary earned for the year ended
30" November 2015 (2014 125% of salary)

The 2013 Performance Share Plan awards are due to vest In
March 2016 based on performance over the three financial
years to 30t November 2015 Vesung of half of this award was
subject to TSR performance relative to the FTSE All-Share Real
Estate Investment & Services Index, with the remaining 50%
subject to an absolute TSR condition To reflect the Company’s
performance relative to the index of 142% and absolute TSR
growth of 123% over the performance penod, awards will

vest in full Further information, including the Committee's
consideration of the underpin condiions which must be met
before it can permit awards to vest, can be found on pages 84
and 85

Remuneration policy for 2015/16

Our policy has been developed taking full account of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code), the views of our
major shareholders and the advice of New Bridge Street, the
Committee's Independent advisor on remuneration matters
The remuneration packages of our executive directors include
a significant proportion of performance-related elements
which are subject to demanding targets, iIncentive pay 1s
subject 1o withholding and recovery provisions, the annual
bonus arrangemenis include an element of compulsory
investment in and retention of shares in the Company, and
robust share ownership guidelnes apply The Committee
considers that these features promote significant alignment
with shareholders and provide an appropriate leve! of risk
mitigation The structure of remuneration arrangements for
2015/16 will therefore remain largely unchanged from that
appliedin 2014115

In line with the average salary increase awarded to employees,
salaries of the executive directors have been increased by

3% with effect from 1% December 2015 Executive directors
will continue to have the opportunity to earn a bonus of up

to 125% of salary and will receve long-term inceniive awards
to the same value, both subject to stretching and rigorousty
applied performance conditicns
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Annual Statement (continued)
Changes to the Board

we announced on 22 December 2014 that Michael
Dunn had agreed with St Modwen to leave the Company
Michael subsequently siepped down from the Board

on 31 May 2015 and remained on garden leave for the
rematnder of hus notice period to 18" December 2015
During this period Michael continued 1o recemve salary and
contractual benefits and remained eligible to be awarded a
bonus for the period from 1% Decemnber 2014 to 31 May
2015 Michael's urwvested PSP awards will continue with
performance tested at the end of the relevant performance
periods and awards pro-rated to 31% May 2015 Full details
of his remuneration arrangements are set out on page 87

We are delighted that Rob Hudson has joined us as Group
Finance Director on 28" September 2015 His remuneration
arrangements, details of which can be found on page 87,

are fully consistent with our remuneration policy In order to
secure his appointment, the Committee agreed to take into
account deferred unvested incentive awards fram his previocus
employer which Rob would have forfeited The Committee
has taken particular care in ensuring that these arrangements
are appropnate 1n ight of our policy and replicate, as closely
as possibly, the expected value, form and ume honzons of the
forferted awards

Looking ahead

As the focus on executive pay continues, the Committee
remains mindful of the developing remuneration landscape
In 2016 we will consider our current remuneration policy
aganst this backdrop, whilst ensuring that it remains
clearly aligned to business strategy and promotes the
long-term success of the Compary We waill also consult
with our major shareholders on the proposed scheme
to replace our Performance Share Plan, which expires in
2017 Resolutions seeking shareholder approval of both
the remuneration policy and new long-term incentive
arrangements wilt be put to the AGM In 2017

Finally, 1would like to thank my fellow Commuttee members
for their hard work and support, including John Salmon who
retred from the Commitiee and the Board in March 2015

I hope that you find the report helpful and infermative and |
look forward to recemng feedback from our investors on the
information presented

Lesley James
Chairrnan of the Remuneration Comrmiitee

19 February 2016

This report complies with the requiremenits of the Large and Medium-
Srzed Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 as amendad (n 2013 (the Regulations), the pnnciples of the 2014
UK Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority
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Remuneration Policy Report

operate until the 2017 AGM

Is avallable at www stmodwen co uk

Extracts from the Policy Report that was approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM are set out below 1o enable the reported
remuneration to be assessed in the context of the retevant aspects of ithe policy The current intention 1s that this policy will

The onginal Policy Report approved at the 2014 AGM (which includes charts flustrating the remuneraucn opportuniues for
executive directors) 1s published tn its entrety In the Company's Annual Repart for the year ended 30" November 2013, which

How the Committee sets the remuneration policy

The primary objective of the Company's remuneration

policy 1s to attract, retain and motvate high-calibre senior
executives through competitive pay arrangements which are
structured so as to be in the best interests of shareholders
Remuneration includes a signficant proportion of
performance-related elements with demanding targets in order
to align the interests of directors and shareholders and to
reward appropriately strategic and financial success The policy
IS structured so as to be aligned with key strategic priories and
to be consistent with a Board-approved level of business risk

In setting the remuneration policy for the executive directors,
the Committee takes Into consideration the remuneration
practices found in other UK companies of comparable size
and scope and has regard to the remuneration arrangements
for the Company’s employees generally In general, the
components and levels of remuneration for employees

will differ from the policy for executive directors which 1s

set out below As a result, greater emphasis Is placed on
variable pay for executive directors and senior employees,
albeit with fower maximum incentive opporiunities at levels
below the Board Similarly, long-term incentives are offered
only to those anticipated to have the greatest impact on
Company performance

The Committee does not directly consult with employees
regarding the remuneration of directors However, when
considening remuneration levels to apply, the Commuttee will
take Into account base pay Increases, bonus payments and
share awards made to the Company's employees generaily

The Committee 1s commutted t0 an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders and seeks the views of its major shareholders
when considering sigrificant changes o remuneration
arrangements The Committee also considers shareholder
feedback receved in relation to the Directars’ Remuneration
Report each year at a meeuing following the AGM

This feedback, plus any additional feedback receved from ume
to ume, 1s then considered as part of the Committee’s annual
review of remuneration policy and its implementation

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy that came into effect on 1% December
201415 set out on pages 74 to 81 Remuneration arrangements
for the financial year ending 30" November 2016 will be iInline
with the policy below, further information can be found on
pages 90 and 91

The Commuittee retains the discretion to make any payments,
notwithstanding that they are not in line with the policy set
out below, where the terms of the payment were agreed

(1 before the policy came into effect, or (1} at a tme when

the relevant indmdual was not a director of the Company
and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not
in consideration of the individual becoming a director of

the Company For these purposes ‘payments’ includes the
Committee satisfying awards of variable remuneration and,
i relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment
are determined at the time the award 1s granted Detalls of
any such payments will be disciosed in the annuat report on
remuneratien for the relevant year

The Commuttee will operate the annual bonus and long-term
INncentive arrangements according to their respective rules
and in accordance with the Listng Rules where relevant
Consistent with market practice the Committee retains certain
discretions in respect of the operation and admiristration

of these arrangements which include, but are not hmiged 1o,
the following

* the participants,
- the ming of the grant of an award or payment,
the size of an award,

the determination of the exient to which performance
measures have been met and the corresponding vesting
or payment levels,

discretion required when dealing with a change of control
or restructuring of the Group,

determination of the treatment of leavers based on the rules
of the respective arrangement and the appropnate treatment
chosen, including the pro-rating of awards,

- adjustrments required In certain crcumstances {e g nghts
1ssues, corporate restructunng events and special dvidends),

the annual review of performance measures, weighting
and targets from year to year, and

the manner in which share awards can be satisfied
{1 e through the use of new issue, market purchased or
treasury shares or by way of a cash payment)
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In addition, the Committee retains the ability to adjust

the targets and/or set different measures If events occur

(e g a matenal acquisition and/or divestment of a Group
business) which cause It to deterrmine that the conditions are
no longer appropnate and the amendment 1s required so
that the conditions achieve their original purpose and are not
matenally less difficult to satisfy

GRAPHIC
removep | Base salary
Purpose Operation

Any use of the above discretions would be explained in the
annual report on remuneration for the relevant year and
may, as appropnate, be the subject of consultation with the

Company's major shareholders

Opportunity

Performance
measures

*» To attract, retain
and motivate
individuals of the
necessary catibre
to execute the
Company's
strategy.

* To provide
competitive
non-vanable
remuneration
relative to the
external market.

*» To recognise
and reward
performance,
skills and
experience.

Normally reviewed annually with
changes effective from
12 December Review reflects

indmdual and
corporaie performance,

the indmdual’s level of skill
and experience,

* Increases throughout the
Company (including cost of
[ving awards),

internal refatvities, and

prevaling market

conditions through periodic
benchmarking for comparable
roles in companies of a simitar
size and scope The Committee
1S rmindful of insttutional
Investors’ concerns on the
upward ratchet of base
salanes and does not consider
benchmark data in isolation

Salary increases will normally be
{in percentage of salary terms)
in line with any general cost

of Imng Increase throughout
the Company However, larger
Increases may be awarded at
the Commuttee's discretion

to take account of indmdual
circumstances such as

changes in scope and
responsibility of a role, and

- where a new director 15
appointed at a salary which
Is at a lower level to reflect
their experience at that point,
the Committee may award
a series of Increases over
tme {0 achteve the desired
salary posiiion subject to
sausfactory performance and
market conditions

Actual salary levels are
disclosed in the annual report
on remuneration for the
relevant financial year (see
page 90 for those effectve

1= December 2015)

None, although
overall perfermance
of the ndmdual 15
considered by the
Commuttee as part of
the annual review
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GRAPHIC
removep | Benefits
Performance
Purpose Operation Opportunity measures
* To provide a The Company provides a range Benefits are set at a level which None
competitive and of non-pensionable benefits the Commitiee considers to be
cost-effective to executive directors which appropnately positioned against
benefits package. may include a combination comparable roles in companies
» To assist with of a company car or car of a similar size and scope and
recruitment allowance, private fuel, driver, provides a sufficient level of
and retention. private medical insurance, benefit based on the role and
permanent health insurance, indmvidual circumstances
Ife assurance, holiday and
sick pay, and professional
adwvice In connection with
their directorship
Other benefits such as
relocation allowances may
be offered if considered
appropriaie and reasonable
by the Committee
GRAPHIC -
REMOVED Pension
Performance
Purpose Operation Opportunity measures
* To provide The Company offers an 15% of base salary for all None
competitive allowance {expressed as a executive direciors

post-retirement
benefits in a cost-

percentage of base salary) which
can be taken as

effective manner.

* To assist with
recruitment
and retention,

an employer contribution
to the defined contrbution
section of the Company's
pensian scheme,

+ a cash allowance (which 1s not
bonusable), or

a blend of the two

As a result of historic contractual
comrmitments retirement
benefits for Steve Burke are

also delivered by membership
of the defined benefit section of
the Company's pension scheme
which is closed to future accrual

The Committee may amend

the form of any executive
director's pension arrangements
In response to changes in
pensions legislation or similar
developments, so long as any
amendment does not Increase
the cost to the Company of a
director’s pension provision
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GRAPHIC
REMOVED

Purpose

Remuneration Palicy Report {continued)

Annual bonus

Operation

Opportunity

Performance
measures

* To incentivise and
reward the delivery
of stretching,
near-term
strategic, financial
and operational
measures at
Company and
personai levels

Corporate measures
selected are
consistent with

and complement
the budget and
strategic plan

An element of
compulsory
investment in
shares to align

to shareholders’
interests in

the creation of
sustainable, long-
term vaiue

All measures and targets are
reviewed and set annually by
the Committee at the beginning
of the financial year and levels
of award determined by the
Committee after the year end
based on performance against
the targets set

The Committee retans an
overriding discretion to ensure
that overall bonus payments
reflect its view of corporate
performance during the year

Bonuses are paid In cash

and are non-pensionable
Directors are required to Invest
an amount equal to one third
of the net bonus receved in the
Company's shares and to retamn
these shares for a minimum
penod of three years

Withholding and recovery
provisians apply to all
bonuses paig*®

Maximum bonus potental

of 125% of salary for all
executive directors On target
performance would result in a
bonus payment of 75% of salary

Performance Is
assessed using the
following metrics

+ up to 105% of salary
will be awarded
based on corporate
measures, and

- up to 20% of salary
will be awarded
based on personal
measures @

« The specific
measures that
will apply for
the year ending
30" November 2016
are described in the
annual report on
remuneration on
page 90

{1} The Committee has discretion o recever some or afl of the value of annual bonus  withun four years follovang payment, it acquires ewdence Lo support the fact that the bonus has been
overpaid due (o a restatement of accounts, or there has been an erfor or it s determined that the eligible executve committed an act of gross misconduct which (f known at the time: would
have meant that a lower or nil bonus would have been pard Overpayments can be recovered through clawing back the value of banus payments direct from the executeve, or by a reducticn
of future bonus payments or future payments under any other incentive plan

(2) The annual bonus metnes are designed to ensure that annual performance 1s facused on key finanaist measures which support ihe Company's strategic targets These are supparted by
indmadual performance measures (o ensure that executhve directors are incentmsed to deliver across arange of obyedives Targets are set in line with the Company's budget and strategc
plan for the year with a stretch element ta reward substantial cutperformance
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GRAPHIC . .
REMOVED | LOng-term incentives
Performance
Purpose Operation Opportunity measures

* To incentivise and
reward the delivery
of strong returns
to shareholders
and sustained,
long-term
performance.

+ Aligns the long-
term interests of
directors and
shareholders.

* Promotes
retention.

Awards of nil-cost options are
normally made annually with
vesung, in normal arcumstances,
dependent on the achievement
of stretching performance
conditions set by the Committee
and measured over a three

year periad, and the director
remainng in employment

The Committee has discretion
to decide whether and to what
extent performance conditions
have been achieved and must
also be satisfied that two
underpin conditions are met
before permitung awards to
vest )

On the exercise of vested
awards, executive directors
receive an amount {In cash or
shares) equal to the dvidends
paid or payable between the
date of grant and the date of
exercise on the number of
shares which have vested

Withholding and recovery
provisicns apply to all awards
granted @

Other than in exceptional
arcumstances as determined by
the Committee, no further grants
under the Executive Share
Option Schemes (ESOS) will be
made to executive directors

Maximum award level permitted
under the scheme rules 1s 150%
of salary (or 180% in exceptional
crcumstances) The normal

and current annual award

limnit 15 1258 of salary for all
executive directors

Awards vest on the
following basis

on target performance delvers
25% of the shares awarded,
and

maximum performance
delivers 100% ofthe
shares awarded

with straight hne
vesting between

Performance 1s
measured over a three
year period with no
retesting against the
following metncs

+ 50% of the award
based onrelative TSR
performance, and

509 of the award
based on absolute
TSR growth &

The specific measures
that will apply for

the year ending

30" Novernber 2016
are described in the
annual report on
remuneration on
page 91

{1) The condions are (i} that the extent of vesung under the performance condiions i1s appropriate given the general finanaal performance of the Company over the performance penod and
(W) if no diadend has been paid an the last normal dmdend date pnor to the vesting date or if the Commitiee bebeves that no dmdend will be paid in respect of the year m which the award
vests, the award will not vest at that time and vesting wall be delayed (subject to continued employment} untd dradend payments are resumed

{2) The Commttee has discretion to recaver some or af of the value of any awards {calculated at vesting) if, withun four years following vesting, & acquwes evidence to support the fact that the
value of awards has been overstated due to a restatement of accounts, of there has been an error or it ts determned that the eligible executive commitied an act of gross misconduct which,
if known at the bme, would have meant that a lower or nd award would have vested Vested awards can be recovered through clawing back the value of awards direct from the executive or
by a reductuion of future awards on vesung or future bonus payments

[3) The Commttee beleves that shis combmation of TSR measures provides sirong akgnment with the interests of shareholders and complements the focus on eperational performance
measures i the annual bonus arrangements Targets are set to ensure that only modest awards are avalable for delvenng on target performance with maximum rewards reguiring
substanual outperformance of the Comparny's budget and sirategic plans
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§§$Cé% All-employee share schemes
Performance
Purpose Operation Opportunity measures
= To encourage All employees, including Maximum participation mits are . None
all employees to executive directors, are set In kne with HMRC guidelines
make a long-term entitted to participate in a UK in force at the time of award
investment in the tax approved all-employee
Company's shares In share scheme
a tax efficient way.
The Company's current alk-
employee share scheme was
approved at the 2074 AGM
and allows employees to make
monthly savings over a period
of three or five years linked to
the grant of an option over the
Company’s shares
At the end of the penod,
particpants can use the monies
0 purchase shares at a discount
{up to the maximum permitted
by HMRC) to the market value of
shares on the relevant invitation
date Alternatively they may ask
for their savings to be returned
with any accrued interest
Sg@g@% Shareholding requirement
Performance
Purpose Operation Opportunity measures
* To ensure alignment The Company operates a Executive directors are required None

of interests of
executive directors
and shareholders.

shareholding requirement which
15 subject to periodic review

to build up a shareholding worth
200% of base salary within five
years of appointment
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GRAPHIC . .
removen | Fees payable to Chairman and non-executive directors
Performance
Purpose Operation Opportunity measures

* To pay feesin
line with those
patd by other UK
listed companies of
comparable size

» Additional payments
are made to the
Senior Independent
Director and
Chairs of Board
Committees to
reflect the additional
responsibilities
attached to
these positions.

Normally revewed annually
with changes effective

from 1% December, taking

IN{O account any cost of

Imng increase applied
throughout the Company
Periodic benchmarking for
comparable roles in companies
of a similar size and scope is
also undertaken

Fees are struciured as follows

the Chairman s paid an
all-inclusive fee for all Board
responsibilities This fee s
determined by the Board on
the recommendation of the
Commuttee, and

non-execuive directors

are paid a basic fee, plus
additional fees for chairing
Board Committees or as Senior
Independent Director which
are determined by the Board
on the recommendation of the
executive directors

Fees are currently paid in cash

Neither the Chairman nor the
other non-executive directors
participate in the annual

bonus or long-term incentive
arrangemeris or In the pension
scheme, nor do they receve
benefits in kind

Fees are set at a level which
reflects the commitment and
contribution that 1s expected
and 15 appropnately positioned
against comparable roles in
companies of a similar size
and scope

Overall fees paid to directors
will remain within the limit set
out in the Company’s Articles
of Association

Actual fee levels are disclosed
in the annual report on
remuneration for the
relevant financal year (see
page 91 for those effective
15t December 2015)

None, although
overall performance
of the indmidual 1s
considered as part of
the annual review
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Recruitment arrangements

In the event of hinng a new executive director, the Committee
will seek to align his or her remuneration package with the
policy sei out above However, the Commitiee retains the
discretion to offer appropriate remuneraiion cutside of the
standard policy to faciltate the hining of candidates of an
appropriate calibre and to meet the iIndmdual circumstances of
the recruitment This may, for example, include the following

where an intenm appointment 1s made to fill an executve
director role on a shori-term basis,

exceptional circumstances require that the Chairman or
& non-executive director takes on an executive function on
a short-term basts,

an executive director 1s recruited at a tme in the year when
it would be inappropnate to provide a bonus or long-term
incentive award for that year as there would not be sufficent
ttme to assess performance The quantum in respect of the
months employed during the year may be transferred to the
subsequent year so that reward I1s provided on a fair and
appropnate basis,

an executive 1s recruted from a business that offered some
benefits that the Commuitee might consider appropriate

to buy out but that do not fall into the definition of vaniable
remuneration forfeited’ that can be included in the buyout
element under the wording of the Regulations, or

+ the executive receved benefits from his or her previous
employer which ihe Commitiee considers it approprate
to offer

The Committee will, however, seek to ensure that
arrangemenis are 1n the best interests of both the Company
and its shareholders and to not pay more than is appropriate
For clarty and 10 ine with the assurance given in the
announcement published on the Company's website on

& March 2014, the Committee does not envisage using the
discretion outlined above to offer ‘golden hello’ cash payments
to faclitate recrurment

Base salary levels for new recruits will be set in accordance with
the policy, taking into account the experience and calibre of
the indvidual recruited Where 1t is appropriate to offer a lower
salary initially to reflect the indmidual's expenence at that point,
the Committee may award a senes of increases over time to
achieve the desired salary position subject to performance and
market conditions Pension arrangements will be in ine with
the policy

Unless the Committee deems it appropriate to tallor benefits
to the urmque carcumstances of the appointment, benefits
will be provided in line with those made available to other
execuilve directors, with relocaton allowances offered (f
consydered necessary

The Committee may structure a rernuneration package that

it considers appropriate to recognise Incentive pay or benefit
arrangements that the ndmdual would forfeit on resigning
from his or her previous employer This may take the form

of cash and/or share awards as appropriate Indoing so the
Committee will take account of refevant factors including

the form (e g cash or shares), tming and expected value

{1 e Ikelihood of meeting any existing performance critena) of
the remuneragon being forfeited The Committee will generally
seek to structure buyout awards on a comparable basis to
awards forfeited Replacement share awards, if used, will, to
the extent possible, be granted using the Company's existing
share schemes, although awards may also be granted outside
of these schemes if necessary and as permitted under the
Listing Rules (which allow for the grant of awards to facilitate,
In unusual arcumstances, the recruitment of a director)

The Commuttee may also apply different performance
measures, performance periods and/or vesung periods for
initial awards made following appointment under the annual
bonus and/or long-term incentive arrangements, subject to the
rules of the scheme, if it determines that the circumstances of
the recruitment merit such alteration

The maximum level of variable pay which may be awarded to
new executive directors, excluding the value of any buyout
arrangemenits, will be in ine with the policy

Where a position is fulfilled internally, the Committee will
honour any pre-existing remuneration obligations or
outstanding vanable pay arrangements 1n relauon 1o the
indvidual's previous role such that these shall be allowed to
continue according to the original terms (adjusted as relevant
to take account of the Board appointment)

Fees payable to a newly-appointed Chairman or non-executive
direcior will be in ine with the fee policy in place at the ime
of appointment

External appointments

The Board recognises the benefit which the Company can
obtain If executive directors serve as non-executive directors
of ather companies Subject 1o review In each case, the
Board's general policy is that an executive director can accept
ane non-execuive directorship of another company (but

not the charmanship) and can retain the fees in respect of
such appomtment

Executive director service contracts and payments for loss
of office

All current executive directors have service contracts which
may be terminated by the Company for breach by the
executive or with 12 months’ notice from the Company and six
moniths from the indmdua!l None have fixed terms of service
Service contracts for new executive directors will generally be
limited to 12 months’ notice
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if notice 1 served by either party, the executive director can
continue to recemnve base salary, benefits and pension for the
duraten of their notice period during which ume the Company
may require the tndvidual ta continue to fulfil their current
duties or may assign a period of garden leave The Company
may elect to make a payment in lieu of notice equwvalent

in value to 12 months’ base salary, payable in monthly
instalments, which would be subject to miigation if alternative
employment 1s taken up during this time  Alternatively,

this payment may be paid as a lump sum In the event of
terminaton for cause (e g gross misconduct) neither nouice
nor payment in leu of notice will be gven and the executive
director will cease to perform his services iImmediately

In redundancy situations the Committee will comply with
prevahng relevant legislaticn In additon, and conssstent

with market practice, the Company may pay a contribution
towards the executive director’s legal fees for entering Into

a statutory agreement and may pay a contribution towards
fees for outplacement services as part of a negotiated
settlement There (s ne provision for additional compensation
on terminatien following a change of control Payment may
also be made in respect of accrued benefits, including untaken
heliday entitlement

The principles set cut In the table below will apply to annual
bonus and long-term incentive arrangements in the event of
foss of office

In respect of all-employee share schemes and the Company's
Executive Share Option Schemes, the same leaver conditions
will be applied to executive directors as those applied to
other employees

Remuneration element ‘Good’ leavers

Non-executive director terms of appointment

The terms of service of the Chairman and the other non-
executive directors are contained in letters of appomntment
Appomntmenis are for a fixed term of three years, during which
period the appointment may be terminated by three months’
notice by either party Non-executive directors are typically
expected 1o serve two three-year terms subject to mutual
agreemeni and sausfactory perfarmance reviews There are
no prowvisions for payment in the event of termination, early
or otherwise

Other leavers

Annual bonus

An executive director will be treated as a good
leaver if he or she dies or ceases employment
due to injury, disability, retirement with the

Unless the Commitiee exercises ts discretion to
treat the executve director as a good leaver, no
bonus will be payable

Company's agreement, or sale of the business in

which he or she s employed

In these arcumstances, the executive director
rermains ehkgible to be paid a banus, subject to the
applicable performance measures Any payment
awarded may be pro-raied to reflect the penod of
time served from the start of the financial year to
the date of termination, but not for any penod In

lieu of notice

Long-term incentive awards

{as apply to the Company's current

| r disabil
Performance Share Plan) due to mury or d v

An executive director will be treated as a good
leaver if he or she dies or ceases emplayment

All awards willlapse in full where terminatian 1s by
reason of summary dismissal

{n other circumstances urvested awards will lapse

Unvested awards can be exercised ether on date i full unless the Committee applies discretion to

of cessation or after three years from grant, in

treat the executve director as a good leaver

either case pro-rated for uime employed during
the performance perod, achievement of
applicable performance measures, and having
regard to such other factors as the Commirtee

may deem relevant
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Annual Report on Remuneration

This part of the report has been prepared in accordance with Part 3, Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 as amended in 2013 and with the requirements of the Financaial
Conduct Authority's Lisiing Rules

Remuneration payable (audited information)

Pension
Share plans contribution/
Base salary/fees Benefits™ Annual bonus@ vesting allowance® Other tems Total

. _ OO %O __ _£OOD €00 _£000 __ £000 €000 _
Directar 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015™ 20149 2015 20014 2015 20144 2015 2014
Executive directors i i
BillOlver 485 471 31 34 606 5881032 1750 73 71 - 169 2,227 3083
Steve Burke 320 3N 1" 26 400 388 681 1155 48 47 - 67 1460 1994
Michael Dunnt? 146 283 6 11 182 353 462 105 22 42 - - 818 1,740
Rob Hudson® 49 - 39 - 61 - - - 7 - - - 156 -
Non-executive h ) o -
directors ) _ N o o i
Bill Shannon 155 150 - - - - - - - - - - 155 150
lan Bull 49 0 - - - - - - - - - - 48 10
KayChaldecow =~ 42 4 - - - - - _ - -~ - ~-~_- 4 2
Smon Clarke a2 4 - _ - - - - _.- - - - -, a4
Lesley James 51 50 - - - - - - - - - - 5 30
RichardMuly 51 50 - - - - - - - = - - 51 50
John Salmon® 17 50 - ~ - - - - - - - - 17 50

1,407 1457 87 71 1,249 1329 21475 3956 150 160 - 236 5,068 7209

(1) All benefits for the executve directors (comprising mainly the provision of company car/car allowance private fuel and medical insurance) anse from employment with the Company and
do not form pan of finaf pensionable pay Rob Hudson s also entnled to a relocation aligwance of up 1o 25% of hase salary in respeat of reasonable and appropnate costs to enable him to
relocate to the Midlands following his appointment on 28" September 2015, in the year ended 30" November 2015 payments totaling £37 471 were made to Rob Hudson (n connection
with his relocation

{2) Bonus payable in respect of the relevant financal year Further infarmation as to how the level of bonus awarded in 2015 was determuned 1s provided on pages 83 and 84

(3} Relates to the 2013 PSP awards which are due to vest and become exercisable on 6™ March 2016 As the awards had nat vesied as at the date of this report therr value has been esumated
using a share price of 433 7p being the three month average to 30" November 2015, plus 12 92p per share which 1s the value of the dmdend equwvalent delwerable in shares on the awards
thatvest The dmdend equvalent « based on dmdends paid to shareholders with record dates occurnng between the date of grant and 30™ Navember 2015 Further information on the
awards and the performance candiions 1o which they were subject can be found on pages 84 and 85

{4) Retates to the 204 2 PSP awards which vested and became exerasable on 17™ February 2015 The share price used to value the awards was 470 00p, being the skare price on the vesting
date phus 11 293p per share which is the value of the dmdend equivalent defiverable in shares on vesiing. The dmdend equivaient is based on dwvidends paid to shareholders with record
dates cccurnng between the date of grant and the date of vesting.

(5) Further details regarding pension entitlements can be found on pages 86 and 87
(6) Values shown compnse the notonal gain on the exerose of options granted under the Company’s Executve Share Option Schemes and Saving Related Share Cpuicn Scheme

(7) Stepped down from the Board on 31* May 2015 Values for 2015 reflect remuneration recenved as a director in the penod from 1* Decernber 2014 1o 31 May 2015 Information on the
payments made (o Michael Dunn for the penod from 12 June 2015 to 30™ Novernber 2015 can be found on page 87

(8) Appointed te the Board on 28" September 2015 Further information on the recrutment arrangemerits for Rob Hudson can be found on page 87
{9} Retired from the Board on 27" March 2015
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Annual banus outturn (audited information)

In the financial year ended 30" November 2015 all executive directors had the opportunity to be awarded an annual bonus of
up to 125% of base salary as at 1= December 2014 Of this, 105% of salary was dependent on achieving corparate measures and
20% on meeting personal objectives, detalls of which are set out In the table below

Onarget Maximum
Measure performance™  periormance®  Actual performance

Corporate (105% of salary)
Committee 27% growth to

Post dmidend growth in shareholders’ equity net asset value per share 21% growth  discretion 413 5p
Committee

Profit before all tax . £2312m  discretion £258.4m
55p Committee

Total dividendg for the year pershare discretion  5.75p per share

Gearing levels® 48% 48% 48%

Covenant comphance Full Full Full

Achievernent against a number of sirategic objectves which Achievement determined

primarily included by the Committee against n fu‘:lc:s.%v:t:ile d
+ achieving targeted development milestones to support future measurable objectives set n the
profit defivery, and at the beginning of

the vear Strategic Report
* progressing acquisitions to enhance the Company's iand bank. Y

Personal (20% of salary)

Achievement against a number of operational objectives which
primarily included

achieving uncanditional status in respect of New Covent Garden Market

and the identrficabon of procurement options, Achievement determined

- delivening compleuion of the first phase at Bay Campus, Swansea University; by the Committee against Achieved in full as
measurable objectives set  detatled in the

at the beginning of Strategic Report
advancing the embedding of risk management across the Group, the year

inwation and development of PRS programme,

+ development of longer-term resourcing arrangements Ir line with
business needs, and

enhancing the Company's CSR actvities

{1} Total borus which can be awarded for on target performance 1s 75% of salary (60% of the maximurm bonus opportunity)
{2) Total bonus which can be awarded for maximum performance 1s 125% of salary (100% of the maximum benus aopportunity)
{3) Defined as adjusted gearing, being the ratio of net borrowings lexcluding finance leases) to net assets, and consistent with the measure set at the beginning cf the year

The executive direciors’ indvidual performance was assessed by the Committee against the measures, relying on audiied
information where appropriate, and having regard to the value which has been created for shareholders Weightings were
not given 1o indmvidual corporate measures, since they are all of key importance to the short- and longer-term success of the
Company, the Committee did not wish to distort behaviour by placing particular focus on any single element

As noted in the Strategic Report, the Company has had an exceptional year, delivening record profits and sirong growth in net
asset value Performance highlights include

- shareholders equity net asset value per share increasing by 27% to 413 5p per share,
an unprecedenied increase in profit before all tax of 91% to £258 4m,
realised property profits up by 31%to £67 4m,
earnings per share up 82%to 97 9p,
total dvidend for the year increased by 25% to 5 75p per share,
+ valuation gain of £201 7m, of which £166 Om was as a result of planning and asset management nitiatives,

significant milestones achieved across all major projects, Including achieving unconditional status for the redevelopment of New
Covent Garden Market in Apnil 2015, the opening of Bay Campus at Swansea Unwersity in September 2015 and completion of
the second phase of Longbridge Town Centre, including a new 150,000 sq ft flagship store for Marks & Spencer, and

+ the continued recycling of capital through disposals of mature assets, such as Cranfield University Technology Park, into added-
value acquisiuons, such as Kirkby Town Cenire
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In light of both ¢corporate and indmidual performance, the Committee determined that each executive director should be awarded
the maximum bonus potential of 125% of base salary earned in the year Consequently the award made to Michael Dunn was
pro-rated in respect of the penod from 1% December 2014 to 31% May 2015 when he commenced garden leave and the award
made to Rob Hudson reflected his appointment to the Board on 28* September 2015

Bonus payments made to Bill Olver and Steve Burke were conditional upon the execusive director ungertaking to invest at least
one third of the bonus recewved, after payment of income tax and natignal insurance, in the Company's shares and to retain those
shares for a mimimum period of three years The payment made to Rob Hudson was similarly conditional, albei he was required
to undertake to invest the full bonus receved, after payment of Income tax and national insurance

Long-term incentives (audited information)

Performance Share Plan (P5P)
On 8" Aprid 2015, the following PSP awards were granted to executive directors as nil cost options

Face value of award % of award that would vest for
Executve director Basis of award 000 Nurnber of shares threshold performance®
Bill Oliver ) 125% of salary . f606 130,501 ) 25%
Steve Burke 125% of salary £400 86,107 25%

(1} Calculated using the average share price of 464.37p which was, in accordance with the rules of the PSP, used to deterrmne the number of shares to be awarded (being the average over the
three deahng days immediately preceding the date of grant)

(2) The performance measures that apply to the awards mirror those proposed for the 2016 awards which are descnbed on page 91 The performance penod started on 1* December 2014
and will end on 30" November 2017

Following his appotntment on 28" September 2015, the following PSP award was granted as a nil cost option to Rab Hudsen on
2™ October 2015

Face value of award % of award that would vest for
Executve director Basis of award £000" Number of shares threshold performance®
Rob Hudson 180% of salary £495 119,018 25%

(1) Calculated using the average share price of 415 9p which was in accardance with the rules of the PSP used to determine the number of shares te be awarded (being the average over the
three dealing days immediately preceding the date of grant)

(2) The performance measures that apply to the award merror those proposed for the 2016 awards which are described on page 81 The performance penod started on 1% December 2014 and
will end on 30™ November 2017

The three year performance penod for the 2013 PSP awards ended on 30" November 2015 The performance conditions which
applied to the awards together with actual performance are summarised (i the table below

Vestng of award Vesung of award

Threshold at threshold Maximum at maximum Actual Proporuon of
Performance measure Weightung performance performance performance performance perfarmance award to vest
Absolute TSR growth  50% of award 20% 1256 S0% 50%  12265% 50%
TSR relative to
FTSE All-Share Real
Estate Investment & Equal to 120% of 142% of
Services Index 50% of award index 12 5% index 50% Index 50%

TOTAL 100%

To ensure that the level of vesung of PSP awards accurately reflected the performance of the Company during the period, the
Commuttee also considered whether it was satisfied that the two underpins (details of which are set out in note 1 on page 77)
had been met In respect of the dividend underpin, an intenm dwvidend of 1 9p per share was paid on 3 September 2015 and
the Board 1s recommending that a final dvdend for the year of 3 85p per share be paid on 1% April 2016 Furthermore, the
Committee currently has no reason to believe that dvidends will not be paid in respect of the 2016 financial year, being the year
in which the award will vest The Committee was also satisfied that the level of vesting was appropriate given the general financial
performance of the Company over the performance period, noting the following

As at 19 As at 30
Key finantial ndicator December 2012" November 2015 Im provernent
Profit beforealltax £52 8m £2584m 389%
Shareholders’ equity net asset value per s'h_a?_- S o _ j:_ _2508p 413.5p _ @5_%
Total dvidend per share for the financialyear B ) i 363p 5.75p S8%
Adustedgearng , 7% 48% 3%
See-through loan-to-value o 41% 30% 27%

{1} Due to the neghgible impact, financalinformation has not been restated to reflect the revised accounting treaument of VSM Estates (Holdngs) Ltd under [FRS 10 See the Accounung Palicies
note on pages 116 and 117 of the Group Finanaial Siatements for further nformation
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The Commitiee therefore determined that the PSP awards granied 1in 2013 wall vest tn full and become exerasable on the third
annwersary of grant (6% March 2016) Further detalls can be found in the table below

Executive director Total number of shares granted Nurmber of shares to vest
Bill Olver 231,077 231,077
Steve Burke 152,468 152,468
Michael Dunn 138,802 103,468%

{1) Prorated wreflect the ume elapsed from the date of grant 1o 317 May 2015 when Michael Dunn stepped down from the Board Further information can be found on page 87

Dwidends will be treated as accruing from the date of grant to the daie of exercise, on exercise the total dwvdend accrued is
converted into shares using the average market price for the three dealing days immediately prior to the date of exercise and
released to the director

All PSP awards held by the executive directors who served during the year, together with any movemenis, are shown below

Awards Awards held

Awards held on Awards lapsed/ on 30* End of
Dateof 1% December Awards made Awardsvested exerased forfetted November performance

Executive director grant 2014 duringyear duringyear  durmgyear guring year 2015™ period Exercise period
17/021510
Bill Oliver 17/02/12 363529 - 350,226 350,226@  13,303@ = 30117114 16/02/22
06/0316 10
06/03/13 231,077 - - - - 231,077 30/11/15 05/03/23
05/03117 to
05/03/14 150,141 - - - - 150,41 _ 30/11/16  04/03/24
09/04/18 1o
09/04/15 - 130,501 - - - 130,501 3071117 08/04/25

744,747 130,501 350,226 350,226 13,303 511,719
17/02/15 0
Steve Burke 17/02/12 239,863 - 226,560 226560@  13,303® - 30/M114 16/02/22
06/03/16 to
06/03/13 152,468 - - - - 152,468  30/11/15 05/03/23
05/03/17 10
(5/03/14 99,066 - - - - 99,066 30/11/16  04/03/24
09/04/18 1o
09/04/15 - 86,107% - - - 86,107 30/11/17 08/04/25

491,397 86,107 226,560 226,560 13,303 337.641
02/10/18to
Rob Hudson® 02/10/15 - 119,018 - - - 119,018  30/11/17 01710725
17/02/1510
Michael Dunn®  17/02/12 218,362 - 205059 205059 13303 - 30/N14 16/02/22
06/03/16to
06/0313 138802 - - - 35334 103,468 30/11/15  05/03/23
05/03/17 to
05/0314 90086 - .- - 5201 37275 _ 30/1116  04/03/24

447,350 - 205,059 205059 101,558 140,743

{1} The performance conditions for all awards held on 30™ Novernber 2015 murror those proposed for the 2016 awards as descnbed on page 91

(2) Awards exercrsed on 17" February 2015 In addiwon to the shares exerosed the executnve directars receved shares representung the vatue of dmdends pard from the date of award to the
date of exercise as follows Bl Oliver: 8 753 shares, Steve Burke 5,775 shares Michael Dunn 5257 shares

{3) The awards granted in 2012 comprised an approved ESOS award over 19,769 shares with an exercise price of 151 75p and a PSP award for the balance On exercise the value delivered by
the PSP awards was scaled back by the value delvered by the approved ESOS award to ensure that the total pre tax vakre delivered to executve directors remaned unchanged Details of
the approved ES0S awards gramed i 2012 can be found w the table on page 86

{4) The share price used to calculate the number of shares awarded under the rules of the PSP was 464 37p The dosing mid market share pnce on the date of the award was 470p

(5) Appownted to the Board on 28™ Septenber 2015 The thare price used Lo calculate the number of shares awarded to Rob Hudson in the year under the rules of the PSP was 415 9p
The dosing mid market share price on the date of award was 417p

[6) Stepped down from the Board on 31% May 2015 and ceased to be an employee on 18" December 2015 PSP awards granted in 2013 and 2014 have been pro-rated to reflect the ime
elapsed from the date of grant to 31* May 2015 Further informatien can be found on page 87
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Executive Share Option Schemes (ESOS)
ESOS awards held by the executive directors who served during the year, together with any movements, are shown below

Options held Qptions held
oni® Opuons Opuons Opuons on 30
Decernber granted during exercised lapsed  November Exercise Exercise
Executive director Date of grant 2014 year _ duringyear during year 2015 price penod
15/08/08 to
Bill Oliver 15/08/05 102,955 - 1029557 - - 37522p™ 14/0815
17/02/15to
17002128 19,769 - 19769® - - 15175p  16/02/22
122,724 - 122,724 - -
15/08/08 to
Steve Burke _15/08/05 39825 - 3982 - - 37522p"™  14/08/15
17/02/151t0
17/02/124 19,769 - 19,7691 - - 15175p  16/02/22
55,594 - 589,554 - -
17/02/15 to
Michael Dunni® 17/02/123 15,769 - 19,7652 - - 151 75p 16/02/22

{1} Adjusted to take account of the ditutrve effect of the 2009 eguity 1ssue
(2) Exercised on 17 February 2015

{3) Granted in conpnction with the 2012 PSP awards so as to enable the executwe directors to benefit from UK tax efficiences under HMRC agreed share schemes tegislation For further
information see note (3} 1o the table on page 85

(4) Stepped down from the Board on 31% May 2015
No further grants under the ESOS will be made to executive directors other than in exceptional circumstances as determined by
the Committee

Saving Related Share Option Scheme (SAYE)
SAYE awards held by the executive directors who served during the year, together with any movements, are shown below

Options held Options held

on t+ Options Options Options an 30t
December granted during exer(ised lapsed  November Exercise Exerase
Executwve directer Date of grant 2014 year during year during year 2015 price penod
01110116 to
Steve Burke ] 16/08/11 9,887 - - - 9,887 156p  31/03/17
017101160
Michael Dunnt 16/08/11 9,887 - - - 9,887 156p  31/03/17

{1) Siepped down from the Board on 31* May 2015 and ceased 1o be an emplayee on 18™ December 2015
The closing mid-market share price on 30% Novernber 2015 was 432 5p and the price range during the year was 370 0p to 453 6p

Pension entitlements (audited information)

All executive directors recenve a pension contribution of 15% of base salary which s paid either into the defined contribution
sectian of the Company's pension scheme or as a cash allowance 1n lieu of pension contribution {or a combination of both})
No compensation 1s offered for any additional tax suffered by an executive director in the event that the value of their pension
exceeds the statutory Lifetime Allowance

Cash allowance in leu of

Pension czntnbunon pension C?Entnbunon Tc;-tal
Executrve director 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Bill Olver . B - - 72720 70603 72721 70,603
SteveBurke 39,996 42192 7,987 4393 47983 46585
Michael Dunn _ ] B o 18,000 38136  3,841" 4273 21,8410 42,409
Rob Hudson@ - - 7,344 - 7,344 -

57,996 80328 91,893 79,269 149,889 159,597

(1) Contnbutions made from 1% December 2074 to 31* May 2015 when Michael Dunn stepped down from the Board Pension cotnbutions paid from 1% june 2015 to 30™ Nevernber 2015 are
detaded on page 87

(2) Appointed to the Board on 28 September 2015
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Steve Burke 1s also a deferred member of the defined benefit secuon of the Company's pension schere, which was closed to new
members vt 1999 and to future accruat in 2009 Benefits are based on years of credied service and final pensionable pay; the
ma «mum benefit generally payable under the scheme 15 two-thirds of final pensionabtle pay

Information required by the Regulations in respect of defined benefit pension arrangemenis 1s set out below

Increase in

Accrued Accrued accrued pension

pension at pension at Increasein  durngthe year

Ageat 30" November 30" November accrued pension {excluding

30" November 2014m 2015%  dunngthe year inflaton)

Executve direcior 2015 fpa £pa £pa Epa
Steve Burke 56 28,006% 28,342 336 0

(1) The accrued annual pension includes enttlernents eamned as an employee pnor 0 becoming an execwive director as well as for qualifing senaces after becoming an executive drector and
ts that which would be paid annually on reurement at age 65 based on service to the end of the year

12) These figures have been calculated by apphying deferred revaluaton to Steve Burke's deferred pension as at 19 September 2009, being the date that accrual ceased under the defined
benefits section of the scheme

(3) The following 1s additional information retating to the defined benefit pension arrangements applicable to Steve Burke
- Normal retirement age 5 65 years Retirement may take place at any age after age 55 subject to Company consent Pensions may be reduced to allow for thesr earler payment
- There are no death in service benefits payable and no additional benefits due on earty retwement
- Deferred pensions are assumed to Increase in ine with CPl capped at 5% per annum inthe period before retrement

Further information on the Company's pension scheme 1s shown in note 18 to the Group Financial Statements

Recruitment arrangements for Rob Hudson

Rob's service contract and remuneration arrangements are consistent with the remuneration policy set out on pages 74 to

81 His base salary s £275,000 and he 1s eligible for an annual bonus of up to 125% of that salary He will also be eligible for

an annual award under the Company's PSP (the normal and current annual award imit 1s 125% of base salary) Additonally he
recenes a pension allowance of 15% of base salary and other benefits in ine with the remuneration policy, these benefits include
a relocation allowance of up to 25% of base salary in respect of reasonable and appropriate costs to enable Rob to relocate to
the Midlands

As a consequence of joining the Company, Rob was required to forfeit certain long-term incentives from his previous employer
In order to compensate tim for that, the Commuttee agreed

- a one-off cash payment of £414,000 in recognition of an outstanding long-term incentive award which had reached the end of
the performance measurement penod in March 2015 (such that the full value could be determined) but which was not due to
vest until December 2015 As the vesting date fell soon after his appomntment, a cash payment {rather than an award of shares)
was considered farr and reasonable The payment was made in December 2015 and was subject to the deduction of tax and
natonal insurance contnbutions, and

- a PSP award over 119,018 shares in the Company granted on 2™ Qctober 2015, representing 180% of base salary This award
was in recognition of two outstanding long-term incentve awards for which performance measurement periods would end
in March 2016 and 2017 The Committee took the view that the PSP award was appropnate as it was of a lower fair value and
matched the form of and would vest later than the awards forfeited Subject to the achievernent of the same perfoermance
measures and penod as apply to the PSP awards granted on 9 Aprif 2015, the award will vest on the third anniversary of grant

Payments to past directors and for loss of office (audited information)

Further to the disclosure in last year's Directors’ Remuneration Report, Michael Dunn stepped down frorn the Board on 31% May
2015 He remained on garden leave for the remainder of his notice period to 18" December 2015 when he ceased to be an
employee of the Company

Details of his remuneration from 1= December 2014 to 31% May 2015 can be found in the table on page 82 For the period

from 1% june 2015 to 30" November 2015 Michael receved £145,605 In base salary, £5,644 in benefits and £21,841 in pension
contribution He remained eligible to be awarded a bonus, subject to the achievement of performance measures, In respect of the
penod from 13 December 2014 to 31= May 2015, further details can be found on pages 83 and 84

The Committee has exercised discretion under the rules of the PSP to allow unvested awards to contunue subject to time pro-
rating and performance assessment Awards have been pro-rated to reflect the time elapsed from the date of grant to 31 May
2015, details can be found on pages 84 and 85 Satisfaction of the performance condiions will be assessed at the end of the
refevant performance periods in line with the PSP rules and vesting will remain subject to the Committee’s determination as to
whether the two financial underpins (details of wihich are set out in note 1 on page 77) have been met To the extent that they
vest, awards will be exeraisable for a period of six months from the third annversary of the date of grant

The SAYE award held by Michael Dunn s exercisable to the extent of accumulated savings (plus any applicable interest) in the six
months following 18" December 2015

The Company also paid £1,250 plus VAT to Michael Dunn's lawyers in respect of legal fees incurred by him in connection wath
fws departure
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Statement of directors’ shareholding and share mterests {audited information)
The interests of the directors and their connected persons in the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company are shown in the

table below
As at 30" November 2015 Asat 1* Decemnber 2014
PSP awards PSP awards PSP awards PSP awards
Ordinary  vested but not yet ESOS SAYE Ordinary  vested but not yet ESOS SAYE
shares unexercised vested awards  awards shares unexercised vested awards”  awards

Executive
directors e
Bill Oliver 879,625 - 511,719 - - 854625 - 744,747 102,955 -
Steve Burke 500,258 - 337,641 - 9,887 480489 - 491397 39825 9,887
Michael Dunn 247,861 - 140,743® - 9,887% 222861 - 447350 - 9,887
Rob Hudson - - 119,018 - - - - e - o
Non-executive
directors o o )
Bill Shannon 75,000 - - - - 75000 - - - -
fan Bull 15,000 - - - - 15000 @ - - - -
Kay Chaldecott 10,000 - - - - 10000 - - - -
Simon Clarke 3,112,657 - - - - 3112657 - - - -
Lesley James 20,000 - - - - 20000 - - - -
Richard Mully __ 20,000 - - - - 20000 - - - =
John Salmon 30,000 - - - - 30,000 - - - -

(1) Awards had vested but had not been exercised

(2) On stepping down from the Board on 317 May 2015
(3) On appotntment to the Board on 28" September 2015
(4) On reurement from the Board on 27™ March 2015

There were no changes in these shareholdings or interests between 30 November 2015 and the date of this report

In order 10 reinforce the alignment of their iInterests wath those of shareholders, executive directors are reguired to buld up a
holding of ordinary shares in the Company over a five year pertod worth at least 200% of therr base salary Both Bill Qlver and
Steve Burke have met and exceeded the shareholding requirement, Rob Hudson has until 28" September 2020 to do so

Ordinary shares held as at Shareholding requirement Shareholding at 30" November
Executive director 30" Novemher 2015 as % of base salary 2015 as % of base salary'
Bill Oliver 879,625 _ 200% 785%
Steve Burke 500,528 200% 676%
Rob Hudson - 200% 0%

{1) Based on the dlasing mud market share price on 30" Navernber 2015 of 432 5p and salary as at 30 November 2016

The Committee has noted investor sentment and the prowisions of the Code in respect of holding periods following the vesting or
exercise of long-termuncentive awards Given the substaniial shareholding requirement set out abeve, the element of compulsory
iInvestment in shares of the annual bonus arrangements and robust incentive withholding and recovery provisions, the Commitiee
does not currently feel that such holding periods are necessary for the Company's PSP arrangements However, detalled
consideration will be given to this area in 2016 in respect of both future long-term incentive design and remuneration policy
prowsions, both of which will be put to shareholders for approval at the 2017 AGM

External appointments

Michaet Dunin 15 a non-executive director of Metropolitan Housing Trust He receved and retained fees of £5,417 for the period
from 1% December 2014 to 312 May 2015 when he ceased to be a director of the Compary
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Historic Company performance and Chief Executive remuneration

The following information allows comparison of the Company’s TSR (based on share price growth and dividends reinvested) with
the remunerauon of Bill Oliver, Chief Executive, over the last seven financial years

IMAGE
REMQVED

The chart 15 prepared in accordance with the Regulations it shows the Company's TSR and that of the FTSE 250 and the FTSE All-5hare Real Estate Investment & Services Indices based on an
inmial investment of £100 on 30™ Novernber 2008 and values at mtervering financial year ends over a seven year penod to 30 Novenber 2015 Since the Company was a constituent of both
Lhe FTSE 250 and the FTSE A)-Share Real £state Investment & Services Indies during the year these are considered to be appropniate benchmarks for the graph

Chief Executive remuneration for year ended

30" Novemnber 2009 2010 201 2012 2013 2014 2015
Total remuneration (£00Q)® 876 902 1049 1672 2419 3083 2,227
Annual bonus awarded

{as a % of max)mum opportunity) 50 00@ 8000 9500 8000 9500 10000 100.00
PSP vesting (as a % of

MaxImum opportumty) 000 000 000 4577% 10000 10000 100.00

(1) Total remuneration includes those elements shown in the single total figure of remuneration table on page 82

(2) In addisoen 1o the annual bonus, the Chief Executive was also awarded a one-off, exceptional payment of £100 000 in relauon 1o the successful equity raising and finanaal restruciuning
undertaken in the year

(3) Comprises 45 £4% of the 2009 PSP awards and 45.89% of the 2010 PSP awards
Change in remuneration of Chief Executive compared to employees

The table below shows the percentage change in salary, benefits and annual bonus between the years ended 30" November
2015 and 30™ Novernber 2014 for both the Chvef Executive and for all permanent employees of the Company

Change in base Changen Changen

salary % benefits % annualbonus %

Chief Executive 30 og®@ 30
All permanent employees 300 0 0@ 11 444

{1} General cost of mang increase for permanent employees Incuding adjustments for prometions and recognition of excepuonal performance the werghted average Ndrease n
salary was 4 6%

{2) The year on year decrease in benefits shown in the single tetal figure of remuneration table on page 82 reflects a reduction in 1axable benefit arsing following a change of corpary car
(3) There was na change te the overall structure of benefits avaitable to permanent empiloyees
(4) Wesghted average increase
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Relatwe spend on pay

The table below shows the total expenditure on remuneratian for all employees of the Company (including pension, vanable pay
and social security costs) compared to other key financial indicators as reporied in the audited Group Financiat Statemenis for the
last two financial years Information in respect of profit and net asset value performance has been provided for context

Relevant note to

the Group Year ended Year ended

Financial 30" Novemnber 30™ November
Measure Staterments 2014 2015 % Increase
Total spend on pay 3¢ £174m £21 8m 25%
Profit before all tax _ B _ o 2a £1354m  £258.4m 91%
Dwidends paid 7 £91m  £1M1Aam 22%
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2f £7187Tm £914 7Tm 27%

Implementation of remuneration policy for 2015/16

Base salary

In line with the general cost of Imng salary increase awarded to the Company's permanent employees, Bill Oliver and Steve Burke
receved an annual salary increase of 3% with effect from 1% December 2015 In hght of his lengih of service the Committee
determined that it was not approprate to apply an 1ncrease io the salary payable to Rob Hudson

Base salary

with effect

Base salary as at from

30" November 1% December
Executve director 2015 2015 % increase
Bill Qliver B B __ E484,807 £499351 = 30%
Steve Burke ) B _ £319,885  £329,481 30%
Rob Hudson™ £275,000 £275,000 0 0%

{1} Appointed to the Board on 28" September 2015

Benefits ond pension arrangements

Benefits and pension arrangements for the financial year ending 30t November 2016 will be cansistent with the respective
policies detalled on page 75

Annual bonus

The annual bonus arrangements for the financial year ending 30" November 2016 will operate on the same basis as for 2014/15
and will be consistent with the annual bonus policy detalled on page 76 (including the Committee’s overniding discretion to ensure
that payments reflect its view of corporaie performance, the requirement for directors to invest an amouni equal to one third of
the net bonus recenved In the Company’s shares and the operation of withholding and recovery provisions)

Executive directors will have the opportunity to earn a bonus of up 10 125% of salary based on achievement of the following measures

Measure Proportion of salary payable
Corporate Growth in sharehotders’ equity net asset value per share Forontarget performance  65%
+ Increase In profit before all tax For maximum performance 105%

Increase in total dwidend for the year
Gearing levels
+ Covenant comphance
o Achievement against a number of sirategicobjectves .~ L o o
Personal Achievemnent against a number of operational cbjectives For on target performance 10%
For maximum ﬁeﬁfrman—ce— 20%

The measures have been selected to reflect a range of key financial and operational goals which support the Companys strategic
objectives The respective targets have not been disclosed as they are considered by the Board to be commercially sensitive
However, retrospective disclosure of the targets and performance against them will be provided in the Remuneration Report for
the year ending 30> November 2016 provided that they do not remain commeraally sensitive at that tme

Bonus payments will not be dependent on achievement of any single target in 1solation, since the measures and targets are all of
key importance 1o the short and longer-term health of the Company and the Commuttee does not wish to distort behaviour by
focusing on any single elerment The executive directors performance will be assessed indwvidually by the Committee aganst the

measures and targets, rebying on audited information where appropriate, and having regard to the value which has been creaied
for shareholders
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Long-term incentrives ~ PSP

As In 2014/15, PSP awards granted to executive direciors in the financial year ending 30" November 2016 will be over shares
worth 125% of salary and will be consistent with the long-term incentives policy detalled on page 77 (including the applcation of
the two underpin conditions before awards can vest and the operatton of withholding and recovery prowvisions)

The Committee has undertaken a review of the TSR performance targets which will apply to the awards in order to consider
changes in the outlook for the sector and the Company It remains satisfied that the exisung targets remam sufficiently challenging
and intends to apply these to the awards to be granted in 20186, these targets are set out In the table below and will be measured

over the three financial years ending on 30" November 2018

Vesting of award Vesting of award

Threshold at threshold Maximum at maximum

Performance measure Weighung performance performance performance performance

Absolute TSR growth o 50% of award 20% 125% 50% 50%
TSR relative to FTSE All-Share Real Estaie Invesiment Equal 120%

& Services Index 50% of award to Index 12 5% of Index 50%

Vesting of awards between threshold and maximum performance will be on a strarght line basis

In calculating TSR, a three month average is used at both the start and the end of the performance period to ensure that the
calculation s not impacted by potential volatlity ansing from day-to-day share price fluctuations The TSR data and relaive
positioning of St Modwen Is provided by New Bridge Sireet to ensure that performance 1s independentty verified

Chairman and non-executive director fees

Following a review by the Board, the annual fees payable to the Chairman and non-executive directors have been increased in ine
with the cost of imng salary iIncrease awarded to the Company's employees with effect from 1% December 2015

Fee with effect

Feaasat from
307 November  1*t December

2015 2015 % Increase
Basefee = __ e o .. _
Charmen__ _£154500  £159135 30%
Non-executive directors e __£42,436 £43,709 30%
Additional fees o
Senior Independent Director L B £9,000 £9,000 00%
Audit Committee Charrman £9,000 £9,000 00%
Remuneration Committee Chairman £9,000 £9,000 00%
Dates of appontment of directors

Date of contract/original

Director Date of appomitment letter of appointment Expiry of current term
Executive directors i L ) N ]
Bill Oliver 24" January 2000 7' January 2016 N/A
Steve Burke _ 30" November 2006 18™ January 2016 N/A
Rob Hudson 28" Septermber 2015 20" Aprit 2015 N/A
Non-executive directors o
Bill Shannont® B 15t November 2010 18% October 2010 30" October 2016
lan Bull 1% September 2014 215 August 2014 31 August 2017
Kay Chaldecott 22M Qctober 2012 22 October 2012 21+ Gctober 2018
Simen Clarke 11* October 2004 4% October 2014 10 October 2016
Lesley James B B ~ 19" October 2009  19* October 2009 18* October 2016
Richard Mully 1% September 2013 16" july 2013 315t August 2016

(1} Appointed Chatrman on 22~ March 2011
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Dilution limits

In line with the rules of the PSP, ESOS and SAYE, the Company observes the recommendaton of The Investment Association that
the number of new shares that may be 1ssued to satisfy awards 1s restricted to 10% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company over any roling 10 year penod Whilst not formally within the rules of the Company's existing executive share schemes,
the Company also adheres to the recommended 5% in any rolling 10 year hmit for its discretionary schemes

The total number of shares which could be alloited under the Company's share schemes compared to the dilution imits as at
30" November 2015 was as follows

Type of scheme Lirnit Actual
Alischemes L _ i 108 3.24%
Executive schemes only 5% 2.99%

Dunng the year a total of 500,000 shares were allotteg to the Company’s Employee Share Trust (the Trust) to enable it to

satisfy the vestng and exercise of awards As at 30 Novernber 2015 the Trust held a total of 690,274 shares in the Company
(2014 460,427 shares) and has, in accordance with the Trust deed, waved the right to receve dividends paid on these shares with
the exception of a hundredth of a penny per share

Committee membership
The Committee’s composition 1s kept under review by the Nomination Committee, which 1s responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to 1ts membership

All members of the Committee receve an appropriaie induction to ensure that they have a sound and objectrve understanding of
the prinaples of, and recent developments 10, executive remuneration matters Ongoing traming 1s undertaken as required

Remuneération Committee members Committee meatings and attendance duningthe year ended 30™ November 201 5t
Lesley james Chairman 33

lan Bull ) _ _Member S 313 _ _

Kay Chaldecott Member 3/3

Richard Mully ‘Member B 33

John Salmon Member? 1”1

Bill Shannon Mermber 33

(1} Actual attendance/maximum number of meetings a drrector could attend
{2} Until reurement from the Board on 27" March 2015

Remuneration Committee attendees (by invitation)

BUON~g . Cheffxecutve S
Simon Clarke . Non-executve director e
Tanya Stote _ - ____ Company Secretary and secretary to the Commitiee _
Representatives from New Brnidge Sireet Remuneranon Committee advisor

Advice provided to the Committee

New Bridge Street (NBS), a trading name of Aon Hewtt Ltd (the parent company of NBS) and part of Aon plc, was re-appointed by
the Committee in 2014 following a tender process to pravide independent advice on remuneration matters Representatives from
NBS attend Comnnittee meetings and provide adwice to the Commuittee Chairman outside of meetings as necessary In 2014/15
NBS provided specific advice to the Committee on remuneration arrangements relating to the departure of Michael Dunn and
the appointrnent of Rob Hudson, the application of withholding and recovery provisions and TSR monitonng services Fees are
charged on a cost incurred basis and totalled £50,500 in the year ended 30" November 2015

NBS 15 a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and operates voluntarly under the Group's code which sets out
the scope and conduct of the role of executive remuneration consuitants when advising UK histed companies Neither NBS nor
Aon ple undertakes any other work for the Company, and the Committee 1s satisfied that the advice provided by NBS remains
objective and independent

The Committee also receves input from Bill Oliver, the Chief Executive, on the remuneration arrangements of the other
executive directors and of the Company Secretary, and advice from Tanya Stote, the Company Secretary, on governance matiers
Neither the Chief Execuive nor the Company Secretary were present when their own remuneration was discussed
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Activities of the Committee
The Committee met on three occasions in the financial year ended 30" November 2015 to consider the following matiers

to review the executive directors’ base salartes and the fee payable to the Chairman,

* to set corporate and personal objectives for the 2015/16 annual bonus arrangements for executive directors ang undertake an
assessment of performance aganst targets for 2014/15,

* to approve the outturn of PSP awards granted in 2012,
* 10 approve share awards granted 1n 2015 together with associated performance criteria,

1o approve the application of withholding and recovery provisions to the rules of both the PSP and annual bonus arrangements
in hne with Code requirements,

to determine the application of the remuneraton policy for the recrutment of Rob Hudson,

to consider investor feedback on the Company's remuneration policy and the report on directors’ remuneration for the 2014
Annual Report,

to review market trends and the governance environment in respect of remuneration arrangements,

- to formulate actions required to enable shareholder approval of the Company's proposed remuneration policy and revised long-
term incentrve arrangements to be sought in 2017,

to review the Committee’s performance and terms of reference, and
to prepare this report on directors’ remuneration

Staternent of shareholder voting at the AGM
At the AGM held on 27% March 2015 votes cast in respect of directors’ remuneration were as follows

No ofvotes
Resolution No ofvotes for % of vote for against %ofvote against  Totaivotescast  Votes withheld™®
To approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report
{excluding the policy sectton) 165,897,466 98 54% 2,458,130 146% 168,355,596 387,682

1) Avote wihheld 1s not a vote in law and s not ¢ounted in the calculation of the properiton of votes cast for or aganst a resolution

This report en remuneration has been approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Lesley James
Charrman of the Remuneranion Committee

1# February 2016
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The directors present their repon for the year ended
30" November 2015

As permitted by legislation, some of the matters histonically
included in this repont have instead been included in the
Strategic Report on pages 11045 as the Board considers
thern to be of strategic iImportance Specifically these relate
to the Company's business model and strategy, future
business developmenis and risk management The corporate
governance statement as required by the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) 1S
set out on pages 46 to 93 and 1s incorporated into this report
by reference

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Company will be held at 12 00 noon

on Wednesday, 23 March 2016 at the Evolution Suite,
Innovation Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbnidge Technology Park,
Birmingham B31 2TS The notice of meeting, which includes
the specal business to be transacted and an explanation of all
the resclutions to be considered at the meeting, 1s set out on
pages 167 to 174

Dividend

Annterm dwvidend of 1 9p per ordinary share (2014 1 463p)
was paid on 3™ September 2015

The directors recommend a final dwidend of 3 85p per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 30" November 2015

(2014 3 137p), making a total dvidend for the year of 5 75p per
share (2014 4 6p), payable on 1% April 2016 to sharehclders

on the register on 4" March 2016

Other than as referred to under the heading ‘Share capital
below, during the year there were no arrangements under
which a shareholder has waived or agreed {o wawe any
dividends nor any agreement by a shareholder to wave
future dividends

Share capital

Capital structure

The Company has a single class of share capital which 1s
dwided into ordinary shares of 10p each, all ranking pari passu
Each share carnes the nght to one vote at general meetings of
the Company

At 30" Novernber 2015 there were 221,876,988 ordinary
shares inissue and fully paid Further details relating to share
capital, including movernents duning the year, are set out In
note (K) to the Company Financial Statements

Share allotments

During the year, and in accordance with the authonty granted
by shareholders at the 2015 AGM, 500,000 ordinary shares
were allotted at par value to the Company’s Employee Share
Trust to enable it to sabsfy the vesting and exercise of awards
of ardinary shares made under the Company’s share-based
INcentve arrangements

Purchase by the Company of i1ts own shares

At the 2015 AGM, sharehalders renewed the Company's
authority to make market purchases of up to 22,137,698
ordinary shares, representing 10% of the 1ssued share capital
at that tme No shares were repurchased during the year
and the Company does not hold any shares in treasury

This standard authorty will expire at the 2016 AGM and a
resolution to renew it will be proposed

Employee Share Trust (Trust)

As at 30 Novemnber 2015, the Trust held 690,274 shares

{2014 460,427 shares), representing 031% (2014 0 21%) of
the Company's issued share capital The Trust deed contains

a dvidend wanver provision in respect of shares held by the
Trust, such that dmdends are waved with the excepuon of a
hundredth of a penny per share Any voting or other similar
decisions relating to shares held by the Trust would be taken by
the Trustee, who may take account of any recommendations of
the Company There were no purchases of shares by the Trust
duning the financal year

Further detalls regarding the Trust and of shares 1ssued
pursuant to the Company’s share-based incentive
arrangements are set out In note {K) to the Company Financial
Statements

Rights and obligaticns attaching to shares

The holders of ordinary shares in the Company are entitled
t0 recenve dvidends when declared, to receve the Company's
annual report, to attend and speak at general meetings of the
Company, to appont proxies and {o exeraise votng rghis

Full detalls of the deadlines for exercising voting rights in
respect of the resclutions to be considered at the 2016 AGM
are set out In the notice of meeting on pages 167 to 174

Restrictions on the transfer of shares

As at 30" Novemnber 2015 and the date of this report, except
as referred to below

+ there were no restnictions on the transfer of ordinary shares
in the Company;

there were no limitations on the holding of ordinary shares,

« there were no requirements to obtamn the approval of the
Company, or of other holders of ordinary shares in the
Company, for a transfer of shares, and

+ no person held shares in the Company carrying any special
rights with regard to control of the Company

The directors may refuse o register the transfer of a share

In certificated form which 1s not fully paid or on which the
Company has a lien, where the instrument of iransfer does
not comply with the requirements of the Company’s Articles
of Association {Articles), or if the transfer 1s In respect of more
than one ¢lass of share or1s in favour of more than four joint
holders The directors may also refuse to register a wransfer
of a certficated share, which represents an interest of at least
0 25% in a class of shares, {ollowtng the failure by the member
or any other person appearng to be inierested 1n the shares
{0 prowvide the Company with information requesied under
section 793 of the Compartes Act 2006 (Act)

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carried out using
CREST and the directors can refuse to register the transfer
of an uncertficated share in accordance with the regulations
governing the operation of CREST

The Company s not aware of any agreements beiween
shareholders that may result in restrictions on the transfer of
shares or on voting nghts
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Interests in voting nghts

Infermation provided to the Company pursuant to the FCA's
Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR 5) 1s published on a
Regulatory Information Senvice and on the Company's website
As at 30" November 2015, the following information had been
receved in accordance with DTR 5 from holders of notifiable
nterests in the Company's 1ssued share capital

Shareholder

The information provided below was correct at the date of
notification, however the date the notfication receved may
not have been within the current financial year It should be
noted that these holdings are ikely to have changed since
the Company was notified Notficauon of any change 1s not
required until the next notifiable threshold 1s crossed

% of total votng
Nature of holding  Total voting nghts nghts

The late Lady Clarke and connected parties

(including Simon Clarke) _ __ Durectinterest 18,575,196 8 43%
] D teavesley and connected parties Directinterest 13,447,099 607%
Aviva plc Direct interest 8,889,142 402%
Indirect interest 5,582,987 2 52%

_  Total 14472329 6 54%

BlackRock, Inc Indirect interest 11,075,661 503%
Royal London Asset Management Ltd B o _Directinterest 11,186,531 504%
TR Property Investment Trust plc Direct interest 6,802,638 340%

No changes ininterests in the voung rights of the Company's issued share caprital have been notified to the Company in
accordance with DTR 5 between 30 November 2015 and 12 February 2016

Directors
The Board

The following served as directors dunng the year ended
30 November 2015

* lan Bull

+ Steve Burke

- Kay Chaldecott
» Simon Clarke

Michael Dunn (stepped down from the Board on
31= May 2015}

Rob Hudson (appointed on 28" September 2015}
+ Lesley James
* Richard Mully

Bill Olver
* John Salmon (retired on 27* March 2015)

Bill Shannon

The brographical details of all the direciors serving at

30" November 2015, including details of their relevant
experience and other significant commitments, are shown
on pages 48 and 49

The Directors’ Remuneration Report, which incdudes details
of directors’ service contracts and their interests in the
Company's shares, is set out on pages 70 to 93 Copies of the
service contracts of the executive directors and the letters of
appointment for the non-executive directors are availlable for
inspection at the Company’s registered office during normal
business hours and will be avallable for inspection at the
Company's AGM

Appointment and replacement of directors

The appomrtment and replacement of directors 1s governed by
the Articles, the UK Corporate Governance Code (Code), the Act
and related legislation Under the Articles

+ the number of directors I1s not subject to any maximum but
must not be less than three, unless otherwise determined by
the Company in general meetng,

- directors may be apponted by an ordinary resolution of
the Company or by resolution of the directors, either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addional director, and

a director appeinted by the directors must retire at the
next AGM and 15 not taken into account In determining the
directors who are to retire by rotation at the meeting

The Articles require that at least one third of the Board

must retire by rotation at each AGM Notwithstanding these
provisions, the Board has agreed that all directors will seek
re-election at each AGM in accordance with the Code At the
2016 AGM Robert Hudson, who was appointed by the
directors in September 2015, will retire and be offering tumself
for election, all other directors will be offering themselves for
re-election
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Directors (continued)

A director may be removed by a special resolution of the
Company In addiion, a director must autamatically cease
to be a director If he or she

- resigns from his or her office by notice in writing to the
Company or, In the case of an executive director, the
appointment 1s terminated or expires and the directors
resolve that his or her office be vacated,

becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or
composition with his or her creditors generally,

Is suffening frorn a mental disorder,

15 absent from meetings of the directors for more than six
consecutive months without permission of the directors and
the directors resolve that is or her office be vacated, or

» becomes prohibited by law from acting as a director

Powers of the directors

The Board of Directors may exercise all the powers of the
Company, subject to the Artides, UK legistation mcluding
the Act and any directions given by the Company in
general meeting

The directors have been authonsed by the Articles to 1ssue
and allot ordinary shares and to make market purchases of
the Cormpany's own shares These powers are referred to
shareholders for renewal at each AGM Further information 1s
set out under the heading ‘Share capital on page 94

Conflicts of interest

With the exception of service contracts or those contracts
detailed in note 22 to the Group Financial Statements, no
director had a matenial interest in any significant contract with
the Company or any of its operating companies at any ume
dunng the year

Under the Act, directors have a statutory duty to avoid conflicts
of interest with the Company As permitted by the Act, the
Articles enable non-conflicted directors to authorise actual

or potential conflicts of interest, either with or without konits

or conchtions Formal procedures for the notification and
authonsavion of such conflicts are in place Any potenual
confiicts of interest in reflation to newly appointed diwectors are
constdered by the Board prior to appointment All Girectors
have a contnuing duty to update any changes to conflicts

Indermnities and insurance

The Company has granted indemnities to each of its directors
and the Company Secretary to the extent permitted by law in
respect of costs of defending claims against them and third
party habilties These provisions, deemed to be gualifying third-
party indemnuty provisions pursuant to section 234 of the Aq,
were In force during the year ended 30 November 2015 and
remain in force as at the date of this report

A copy of the ndermnity 1s avallable for inspection at the
Company's registered office dunng normal business hours and
will be available for inspection at the Company's AGM

The Company also maintans directors' and officers’ lability
insurance which gives appropnate cover for any legal action
taken against ks directars

Articles of Association

The Articles can only be amended, or new Articles adopted, by
a special resolution at a general meeting of the Company

A resolution to adopt new Articles will be put to shareholders at
the 2016 AGM, further mformation can be found in the notice
of meeting on pages 167 tc 174

Change of control

There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or
terminate upon a change of cantrol of the Company following
a takeover bid These include commutted bank facilites,

which would be terminable at the bank's discretion, and the
Company's retaill and convertible bonds, holders of which
would have an option to require the Company to redeem

the bonds

The Company's share-based incentive arrangements contain
provisions that take effect in the event of a change of control
but do not entitle participants to a greater interest :n the shares
of the Company than created by the inital grant or award
under the relevant scheme

There are no agreements between the Company and 1is
directors or employees prowiding for compensation for loss of
office or employment that occurs specifically as a resuli of a
takeover bid

Financial instruments

The Group's exposure to and management of capital risk,
market risk, credit nisk and liquidity nisk 1s set aut in note 16 to
the Group Financial Statements

Employee involvement

St Modwen 1s commutted to regular communication and
consultation with its employees and encourages employee
involvemnent 1in its performance News concerning St Modwen,
its activities and performance 15 published on the Company's
intranet Regular management meetings are held to inform
senor staff about matters affecung them as employees, at
which their feedback 1s sought on decisions likely to affect their
interest, and where a common awareness of the financial and
economic factors affecting the Company's performance 1s
developed, this information s then cascaded to all employees
A performance-related annual bonus scheme and share
option arrangements are designed to encourage and support
employee share ownership

Employment of disabled persons

It 1s the policy of the Company to gve full and fair consideration
to applications for employment recerved from disabled
persons, having regard to their parucular aptitudes and
abilites The policy Includes, where practicable, the conunued
employment of those who may become disabled during

therr employment with the Company and the provision

of appropnate training St Modwen provides the same
opporiunites for training, career development and promotion
for chsabled as for other employees
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Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosures required by law relating to the Group's
greenhouse gas ermissions (GHG) are set out in the table below
GHG from those sources for which the Company is deemed ©
be drrectly responsible are monitored for reporiing purposes,
namely gas and electrioity purchased for consumption at
properties under the Company's operational control {such

as Head Office, certain regional offices, St Modwen Homes'
sales offices and vacant space), and petrol and diesel used in
Campany cars

Political donations

In accordance with the Company's policy, no political donations
were made and no political expenditure was incurred duning
the year

Going concern

The Group's business activiies, together with the factors likely
to affect its future development, performance and position, are
set out In the Strategic Report The directors have considered
these factors and reviewed the financial positien of the Group,
including Its Joint ventures and associates

2015 intensity ratio

The review included an assessment of future funding
requirements based on cash flow forecasts extending for

18 months from the date of signing the Financial Statements,
valuation projections and the abifity of the Group to meet
covenants on existing borrowing faciliues The directors were
sausfied that the forecasts and projecuons were based on
realistic assumptions and that the sensitivities applied in
reviewing downside scenarios were appropriate

As described in the Financial Review on pages 30 to 35, there
are no corporate or [0t venture facilities that require renewal
before 2018 As a result the directors are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficent ongoing facilities avallable to meet its
financing requirements

Based on their assessment, the directors are of the opinion
that the Group has adequate avallable resources to fund s
operations for the foreseeable future and so determine that
it remains appropriate for the Financial Statements to be
prepared on a going concern basis

2014 intensity ratio™®

tCO. tCo,;
emissions/ emissions/Em tCOz emissions/  tCO; emissions/

CO: emissions full-time property CO:emissions full nme £m property
GHG {tonnes) employees!! portfolio® (tonnes) employees™ portfoho®
Scope 1: ) ) o
Total purchased gas ~ - 433 222
Petrol and diesel 586 542
Total Scope 1 1,019 3.3 0.5 764 27 06
Scope 2:
Total purchased electricity 1,529 837
Total Scope 2 1,529 49 0.7 937 33 07
Total Scope 1 &2 2,548 82 12 1,701 60 13

(1) Equmvalent CO; emissions per full ume employee
12) Equivalent CO2 per £m of property portfolio held by the Company

{3) Due to the neghgible impact information has not been restated to reflect the revised accounting treatment of VSM Estates (Holdings) Ltd under IFRS 10 See the Accounting Pohcies note on

pages 116 and 117 of the Group Anancial Staternents for further infarmauon
Methodclogy

Ermissions from gas and electricity consumption have been calculated using the main requirements of the GHG Protocol $tandard (revised editon) and emmussion factors from UK Government's
GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporung 2014 The measurement of emissions from Company cars 1 based on the Ermronmental Reporung Guidelines. tnduding mandatory
greenhouse gas emissions reporting guidance (june 2013) issued by the Department for Ervronment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA} DEFRAs 2013 corwersion factors have also been used

within the reporing methodology
Organisation boundary and responsibilrty

The Comparty does not have responsibility for GHG that are beyond the boundary of the Company's operational control. As such, gas and electraty purchased and consumed by tenants s not
inctuded withan the Scope 1 and 2 data above Data also excludes the purchase for and consumption by those stes whach fall wathun the Persimmen joint venture as Persimman controls the
procurement of utilties to these stes GHG for all other joint ventures has been included as the Company is deemed 1o be wholy responsible for such GHG
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Disclosure required by Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The infoermation required to be disclosed by LR 9 8 4R of the FCA's Listing Rules can be found on the following pages of this

Annual Report

Secuon Topic Pagereference
(1) Interestcapialised - . N
(2) Publication of unaudited information N/A
" Detailsof long-term Incentive schemes eaébmd_x)émé recruit T
(4 _ orretanadregqor . B N/A
(S)&(6)  Wawer ofemoluments by adireccor ___NA
(7 &(8) Non-pre-emptive ssues of equity for cash o aa
(9. __ __ Parentcompany participation inplacing by a lsted subsidiary ___NA
(1) Contracts of significance N/A
(1 Provision of services by a controfing shareholder o B _ N/A
(12)& (13} Shareholder wawer of dmdends 94
(14) Agreements with controlling shareholders N/A

Important events since 30 November 2015
There have been no important evenis affecting the Company
or any subsidiary since 30" Navember 2015

Auditor

Resclutions to re-appoint Deloitte LLP as auditor of the
Company and to authonse the Audit Committee to determine
therr remuneration will be proposed at the 2016 AGM

Management report

The Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report together
comprise the ‘'management report’ for the purposes of the
FCA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules {(DTR 4 1 8R)

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year Under that law the directors
are required to prepare the Group Financal Statements (0
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of

the IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare the Company
Financial Statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and apphicable law) Under company law
the directors must not approve the accounts unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and far view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group and of their profit or loss for
that period

In prepaning the Group Financial Statements, International

Accouniing Standard 1 reguires that directors

- properly select and apply accounting policies,

- present Informaton, Including accounting policies, in a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
undersiandable information,

provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impad of parucular transaciions, other
events and conditions on the enuty's financial position and
financial performance, and

» make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern

In preparing the Company Financial Statements, the directors
are required to

select sutable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the Financial
Statements, and

prepare the Financal Statemenis on the going concern basis
unless It 1s nappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue In business
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequaie accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
ume the financial positen of the Company and enable them

to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Act
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other uregularizes

The directors are responsible for the matntenance and integnity
of the corporate and financial nformation included on the
Company's website {www stmodwen co uk) Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of Financial Statermenis may differ from legislation in

other junsdictions

Each of the directars in office as at the date of this report,
whose names and functions are set out on pages 48 and 49,
confirm that to the best of theirr knowledge

+ the Finangial Statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,

+ the management report (which comprises the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report) includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the business and the

position of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of
the principal risks and uncertantes that they face, and

the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide
the information necessary for shareholders 1o assess the
Company's position and performance, business model
and strategy

Each of the directors in office as at the date of this report also
confirms that

- 50 far as the director 1s aware, there s no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and

+ the drector has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a director in order t© make himself/herself aware
of any relevant audit nformation and to establish that the
Company's auditor is aware of that information

Thus confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the A

The Directors Report, prepared In accordance with the
requirements of the Act and the FCA's Listing and Disclosure
and Transparency Rules and comprising pages 94 to 99, was
approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Tanya Stote
Company Secretary

1% February 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
St. Modwen Properties PLC

Opinion on Financial
Statements of
St. Modwen Properties PLC

In our opinion

the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the
Parent Company’s affalrs as at 30" November 2015 and of the Group’s prefit for the year
then ended,

the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;
the Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation

The Finanoial Statements comprise the Group Income Statermnenit, the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash Flow
Statement, the Group Statement of Changes in Equity and the related Group notes 1 10 22 and Parent
Company notes (A) to (P} The financial reporting frarmework that has been applied in the preparation
of the Group financial Statements 1s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union The
financial reporting framewaork that has bean applted In the preparation of the Parent Company
Financial Staterments 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Separate opinion n relation to
IFRSs as i1ssued by the IASB

As explained in the Accounting Policies note to the Group Financial Statements, 1n addition to
complying with 1ts legal obfigation to apply IFRSs as adopted by the Eurppean Union, the Group has
also applied IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {1ASB)

In our opivion the Group Fnancial Statements comply with IFRSs as issued by the IASB

Going concern and the
directors’ assessment of the
principal risks that would
threaten the solvency

or liquidity of the Group

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’ statement regarding the
appropriateness of the going concern dasis of accaunting contained within the Directors’ Report and
the directors’ statement on the lenger-term wability of the Group contained within Risk Management

We have nothing matenal to add or draw attention to In relation to

the directors’ confirmation on page 36 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the Group, including those that would threaten ks business model, future
performance, solvency or kquidity;

the disclosures on pages 38 to 41 that describe those rnisks and explain how they are being managed
or mitigated,

* the directors’ statement on page 97 about whether they considered 1t appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the FAinancal Statements and thesr identification of any
material uncertainues to the Group's ability to continue to do s¢ over a peried of at least 12 months
fram the date of approval of the Financial Statements, and

* the drectors’ explanation on page 37 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what penod they have done so and why they consider that peried to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue
In gperation and meet s liabiliues as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing atterition to any necessary qualifications or assumptions

We agreed with the directors’ adoption of the going concern basis of accounting and we did not
identfy any such matenal uncertainties However, because not all future evenis or conditions can be
predicted, this statement Is not a guaraniee as to the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

Independence

We are required to comply with the Financial Reporung Counaits Ethical Standards for Auditors and we
confirm that we are independent of the Group and we have fuffilled our other ethical responsiblives in
accordance with those standards We alsa confirm we have not provided any of the prohibred
non-audit services referred to in those standards

Our assessment of risks of
matenal misstatement

The assessed risks of material nusstatement described below are those that had ihe greatest effect on
our audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and direciing the efforts of the engagement
team In 2015, as part of the ‘one-off property transactions’ risk we have also considered the risk
around the correct accounting for the materal prior pened error, as disclosed in the Accounting
Palictes note o the Group Finandial Staterments Last year our auditor's report included covenant
compliance and hquidity disclosure risk, which1s not separately included in our report this year, since
the Group’s headroom has sigrificantly grown over the years with significantly improved trading
results, and reduced gearing
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Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the risk
Valuation of investment property We met with the third-party valuers, appointed by the directors, and assessed the

competence, capabilities and objectvity of those exiernal valuers
Valuauon of investment property is an area of

Judgement which could matenally affect the Financial ~ We selected a sample of investment properuies (based on value, absolute and

Statements The Group's investment property percentage movement, and some random propertes) For this sample, we assessed
portfolio, as detatted in note 8, together with the and challenged the reasonableness of the significant judgements and assurmptions
Group's share of joint ventures and associaies s held  applied in the valuauon model We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data
at far value The Group’s accounting policy 15 provided by 5t Modwen to the valuers for the purposes of therr valuation exercise

described on page 111 and further details of
Investment praperties innote 2¢ The directors
employ external vatuers to assist in determining the
fair value, whe make a number of key estimates and
assumptions, In particular assumptions In relation to
market comparable yields and estimates in relation to
future rental ncome increases or decreases, void
perods, occupancy rates, lease incentives, break
clauses, lease lengths and purchaser costs

With the assistance of expert members of our audit team who are chartered surveyors,
we reviewed the significant assumptions in the valustion process, tested a sample of
properties by benchmarking against external appropriate property indices, understood
the valuatton methodclogy and the wider market analysis We reviewed the information
provided by the valuers both in the meeting and contained n the detalled valuation
reports, and we undertook our own research into the relevant markets to evaluate the
reasonableness of the valuation inputs and the resulting fair values

Valuation of inventories We dentified the vanous components of the Group's inventories and we sampled the
balance of £183 7m and challenged managements appraisal documeniation for a
representative sample of £145m We have challenged whether the expected revenues
in site appraisals have been updated ta reflect the cost and yields seen on similar assets
In the Investment property partfolio and challenged the key assumptians within the
appraisals to supporting ewdence through test of the management forecasts and
valuation reports Where a site has been apprarsed by management over a penod

of tme, we have also sought to understand the changes to assurnpbions over ume

The Group has continued to use its own internal In addition we have also

appraisal monitonng process duning the year to assess + reviewed a sample of marketed sites and post year-end sales prices 1o assess whether
the net realisable value (NRV) of those properties hield  any inventory held 1s marketed below 1ts valuation,

The Group's accounting policy on inventory s
disclosed on page 112 and further details of inventory
innote 12 The Group's nventory balance of £183 7m
(2014 £201 Om) includes assets for resale {those
being acuvely marketed) and properties being
developed with a view to sale

within inventones through the preparation of challenged the lack of NRV write-downs identified in the current period and challenged

appraisals for each site which calculate forecast whether evidence exists to reverse NRV write-downs recorded i prior periods

revenues and costs through review of documentation supporting the status of the project and

The risk here 15 that the NRV could be averstated by management’ plans, and

using inappropriate forecast revenue and forecast for a representative sample of iIncome generaung sites valued by the external valuers

cost to complete we assessed valuation yields used in appraisals for developmentis against yields used
on the mvestment property portfolio in line with the work set out above on valuation

Moreover, management appraisals also include a of Investment properties Our real estate experts assisted us I this review

number of judgements, assumptions and estmates
regarding future costs and revenues Given ihe
quantum of the inventories balance recorded by the
Group In1ts Financial Statements, a misstatement In
this balance could have a matenal impact on the
Financial Statements as a whole At 30" November
2015, a imited proportion of inventory included on
the Balance Sheet (mainly income generating
inventory) 1s valued externally - this imvolves significant
judgements as demonstrated under valuation of
Investment property

For a representative sample we iested properties which have been transferred from
Investmeant property to mnventories and from inventories (o investment property during
the year based on the documents, supporting management's plans for future use of the
property, both to assess whether those transfers met the IFRS transfer criteria, and also
that the properties transferred to rventories are properly valued

The nisk also involves proper dassification and
valuaton of inventory items transferred to and
from irvestment properties on a change in use
of the property
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Independent auditor's report to the members of
St. Modwen Properties PLC (continued)

One-off property transactions We have analysed management’s accounting judgement paper on the Swansea student
accommodation development accounting, which summarised the facts and background
of the iransacuon, as well as previous accountung treatment, possible alternative
treatments and the reasons for a restatement We have audited management’s
Previously the Group position focused on the calculatien of the correcuion, through review of the supporung contracts, challenging the
provision of construction services to an M&G fund and  details of the calculation and resulung disclosures made in the Financial Statements
treated the contract as a development agreement wih  ¥e also audited other property transactions on a representative sample basis to

M&G During the current year, on revisiting the confirm there were no similar arrangements, wiich might have resulted in similar prior
undertying judgements and facts behind the period errors

development, it became clear that the Group

continues {o retain the risks and rewards of owning

the entre property, with M&G recemng a fixed

(subject only 10 Ry return Inaits 2015 Financial

Statements the Group has restated its 2014

comparatives In respect of this as is disclosed on

pages 116 and 117, resulung in the reversal of £5 4m

of development profits recogrised in the year ended

30" November 2014 and £2 1m recognised in the

year ended 30™ November 2013, recognition of a

finance lease obligation of £22 6m as at

30" November 2014, the recogriton of an asset of

£22 7m, for the proportion of the property that had

previously been derecognised and reflected as

development expenditure on behalf of M&G This has

been dassified as an investment property Investment

property revaluation gain of £8 4m was recognised in

the year ended 30™ November 2014

The Group has restated the way that it accounts for its
Swansea siudent accommodaton development

In addition, property acquisitions and disposals can be  We assessed the NCGM transaction and evaluated the accounung treatmeni adopted
significant and complex transactions for the Group's by management on initial recognition and on revaluation to fair value, as well as
results N a given period The most significant added  available alternative treatments We involved our real estate experts 10 review and
value movement in the year was the recognition of the  challenge valuation assumptions used by the external valuer in therr valuation In our
New Covent Garden Market (NCGM) site in Nine Elms,  testing we

London, for the regeneration of the 57 acre site, which

achieved unconditional planning status In April 2015 assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external valuers,

The Group recogrised the interest In land as reviewed the contractual conditions and ensured they were satsfied to render the
Investment property when the cantract became NCGM contract uncondittonal,

unconditional, with a lability recorded at inial assessed whether the interest in land under the contract meets the definition of
recognition reflecting the obligation that was takenon  INvestment property under IFRS, and when they should be recognised,

in exchange for the land We have identfied it as a - tested the value of the iniial recognition of the hability ansing from the contract

significartt nsk area for our annual audiz, considering becoming unconditional Indluding challenge of the key assumptions in the model,
the nsks around contractual terms, intial classification,  reviewed the asset valuation methadology applied by the Group's external valuers as
intwal measurement and subsequent valuation of well as assumptions used,

property {the model for which uses many assumptions
and inputs), initial measurement of the liability, as well
as alternative accounting treatments The NCGM value
as at 30" Novernber 2015 was £440m, which was held

challenged the key assumpuions in the model used in iitial recognition of the hability
ansing from the contract becoming uncondional,
reviewed management’s plans as part of the going concern analysis to ensure no
.y | contradictory evidence exists as to the classification of the property interests as

In & joint venture a5 investment property The results Investment property on the grounds of uncertain future use, and
of the joint venture were accounted for by the Group

held a meeting attended by senior members of our core engagement team, our real
under equity method

estate experts, who are also chartered surveyors, and the external valuers of the
Group Dunng this meeting, the valuation basis and assumptions used were
challenged by our experis and the audit team Our experts also reviewed sensitvity
analysis around the key assumpuions used by the external valuers in the valuation of
the NCGM property to illustrate how the property value responds to changes in those
assumptions
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Accounting for taxation

As set out in the Group's use of estimates and
judgements on pages 11510 116, tax planning 1s often
an mtegral part of transactions as the Group ts a
property group Further details of provision are
disclosed i note 5 Where tax planning has been
challenged by HMRC, or management believe there is
a sk of such challenge, provision 1s made for the best
estimate of the potential exposure based on the
informauon available at the Balance Sheet date

We tested the Group tax workings and considered the current and deferred tax
implications of property acquisitions, disposals and valuation movements which
occurred during the year We utilised our tax specialisis to appraise the likely outcome
of uncertan tax positions, Including reviewing any correspondence with HMRC and
considered the adequacy of disclosures made in the Annual Report

Revenue recognition

We have defined this nisk for the Group as ansing from
revenue recognition from development income under
IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts and IFRIC
Interpretation 15 - Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate This 1s due primarily to the fact that
Judgement s required as to whether revenue ¢an be
recognised on a contract basis Judgement 1s also
exercised in determirung the ¢osts to complete for
each site and the stage of completion at the Balance
Sheet date

The significant nsk in relation to revenue recognition
also anses from rental Income and property disposal
transactions occurnng near the period-end being
recognised in the wrong period

The Group's accounting palicy on revenue is disclosed
on pages 113 to 114 and further revenue details in
note 1

We tested a representative sample of revenue recognised under 1AS 11 during the year
1o ensure the Group policy 1s in ine wath the standards We assessed whether {he stage
of completion at the Balance Sheet date was reasonable by vouching the assessment of
stage of completion to independent certification where possible or to management’s
best esumate and contractual terms, recalculating any profit recogmised and through
our audit of iInventories assessing the costs o complete for reasonableness

The description of nisks above should be read in conjuncuion with the significant issues considered by the Audit Committee discussed on

pages 61 and 62

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opimieon thereon, and we do

nat provide a separate opinion on thase matters

Our application of materiality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement in the Financial Statements that
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person
would be changed or influenced We use matenality both in planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work

We determined mateniality for the Group to be £9 0m (2014 £7 Om), winchis
approximately 1% of equity {2014 1% of equity) We consider the Group's equity to be
the most appropnate benchmark for materiality, which 1s one of the main areas of
interest for the investors in property companies

We agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we woutd report to the Commitiee all audit
differences in excess of £0 18m, (2014 £0 14m) as well as differences below that
threshold that, In our view, warranted reporting on qualitatve grounds

We also report to ihe Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when
assessing the overall preseniation of the Financial Statements

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our Group audii scope 1S consistent with our scope in the previous year As the Group
audrtors we are responsible for the majonty of the Group's subsidianes and joint
ventures, noiably KPi and VSM Uxbridge Group The subsidiaries and joing ventures
far which the Group audii team are not auditors amount o 0 54% (2014 0 23%) of
the Group's assets, 0 74% (2014 0 06%) of Group revenue and 0 69% (2014 0 03%)
of the Group’s profit before tax, as such, there are no compenent auditors reporting
Into Group

At the parent entity level we also tested the consolidation process and carrned out
analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were no significant nsks of
materal misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining
comparnents not subject 1o audit or audr of speafied account balances
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Independent auditor's report to the members of
St. Modwen Properties PLC (continued)

Opinton on other matters prescribed by
the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accerdance with the Comparies Act 2006, and
the information gven In the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the Finanoial Statements are prepared Is consisient with the Financial
Statements.

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

Adequacy of explanations recenved and
accounting records

Under the Comparyes Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In our opinion
we have not recenved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been receved from branches not visited by us, or
the Parent Company Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns

We have nothing to report In respec of these matters

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report f in our opinion certain
disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not been made or the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited 1s not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns We have nothing to report ansing from these matters

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listng Rules we are alsa required to review the part of the Corporate
Governance Statement relaung to the Company's compliance with certain prowsions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Qur duty to read other information i the
Annuel Report

Under Internatienal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we are reguired to report
toyou If, In our opinion, information in the Annual Reportis

materially inconsistent wath the information in the audited Financial Statements, or
apparently materially ncorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our
knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing our audit, or
otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any Inconsistencies
between our knowledge acquired during the audit and the directors’ staiement that
they consider the Annual Report is fair, balanced and understandable and whether the
annual report appropriately discloses thase matters that we communicated to the Audit
Committee which we cansider should have been disclosed We confirm that we nave
not identified any such inconsistencies or misleading statemenis

Respective responsibilities of directors
and auditor

As explained more fully in the statement of directers’ responsibilities, the directors are
responsible for the preparatton of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair iew Our responsibilicy 1S to audit and express an optnion on
the Financial Statements in accordance with apphicable law and Internauonal Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) We also comply with Internaticnal Standard on Quality
Control 1 (UK and irefand) Qur audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that our
quality control procedures are effective, understood and apphed Our qualty controls
and systems include our dedicated professional standards review team and
independent partner reviews

This repart 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Act 2006 Our audi work has been undertaken
0 that we might state to the Company's members those matiers we are required o
state to them in an auditor's repert and for ro other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by faw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Companys members as a body, for eur audit work, for thus report, or
for the opinions we have formed
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Scape of the audit of the
Financial Statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Finanoal
Statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Financial Staternents are
free from matenial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the
Parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disdosed, the reasanableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the Financial Statements In addition, we read all the
finanaial and non-financial information N the Annual Report to identify matenal
Inconsistencies with the audited Financial Statements and to identify any information
that is apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materally inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit if we become aware of

any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the imphications
for our report

Jonathan Dodworth (Senlor statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, UK

1% February 2016
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Group Income Statement
for the year ended 30" November 2015

2015 2014 restated
Notes £m £m
Revenue 1 287.5 2665
Netrentalincome = W o ! 28___ 32
Development profits 1 517 423
Gans on disposals of investments/investment properties o . 1?52
Investmerit property revaluation gaing o 8 739 = 639
Release of negative goodwill o ncome - 9. -2
QOther net income i 42 36
Profits of jont ventures and associates (post-tax) o . _ 10 1068 271
Administrative expenses 3 (26.1) (227)
Profit before interest and tax . ) 255.0 1527
Finance costs 4 . (252) {26 2}
Finance income 4 54 53
Profit before tax 2352 1318
Taxation Sa (17.9) (118
Profit for the year 217.3 1200
Attributable to. o N )
Owners of the Company 2164 1186
Non-controlling interests 0.9 14
217.3 120 0
pence pence
Basic earnings per share 6 97.9 538
Diluted earnings per share b 90.4 499
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30" November 2015
2015 2014 restated
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 217.3 1200
lterns that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Pension fund actuanal losses 18 (0.1) -
Deferred tax thereon 18 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 217 2 1200
Attnibutable to: _ o
Owners of the Cormpany 216.3 N8 6
Non-controlling interests 0.9 14
Total comprehensive income for the year 217.2 1200
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Group Balance Sheet
as at 30" November 2015
30" November  30” Novernber 1= Decerber
2015 2014 restated 2013 restated
Notes £m £m £m
Non-current assets L _ _ i B
Investment properties 8 1,081.0 856 8 7446
Operating property, plant and equipment ] 9 4.2 70 66
Investments in joint ventures and associates 10 227.3 1272 1201
Trade and other recevables N 6.1 60 70
1,318.6 9970 8783
Current assets o
Inventaries o ) 12 1837 2010 1997
Trade and other recevables e n 1047 639 521
Derwvatwve financal instruments 16 08 19 -
Cash and cash equivalents 4.8 32 32
294.0 2700 2550
Current habilities
Trade and other payables _ o _ 13 (4e8) __(1486)___ (1446)
Derwvative financal instruments 16 8o @87 28
Borrowings and finance lease obligatons - 7 14 o8 O {62 5)
Current tax 5 (11.1) {73) {36)
{166.1) {164 7) (223 5)
Non-current habilities i
Trade and other payables 13 (3.1) {35) 81
Borrowings and finance lease obligations o ) 14 (506.5) {3631) (275 6)
Deferred tax 5 (15.4) (117 (85)
(525.0) {378 3) (293 2)
Net assets 9215 7240 616 6
Capital and reserves . X o o o _ o
Sharecaptal B N o 7 17 22.2 221 220
Share premium account o o L ) 102.8 1028 1028
Retained earnings L o 7383 5440 4393
Share incentive reserve B o o o o 52 48 21
Own shares . L ey (08 03
Other reserves 46.2 462 462
Equity attributable o owners of the Company %147 7181 6121
Non-controling interesis 68 59 45
Total equity 9215 7240 616 6

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board and authonsed for issue on 1 February 2016

Bill Oliver Rob Hudson
Chief Executive Group Finance Director

Company Number 349201
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

for the two years ended 30" November 2015

Equity
attributable
Share Share to owners Non-
Share premium Retamned incentive Own Other of the controlling Total
capital account  earnings reserve shares reserves Company Interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £Em £Em £m
Equity at 30" Novermber
2013 (asreported) 220 1028 4414 21 (03) 462 6142 128 6270
Prior year adjustrment - - (2 1) - - - (21) 83 (10 4)
Equity at 30" November
2013 {restated) 220 102 8 4393 21 (03) 4562 6121 45 6166
Profit for the year
attributable to shareholders
(restated) - - 1186 - - - 118 6 14 1200
Pension fund actuarial
losses {note 18) - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive Income
for the year (restated) - - 1186 - - 118 6 14 1200
Equityissue 0 - - - on - - - -
Share-based payments - - {6 2) 27 - - (35) - (35
Share transfers ) - - 14 - (19 - - - -
Dvidends paid - - on - - - 91) - 91
Equity at 30** November
2014 (restated) 221 1028 5440 = 438 (18 46.2 M1 59 724.0
Profit for the year
awnbutabletoshareholders - _ - 2164 - - - 2164 _ 09 2173
Pension fund actuanal
losses (note 18) - - on - - - On - 0N
Total comprehensive Income
for the year - - 2163 - - - 2163 09 2172
Equity 1ssue 01 - - - @n - - - -
Share-based payments - - (86) 04 - - @2 - (82
Share transfers - - {09) - 09 - - - -
Adjustment arising from
change in
non-controlling interest - - (04) - - - (0 4) - {04
Dvidends paid - - (111 - - - {111) - (11"
Equity
at 30* November 2015 22 2 102 8 739.3 5.2 (1.0) 46 2 914.7 6.8 921.5

Own shares represent the cost of 690,274 (2014 460,427) shares held by The St Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust
The open market value of the shares held at 30" November 2015 was £2,985,435 (2014 £1,763,435)




Strategic Report Corporate Governance Financial Statements Addaional Infermation 109
2-45 46-99 100-164 165-176
Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 Novemnber 2015
2015 2014 restated

Notes £m £m
Operating activities B o o o
Profit before ,nterestandtax e 2550 = 1527
Gains on disposal of investments/investment propertes B . 17 (52)
Share of profits of jom¢ ventures and associates (post-tax) ____  ___ 10 (106.8)__ Q7))
Investment property revaluation gans__ L S 8 (7139) (639)
Release of negatve goodwill to mcome 19 - kY
Depreaiation . 9 08 05
Imparment losses on inventores 2 14 O
{Increase)/cecrease In Inventories (49.0) 101
Increase In trade and other recevables L B ~ {29 0) (02)
Decrease in trade and other payables _(8.3) 03)
Pensions i ) L - oM
Share options and share awards (7 8) (34)
Tax paid 5¢ {9 4) {(50)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (38.7) 561
Investing activities ) B S i R
Proceeds from investment property disposals 844 = 314
Investment property additions (180.5)  (978§)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking ~ ., 02) (08
Property, plant and equiprent additions B 9 @6)  (10)
Dividends received from joint ventures 6.7 200
Net cash outflow from Investing activities (70.2) {48 2)
Financing activities _ } - N ~ S
Dwdends paid 7 (m1y__ @1
Interestpaid e e (18 0) (239)
Amounts advanced under finance lease arrangements L ) _ 325 226
New borrowings drawn ) - _ 1909 1150
Repayment of borrowings (83 8) (112 5)
Net cash inflow/{outflaw) from financing activities 110.5 (79)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 16 -
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 3.2 32
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 48 32
Cash . 48 32
Bank overdrafts - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4.8 32
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Accounting policies
for the year ended 30 November 2015

Basis of preparation

The Group's Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
Issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) and as adopted by the EU as they apply to the Group for the year
ended 30" November 2015, applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The Finanaial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain properaes,
derwvatve financial instruments and the defined benefit section of the Group's pension scheme

In the current year the Group has adopted

+ IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements’

« IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’

- IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

+ 1AS 27 (revised) ‘Separate Financial Statements’

- 1AS 28 (revised) ‘Investments in Assocates and joint Ventures'

- IAS 32 (amendment) Financial nstruments Presentation’ (assets and hability offsetting)
+ 1AS 36 (amendment) Impairment of Assets’

+ 1AS 39 {amendment) ‘Financal Instruments Recognition and Measurement’

» Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12 {transiuon guidance)

The Group undertook an assessment of the treatment of its subsidianes, joint ventures and interests In other entiies prior to
the adopution of IFRS 10, 11 and 12 Other than as deialled befow in prior year restatements for IFRS 10, 1t was concluded that no
changes in relation to the presentat:on of these interests was required

IFRS 10 replaces those parts of IAS 27 that relate to consolidated financial statements and SIC 12 inits entirety It outlines

the requiremenis for the preparation of consolidated financial statements, reguiring an entity to consolidate the results of all
Investees It Is considered to control Control exists where an entity 1S exposed to variable returns and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee

The Company's functiona! currency (together with that of all of its subsidianies) and the presentation currency for the Group 1s
pounds sterling and its principal IFRS accounting policies are set out below

Basis of consolidation

The Group's finanaal Statements consolidate the Financial Statements of St Modwen Properties PLC and the entiies it controls
Control compnses exposure, or rights, to varable returns, the power to direct the relevant actmities of the Investee and the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the returns Thus 15 actiseved through direct or indirect ownership of voting nights or by
contractual agreement A hst of the entities controlled 1s given in note {F) to the Company's Financial Statements

All entiues are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue 1o be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expense are eliminated on consolidation

Non-cantroling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets that are not held by the Group and are presented
separately within equity In the Group Balance Sheet
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Interests in joint arrangements ‘

Arrangements under which the Group has contractually agreed to share control with another party or parties are assessed to
determine whether they represent joint ventures or joint aperations Jomnt arrangements are classified as joint ventures where
the parties have rights to the net assets of the arrangement Should the parties have rights to assets and obligatons for habilites
relating to the arrangement they would instead be classified as joint operatans Currently, all arrangements where the Group has
contractually agreed to share control have been determined to be joint ventures

The Group recognises Iis INterests in joint ventures using the equity method of accounting Under the equity method, the interest
in the joint venture 1s carried in the Group Balance Sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of its net
assets, less distributions received and less any impairment in value of individual iInvestments The (ncome Statement reflects the
Group's share of the joint venture's results after interest and tax

Financial Statemenis of joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group Where necessary, adjustments
are made to bring the accounung pohcies used into Iine with those of the Group

The Group Statement of Comprehensive Income reflects the Group’s share of any iIncome and expense recognised by the joint
venture entites outside the Income Statement

Interests in associates

The Group's interests In Its associates, being those entities over which it has sigrsficant influence and which are nejiher
subsidianies nor joint arrangements, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as described above |

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for business combinations The consideration transferred for the
acquisiion of a subsidiary comprises the fair values of the assets transferred, the habiliies incurred to the former owners and the
equity interests issued by the Group The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration
arrangement and 1s adjusted to reflect the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary

Acquistion-related costs are expensed as iIncurred Identifiable assets acquired and habihties and contingent habilities assumed in
a business combination are, with Imited exceptions, measured initially at thewr fair values at the acquisiion date

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recogrises any non-controlling interesi in the acquiree either at farr value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionaie share of the acquiree’s net iIdentifiable assets

The excess of the consideration transferred (adjusted to reflect the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsichary)
and the amount of any non-controling interest In the acquiree over the farr value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets acquired 1S recorded as goodwill If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary and the measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the difference Is recognised direcily in the Income Statement
as a release of negative goodwill to Income

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration 1s deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange The discount rate used Is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, which is the rate that a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and condinons

Conungent consideration 1s classified either as equity or a financial hability Amounts classified as a financial lability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Income Statement

Properties

Investment properties

Investment properties, being freehold and leasehald properties held to earn rental income, for capital apprecation and/or for
undetermined future use, together with land options where the land is for an undetermined future use, are carried at fair value
following initial recognition at the present value of the consideration payable To establish fair value, investment properties are

independently valued on the basis of market value Any surplus or defict ansing is recognised in the Income Statement for
the year

Once classified as an investment property, a property remans In this category untl development with a view o sale commences,
at which point the asset is transferred to inventories at current valuation

Where an investrnent property 15 being redeveloped for continued use as an investment property, the property remains within
Investment properiy and any movement in valuaton 1s recognised in the Income Statement

Investment property disposals are recognised on completion Profits and losses ansing are recognised through the Income
Statement and the profit or loss on disposal 1s determuned as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset

Investment properties are not depreciated
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Properties (continued)
Inventories

Inventories prinaipally comprise properties held for sale, properties under construction and land under option with a view o
future sale All inventories are carned at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost comprises land, direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition When inventory mcludes a transfer from investrent properties, cost 1s recorded as the
book value at the date of transfer Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and disposal Inventory Is transferred to investment properties cnly when the asset meets the defintion of
an investment property and there has been a change in use evidenced by commencement of an operating lease

Due to the scale of the Group's developments, the Group has to allocate site-wide development costs between properties on

the site Such site-wide costs are allocated to properties based on the forecast value of each indmidual unit as a proportion of the
aggregate forecast value of the indmdual uruts an the site In making ihese assessments, there 1s a degree of inherent uncertainty
The Group has developed internal controls to assess and review carrying values and the appropriateness of esumates made

Operating property, plant and equipment

Operating property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
Such cost includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation s provided on all operating property, plant and equipment at rates calculated 1o write off the cost less estimated
residual value of each asset evenly over its expected useful fe as follows

+ leasehold operating properties — aver the shorter of the lease term and 25 years, and

+ plant, machinery and equipment - over two to five years

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Non-property assets hetd under finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the tease with a corresponding liability beng
recogmsed for the fair value of the leased asset or, If lower, the present value of the mimimum lease payments Lease payments
are apportioned between the reduction of the lease liability and finance charges in the Income Statement so as to achieve a
constant rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the hability Non-property assets held under finance leases are deprecated
over the shorter of the estmated useiut Iife of the asset and the lease term

Interests in leasehold investment properties are accounted for as finance leases with the value of guaranteed minimum rents
inherent within the carrying value of the property and the lability reflected within long-term liabilities On payrment of a guaranteed
rent, nitially the majonty of such costs 1s charged to the Income Statement as interest payable, with the balance reducing

the hability

Rentals payable under operaung leases are charged in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

The Group as lessor

Rental ncome from operating leases, adjusted for the impact of any cash incentives given to the lessee and to reflect any rent-free
Incentive periods, 1s recogrised In the Income Statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term Iniial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging a new lease are amorused on a straighi-line basis over the period of the lease

Income taxes

Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recavered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacied or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

The tax currently payable 13 based on the taxable result for the year The taxable result differs from the result as reported in the
Income Staternent because it excludes tems of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that will not be taxable or deductible

Deferred income tax 1s recognised on all temporary differences arsing between the tax bases of assets and lliabilities and
their carrying amounts in the Financial Statemments, using the rates of tax expected to apply based on legislauon enacted or
subsiantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date, with the following exceptions

« N respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, where the
uming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, and

deferred income tax assets are recogrised only 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available agamst which
the deductible temporary differences, carned forward tax credits or tax fosses can be uilised
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Deferred ncome tax assets and iabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related asset 1s realised or hability 15 settled, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet
date Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable night to set off current tax assets against
current tax habshtres and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same authonty and the Group intends to settle tts current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Income tax s charged or credited directly to equity or other comprehensive income if (t relates to items that are credited or
charged to equity or other comprehensive income Otherwise, Income tax 1s recognised in the Income Statement
Pensions

The Group operates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contribution sections The defined benefit section
I1s closed to new members and, from 1% Septernber 20089, to future accrual

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit section 1s determined using the projected unit credit method, which
attributes entitlement o henefits to the current period (to determine current service cost) and to the current and prior penods
(to determine the present value of defined benefit obligation) and 1s based on actuanal advice Past service costs are recogrised
in the Income Statement on the earlier of

the date on which the plan amendment or curtallment occurs, or
- when the Company recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits

Net interest 1s calculated by applying a discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset and i1s recognised in the Income
Statement as finance cost

Actuanal gans and losses, the effect of the asset celling (if applicable) and the return on scheme assets (excluding interest) are
recognised in full in the Statement of Comprehensive income in the year in which they occur The defined benefit pension asset
or hability in the Balance Sheet comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation, less the fair value of plan assets out
of which the obligations are ta be settled directly

When a pension asset (net surplus) anises from the above calculation, 1t 1s mited to the present value of any economic benefits
that will be available to the Company in accordance with the requirements of IFRIC14

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are recognised in the Income Statement in the year in which they become payable

Own shares

Shares In 5t Modwen Properties PLC held by the Group are classified as a deduction from equity attributable to awners of the
Company and are recognised at cost

Dividends

Dmdends dedared and approved after the Balance Sheet date are not recognised as habilities at the Balance Sheet date

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1S recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
relably measured Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received {including the fair value of any residential
properties recenved in part-exchange), excluding discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty Where required, revenue
15 allocated between components in a multi-element transaction (e g where there 1s simultaneously a sale of land and a
construction contract with the purchaser of the land) based on therr respective fair values of the companents

The following criteria rust also be met befare revenue 1s recognised

Sale of property
Revenue ansing from the sale of property 1s recognised on legal completion of the sale

Construction contracts

Revenue arising from construction coniracts 1s recogrised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy on construction
contracis (see below) An appropriate proportion of revenue from construction contracts Is recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of contract actvity

Rentat income
Rental ncome ansing from investment properties 1s accounied for on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Management and performance fees

Where the Group is solely providing development management services {without being responsible for the performance of the
underlying construction), management fees recevable are recognised over time as the service 1s performed in the penod to which
they relate Performance fees are recogmised when the Group has substantially fulfiled its obhgations in respect of the transactian
and hence the amount of revenue can be measured rehably and it 1s probable that econormic benefits will flow to the Group
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Revenue recognition (continued)
Interest ncome o
Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,

which 1s the rate that exactly discounts esttmated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount

Dimdend income
Dwvdend income from joint ventures 1s recognised when the shareholders rights to receve payment have been established

Construction contracts

Where the outcorne of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract acivity at the Balance Sheet date The extent to which the contract 1s complete 1s determmned
by the total costs incurred to date as a perceniage of the total anucipated costs of the entire contract Vanations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that it 1s probable that they will result In revenue

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue 1s recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred where it 1s probable they will be recoverable Contract costs are recagnised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred

When it 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 1S recognised as an
expense iImmediately

Government grants

Government grants relating to property are treated as deferred income and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the assets concerned

Share-based payments

The Group's equity-settled share-based payments are measured at far value at the date of grant using an appropriate option
pricing model The farr value at the date of grant {or at date of reclassification from cash settled to equity settled) 1s expensed
on a straighi-ine basis over the vesting penod based on the Group's esumate of shares that will eventually vest

Fair value hierarchy

Assets and liabiliuies that are measured subsequent to intial recognition at fair value, are required to be grouped into Levels 1to 3
based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

- Level 1 farr value measurements are those derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derved from inputs other than quoted prices mcluded within Levet 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly {1 e as prices) or (ndirectly {1 e derived from prices}, and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those denived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset that are not based
on cbservable market data {unobservable inputs )

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabifities are recognised on the Group's Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity If the Group neiiher transfers nor retains substanually all the nsks and rewards of ownership and continues
1o control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an asscciated hability for any amounts it
may have to pay If the Group retains substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financiat asset, the Group
continues io recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds recewved The Group
derecognises financial habilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire

Trade and other recewvables

Trade recenvables are recognised and carrted at the lower of their original invoiced value or recoverable amount Provision 1s made
when there is ewdence that the Group will not be able to recover balances in full Balances are written off when the probablity of
recovery Is assessed as being remote

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnises cash balances and short-term deposits with banks with initial maturity less than
three months

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recorded at amortised cost Where payment is on deferred terms the hability 1s initially recorded by
discouning the nominal amount payable o net present value The discount to norminal value 1s amorised over the penod of the
deferred arrangement and charged 1o finance costs
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Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Allloans and borrowings are inmally recognused at far vatue less directly attnbutable transacuion costs After inibial recognition, loans
and borrowings are measured at amortised cost

Gains and losses arising on the repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of labiliuies are recognised in finance income
or finance expense, as appropnate

The effective interest rate method is used to charge interest to the Income Statement

Derwvative financial mstruments and hedging

The Group uses dervative financial instruments such as Interest rate swaps to hedge s risks associated with Interest rate
fluctuations Such instruments are inibially recogrused at fair value on the date onwhich a contract s entered into and are
subseguently re-measured at fair value The Group has determined that the derivative financial instruments in use do not qualify
for hedge accounung and, consequently, any gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of dervatives are taken to the
Income Statement

Equity instruments
An equity instrument Is any coniract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all its habilities
Equity Instruments 1ssued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds receved less direct 1Issue costs

Convertible bonds

Conwvertibte bonds are assessed on Issue as to whether they shoutd be classified as a financial lability, as equity or as a compound
financial nstrument with both debt and equity components This assessment 1s based on the terms of the bond and in
accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation The Group's convertible bonds have been designated as at fair value
through profit and loss

Use of estimates and judgements

To be able to prepare Financial Statements according to generally accepted accounting principles, management must make
estimates and assumptions that affect the asset and hatility items and revenue and expense amounts recorded in the Financial
Statements These estimates are based on the Group’s systems of internal control, historical expenence and the advice of external
experts (Including qualified professional valuers and actuaries) together with various other assumptions that management and the
Board believe are reasonable under the aircumstances The results of these considerations form the basis for making judgements
about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from other sources

The areas requiring the use of estimates and critical judgements that may significantly impact the Group's earnings and financial
position are

Going concern

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis This s discussed in the Strategic Report and as confirmed
in the Directors’ Report i 1s considered appropnate to prepare the Financal Statements for the year ended 30 November 2015
on a going concern basis

Valuation of investment properties

Management has used the valuation performed by 1ts independent valuers as the fair value of s Investment propertes

The valuation 1s performed according to RICS rules, using appropriate levels of professional judgement for the prevailing market
conditions Professtonal judgement is appled in determining such things as an appropnate yield for a given property and
estimated rental values

Net reatisable value of inventories

The Group has ongoing procedures for assessing the carrying value of inventaries and identifying where this is in excess of

net realisable value Management’s assessment of any resulting provision requirernent is, where applicable, supported by
independent information supphed by the external valuers The estimates and judgements for both revenue and costs were based
oninformation available at, and periaining to, 30" November 2015 Any subsequent adverse changes in market conditions may
result in additional provisions being required

Estimation of remediation and other costs to complete for both development and investment properties

In making an assessment of these costs there 1s mherent uncertamty and the Group has developed systems of internal control
1o assess and review carrying values and the appropriateness of estimates made Any changes to these estmates, some of
which involve costs which will be settled only gradually over a number of years and the application of discounting, may impact the
carrying values of nvesirment properties and/or inventories andfor the quantum of habilities recognised

Complex transactions

Certain property transactions entered into by the Group involve an element of complexity and the need to exercise judgement

to determine the most appropriate accouning policy Such transactions include the accounting for the acquisition of land at New
Covent Garden Market together with the associated oblhigation to procure the new market for the Covent Garden Market Authority
and the accounting for the first iwo phases of student accommodation at the Bay Campus developmerit for Swansea University
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Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

Calculation of the net present value of pension scheme habilites

In calculating this hability it 15 necessary for actuanal assumptions to be made, including discount and mortality rates and the long-
term rate of return upon scheme assets The Group engages a qualified aciuary to assist with determining the assumpiions to be
made and evaluating these habiliues

Taxation

As a property group, tax and 1ts treatment 1s often an integral part of transactions The outcome of tax treatments are recognised
by the Group to the extent the outcome Is reasonably certain Where tax treatments have been challenged by HMRC, or
management believe that there 15 a risk of such challenge, provision 15 made for the best estimate of potential exposure based

on the information available at the Balance Sheet date Management's assessmeni of the level of provision required 1s, where
applicable, supported by the Group's tax advisors f HMRC were {0 be successful in challenging tax treatments to a greater extent
than has been provided at the Balance Sheet date then additional provisions may be required

Standards and Interpretations not yet effective

At the date of approval of these Financial Statements, the following standards, amendments and Interpretations which have not
been adopted in these Financial Statements were 1n 1ssue but not yet effecuve {and In some cases had not yet been adopted by
the EU)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 - 2012 cyde
+ Annuat Improvements to IFRSs 2011 - 201 3 gycle
+ 1AS 16 (amended) ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’
+ I1AS 19 (amended) Employee Benefits’
IAS 27 {amended) ‘Separate Financial Staterments’
IAS 38 {amended) Intangible Assets’
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
+ IFRS 10 (amended) ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’
(FRS 11 {amended) joint Arrangements’
[FRS 14 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’
- Annual Improvements o IFRSs 2012 - 2014 cyde
+ IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
IFRS 16 'Leases’

The directors are stll assessing the impaci that the adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations will have
on the Financial Statements of the Group in future periods Adoption of the majority of these standards, amendments and
Interpretations are expected to have little or no 1mpact an the reported results of the Group, although amended disclosures
may be required

IFRS S will impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments and 1s effective for the Groug's year ending
31= March 2019 The Group has not yet completed its evaluation of the effect of the adoption

IFRS 15 may have animpact on revenue recogriton and related disclosures Beyond the information above, it 1S not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until a detalled review has been compleied

IFRS 16 - the standard provides a single lessee accounting madel, requinng lessees to recognise asseis and liabilites for all leases
unless the lease term 15 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value Lessors conunue to classify leases as operating
or finance, with IFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting substanually unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17 The Group has not
yet completed its evaluation of the effect of the adoption

Prior year restatements

VSM Estates (Holdings) Ltd

V5M Estates {Holdings) Ltd 15 50% owned by St Modwen Properues PLC, however under the funding agreement the Group
obtains the majority of the benefits of the entity and also retains the majonity of the residual nsks In pror years, this entity was
consohdated in hne with SIC 12 ‘Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities’ However the conditions for consolidation set out in
IFRS 10 do not exist and accordingly, the entity 1s now reguired to be accounted for using the equity method

Under the eguity method, the interest 1s carried in the Balance Sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of s net assets, less distnbunions received and less any impairment 1n value of ndmdual Investments The income Statement
reflects the Group's share of the results after interest and tax
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The adopuon of IFRS 10 requires the restatement of the comparative finanaal information for the two years ended

30" November 2014

IFRS 11 replaced IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures' and SIC 13 Jointly Conirolled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions by
Venturers' It defines two types of joint arrangement (joint eperations and joint ventures) and specifies the accounting for each
arrangement Joint operations must be accounted for by Including the owner's share of the assets, llabilties, Income and expenses
on a ine by ine basis joint ventures are equity accounted in accordance with |AS 28 (revised)

VSM Estates (Holdings) Ltd 1s 50% owned by St Modwen Properues PLC and 15 accounted for as a joint venture under 1IFRS 11

Swansea University

During the year, further consideration was given to the revenue streams associated with the first two phases of student
accormmodation at the Bay Campus development for Swansea University Due to the fixed (subject only to annual RPI adjustment)
nature of the Group’s annual rental payments to M&G, the Group retains exposure (both positive and negative) to all vanability

In net rentals generated from the properties, it has been concluded that the transaction 1S more appropriately accounted for as
afinance lease arrangement, rather than as the sale of 50% of the assets Consequently, we have restated our 2014 results to

reflect recognition by the Group of the following elements

* the whole (rather than 50%) of the property interest in the student accommodation,

+ 1o account for the amounts due to M&G as a finance lease habiliy;

to eliminate the construction contract accounting recognised in respect of the proportion of the developrment work performed

on these sites that was funded by M&G, and
+ to revalue the site during the course of construction

The :mpact on previously reported financial infarmation for the year ended 30" November 2014 and the opening Balance Sheet

as at 1% December 201315 as follows

Income statement

Year ended

30™ November

2014

£m
Decrease in development profits (54)
Decrease in gains on disposals of investrments/investment properties _ _ 40
Decrease in invesiment property revaluation gains (119
Increase/{decrease) In profits of joint ventures and associates (post tax) B i B _ 135
Decrease In administrative expenses 02
Decrease in profit before interest and tax _ S B (76)
Decrease In finance costs 17
Decrease in profit before tax_ _ _ N o o __ 69
Decrease in iax charge 38
Decrease in profit for the year (21)
Equity attnbutable to owners of the Company - - _ _24
Non-controlling interests {45)
21)

Year ended

30" November

2014

£m

Lease accounting adjustmenis (Swansea) - 24
IFRS 10 adjustments (VSM Estates) 45)
21

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 30" Novemnber 2014 each increased by 1 1pp as a result of the prior year

restatements above
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Prior year restatements {continued)

Assets, lrabiiities and equity

As at 30" Novemnber 2014 As at 1% Decernber 2013
Lease Lease
Previously IFRS10  accounting Total  Prewiously IFRS10  accounung Total
reported  adjustments  adjustments restated reported adjustments adjustments restated
fm fm £Em £m fm £m £fm £m
Invesiment properiies 9033 69 2) 227 856 8 8133 {68 7} - 744 6
Operaung property, plant
and eguipment 70 - - 70 66 - - 66
Investments in joint veritures
and associates 889 383 - 1272 953 248 - 1201
Non-current trade and other recevables 145 {85) - 60 176 (106) - 70
Inventories 2000 - - 2010 2059 62) - 1997
Current trade and other recevables 802 (163 - 639 597 (76)_ - 521
Dervative financial nstruments 19 o - 18 - - - =
Cash and cash equivalents 65 {33 - 32 74 42 - 32
Current trade and other payables (637 182 (31 (1488) (1574) 149 (21 (446)
Derwative financial instrumenis 87 - - {87 (12 8) - - (128)
Current borrowings and finance
lease obligations - - 01 ©Nn (829 - - (625)
Taxpayables 93) 26 06 (73 (B34 02 - 39
Non-current trade and other payables (28 5) 211 39 35) (46 2) 371 - 91)
Non-current borrowings and finance
lease obligations (340 6) - (225) (3631) (2856) 100 - (2756)
Deferred 1ax (160) 43 - (M7 (109) 24 - (85)
Total effect on net assets 7365 (12 8) 03 7240 6270 (8 3) (21 616 6
Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 7178 - 03 7181 614 2 - (21 6121
Non-controlling interests 187 (12 8) - 59 12 8 {83) - 45
Total effect on equity 7365 (12 8) 03 7240 0270 (8 3) (21) 616 6

The impact on cash flows for the two years ended 30" November 2013 and 30" November 2014 from these adjustments is to

change the movement on the cash and cash equivalents for those years as follows

Previously IFRS 10 Total

reported adjustments restated

£m £m £m

30" November 2013 (15 @a2a (57)
30" November 2014 (09 09 -

The impact on other, previously reported non-statutory financial information 1s shown in note 2
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements

for the year ended 30" Novernber 2015

1. Segmental information

IFRS 8 - Operating Segments, requires the identification of the Group’s operating segments, defined as being discrete

components of the Group's operations whose resuits are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (being the
Chief Executive) to allocate resources to those segments and to assess their performance The Group dvides its business into the

following segments

+ residential development, being housebuilding actwity through St Modwen Homes and the Persimmon joint venture, and

- the batance of the Group’s portfolio of properties which the Group manages internally, and reports as a single business segment

2015 2014 restated

Residential Residential
Portfolio  development Total Portfoka development Total
Revenue £m £m £m £m £m £m
Rental Income 412 - 4.2 392 - 362
Development 98.4 140.5 2389 1042 1167 2209
Other Income 7.4 - 7.4 64 - 64
Total revenue 147.0 140.5 287.5 149 8 1167 266 5

All revenues in the table above are derved from continuing operatons exclusively in the UK

The Group's total revenue for 2015 was £300 8m (2014 £276 5m)and in addition to the amounts above included service charge

income of £9 4m (2014 £7 8m), for which there was an equivalent expense and interest income of £3 9m (2014 £2 2m)

2015 2014 restated
Residential Residential

Portfolioc  development Total Portfolio developmenit Total
Profit before tax £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net rental Income i 32.8 - 32.8 N2 - 312
Development profits B 226 0 299 517 179 244 423
Gains on disposal of investments/
investment properties L 17 - 17 52 - 52
Investment property revaiuation gains 73.9 - 73.9 639 - 639
Negative goodwill attributable to
property assets’” - - - 26 - 26
Other net income 4.2 - 42 36 - 36
Profits of joint ventures and associates® 1256 - 1256 288 - 288
Administrative expenses - {209) {5.2) {26.1) (177} (50} {227}
Finance costs® (15.1) (20) {17.1) {15 5) (24) {179}
Finance incorne!® 39 - 3.9 22 - 22
Attributable profit 238.7 219 260.6 1222 170 1392
Negative goodwill attributable to taxt" - ) o 05
Other losses of jomt ventures and
associates? o (18.8) . } A
Other finance costs® _ (8.1) (83
Other finance income®® 1.5 N
Profit before tax 235.2 1318

(1) Negatve goodwill has been split between amaounts refating to property revaluations ansing as a result of farr value adusiments of £ml (2014 £2 6m) and deferred tax thereon of £0l

(2014 £0 5m)

(2) Stated before mark-to-market of derwvatrves amornsation of loan arrangement fees other non-cash tems and tax of £18 8m (2014 £1 7m) These amounis are reclassified Lo other profits of
foing ventures and associates

{3) Stated before mark to-market of dervauves, amorusaton of loan arrangement fees and other non-cash tems of £8 1m (2014 £8 3m) These amounts are reclassified 1o other finance costs
(4) Stated before mark to-market of derwatves and other non cash tems of £1 5m {2014 £3 1m) These tems are reclassified to other finance income
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1. Segmental information (continued)

Other net income of £4 2m (2014 £3 6m) comprises revenue of £7 4m (2014 £6 4m)less associated costs of £3 Zm
(2014 £28m)

Cost of sales in respect of rental income comprise direct operating expenses {including repairs and maintenance) related to the
Investment property portfolio and total £8 4m (2014 £8 Om), of which £0 6m (2014 £0 3m) s in respect of properties that did not
generate any rental Income

During the year the following amounts were recognised (as part of development revenue and cost of sales) in respect of
construction coniracts

2015 2014 restated

£m £m
Revenue o o o 87.7 876
Cost of sales (75.2) (62 0)
Gross profit 12.5 256

Amounts recoverable on contracts as disclosed in note 11 comprise £23 5m (2014 £5 3m) of contract revenue recogrised and
£7 8m (2014 £0 7m) of retentions Contracts in progress at 30" November 2015 include the aggregate amount of costs incurred
of £134 3m (2014 £127 9m), recognised profits less recogrused losses to date of £355m (2014 £44 2m) and advances receved
of £27 4m (2014 £853m)

There were no amounts due to customers (2014 £nil) ncluded in trade and other payables in respect of contracts in progress at
{he Balance Sheet date

2015 204 restated
Residential Residential

Portfolio  development Total Portfolio deveiopment Total
Net assets £m £m £m £m fm £m
Investment property ) 1,0810 - 1,081.0 868 0 - 8568
Inventories 842 995 183.7 900 1110 2010
Investments In jont ventures
and associates 227.3 - 227.3 1272 - 1272
Attributable assets 1,392.5 99 5 1,492 0 1,074 0 1110 1,185 0
Operating property plant
and equipment 4.2 70
Trade and other recevables o o 110.8 693
Cash and cash equivalents o _ . 48 ) 32
Trade and other payables (ny N {1521)
Dervatwve financeal mstruments (72) _ . 68
Borrowings and finance lease obligauons (506.9) B (3632
Taxpayables i (111 o 73
Deferred tax (15 4) (11 7)

Net assets 921.5 7240




Strategic Report
2-45 46-99

Corporate Governance

Financial Statements
100-164

Additional tnformation

165-176

121

2. Non-statutory information
a Trading profit and profit before all tax

The non-statutory measures of trading profit and profit before all tax, which include the Group’s share of joint ventures and

associates, have been calculated as set out below

2015 24 restated
Joint ventures Joint ventures
@Group and associates Total Group and assogiates Total
£m £Em £m Lm Em fm
Net rental iIncome . 328 59 38.7 3t2 59 37
Development profit® __~__ _ _ 531 - 5341 424 D R22 |
Gains on disposal of Investments/
tnvestment properues N 17 26 14.3 52 37 89
Other income 42 - 4.2 36 -~ 36 |
Administrative expenses L {26.1) (0.4) (26.5) (227) (05) (232)
Finance costs? {171) _ (8.3) {25.4) (179) (7 4) (25 3}
Finance income® 3.9 1.0 4.9 22 - 22
Trading profit 62.5 0.8 63.3 440 17 457
Investment property revaluaton gainst 72.5 129 2 201.7 664 27 935
Other net finance costs® (80 06)  (8.7) {83) 0 {8 4)
Other finance iIncome® 1.5 0.6 21 31 15 46
Profit before all tax 128 4 130.0 258.4 105 2 302 1354
Taxationt (17.9) {23.2) {411) (12 3) (30 (15 4)
Profit for the year 110.5 106.8 217.3 929 271 1200

(1} Stated before the deducuan of net realisable value provisions of Group £14m {2014 £0 1m), jont ventures and associates £l (2014 £nd) These items are reclassified to investment

property revaluations toegether with negatve goodwill anising on acquisitions as a result of fair value adjustments to property assets of £nil (2014 £2 6m)

{2} Stated befare mark to-market of derivatives amarusation loan arrangement fees and other nen-cash items of Group £8 1m (2014 £83m) Joint ventures and assaciates £0 6m

(2014 £0 1m) These tems are reclassified to other finance costs

(3) Stated befare mark te-market of dervatives and other non-cashtems of Group£15m {2012 £3 1m} Joint ventures and assocates £0 6m {2012 £1 5m) Thase tems are reclassified to

other finance income

(4) Stated after incluston of negatve goodwill ansing as a resuk of deferred tax on property revaluatons included as part of fair vatue adjustments of £rul (2014 £05m)

b Property valuations

Property valuations, including, the Group’s share of joint ventures and associates, have been calculated as set out below

2015 2014 restated

Joint ventures Jontventures.
Group and associates Total Group  and associates Total
£m £m £Em E£m £m £m
Property revaluation gains i 73.9 129.2 2031 639 271 910
Release of negative goodwill to Income - - - 26 - 26
Net realisable value provisions (1.4) - (1.4) on - ohH
Property valuation gains 72.5 129.2 201.7 66 4 271 935
Added value } 377 128.3 166.0 225 _ 134 359
Market movements 348 09 357 439 137 576
Property valuation gains 725 129.2 2017 664 271 935

The split of property valuauon gains between added value and market movements is based on an analysis of total property

valuation movements provided by the Group's external valuers
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2. Non-statutory information (continued)
¢ Property portfolio

The property portfolio, including the Group's share of joint ventures and assaciates, is derved from the Balance Sheet as

detailed below

2015 214 restated
jnlm: ventures lontventures
Group and associates Total Group  and associates Total
£m £m Em £m Em £m
Investment properties 1,081.0 416 8 1,497.8 9033 1480 10313
Less assets held under finance leases
not subject to revaluayon L (39 (12 (5.1) _ B9 _ __0n 61
Add back lease incentives (recorded
IN recevables) 1.9 14 133 55 11 66
Inventories 1837 1.9 1856 2010 54 206 4
Less non-property assets
WwIthin Inventory - - - (07) - 07)
Property portfcho as previously reported 1.272.7 4189 1.691.6 11052 153 3 1,258 5
Lease accounung additional
INVEStMent properties - - - 227 - 227
IFRS 10 investment
properties adjustments - - - (69 2) 520 (172)
Property portfolio as restated 1,272.7 418.9 1,691.6 1,058 7 2053 1,264 0

As at 30 November 2015 the Group had assets of £633 2m (2014 £461 7m)included within the Group property portfolio
{(excluding joint ventures and associates) which were wholly owned, unencumbered and able to be pledged as secunty for Group

debt facilities

The Group's property portfolio, Including its share of joint ventures and associates, can be split by category as detailed below

2015 2014 restated
Em £m

Industrial - 2756 2481
Retail o . o ) - i 3375 2200
Residental o o _ _ 1063 330
Offices 48.1 610
Income producing 767 5 5621
Residential land — New Covent Garden Market e 2200 26
Residential land - other 552.3 5534
Total residential land 772 3 5560
Commercial land 151 8 1459
Property portfolio 16916 1,264 0
d Movement in net debt
Movement in net debt Is set out below

2015 2014 restated

£Em £m

Change n cash and cash equivalent 16 -
Borrowings drawn (19500 (1150}
Repayment of borrowings 83.8 1125
Fair value movements on convertible bonds 41 -
Increase in net borrowings o (105.5) . 25)
Farvalue movements on convertiblebonds _ - (4.1} -
Finance leases (32.5} {22 6)
Increase in net debt (142 1) (251)
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e Trading cash flow
Trading cash flows are derved from the Group Cash How Staiement as set out below
2015
Operating Investing Financing
activities activities activities Total
£m £m £m £m
Net rent and other income 30 - - 370
Property disposals i 180.5 84.4 - 2649
Preperty acquisitions - (57.2) - {57 2)
Capttal expenditure i (208 2) (104.1) - (312 3)
Working capital and other movements (5.5) - - (5.5)
Overheads and interest o o (33.1) - (18 0) (51.9)
Taxation (9.4) - - (9.4)
Trading cash flow (38.7) {(76.9) {18.0) (133.6)
Net borrowings o L - - 1071 1071
Finance leases - - 325 325
Net dwvidends - 6.7 {111) (4.4)
Movement In cash and cash equivalents {38.7) (70.2) 110.5 1.6
2014 restated
Operating Investing Financing
actviies actmvnes actmties Total
£m £m £m £m
Netrentand otherincome _ 256 - - 256
Property disposals i 2454 N4 - 2768
Property acquisitions S 1. SR «.24°) E (535)
Caprtal expenditure _ L {181 0) = - (2327
Working capital and other movements 26 - - 26
Qverheads and interest ) (259 - (239) (498)
Taxation (50) - - (50)
Trading cash flow 561 (68 2) {23 9) (36 )
Net borrowings e o - - b4 64
Finance leases - - 187 187
Net dvidends - 200 (91) 109
Movement In cash and cash equvalents 561 (48 2) {79 -
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2. Non-statutory information (continued)
f Net assets per share
Net assets per share are calculated as set out below

2015 2014 restated

£m £m
Total equity _ _ 921.5 7240
Less Non-controling interests (6.8) (59)
Equtiy aunbutable to owners of the Company L 9147 7181
Adjustments of nventories to far value 11.9 115
Diluted EPRA triple net assets 9266 7296
Deferred tax on capital allowances and revaluations _ i 500 192
Mark-to-market of dervative financial instruments 10.9 75
Diluted EPRA net assets 987.5 756 3

Shares inissue™ (number)

] 22‘i,186,714 220,816,561

Equity attributable to awners of the Company, net assets per share (pence) 413.5p 3251p
Percentage increase 27%
Diluted EPRA triple net assets per share (pence) o o MN8.9p 3303p
Percentage increase 27%
Diluted EPRA net assets per share (pence) 446.4p 3423p
Percentage increase 30%

(1) Shares Inissue exclude 690 274 shares held by The 5t Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust (2014 460 427)

g Net borrowing and net debt

2015 2014 restated

£m £m
Cash and cash equwalents o _ 4.8 32
Borrowings due within one year o ) o B - -
Borrowings due after more than one year {451.8) (340 6)
Less Farr value movemenits on convertible bonds 4.1 -
Net borrowings i ) i (442.9) (3374)
Fair value movements on converiible bonds (41 -
Finance lease habiliies due within one year (0.4) @
Finance lease liabilities due after more than one year (54.7) (22 5)
Net debt (502.1) {3600}

h Geanng and loan-to-value

The Group's capacity to borrow s pnmanty inked to the quantum of the property portfolio excluding assets held under
finance leases Accordingly both gearing and loan-to value are calculated using the comparable measure of net borrowings

This represents bank loans and outstanding bond habilities at amorused cost
The table overleaf shows the calculation of
geanng, being the rauo of nei debt to toial equity,

adjusied gearing, bemng the ratio of net borrowings to total equity; and

loan-to-value being the ratio of net borrowings to the property portfolio (representing ameounts that could be used as security

for that debt)
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2015
Joint ventures
Group and assoclates Total
£m £m £m
Property porifolio (note 2¢) 12727 4189 1,691.6
Less valued assets held under finance leases (53.1) - (53.1)
Net property portfolio 1,2196 1189 1,638.5
Total equity 921.5 N/A 921.5
Net debt ~ ) o 502.1 47.6 549.7
Net borrowings (note 2g) ) 442.9 46 4 489.3
Gearing 54% 60%
Adjusted gearing_ _ ~ 48% 53%
Loan-to-value 36% 30%
2N4restated
Jointventures
Group and associates Total
£m £m £m
Property portfolio (note 2¢) - as previously reported 1,105 2 1533 1,2585
IFRS 10 adjustments ~ (69 2) 520 172)
Lease accounting adjustments 227 - 227
Property portfolio as restated 1,058 7 2053 12640
Less valued assets held under finance leases (200) - {20 0)
Net property portfolio as restated 10387 2053 1,2440
Total equity as previously reported o __ ) 7365 - 7365
IFRS 10 adjustments . B o (128 - ~{128)
Lease accounting adjustments 03 - 03
Total equity as restated 7240 - 7240
Net debt as previously reporied™ o 3341 453 3794
IFRS 10 adjustments 33 (25) 08
Finance lease obligatons (including accounting adjustments) 226 12 238
Net debi as restated 3600 440 4040
Net borrowings as previously reparted B 3341 453 3794
IFRS 10 adjustments 33 (25) 08
Net borrowings as restated 3374 428 3802
Geanng as previously reporied 45% 52%
Geanng as restated 50% 56%
Adjusted gearing as previously reported 45% 52%
Adjusted gearing as restated 47% 53%
Loar-to-value as previously reported . L 3% L 30%
Loan-io-value as restated 32% 3%

{1) Excludes £3 9m of finance leases that are induded in £22 6m finance lease kabdties

Bank covenant compliance 1s based on the ratic of gearing, being net debt to equity of 54% (2014 restated 50%) against a

covenant of 175%
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3. Other Income Statement disclosures
a Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses have been arrived at after charging

2015 2014 restated
£m £m
Depreciatton 0.8 05
QOperating lease costs 15 10
b Auditor's remuneration
The analysis of auditor's remuneration (s as follows
2015 2014
Audit and Auditand
audit-related Other audit-related Other
services services Total Senaces Services Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fees payable for the audit of the
Company's Annual Financial Statements 125 - 125 o123 - 123
The audit of subsidiary cormpanies and
Jjoint ventures pursuant to legislation 162 - 162 157 - 157
Total audit fees 287 - 287 280 - 280
Audit-related assurance services ) 60 - 60 55 - 55
Other assurance services 3 - 3 20 - 20
Tax complance services - 16 16 - 67 67
Tax advisory services - 20 20 - 80 80
Property consuling i - 69 69 - 202 202
Other - 2 2 - - -
Total non-audit fees 63 107 170 75 349 424
Total fees 350 107 457 355 349 704

The Group continues to monitor the provision of audit and other services by the auditor and fees charged for other services In
2015 were 31% (2014 98%) of audit and audit-related fees The Group's policy permits the auditor to provide non-audit services
where alternative providers do not exist or where it 1s cost effective or In the Group’s interest for the external auditor to provide

such services

The above amounts include all amounts charged in respect of joint venture undertakings Further informaton is included inthe

Audit Committee Report

¢ Employees

The monthly average number of full-ime employees (including executive directors) employed by the Group dunng the year was

as follows

2015 2014
Number Number
Property and admuistration ~ L o 257 220
Leisure and ather actvities 52 67
Total employees 309 287

The total payroll costs of these employees were
2015 2014
£m £m
Wages and salaries B . o I 186 139
Social secunity Costs i . o - o i 24 27
Pension costs 0.8 08
Total payroll costs 218 174
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d Share-based payments

The Group has a Save As You Earn share option scheme open to all employees Employees must ordinarily remam in service for
a period of three or five years from the date of grant before exercising their options The option peried ends six months following
the end of the vesting period

The Group also operates a discretionary Executive Share Opuion Scheme (ESOS) Options are granted at a fixed exercise price
equal to the market price at the date of grant With the exception of awards made to the executive directors in conjunction with
the PSP awards granted in 2012, there are no performance conditions attached 1o ESOS awards Employees must ordinarily
remain in service for a period of three years from the date of grant before exercising their ESOS awards The option pericd ends
on the 10" anniversary of the date of grant

Details of the Group's Performance Share Plan (PSP) are gven in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

The following table illustrates the movements in share options during the year As the PSP includes the grant of options at £l
exercise price the weighted average prices below are calculated including and excluding the options under this plan

2015 2014
Weighted average price Weighted average price
Number of Alloptions  Excluding PSP Number of Alloptions Excluding PSP
options [3 £ options £ £

Outstanding at stari of year 9117437 1.87 231 10371497 158 206
Granted . 1,288,365 3.46 467 1386436 275 364
Forfetted (398,241) 3.23 323 (47,08) (226) (2 26)
Exercised (3,917,473) 1.57 2.03  (2,593388) 116 192
Qutstanding at end of year 6,090,088 2.33 2.89 9117437 187 23
Exercisable at year end 1,887,986 1.75 1.75 2,946,495 200 200

Share opuions are priced using a Black-Scholes valuaiion model The fair values calculated and the assumptions used are
as follows

Charge
to Incormne Risk-free Expected Dividend Share
Statement  interestrate volatility yield price
£m % k] % £
30" November 2015 2.0 0.4-1.1 37.6-56.9 11 123-399
30" November 2014 24 04-11 376-569 11 123-399

{1) Based on the earher of the %0 day average to 30" November 2011 o, for optians granted after thes date the closing share price on the date of grant

The farr value of the share incenive reserve In respect of share options outstanding at the year end was £5 2m (2014 £4 8m) and
included £1 8m (2014 £0 8m) in respect of options that had vested at the year end

In arrmng at fair value it has been assumed that, when vested, shares options are exercised in accordance with histoncal trends
Expected volatility was determined by reference to the histoncal volatility of the Group's share price over a period consistent with
the expected life of the options

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise was £4 63 (2014 £3 82) The executive share options outstanding at
the year end had a range of exerise prices between £1 75 and £4 74 (2014 £1 75 and £3 75) with PSP options exercisable at
between £niland £4 71 (2014 £nil and £1 52) Ouistanding options had a weighted average maximum remaining contractual kfe
of nine years (2014 rune years)
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4. Finance costs and finance income
2015 2014 restated

£m £m
Interest payable on borrowings 165 179
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees . _ o o 11 26
Write off of convertible bond issue costs - 24
Amortisation of discount on deferred payment arrangements o ) 13 19
Head rents treated as finance leases 06 02
Movement in farr value of convertible bond ) S 41 -
Movement in far vaive of finanaalnstrumerts 08_ -
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 10 12
Total finance costs 25.2 262

All finance costs, other than in respect of the convertible bond which 1s carried at fair value, derive from financial labilities
measured at amorused cost Included within amortsation of loan arrangement fees 1s £nil (2014 £1 4m) in relation to the early
termination of bank faciiies

2015 2014 restated

£m £m
Interest recevable 39 22
Movement in fair value of convertible bond ) S - 09
Movement in fair value of derivative financial Instruments _ 04 10
Interest Income on pension scheme assets 1.1 12
Total finance iIncome 5.4 53

The finance Income on interest rate dervatives derives from financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss

5. Taxation
a Taxon loss on ordinary activities

2015 2014 restated

£m Em
Tax charge/(credit) in the Income Statement L o o L
Corporation tax - o e .
Currentyeartax s 139 86
Adjustments in respect of previous years (0.8) (13)
13.1 73
Deferred tax _
Temporary differences 04 10
Impact of current year revaluations and indexation 4.3 59
Netuse of tax losses . - 13
Change in raie for provision of deferred tax {0.1) -
Adjustments inrespect of previous years 0.2 (37)
48 45
Total tax charge in the Income Statement 17.9 118

Tax refating to kems in the Statement of Comprehensive income
Deferred tax o
Actuanial losses on pension schemes - -
Tax credit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income - -
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b Reconcilation of effective tax rate
2015 2014 resated

£m £m
Profit before tax 2352 1318
Less joint ventures and associates (106 8) (271}
Pre-tax profit attnibutable to the Group 128.4 1047
Corporation tax at 20 3% (2014 21 7%) 7 i _ 261 226
Effect of non-deducuble expenses 03 08
Impact of current year revaluations and indexation _ . ] {6 3) i (58)
Difference between chargeable gains and accounting profit o 02 (08
Change in rate used for provision of deferred tax (0.1) -
Losses - Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets {17) -
Current year charge 18.5 16 8
Adustments in respect of previous years (0.6) (50)
Tax charge for the year 17.9 118
Effective rate of tax 14.0% 113%

The post tax results of joint ventures and associates are stated after a tax charge of £23 2m (2014 £3 1m charge) The effective
tax rate for the Group including joint ventures and associates Is a charge of 15 9% (2014 11 4%)

The Finance (No 2) ACt 2015 included provisions which reduced the main rate of corporation tax to 19% from 12 April 2017 and
18% from 1% Aprik 2020 Current tax has therefore been provided 20 33% and deferred tax at rates from 18% to 20%

¢ Balance Sheet

2015 2014 restated

Corporation Deferred Corporation Deferred

tax tax tax tax

£m £m £m £m
Balance at start of the year o 7.3 "7 _ 36 __ 85
Charge to the Income Statement i L ] - 131 48 73 45
Acquired with subsichary - - - 05
Net payment ) ) {9.4) - 50 -
Other 01 (1.1) 14 {18)
Balance at end of the year 1.1 15.4 73 17

An analysis of the deferred tax provided by the Group 1s given below
2015 2014 restated

Asset Liability Net Asset Liabrity Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Property revaluations _ - 16.4 164 - 100 100
Capial allowances ~ - 3.9 39 - .39 _ __ 39
Appropnations to trading stock - 0.5 0.5 - 05 05
Unutiised tax iosses (1.7) - 17) - - -
Other temporary differences (3.7) - 3.7) (27} - 27N
Total deferred tax {5.4) 20.8 154 27) 14 4 1n7

At the Balance Sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses in relation to 2015 and prior years of £2 9m (2014 £1 3m), of which
£17m (2014 E£nil) has been recognised as a deferred tax asset A deferred tax asset of £1 2m (2014 £1 3m)has not been
recognised in respect of current and prior year tax losses as it 1s not considered sufficiently certain that there will be taxable profits
available in the short-term against which these can be offset
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5. Taxation (continued)

d Factors that may affect future tax charges

As a praperty group, tax and its treatment 1s often an integral part of transactions The outcome of tax treatments, including tax
planning, are recognised by the Group to the extent that the ouicome is reasonably certain Where iax treatments have been
challenged by HMRC, or management believe that there 1s a nsk of such challenge, provision is rmade for the best estmate of
potential exposure based on the information available at the Balance Sheet date

The effective rate of tax for the year of 14% reflects the benefit of certain vestment gains not being taxable because of
Indexation, recognition of tax losses and the property ownership structure within the Group As a result of propased changes In
the Group's property ownersh:p structure the effective tax rate 1s expected to move towards, but remain below, the standard rate
of tax as a result of ndexation on property revaluations together with land remedtation and other property reliefs

6. Earnings per share
2015 2014 restated

Number of Number of

shares shares

Weighted number of shares inissue . o 7 221,076,984 220,617339
Weighted number of diluted shares relating to the convertible bond 18,867,925 14,150,943
Weighted number of diluted shares relating te share options 6,383,088 4,602,679

246,327,997 239,370,961

2015 2014 restated
Earnings Earnings
£m £m

Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share being net profit attributable to owners
of the Company 2164 1186

Effect of dilutive potential ord;r-wa;;y_shares - ] - ]

Interest on converuble bond (netoftax)y e - ~ _ 2.3 17
Movement in fair value of the convertible bond 41 09)
Earnmings for the purposes of diluted earmngs per share 222.8 1194
2015 2014 restated

pence pence

Basic earnings per share 97.9 538
Diluted earnings per share 90 4 436

Shares held by the St Modwen Properues PLC Employee Share Trust are excluded from the above calculation

In addition to the 1 1p increase resulung from prior year restatements for IFRS 10 and lease accounting, diluted EPS for the year
ended 30" Novemnber 2014 has been updated for the potentially dilutive impact of the Group's convertible bond This reduces
diluted EPS for the year ended 30" Navember 2014 by 2 8p o0 49 9p

As the Group is principally a development business EPRA earnings per share on a basic and dituted basis are not provided
These calculations exclude ali revaluation gains, including value added by management actions, and development profits
These are the key actmties of the Group and excluding such gains and profits would not prowide a meaningful measure of the
performance of the business

7. Dividends

Dwidends paid during the year were in respect of a final dvidend for 2014 and an intenm dmdend for 2015 The proposed final
dmdend 1s subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a hability in these Financial Statements

2015 2014

p per share £m p per share fm
Paid o i L
Final dmdend in respect of previous year 314 69 267 59
Interim dwvidend in respect of current year 190 42 146 32
Total 5.04 111 413 91
Proposed L ) B
Current year final dvidend 3.85 8.5 314 69

The St Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust waives its entitlement to dividends with the exception of 1/100p per share
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8. Investment property
Restated
Freehold leasehold
investment Investment
properties praperties Total
£m £m £m
Fair value e o B o e
AL 30" Novernber 2013 (restated) 6155 _ 1297 7446
Additions - new properiies ) 283 - 283
Other additions 615 08 623
Net transfers to inventories {note 12) L (6 8) ~ (6 8)
Disposals o o (316) 39 (359
Gain on revaluation {restated) 570 69 639
AL 30" Novernber 2014 (restated) L 7239 1329 858
Additions - new properties 572 - 572
Other additions B o 1027 26 1053
Net transfers from inventories (note 12} 516 133 649
Disposals . . - _ (55 4) {217) (77%)
Gain on revaluation 678 61 739
At 30*" November 2015 947.8 1332 1,081.0

Investment properties were valued at 30" November 2015 and 30* November 2014 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Ltd (since
the merger of the firms trading, and herein referred to, as Cushman & Wakefield), Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with
the Appraisal and Valuaiion Manual of the Royal Institution of Chariered Surveyors, on the basss of market value Cushman
& Wakefield are professionally qualified independent external valuers and had appropriate recent experience in the relevant

location and categery of the properties being vatued
The histortcal cost of iInvestment properties at 30* Novermber 2015 was £840 5m (2014 £723 9m)

As at 30" November 2015, £498 2m (2014 £450 0m) of investment property was pledged as secunty for the Group's loan faolities

fncluded within investment properties are £57 0m {2014 £23 9mj of assets held under finance leases

IFRS 13 ‘Farr Value Measurement’ disclosures in respect of investment property are detailed below

The following table provides an analysis of the categorisation of the Group's assets and liabilities measured subsequent to initial

recognition at far value

2015 2014restated
Investment property £m £m
- Income producing properties Leve) 3 _ 656.6 4501
- Residential land i _ Level3 339.8 2% 5
- Commercial land . o _ Level3 926 103
Assets held under finance leases” e . NaA 39 39
Lease incentves (recorded In recenvables) N/A {119) {40)

1,081.0 8568

{1) £3 5m of the Group's assets heid under finance leases are not subject to revaluation, These assets represent head leases on certain nvestment property and are camed at the value
recognsed at nceplion less repayments of pnnapal This does not include lease arrangements at Swansea Urwversity whach are subject to revaluation

Income producing properuies have been valued using the investment method which involves applying a yield to rental income
streams Inpuis include equivalent yields, current rent and estmated rental value The resulting valuations are cross checked
agamnst the resulting initeal yields and, for certain assets, the land value underpin if the assets were to be redeveloped

Equmalent yields and estimated rental value are considered to be unobservable mpuis and details of the ranges used for each

category of income producing properties 1s provided overleaf

All other factors being equal, a hugher equivalent yield would lead to a decrease In the valuation of an asset, and an increase in the
current or esumated future rental stream would have the effect of increasing the capital value, and vice versa However, there are
interrelatonships between the unabservable inputs which are partially determined by market conditions, which would impact en

these changes
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8. Investment property {continued)

Resideniial land 1s valued using the residual development method To derve the value of land the valuers will estmate the gross
development value of completed residential uruts on a site from which deducuons will be made for build costs (induding costs to
remediate and service land), finance costs and an appropriate profit margin

Sales prices, bulld costs and profit margins are constdered to be unobservable inputs and details of the ranges used are
provided below

All other factors being equal, a higher sales price would lead to an increase in the valuation of an asset, a higher profit margin
would lead to a decrease in the valuation of an asset, and a decrease in the build cosis would have the effect of Increasing
the capital value, and vice versa However, there are interrelationships between the unobservable nputs which are partially
determined by market conditions, which would impact on these changes

Commercial land 1s valued on a land value per acre less costs 1o remediate and service the land Land value per acre I1s considered
to be an unobservable mput and details of the ranges used are detalled below

All other things being equal, a higher value per acre would lead to an increase in the valuation of an asset and vice versa

Information about fair value measurements using unobservahle inputs (Level 3)
Fairvalue at

30" November ERV per square foot Equivalent yield
2015 Min Max Min Max
Income producing properties £m £ £ % %
Industnal _ 2025 067 10.50 6.4 120
Retail L . 310.0 5.00 52.00 5.6 12.0
Residential 106.3 1260 3750 41 6.7
Offices 37.8 7.50 28 00 73 14.4
Total ncome producing properties 656.6
Fair value at
30" Novemnber ERV per square foot Equwvalent yield
2014 Min Max Min hhax
Income producing properties £m £ £ % %
Industrial - 178 3 050 1030 72 m4
Retail ) o 2010 500 5200 70 145
Residential 227 3200 3600 45 68
Offices 481 600 2800 75 143
Total ncome producing properties 4501

As the Group holds property both directly and through joint ventures and associaies the Strategic Report discusses yields applied
to investment property on a weighted average see-through basis This provides a compesite positon with respect to the Group'’s
exposure to asset types by sector The equwvalent yield ranges provided above are consistent with those for assets held by the
Group together with Its joint ventures and associates

The Group’s portfolio has a wide spread of yields as it includes assets that are at various stages of the property lifecycle

Income producing assets are generally acquired at high yields where the Group has the opportuniy to add significant value

As assets are enhanced and development actvity 1s undertaken, improved and new assets are created and valued at lower yields
Fair value at

30 November Sales Land Build
2015 pricepersqft valueperacre costspersqft Profit
£m £ £000 E margin %
Residential tand . 3398 144-270 - 82-110 20.0
Commercial land 926 - 125-595 - -
Fairvalue at
30 November Sales Land Build
2014 price per sq ft value per acre costs persqft Profit
£m £ £000 £ margin %
Residential land 2965 145-260 - 75-110 200
Commercial land 1103 - 125-625 - -
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5. Operating property, plant and equipment
Operating
Operating plant and
properties equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost e i o o D
AL 30 November 2013 69 54 123
Addinons ) _ . _ ) 01 09 10
Disposals - {04 {04
AL 30" November 2014 o o 70 59 129
Addiions - 06 06
Disposals (2 5) 05) 30
At 30 November 2015 45 6.0 10.5
Depreciation S _
At30* NOvemoper2093 09 48 57
Charge for the year 01 04 Q05
Disposals - 03) 03)
AL 30" Navember 2014 . 10 49 559
Charge for theyear __ e 00 0708
Disposals » (0 4) (04
At 30" November 2015 11 5.2 63
Net book value
At 30" November 2013 60 06 66
AL 30" November 2014 60 10 70
At 30" November 2015 3.4 0.8 4.2
Tenure of operating properties
2015 2014
£m £m
Freehold S S 34 34
Leasehold - 26
34 60
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10. Joint ventures and associates

The Group’s share of the results for the year of Its joint ventures and assccates Is

2015
VSM Estates
Key Property Uxbnidge VSM Estates VSM Other joint
Investments {Group) (Holdmgs) (NCGM) ventures and
Ltd Ltd Ltd Ltd associates Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Income Statements .
Revenue 16.8 - - 04 46 21.8
Net rental income _ 5.9 {0.2) - - 0.2 5.9
Gains/losses) on disposal of
Investments/ Investment properiies 2.8 - (0.9) 04 0.3 2.6
Investment property revaluation gans/
(losses) 6.7 (39 (1.3) 1274 0.3 129.2
Administraive expenses {01) - 01) (0.1) (0.1) (0.4)
Profit/{loss) before interest and tax 153 (4.) (2.3) 1277 0.7 137.3
Financecost L {2.3) (3.3} (1.6) (1.5) (0.2) (8.9)
Finance income 0.5 0.4 0.7 - - 1.6
Profit/(loss)beforetax ~ 13.5 (70} (3.2 126.2 0.5 130.0
Taxation (2.3} 1.8 2.8 (25 5) - (23.2)
Profit/{loss) for the year 11.2 {5.2) (0 4) 100.7 05 106.8
2014 restated
VSM Estates
Key Property Uxbrdge VSM Estates VSM Other joing
Investrmenits {Group} {Holdings) (NCGM) ventures and
Lid ud Ltd Ltd asspeiates Total
£m £Em fm £m £m £m
Income Statements _ _ — R L
Revenue 94 - - - 11 105
Net rental income B o T A 02z 59
Gains on disposal of investments/
Investment properiies 07 - 30 B - - 37
Investment property revaluation gains 1M1 04 152 - 04 271
Administrative expenses 02 - (02) - 01n (05)
Profit before interest and tax 173 04 180 - 05 362
Finance cost (31 30 (12) - 02) {75
Finance income 07 08 - - - 15
Profit/(loss) before tax 149 {18) 168 - 03 302
Taxation {04 06 33 - - 31
Profii/(loss) for the year 145 {12) 135 - 03 271

Included in other jaint ventures and associates above are results from associated companies of £0 3m (2014 £nil)
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The Group's share of the Balance Sheet of its joint ventures and associates Is
2015
VSM Estates
Key Property Uxbridge VSM Estates VSM Other joint
Investments (Group) (Holdings) (NCGM)  ventures and
Ltd Ltd Ltd Ltd associates Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance Sheets
Non-Current assets o 104 8 52 @ 41.6 220.0 3.0 4214
Current assets o 149 4.7 28.5 - 6.3 41.4
Current liabiliies o i 67) (17.2) (25.4) (5.5) 34) (58.2)
Non-current liabiities {34 2) (24 1) {6.8) {113.8) 1.6 (177.3)
Net assets 65.8 15.4 37.9 1007 75 227.3
Equity at start of year 613 206 38.3 - 7.0 1272
Profit/{loss) for the year s 1.2 {5.2) (0.9) 100.7 05 106.8
Dmidends pad {6.7) - - - - (6.7)
Equity at end of year 65.8 15 4 379 100.7 7.5 227.3
2014
VSM Estates
Key Property Uxbndge VSM Estates VSM Other joint
Investments {Group} {Holdings) (NCGM) ventures and
Ltd Ltd Lted Ltd associates Total
£m £m £m Em £m £fm
BolanceShees . e
Non-current assets 956 554 519 - 65 2094
Currentassets 63 58 2% 26 _ 34 392
Current habihies o {72 (215) (156) (26) (15) (48 4)
Non-current labilities (33 4} 191 {191} - (4 (730)
Net assets 613 206 383 - 70 1272
Equity at start of year 668 218 248 - 67 1201
Profit/(loss) for the year 145 132) 135 - 03 271
Dividends paid (200) - - - - {20 0)
Equity at end of year 613 206 383 - 70 1272

Included in other joint ventures and assoctates above are net assets of £33m (2014 £2 9m)in relation to assocated companies
These net assets comprise total assets of £3 9m {2014 £3 5mj and total habilities of £0 6m (2014 £06m)

New Covent Garden Market (NCGM)

NCGM receved unconditional status i the year and, as a result, the valuation increase of £127 4m has had a significant impact on

the current year results

NCGM was valued at 30* Novermnber 2015 by Jones Lang LaSalle LLP, Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with the Appraisal

and Valuauon Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value Jones Lang LaSalle LLP are
professionally qualfied independent external valuers and had appropriate recent experience in the relevant location and category
of the properties being valued

The lability of VSM (NCGM) Ltd to procure a new market facility for CGMA has been calcufated by

the Board of VSM (NCGM) Ltd, ncluding representatives of VINC| and 5t Modwen, assessing the costs of procuning the market

facility at current rates,

applying a current esurnate of inflation for the period of build, and

discounting the forecast cash flows to today's value using a discount rate of 5%
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10. Joint ventures and assoclates (continued)

The following information on unobservable inputs Is detalled below for understanding and completeness

Range per square foot Average per
Minimum Maximum square foot Profitmargin
£ £ £ on GOV %
Sales price L 900 1,566 1,326 -
Build costs - - 433 -
Profit margin on GDV - - - 200
The material joint venture and associate companies compnse the following
Name Status Interest Activity
Barton Business Park Ltd Joint venture 50% B Property development
Key Property Investments Ltd Joint venture 50%  Property investment and development
Meaford Energy Ltd - ~_Jontventure ~ 50% __ Property development
Meaford Land Ltd Joint venture 50% Property development
Skypark Development Partnership LLP__ __ _Jontventure _ 50% Property development
V5M (NCGM) Ltd Joint venture 50% Property development
VSM Estates (Holdngs)lked Joint veniure 50% Property development
VSM Estates Uxbridge (Group) Lid Jointventure 50%  Property investment and development
Wrexhamlandlta Joint venture o 50%  Property development
Wrexham Power Lid Joint venture 50% Property development
Coed Darcy Ltd . ) Associate  49%  Propertyinvestment and developrment
Baglan Bay Company Ltd Assgciate 25% Property management

Afull list of joint venture and associate cormpanies 15 induded in note (F) to the Company Financial Statements

In the Strategic Report a senes of commeraal contracts with Persimmon is referred to as the ‘Persimmon joint venture’ Thisis
not a statutory entity and the results from these commercial contracts are not (nctuded in the figures disclosed in this note
Revenue and profit from the Persimmon joint venture are recognised in Group development profit on legal completion of housing

unit sales to third party customers

Many of the shareholder agreements for joint ventures and associates contain change of coniral provisions, as 1s common far

such arra ngements

11. Trade and other recelvables

2015 20714 restated

£m £m
Noncurrent .
Other debiors ) i L _ o S o -
Amounts due from joint ventures 6.0 60
6.1 60

Current o _ o
Trade recewvables B 5.6 47
Prepayments and accrued ncome 8.6 55
Other debtors _ 22.2 227
Amounts recoverable on contracts 33 60
Amounts due from joint ventures 370 250
104.7 638

IFRS 7 and IFRS 13 disclosures in respect of financial assets included above are provided In note 16
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12, Inventories
2015 2014 restated

£m £m

Properties held for sale 5.3 58
Properties under construction _ N ) e 16 1767
Land under option 16.8 185
183.7 20010

The movemnent in inventones during the wo years ended 30 November 2015 1s as follows

£m

AL0™ November 2013 (restatedy . |-

Additions . o i 1731
Net transfers from investment property (note 8) S _68
Disposals (transferred to development cost of sales) (note 1) (178 6)
At 30" November2014 B - 1 1
Additions L 2348
Net transfers to nvestment property(note 8 _ __ _ ©49)
Disposals (transferred to development cost of sales) {note 1) (1872)
At 30* November 2015 183.7

The direciors consider all inventories o be current in nature The operatonal ¢ycle 1s such that a proportion of inventornes will not
be realised within 12 months It 1s not possible to determine with accuracy when specific inventory will be realised as this will be
subject to a number of issues including the strength of the property market

Incluged within disposals of inventories are net realisable value provisions made during the year of £1 4m (2014 £0 Tm)
As at 30" November 2015 £43 4m (2014 £16 8m) of inventory was pledged as security for the Group's loan facilities

13. Trade and other payables
2015 2014 restated

£m £m
Current o ) i ) S -
Trade payables 385 244
Amounts due to joInt ventures _ ) - _ 15.4 290
Other payables and accrued expenses i 75.6 744
Other payables on deferred terms 171 208
146 6 148 6
Non-current o ) _
Other payables on deferred terms 34 35
3.1 35

The payment terms of the other payables on deferred terms are subject to contractual commitments In the normal course of
events the payments will be made in line with either the disposal of investment properties held on the Balance Sheet, or the
commencement of development Net cash outflows on the settlement of the deferred consideration will therefore be limited

IFRS 7 and IFRS 13 disclosures in respect of finanaial labihties included above are prowded in note 16
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14. Borrowings and finance lease obligations

2015 2014 restated
£m £m
Current
Bank overdrafts o _ . _ - -
Bank loans - -
Finance tease liabiliues due in less than one year 0.4 01
0.4 01
Non-current )
Amounts repayable between one and twoyears o L - 500
Amounts repayable between two and five years 3443 2531
Amounts repayable after more than five years 107.5 375
Non-current borrowings o 451.8 3406
Finance leases habilities due after more than one year 54.7 225
Non-current borrowings and finance lease obligations 506 5 3631

Where borrowings are secured, the indwidual bank facility has a fixed charge over a discrete portfolio of certain of the Group's

property assets

Borrowings
Matunity profile of commutted borrowing facilities

The Group's debt 1s provided by floating rate bilateral revolving credit facilities (prowiding the flexibility to draw and repay loans
as required) together with an £80m retall bond and £100m convertible bond The maturity profile of the Group's committed

borrowing facilities 1s set out below

2015 2014

Drawn Undrawn Total Drawn Undrawn Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Secured floating rate borrowings: _ o
Less than one year™ - - - - - -
One to two years - - - 500 250 750
Two to three years 89.0 100 99.0 - - -
Three to four years 7.2 53.8 125.0 640 350 990
Four to five years 70.0 300 = 1000 91 1159 1250
More than five years 375 12.5 50.0 375 125 500

2677 106.3 3740 1606 188 4 3490
Unsecured fixed rate borrowings ~ )
Threg 10 four years 18441 - 1841 - - -
Four 1o five years - - - 1800 - 1800

451.8 106.3 5581 3406 188 4 5290

{1) In addition ta the pnncipat amounts included above £3 8m (2014 £1 4m) ol interest payable was committed at the year end These amaunts all fall due within three moniths of the year end
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Interest rate profile
The interest rate profile of the Group's borrowings after taking mnto account the effects of hedging 1s
2015 2014
£m Applicable interest rate £m Apphcable interest rate
Floaung rate bank debt 1377  Margmn + 3 month LIBOR 306 Margn + 3 month LIBOR
Margin + 2.76% weighted a __M_arg|r:|-+ 293% welghfed V
Fixed rate bank debt o 130.0 average swap rate 1300  average swap rate
Retal Bond - Maturty 2019 800 6.25% fixed rate 800 625Wfxedrate
- - - 2.875% fixed rate - swapped © 2875%iixed rate - s—\;va_pped— )
to 1.43% + 6 month LIBOR to 143% + 6 month LIBOR
Converiible Bond - Maturity 2019 104.1 until 6" March 2017 1000 untl 6™ March 2017
At 30" November 451.8 3406

The average margin on the Group's bank debt1s 19% {2014 1 9%)

Derwvative financial instruments
The Group's dervative financial Instruments, which are classified as fair value through profit or loss, consist of

a) Sterling denominated interest swaps from floating rate to fixed rate applicable as at 30 November 2015

These swaps hedge the Group's floating rate bank debt as at 30" Novemnber 2015 The fixed rates for these swaps range from
201%1to 5 16% (2014 201% to 5 16%) and detalls of their matunty profile are given below Certain of the interest rate swaps are
extendable at the bank’s option, the tables below therefore show the dates of normal termination and extended termination
The weighted average maturity of the interest rate swaps below to the earliest termination date 1s 2 0 years (2014 2 5 years)

2015 2014
Earliest termination Latest termination Earhiest termination Latest termination
£m Y £m %o £m 9 £m %

Less than one year 500 3.06 40.0 254 200 381 100 448
One to two years 20.0 2.01 20.0 201 400 254 400 254
Two to three years - - 10.0 5.6 200 200 200 20t
Three to four years 50.0 300 500 3.00 - - 100 516
Four ta five years 10.0 1.60 10.0 1.60 500 300 500 300

130.0 276 1300 2.76 1300 293 1300 293

(1) Werghted average interest rate

b) Forward starting sterling denominated interest swaps from floating rate to fixed rate

These swaps provide cantinuity of hedging beyand the term of the interest rate swaps applicable as at 30" November 2015 and
INcrease interest rate certainty through to bank fachity renewal dates The fixed rates for these swaps range from 2 72% to 2 97%
(2014 2 72% t0 2 97%) and details of their maturity profile are given betow These hedges when taken together with existing
hedges with an earliest termsnation date beyond 30 November 2017 comprise £120m of hedging at a weighted average interest
rate of 2 83% extending to a weighted average life of 3 6 years (2014 £110m at 2 95% for 4 7 years)

2015 2014
£m % £m 4
Penod from 2016 - 2021 200 2.90 200 290
Period from 2017 - 2019 400 287 400 287
600 2.88 600 288

(1) Werghted average interest rate
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14. Borrowings and finance lease obligations (continued)

¢} Convertible bond (the Convertible Bonds)

On 6™ March 2014 5t Modwen Properties Secunities (Jersey) Ltd (the Issuer) issued £100 Om 2 875% Guaranteed Convertible
Bonds due 2019 at par The Company has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due and punctual performance by
the Issuer of all its obligations (including paymenits) in respect of the Convertible Bonds and the obligations of the Company, as
guarantor, constitute direct, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company

Subject to certain conditions, the Convertible Bonds are convertible into preference shares of the Issuer which are automatically
transferred to the Company in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or (at the Company's election) any combination of
ordinary shares and cash The Converuble Bonds can be converted at any tme from 16" April 2014 up to the seventh dealing day
before the matunity date

The inital exchange price was £5 29 per ordinary share, a canversion rate of approximately 18,889 ordinary shares for every
£100,000 nominal of the Convertible Bonds Under the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the exchange price is adjusted on
the happening of certain events including the payment of dividends by the Company in excess of a yeld of 1 00% of the
average share price In the 90 days preceding the dividend ex date No changes to the exchange price have been made up to
30¢ November 2015

The Convertible Bonds may be redeemed at par at the Company's option subject to the Company’s ordinary share price having
traded at 30% above the conversion price for a specified penod, or at any time once 85% of the Convertible Bonds have been
traded or cancelled If not previously converted, redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the Convertible Bonds will be redeemed
at par on 6™ March 2019

Atotal of £100 0m nomina! of the Convertible Bonds were issued and remain outstanding at 30* Novernber 2015

The Convertible Bonds are designated as at fair value through profit or loss and so are presented on the Batance Sheet at

fair value with all gains and losses taken to the Income Statement through the moverment in fair value of dervative financial
Instruments kne At 30™ November 2015 the far value of the Converuble Bonds was £104 1m wath the change in fair value
charged to the Income Statement The Convertible Bonds are listed on the Offiaal List of the Channel Islands Security Exchange

Following the 1ssue of the Convertible Bonds the Group was in an over-hedged position with an excess of debt at fixed rate

in order to reduce the level of fixed rate borrowings an interest rate dervative was entered into to swap the interest rate in the
Convertible Bands from a fixed rate of 2 875% to a floating rate of & month LIBOR plus 1 43% through to its third anniversary in
March 2017

The change in fair value of all of the above instruments 1s charged/credited to the Income Statement as disclosed in note 4

Obligations under finance leases
Finance fease liabitities payabfe in respect of certain leasehold investment properties are as follows

2015 2014

Minimum Minimum

lease lease
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Prnincipal
£m £m £m £m £m £fm
Less than one year 27 23 04 11 10 01
Between one and five years 13.6 14 2.2 55 47 08
More than five years 164.2 111.7 52.5 101 3 796 217
180.5 125.4 551 1079 853 226

Finance leases are for periods of up to 999 years from inception and a discount rate of 6 0% {2014 6 0%) has been used to derve
the fair value of the principal amount outstanding All lease obligations are denorminated in sterling
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15. Operating leases
Operating lease commitments where the Group is the lessee

The Group leases certain of its premises, motor vehicles and office equipment under operating leases Future aggregate minimum

lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2015 204

£m £m

In one year or less . i i 09 08
Between ane and five years 24 32
In five years or more 02 02
3.5 42

Operating leases where the Group 1s the lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties under operating leases The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2015 014
£m £m

In one year or lesg L o _ . . 557 315

Between one and five years e 1561 83
In five years ar more 4314 1723
643 2 2891

Conungent rents, calculated as a percentage of turnover for a hmited number of tenants, of £0 7m (2014 £0 8m) were recognised

during the year

16. Financlal instruments
Categories and classes of financial assets and habilities

2015 2014 restated

Financial assets £m £m
Loans and recevables e -
_ Cashand cash equvalerws» 48 = 32
_ Trade and other recevaples® 551 489
Dernvative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss® 0.8 19
607 540

2015 2014 restated

Financial liabilities £m £m
Dernvative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss® 80 87

Amortised cost ) i
Bank loans and overdrafts™ L L o 2677 1606
Retall bond™ _ 800 - 800
__Convertible bond® 104.1 1000
Trade and other payables™ ) 865 884
Other payables on deferred terms™ S B B 20.2 243
Finance lease habilues (head renisy! 55.1 227
621.6 4847

{1} The directors consider that the carmyng amount recorded tn the Finangal Statements approximates thew far vahae
{2) Derwvatve financial instruments are carned at far value The fax value s cakulated using quoted market prices redevant far the term and instrument.

Trade and other recewables above compnise other debtors, trade recenvables and amounts due from joint veniures as disclosed
i note 11, for current and non-current amounts, after deduction of £15 8m {2014 £9 5m) of non-financiat assets

Trade and other payables above comprise trade payables, amounts due to joint ventures and other payables and accrued
expenses and as disclosed in note 13, for current and non-current amounts, after deduction of £43 0m (2014 £39 4m) of

non-financial habilites
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16. Financial instruments (continued)
2015 2014 restated

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss £000 £000

Asseis Level2 08 19

Liabihtes Level 2 (8.0} 87
(7.2) {6 8)

Dernvative financial Instruments are externally valued based on the present value of future cash flows esumated and discounted
based on the applicable yield curves derived from market expectations for future interest rates at the Balance Sheet date

Where applicable, the value of early termination options in favour of the 1ssuing party are included in the external valuations using
an option priaing model which also faciors in projected interest rate volaulty

Capital nsk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optirmisation of the debt and equity batance The capital structure of the
Company consists of debt (as disclosed in note 14), cash and cash equivalents and equity, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves
and retained earnings as disclosed in the Group Statement of Changes in Equity

Market risk
Market risk is the potential adverse change in Group iIncome or the Group net worth arising from movements In INterest rates
or other market prices Ingerest rate nsk 1s the Group's pnncpal market nsk and 1s considered below

Interest rate risk management The Group 1s exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at vanable interest rates The Group
uses a combination of vanable rate borrowings and interest rate swaps to manage the risk

Interest rate sensitvity The following table details the Group's sensitvity, after tax, to a 1% change in interest rates based on year
end levels of debt

2015 2014

1% increase in Iinterest rates £m £m
Interestonborrowngs _ - 21 __ 03

Effect of interest rate swaps 15 10
{0 6) {0 2)

2015 2014

1% decrease in interest rates £m £m

Interest on borrowings 21 12
Effect of interest rate swaps (15) (10)

06 02

Credit risk
Credit nskis the nsk of finanaal loss where counterparties are not able to meet their cbligations as they fall due

The credit nisk on the Group’s lqutd funds and dervative financial nstruments is imited because the counterparties are banks
with acceptable {generally A and above) credit ratings Bank deposits are only placed with banks in accordance with Group policy
that specifies minimum credit rating and maximum exposure Credit risk on derivatives 15 closely monitored

Trade and other recevables consist of amounis due from a large number of parties spread across geographical areas The Group
does not have any significant concentrations of credit sk as the tenant base Is farge and diverse with the largest indvidual tenant
accounung for £2 5m {2014 £1 6m) of gross rental income

The carrying amount of financial assets, as deiailed above, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk ai the
reporting date
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Included within trade and other recevables 1s £0 4m (2014 £0 6m}which 1s provided against as it represents estimated
irrecoverabte amounts Thus allowance has been determined by a review of all significant balances that are past due considenng
the reason for non-payment and the creditworthiness of the counterparty A reconciliation of the changes in this account during
the year 1s provided below

2015 2014
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts £m £m
At start of year ) L 0.6 05
Imparment losses recognised 04 06
Amounts written off as uncollectable ) L (0.4) 03
Impairment losses reversed (0.2) (02}
At end of year 0.4 06

Trade and other recewables include £0 8m (2014 £1 4m) which are past due as at 30" November 2015 for which no prowision has
been made because the amounts are considered recoverable The following table provides an ageing analysis of these balances

2015 2014
Number of days past due but not impaired £m £m
1-3C days L B 7 o o i - 0.3 ) 04
31-60 days 01 02
60 days + 04 08
08 14

Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk s the nisk that the Group does not have sufficient financial resources available to meet s obligabons as they fall
due The Group manages iquidity nisk by continuously momnitoning forecast and actual cash flows, matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and llabilties and through the use of fixed rate bilateral facilities, overdrafts and cash with a range of maturity
dates to ensure contnuity of funding

The maturity profile for the Group's non-dervative financial habilities, on an undiscounted basis 1s as follows
p P

Less than 3 months More than
one month 1-3 months to 1year 1-5years five years Total
2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Bank loans and averdrafis and bonds 1.2 2.7 11.6 4525 375 505.5
Trade and other payables 573 5.8 23.3 - - 86.4
Finance leases - minimum lease
payments (noie 14) - - 2.7 136 164 2 180.5
Other payables on deferred terms - - 171 31 - 20.2
58.5 8.5 54.7 469 2 201.7 792.6
Lessthan 3 months More than
one month 1-3 months o1 year t-5years five years Total
2014 restated im £m £m £m £m fm
Bank loans and overdrafts and bonds 05 34 103 3549 375 406 6
Trade and other payables 518 101 266 - - 885
Finance leases - mimimum lease
paymenis (note 14) - - 11 55 1013 1079
Other payables on deferred terms - - 208 56 - 264
523 135 588 3660 138 8 6294

The Group's approach to cash flow, financing and bank covenanis is discussed further in the Financial Review section of the
Strategic Report
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17. Share capital

Ordinary

10p shares
Equity share capital Number Em
At siart of year L 221,376,988 221
Issue of share capital 500,000 01
At end of year 221,876,988 22.2

On 23" September 2015 the Group issued 500,000 ordinary shares of 10p each at par The shares were allotted and issued to

The S5t Modwen Properiies PLC Employee Share Trust to sausfy the exercise of awards made under the Company's share-based

incentive arrangements
See note 3d for detalls of outstanding options to acquire ordinary shares
18. Pensions

The Group operates a UK based pension scheme, the St Modwen Pension Scheme, with both defined benefit and defined
contribution sections The defined benefit section 1s closed 1o new members and, from 15 Septemnber 2009, future accrual
The Income Staternent includes

acharge of £02m {2014 £0 2mj)far the defined benefit section, and
- acharge of £0 7m (2014 £0 6m) for the defined contribution section

The St Modwen Pension Scheme I1s governed by ihe trustee company, St Modwen Pensions Ltd Itis regulated by the UK
regulatory regime, cverseen by the Pensions Regulator

The last formal actuanal valuation of the scheme was at 5™ April 2014, when the market value of the net assets of the scheme
was £38m, a funding level of 97% based on the Trustees’ proposed assumptions for technicat provistons The main actuaral
assumptions were

Investment rate of return pre-retirement 5 6% pa - -
post-retirement 38%pa

Increase in pensions 27%pa

Funding poticy

As the scheme 1s almost fully funded, the current schedule of contributions requires the Group to fund the Scheme to such

an extent as to cover adminustrative expenses only The expected contribution for year ended 30" Novemnber 2016 1s expected
to be £0 2m, consistent with the current year (E0 2m) From 1% January 2015 the administrative expenses were met by

St Modwen Properties PLC

The actuanial valuation of the defined benefit section, a final salary scheme, was updated to 30% November 2015 on an IAS 19
basis by a gualified Independent actuary The valuation was performed using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method' under 1AS 19
The major assumptions used by the actuary were

2015 2014 2013
Rate of increase i deferred pensions B o o 21% 21% 26%
Rate of increase In pensions in paymeni e e
Pre 6™ Apnl 1997 benefits - . 30%  30% 0 30%
__Post 5 Aprit 1997 benefits 3.1% 31% 34%
Discount rate 35%  36% 4 5%
Inflation assumption 21% 21% 2 6%

Following the closure of the defined benefit section to future accrual, the assumption regarding the rate of Increase in salaries i1s

no longer apphcable as retirement benefits will be based on salanes at 31% August 2009 Benefits earned up 1o the poini of the
scheme closure will be protected and will be increased in line with inflation, subject to a maximum of 5% per annum From 201

0

the basis of the inflauon assumption has been amended, in line with market pracuce, from the Retail Price Index to the Consumer

Price Index
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The mortality rates adopted are from the VITA Tables with CMI_2013 ‘core’ projections and a long-term improverment of 1% pa
with peaked short-term improvements and iImprovements remaining level at the oldest ages The resultant assumptions are,
for example

- Average future hfe expectancy (in years) for a pensioner aged 65 at 30" November 2015 23 1 {male}, 23 9 (female)
+ Average future Iife expectancy (in years) at age 65 for a non-penstoner aged 40 at 30" November 2015 24 0 (male), 26 2 (fermale)

The fair values of assets in the defined benefit section of the scheme were

2015 2014
£m £m
Equities _ o o
UK equity ] B ] o o 42 a2
Overseas equity ] 24 25
Debt securities ) ) . . )
UK corporate bonds 70 68
Overseas corporate bonds o - ~ L 12 o
UK Government bonds _0a 038
UKindex-inked gitts S o L 83 78
Property i 53 56
Commedities i . B - _ 0
Infrastructure . o _ 04 0 -
Cash 0.6 05
_____ L i o ) 29.8 303
Actuanal value of lhabilities {27.5) (28 6)
Unrecognised surplus (23) 07

Surplus inthe scheme - -

Related deferred tax liability - -
Fair value of pension asset net of deferred tax - -

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses {before unrecognised surplus of £2 3m) recorded in the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income 15 a loss of £0 1m (2014 gain of £1 0m)

Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit

2015 2014 2013
Em £m £m
Current service cost and total operating charge (0.2) {02) 02
Analysis of net interest
2015 2014 2013
£m £m £m
Interest mcome on scheme assets 11 12 12
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (1.0) (12) (11
Total net interest 0.1 - 01
The actual return on pension scheme assets was a gain of £1 3m (2014 £34m)
Analysis of the amount recogmsed in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
2015 2014
£m £m
The returns on scheme assets (excluding amounts included in net iInterest) N 0.2 22
Expenence gains and losses ansing on fair value of scheme liabiliues ) B o 5 = 09
Actuaral gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions o - 05
Actuanal gains and losses arising from changes in finangial assumptions S 0.2} 24
Change in unrecogrised surplus (0.6) (12)

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit asset {0.1) -
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18. Pensions (continued)
Analysis of the movernent in the present value of the scheme habilities

2015 2014
£Em £m
Beginning of year 286 285
Movement in year B } )
Current service cost - 02
Interest cost 1.0 12
Employee contributions - -
Experience gains and losses arising on fair value of scheme liabilities (0.5} ©9
Actuanial gains and losses ansing from changes in demographic assumptions - 05
Actuarial gans and losses arnsing from changes In finanaial assumptions: _ 0.2 24
Benefits paid (1.8) (23)
End of year 27.5 286
Analysis of the movement in the fair value of the scheme assets
2015 2014
£m £m
Beginning of year - _ o o 30.3 290
Movement in year
__Interest income i R ) - 11 12
..Contributions by employer — - 92
Employee contnibutions ~ L - -
Return on assets excluding amounts Included in net interest o o 02 22
Benefiis pald (1.8) {2 3)
End of year 29.8 303
Surplus in scheme at the year end B - . 23 17
Unrecognised surplus (2.3) (17)
Net surplus - -
History of expenence gains and losses
2015 2014 2013 2012 201
£m £m £m £m £m
Difference between expected and actual return
on scheme assets o _ _ B i ) o .
Amount 0.2 22 08 11 (04)
Percentage of scheme assets 0.7% 73% 28% 39% {1 5%
Experience gains and lasses on scheme liabilities _
Amount . - 0.5 09 02 (05) 08
Percentage of far value of scheme liabilities (1 8%) (3 1%} 0 7% 19% 73%
Information about the defined benefit obligation
Liability split Duration (years)
2015 20i4 2015 2014
% % years years
Active members - - - - -
Deferred members 340 355 200 200
Pensioners 66 0 645 12.0 120
Total 100 0 1000 14 8 148
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Sensitiity analysis
Change in assumpiions compared with 30" November 2015 actuarial assumplions

+ A0 5% decrease in the discount rate would increase the actuanal value of habilities by £2 tm to £29 6m

A1 year increase In life expectancy would increase the actuanal value of labilties by £0 8m to £28 3m
+ AQ 5% increase in the inflaton rate would increase the actuanal value of habiites by £1 3m to £28 8m

A0 5% increase in the rate of increase in deferred pensions would increase the actuanal value of habilities by £0 3m to £27 8m
+ A0 5% increase in the rate of Increase N pensions In paymients would increase the actuarial value of labiliies by £1 Om to £28 5m

Defined benefit scheme - nsk factors
The Group 15 exposed to a number of nsks refated to its defined benefit scheme, the most significant of which are detalled below

Asset volatility

Pension scheme habilives are calculated using discount rates set with reference to bond yields If the assets within the scheme
detiver a return which 15 fower than the discount rate this will create or increase a defict within the scheme This risk 1s reduced
by holding a significant proportion of the scheme assets in matching assets (bonds or simidar) As the scheme matures, it s
anticipated that this propertion will Increase to better match the assets and liabilities of the scheme

Changes in bond yields

A decrease n bond yields will typically increase labilities, although this will be partally offset by an appreciation in the value of
scineme assets held in bonds

Inflation risk

As the pension obligations are linked to inflation, higher inflation expectations will lead to higher liabilities The asset portfolio
includes a significant proporuon of inflation inked bonds to reduce this risk

Member longewity

The pension obligations provide benefits for the life of the members, therefore increases in Iife expectancy will result in an
Increase In habilities (and vice-versa)

19. Acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking

In 2010, the Group entered into an option to acquire the entire 1ssued share capital of Branston Properties Ltd (Branston), of
which Simon Clarke was a shareholder, at market value The price paid for the option was £0 1m with exercise contingent on the
achievement of certain planning milestones in relation to land held by Branston

Following achievement of these planning milestones the opiion was exercised by the Group on 22* May 2014 and 87 5% of the
1ssued share capital of Branston was acquired A conditional agreement to acquire the remairung 12 5 % of the issued share
capital, which was held by Simon Clarke, was also entered into on 22 May 2014 Total consideration payable for the entire 1ssued
share caprtal of Branston was

- £0 8m on completion,
£0 1m payable on shareholder approval,
£0 1m 12 months after completion which was paid on 22" May 2015, and

Conungent considerat:on payable based on the level of future development gains achieved in respect of the land and property
held by Branston Based on the provisionat fair values detarled below, no contingent consideration has been recogrised

The consideration payable to Mr Clarke under the condivonal agreement equated t0 12 5% of the amounts above As the
consideration payable to Mr Clarke was in excess of £100,000, the conditional agreement constiuted a substantial property
transaction with a director of the company under sections 190 and 191 of the Companies Act 2006 As a result, the agreement
was condiional, among other things, on approval of shareholders of St Modwen Properties PLC, this approval was given at the
Company's Annual General Meeting held on 27" March 2015

As required by IFRS 3 {2008) Business Combnations, this acquisition resulted in the assets and habiliues of Branston
being remeasured to farr value at the acquisition date and the resulting negative goodwill ansing of £2 1m credited to the
Income Statement
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19. Acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking (continued)
The recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and habilities assurmed are set out In the table below

Fair value
Bookvalue adjustments Total
£m £m £m
Net assets acquwed o o )
- Investment property 59 26 85
- Trade and other payables . 49 - (49)
- Deferred tax - ©5) ©5)
Total identifiable net assets 10 21 7 31
Negative goodwill 21
Total consideration 1.0
£m
Sausfied by ) _ . . . . .
- Cash payable on acquisition 08
- Deferred proceeds paid on shareholder approval I ~ - ) o 01
- Deferred proceeds paid on 22" May 2015 01
Total consideration 10

If the acquisiion had been completed on the first day of the financial year there would have been no incremenial change to the
Group’s revenue or profit before tax

On 3 March 2015 the Group acquired the remaining share capital in Kilingholme Land Ltd and Kilingho'me Energy Ltd for
nil consideration

20. Capital commitments

At 30" Novemnber 2015 the Group had contracted capital expenditure of £12 2m {2014 restated £8 1m) In addition the Group's
share of the contracted capital expenditure of its joint venture undertakings was £1 4m (2014 restated £2 3m) All capital
commitments relate to Investment properties

21, Contingent llabllities

The Group has a joint and several unimited hability with VINCI PLC and the Ministry of Defence under guarantees in respect of
the financial performance of VSM Estates {Holdings) Lid {(vSM) This is a guarantee in the ordinary course of business and would
require the guarantors to step Into VSM's place in the event of a default on Project MoDEL Completion of the project is nat
considered onerous s the forecast revenues exceed the anucipated costs and it is not expected that there would be any net
outflow n this regard

The Group, together with VINCI PLC, has provided a joint and several parent comparny guarantee in respect of the £26m bank
facility provided to VSM Estates (Uxbnidge) Ltd, a subsidiary of VSM Estates Uxbnidge (Group) Ltd

The Group, together with VINCI PLC, has provided a joint and several guarantee in respect of the obligations of VSM (NCGM) Ltd
relaung to the redevelopment of New Covent Garden Market, London This is a guarantee in the ordinary course of business and
would require the guarantors to comply with the terms of the development agreement and to indemnify Covent Garden Market
Authority aganst any breach of those terms

The Group, together with Salhia Real Estate K'S C, has provided a parent company guaraniee in respect of the £80m bank faciliy
provided to Key Property Investments Ltd The guarantee provided by the Group is capped at 50 per cent of the total commiirnent
under the agreement from ume to ume, kmiing the Group guarantee to £40m as at 30" Novernber 2015

St Modwen Properties PLC has guaranteed the liabilities of the following subsidianes in order that they quakfy for the exemption
from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the year ended 30" Novemnber 2015
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Information

Name of subsidiary

Company registration number

Blackpole Trading Estate {1978) Ltd L 00581658
Boughtan Holdings 04112012
Broomford Vange Ltd e ) ~ 05697168
Chertsey Road Property Lid 06899060
Festival Waters Ltd . ) 04354481
Holaw (462) Ltd e L L _ 03666441
Shaw Park Developments Ltd 04625000
St Modwen Deveicpments (Chorley) Ltd e 05727011
St Modwen Developments (Connah’s Quay) Ltd B 05726352
St Modwen Developments (Daresbury) Ltd o o L 06163550
St Modwen Developments (Fccles) Lid . o 05867740
St Modwen Developments (Hilbngeonjied -~~~ - 04150262
St Modwen Developments {Holderness) Ltd 05726995
S5t Modwen Developments (Hull) Ltd . o o 05593317
St Modwen Developmenits {Longbridge) Ltd 02885028
St Modwen Developments (MeonVale)ltd o 05294589
St Modwen Developments {Queens Market) Ltd 05289380
St Modwen Developments (Quinton)Ltd ) L 01479159
5t Modwen Developmenis (Telford) Ltd 05411357
S5t Modwen Developments (Weston) Ltd 05411348
St Modwen Developmenis (Wyihenshawe) Ltd o 05584279
St Modwen Hungerford Lid S i 06160323
St Modwen Investments Ltd 00528657
St Modwen Securities Ltd 00460301

22. Related party transactions

All related party transactions involving directors, and those Involving a change 1n the level of the Group's interest in non-

wholly owned subsidiaries, joint ventures and assoaates are specifically reviewed and approved by the Board Monttoring and
management of transactions between the Group and its non-wholly owned subsidiartes, joint ventures and assoCiates 15
delegated o the executive directors All related party transactions are clearly justified and beneficial to the Group, are undertaken
on an arm's length basis on fully commercial terms and in the normal course of business Related party transacuions are detailed

as follows

Joint ventures and associates
Key Property Investments Ltd {KPI)

During the year the Group provided management and construction senaces to KPl for which it receved fees totalling £0 4m
(2014 £04m) The balance due to the Group at year end was £0 8m (2014 £2 5m) No interest 1s charged on this balance

V5M Estates Uxbridge (Group) Ltd (VSM Uxbridge)

VSM Uxbridge 1s funded by loan notes and short-term funding provided by the Group and VINCI PLC together with bank
debt The balance due to the Group at the year end was £22 3m (2014 £21 8m), of which £6 0m (2014 £6 0m)} 1s loan notes
All amounis are interest bearing and interest charged in the year ended 30" November 2015 was £2 6m (2014 £2 2m)

VSM Estates (Holdings) Ltd (VSM Holdings)

VSM Holdings is funded by loan notes and short term funding provided by the Group and VINCI PLC The balance due from the
Group at the year-end was £0 5m (2014 £3 4m) All amounts due to the Group are interest bearing and interest charged in the
year ended 30% November 2015 was £1 1m (2014 £07m)

Barton Business Park Ltd (Barton)

The balance due to Barton at the year end was £3 8m (2014 £3 8m) No interest is charged on this balance
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22. Related party transactions {(continued)

Skypark Development Partnership LLP (Skypark)

During the year the Group provided funding of £0 6m to Skypark (2014 £nil) The balance due to the Group from Skypark at the
year endwas £1 7m (2014 £1 1m), of which £1 4m (2014 £1 1m) relates to loan notes issued to the Group Interest of £0 1Tm
(2014 £0 1m)was charged in the year

Wrexham Power Ltd {Wrexham Power)

During the year the Group provided funding to Wrexham Power of £0 2m (2014 £0 7m) The balance due to the Group at the
yearend was £1 1m (2014 £09m} No interest Is charged on this balance

Wrexham Land Ltd (Wrexham Land)

During the year the Group provided funding to Wrexham Land of £rél (2014 £nil} The balance due to the Group at the year end
was £0 1m (2014 £0 1m) No interest s charged on this balance

VSM (NCGM) Ltd (VSM (NCGM))

During the year the Group provided funding to VSM (NCGM) of £1 7m (2014 £1 5m) The balance due to the Group at the year
end was £4 6m (2014 £2 9m) No interest 1s charged on this balance

Pension

St Modwen Pension Scheme

The Group occupies offices owned by the pension scheme with an annual rental payable of £0 1m (2014 £0 1m) The balance due
to the Groug at year end was £nil (2014 £n)

Non-wholly owned subsidiaries

The Company provides administrative and management services and provides a central purchase ledger system to subsidiary
companies In addition, the Company also operates a central treasury function which lends to and borrows from subsidiary
undertakings as appropriate Management fees and interest charged/(credited) during the year and net balances due {to)/from
subsidiaries in which the Company has a less than 90% interest were as follows

Management faes Interest Balance
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2m4
£m Em £m £m £m £m
Norton & Proffitt Developments ttd - B - - - 03 03

Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration

(Investments) Ltd o - - - - - (0.6) (05
Stoke-on-Trent RegenerationLtd - - {0.2) {0 1.7 (o
VSM Estates (AshchurchjLltd - = - - 0.2 -
Widnes Regeneration Ltd - - - - 2.0 20
- - (0 2) 0N {19.8) (83)

All amounts due to the Group are unsecured and will be settled in cash All amounts above are stated before provisions for
doubiful debts of £nil (2014 £n1l) No guarantees have been given or receved frorn related parties

Transactions in which directors have an interest

Branston Properties Ltd (Branston)

In 2010 the Group entered Into an option to acquire the entire 1ssued share capital of Branston, of which Simon Clarke was a
shareholder, at market value The price paid for the opuon was £0 1m and exercise of this was contingent on certan planning
milestones being achieved Following achievement of the requisite planning rmilestones the optron was exeraised by the Group on
227 May 2014 and 87 5% of the issued share capital of Branston was acquired as discussed further in note 19

Key management personnel

The directors are considered to be the Group's key management personnel and their remuneration s disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneration Report
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Company Balance Sheet
as at 30 November 2015
2015 2014
Notes £m fm
Fixed assets o B o o
Tangblefixedassets —____ _® 0s_ 10
Investmenits held as fixed assets (F) 1,037.2 796 8
1,038 7978
Current assets
Debtors (mEILm amounts falhng-due after more than or;gykear of £212 6m o o T
(2014 £2126m) S By 6370 5633
Cash at bank and in hand o o o o B 37 32
Current liabilities o
Creditors amounts faling due within one year (H) {356.9) (328 5)
Net current assets 2838 2380
Total assets less current liabilities ) i . _ o 1,321.9 10358
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year (H) (354.3) (286 6)
Net assets 967.6 749 2
Capital and reserves _ L
Called up share capital ) ) {K) 22.2 221
Share premium account B - Wy 1028 1028
Revaluation reserve L) 767.3 5269
Profit and loss account o ~ _ o (B 249 482
Share incentive reserve (L) 52 48
Ownshares _ o . (8] (1.0} {18
Other reserves (L) 46 2 46 2
Equity shareholders’ funds 967.6 749 2

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board and autheonised for issue on 1% February 2016

Bill Oliver Rob Hudson
Chief Executive Group Fmance Director

Company Number 349201
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 November 2015

(A). Accounting palicles
Basis of preparation

The Company Financial Statements and notes have been prepared 1n accordance with applicable UK GAAP ¢n a going concern
basis, as discussed in the Strategic Report

The principal accounting policies are summansed below and have been applied consistently in the current and preceding year
Following the publication of FR$100 - Application of Financial Reporuing Requirements by the Financial Reporting Councl, the
Company 1s reguired to change its accounting framework for its entity financial staternents, which 1s currently UK GAAP, for its
financial year commencing 1# December 2015 The Company intends to adopt FRS101 - Reduced Disclosure Framework for
Its Parent Company Financial Statements No disclosures in the current UK GAAP Financial Statements would be omitted on
adoption of FRS101

Compliance with SSAP19 ‘Accounting for Investment Properties’ requires departure from the Companies Act 2006 relating to
depreciation and an explanation of the departure 15 gven below

Accounting convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain
properties, derivative financial iInstruments and the defined benefit secuon of the Company's pension scheme

Revenue recognition

Revenue 15 recognised to the extent that the Company obtains the right to consideration in exchange for its performance
Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration receved, excluding discounts and VAT

Rental income

Rental ncome anising from investment properties 1s accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Interest recevable
Interest recewvable 1s recognised on an accruals basis

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, ather than investrent properties, are stated at cost less accumuiated deprecation and accumulated
Impatrment losses Such cost includes costs directly atinbutable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation s provided on all plant, machinery and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost tess estimated residual
value, based on prices prevailing at the Balance Sheet date, of each asset eveniy over its expected useful hfe as follows

+ plant, machinery and equipment - over two to five years,
depreciation s not provided on investment properties which are subject to annual revaluations

Long leasehold investment properties

In accordance with SSAP19, investment properties are revalued annually and the aggregate surplus or temporary deficit
s transferred to the revaluauon reserve Permanent diminutions are recogrused through the Profit and Lass Account
No depreciation 1s provided In respect of investment properties

The Companies Act 2006 requires all properties to be depreciated However, this requirement conflicts with the generally
accepted accounting principle set out In SSAP19 The directors consider that, because these properues are not held for
cansumptron but for their Investment petential, to depreciate them would not give a true and fair view and that It 1s necessary to
adopt S5AP19 1n order to gve a true and fair vew If this departure from the Act had not been made, the profit for the financial
year would have been reduced by depreciation However, the amount of depreciation cannot reasonably be quantified because
depreciation is onty one of many factors reflected in the annual valuation and the amount which might otherwise have been
shown cannot be separately identified ar quantified

Investment in subsidiary, joint venture and assocated companies

The Invesiments In subsidiary, joint veniure and assoctated companies are included in the Company's Balance Sheet at the
Company’s share of net asset value The valuation recognises the cost of acquisttion and changes in the book values of the
underlying net assets The surplus or deficit ansing on revaluation is reflecied in the Company’s reserves

Current taxation

Current tax assets and habilties are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxaton authontes,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

The tax currently payable I1s based on the taxable result for the year The taxable result differs from the result as reported in the
Income Statement because it excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
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Deferred taxation

Deferred tax I1s recognised in respect of all uming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the Balance Sheet date
where transactions or events have occurred at that date that will result in an obligation to pay less or o receve more tax, with the
following exceptions

provision 1s made for tax on gains arsing from the revaluation (and similar fair value adjustments) of fixed assets and gains on
disposal of fixed assets that have been rolled over into replacement assets only to the extent that, at the Balance Sheet date,
there is a binding agreement to dispose of the assets concerned However, no provision 1s made where, on the basis of all
avallable evidence at the Balance Sheet date, it is more likely than not that the taxable gain will be rofled over into replacement
assets and charged to tax only where the replacement assets are sold, and

- deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directars consider that it s more likely than not that there will be
suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying tirming differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounied basis at the tax rates that are expected to agply in the penads inwhich timing
differences reverse based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date

interest
Interest paid 1s charged to the Profit and Lass Account on an accruals basis

Finance costs of debt are allocated over the term of the debt at a constant rate onthe carrying amount

Share-based payments

The Company accounts for share-based payments as equity seitled The Cornpany's equity settled share based payments are
measured at far value at the date of the grant using an appropnate option pricang model The farr value at the date of grant (or
the date of reclassificaucn from cash settled to equity settled) s expensed on a straight ine basis over the vesting penod on the
Compary’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest

Pensions

The Company operates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contribution sections The defined benefit
section Is closed to new members and, from 1% September 2009, to future accrual

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit section 1s determined using the projected unit credit method, which
attributes entitlerent to benefits to the current penod (to determine current service cost) and to the current and prior periods (to
determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation) and 1s based on actuarial advice Past service costs are recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account immediately if the benefits have vested

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in present value of scheme obligations The expected
return on plan assets 1s based on an assessment made at the beginning of the year of long-term market returns on scheme
assets, adjusted for the effect on the fair value of plan assets of contrbutions recewved and benefits paid during the year

The difference between the expected return on plan assets and the interest cost 1s recognised in the Profit and Lass Account as
other finance Income or expense

Actuarial gains and losses are recogrised in full in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses in the year inwihich they
oceur The defined benefit pension asset ar liability in the Balance Sheet comprises the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, less any past service cost not yet recognised and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to
be settled directly

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are recogrised in the Profit and Loss Account in the period in which they
become payable

Dervative financial instruments and hedging

The Company uses denvative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge its risks assocrated with interest rate
fluctuations Such instruments are initially recogrused at fair value on the date on which a contract is entered inio and are
subsequently remeasured at far value The Company has deterrmined that the denvatve finanaal instruments In use do not
qualfy for hedge accounting and, consequently, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivative financial
Instruments are taken to the Profit and Loss Account

Full details of the Company's dervative financial Instruments are given In note 16 to the Group Financial Statements

Own shares

Shares in St Modwen Properues PLC held by the Company are classified in as a deducuion from equity shareholder's funds and
are recogrised at cost
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fFinancial Statements

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 30" Novemnber 2015

{(A). Accounting policies {continued)
Interest beanng loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are inially recognised at fair value less directly atiributable transaction costs After ininal recognition,
loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost

Gains and losses ansing on the repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of hiabiliies are recognised respectively In finance
incorme and expense
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are assessed on issue as to whether they should be classified as a financial hability, as equity or as a compound
financial nstrument with both debt and equity components This assessment 1s based on the terms of the bond and i
accordance with FRS25 - Financial Instruments Presentation The convertible bonds have been designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Cperating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Cash Flow Statement
The Company has taken advantage of the exempuion permitted by FRS1 not to present a Cash Flow Staternent

(8). Result far the financlal year

The Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not incdluded its own Profit and Loss
Account In these Financial Statements The Company’s loss for the year ended 30" November 2015 was £2 7 (2014 profit
£139my)

{€C). Other Income Statement disclosures
(1) Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses have been arrived ai afier charging

2014
2015 restated
Em £
Deprecawon ) e 0.6 02
Operating lease <osts 1.5 10
(n) Audit fees
2015 2014
Audit and Audit and
audit-related Other audit-related Other
services services Total 5enaces SErvIces Fotal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fees paid to Delowte LLP in respectef o
Fees payable for the audit of the
Company's Annual Financial Statements 125 - 125 123 - 123
Total audit fees 125 - 125 123 - 123
Audit related assurance services 55 - 55 55 - 55
Other assurance senvices 3 - 3 20 - 20
Tax compliance services - 16 16 - 30 30
Tax advisory services - 20 20 - 55 55
Other - 2 2 ~ - -
Total non-audut fees 58 38 96 75 85 160

Total fees 183 38 221 198 85 283
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(m} Employees

The monthly average number of full-tme employees {including executive directors) employed by the Company during the year
was as follows

2015 2014
Number Number
Property and administration: o o S 257 220
Leisure and other actvities 31 40
Total employees 288 260
2015 2014
£m £Em
Wages and salaries ~ o 173 127
Social secunty costs 23 26
Pension Costs 0.8 07
Total payroll costs 204 160

(D). Dividends

Dvdends paid during the year were 3 final dvidend for 2014 and an intenm dividend for 2015 The proposed final dvidend 1s
subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a hability 1n these Financial Staternents

2015 2014

p per share £m p per share £m
Paid .
Final dvidend in respect of previousyear 314 69 267 59
Interim dividend in respect of current year 190 4.2 146 32
Total 5.04 111 413 91
Proposed o o L
Current year final dvidend 3.85 85 314 69

The St Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust waives its entitlement to dividends with the excepuon of 1/100p per share
(E). Tangible fixed assets

Long Plant,
leasehold machinery
investment and
properties equipment Total
£m £Em £m
Cost or valuation o o o _ e
AL30" November2004 . ____ _._._ 03 .33 _ .36
Additions . _ - 06 06
Disposals - (01} o
At 30* November 2015 0.3 3.8 41
Depreciation - _ _ . o
At 30" November 2014 . - 26 26
Charge for the year - 06 06
At 30* November 2015 - 3.2 3.2
Net book value o e o o
AL 30" November 2014 03 07 10
At 30 November 2015 0.3 06 0.9

Investment properties were valued at 30 Navember 2015 and 30" November 2014 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Ltd {since
the merger of the firms trading, and herein referred to, as Cushman & Wakefield), Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with
the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value Cushman
& Wakefield are professionally qualified ndependent external valuers and had appropriate recent experience in the relevant
locauion and category of the properties being valued

Lang leasehold investment properties are currently let under operating leases for the purpose of generating rental income
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements {continued)

for the year ended 30™ November 2015

{F). Investments held as fixed assets

Investment Investment
in subsidiary injoint
companies ventures Total
£m £m £m
Valuation i e o - )
AL 30" November 2014 699 9 969 796 8
Revaluation of investrments 771 1633 2404
At 30* November 2015 777.0 260 2 1,037.2
Cost o ) o o o
At 30" Novermber 2014 2784 265 3045
At 30* November 2015 278.4 26.5 304.9
Subsidiary undertakings, jomnt ventures and associates as at 30" Novernber 2015
Country of re;::::::'y‘ Ultimate % Principal
Company name incorporation number holding activities
Baglan Bay Company Ltd England and Wales (06383208 250%  Property development
Barton Business Park Ltd Engtlavnrdﬁand Wales 03807742 500% Property investment
Barton Business Park Property Management Ltd  England and Wales 05289394 500% Dormant
Bay Campus Developments LLP England and Wales =~ OC389022 50 0% Dormant
Blackpole Trading Estate (1978) Ltd England and Wales 00581658 100 0% Property investment
Blue lce (WidnesyLtd * EnglandandWales 06160293 1000%  Dormant
Boltro Properties Ltd England and Wales 02616865 100 0% Property investment
Boughton Enterprises Ltd England and Wales 05068420 100 0% Dormant
Boughton Holdings England and Wales 04112012 100 0% Property investment -
] . ceased trading
Branston Properties Lid ) ~ England and Wales 02893827 1000%  Property development
Broomford Vange Ltd England and Wales 05697168 100 0% Property investment
Castle Hil DJQ@ Lid N L Englan_d andWales 05411315 810% _Property de;felwop[na::-ﬁnt
Chaucer Estates Ltd England and Wales 00456386 1000%  Property nvestment/
o S o o ___ development
Chertgey Road Property Ltd England and Wales 06899060 100 0% Property investment -
o L o ceased trading

Coed Darcy Estates Management Ltd ___ EnglandandWales 07848407  1000%  Property management
CoedDaryltd ~ EnglandandWales 00577934  490%  Property development
Coed Darcy Management Ltd _ _ Englandand Wales 06477385 ~ 1000% _Dormant
Festival Waters Lid B - ~ England and Wales 04354481  1000% Property investment
Glan Liyn M;aingage_mient Ltd 7 7 o Er{grand and %Ei 7_(32@09 ) _ 1000% :E;ropgr_tg management
Great Yarmouth Regenerauon Ltd England and Wales (05594264 100 0% Dormant
Heenan Group Pensions Ltd England and Wales 00548316 000% Dormant
Holaw (462) Lid England and Wales 03666441 100 0% Property investment
Key Property (Developments) Ltd Engiand:n_d Wales 04780513 500%  Property development
Key Property Investments {(Number Eight) Ltd England and Wales 04502433 50 0% Property investment/

development
Key Property Investments (Number Eleven) Ltd England and Wales 05226386 S00% Property investrment
Key Property Investments {(Number Four) Ltd England and Wales 04305282 500% Property investment/

developrment
Key Property Investmenis (Number Nine) Lid England and Wales 04471664 50 0% Property investiment/

development
Key Property Investments (Number One) Ltd England and Wales 03450063 50 0% Property investment/

development
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Company

Country of registration Ultimate % Principal

Company name incorporation number heolding activities
Key Property Invesiments {Number Seven) Ltd England and Wales 04460875 50 0% Holding company
Key Property Investments (Number SxjLtd ~~~ Englandand Wales 04331826 50 0% _Holding company
Key Property Invesiments (Number Ten)Ltd ~ Englandand Wales 04471654  500% Dormant
Key Property Invesiments (Number Three) Ltd England and Wales 04305272 50 0% Property investment/
development

Key Property Investments (Number Tweltve) Ltd England and Wales 05732834 50 0% Dormant
Key Prop;erty I;westmeats‘(Number Two) Ltd 7 England and Wales 04177539 50 0% Property investment/
o o S development

Key Property Investments Ltd England and Wales 03372175 500% Holding company
Killingholme Energy Ltd England and Wales 08320277 1000%  Property development
Kilingholme Land Ltd England and Wales (8320297 1000%  Property development
Krughts Park (Management) Ltd England and Wales 02487814 16 7% Dormant
KPI Corporate Services Ltd England and Wales 09040522 500%  Property management
KPilSarl o Luxembourg B154101 50 0% Property investment
KPINNSar! Luxembourg B154102 50 0% Property investment
KPISarl Luxembourg B153301 50 0% Property investment
Lapwing Centre (Management) Ltd England and Wales 02487912 12 5% Dormant
Lawnmark Ltd England and Wales 04089229 100 0% Dormant
Leisure Living Ltd. England and Wales 02106984 1000%  Property deveiopment
Longbndge Innovation Centre Ltd England andWales 06163526 100 0% Dormant
Meaford Energy Ltd England and Wales 08575649 500%  Property development
Meaford Land Ltd England and wales 08575760 50 0% _Property development
Newcastle Regeneration Partnership Ltd England and Wales 02741086 100 0% Dormant
Norton & Proff tt—DeveIopments Ltd England and Wales 03717397 75 0% Property nvestment/
__development

Peacehaven Valley Owners Ltd ﬂ England andWales 02648782 42% Dormant
Petre Court Management (Number 1) Ltd England and Wales 06160268 100 0% _ Dormant
Radcyffe Estates Ltd ] " Englandanc Wales 05816682 100 0% Dormant
Redman Heenan Properties Ltd England and Wales 00073265 100 0% Property investment/
~ development

Sandpiper Quay {(Management Company No 1) England and Wales 02485619 133% o Dormant

Ltd
Sandpiper Quay (Management Company No 2)  England and Wales 02485456 100 0% " Dormant
Ltd

Saxc]ﬁé?sn%sé C‘eﬁrnf'tfe—(Mﬁgr;%erEt)mEdmAAuA #EAng:'uand and Wales 02470756 40 0%; o Dormant
Shaw Park Developments Ltd England and Wales 04625000 1000%  Property development
Skypark Deve!oprﬁegﬁérvtnersmp LLP England and Wales  OC343583 S00%  Property development
SMP 14H Sar o o Luxembourg B187462 100 0% Property investment.
Smpe Centre (Ma_nag_em_ent) Ltd S _E—n—g—l_and andWales 02485535  333% ‘Dormant
Sowcrest Ltd England and @es 02948648 1000% Property Investment
St Modwen Developments (Meon Vale) Ltd England andWales 05294589 ~1000% Property investment -
L ceased trading

St Modwen Secunties Ltg England and Wales 00460301 100 0% Property development
St Modwen (SACT) Ltd England and Wales 08296927 100 0% _ Dormant
St Modwer-lA(S;\ACZ) Ltd N Er;gléna and Wales 08296934 000% iSroperty Investment
St Modwen (Shelf 1) Ltd o England and ngg_s__ 02741186 1000% Dormarjt_
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
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(F). Investments held as fixed assets (continued)

Company
Country of registration Ultimate % Principal
Campany name incorporation number holding activities
5t Modwen (Shelf 64) Lid England and Wales 06160316 100 0% Dormant
St Modwen Corporate Services Ltd_ EnglandandWales 06163437 1000%  Property management
St Modwen Development (Coed Darcy) Ltd England andWales 06163563 100 0% " Dormant
5t @odwen Developments (Bg@@ Ltd England and Wales 05411282 100 0% - ~ Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Belle Vale) Ltd EnglandandWales 04145782 1000%  Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Blackburn) Ltd EnglandandWales 05732825 100 0% Property Investment
St Modwen Developments (Bognor Regss) Ltd England and Wales 06160250 000% Dormant
5t Modwen Developments (Brighton West Pier) Ltd  England and Wales 04069008 u‘lEO_B‘fb____ Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Chorley) Ltd England and Wales 05727011 100 0% Property Investment
St Modwen Developments {Colne) Ltd England and Wales 05726325 100 0% Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Connah's Quay) Lid England and Wales 05726352 100 0% Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Cranfield) Ltd __ Englandand Wales 06163503 100 0% Dormant
St Modwen—[)_e;éE—pments (Daresbury) Ld England andWales 06163550 100 0% " Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Eccles) Ltd England and Wales 05867740 100 0% Property investment
St Modwen Developments (Edmonton) Ltd E-ngl—a—n—d andWales 02405853 1000% Property investment/
development
St Modwen Developments (Facility Services) I:td WﬁEnigIand and Wales - 659_965_8_ iOO 0% o Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Hatfield) Ltd England and Wales (4354480 100 0% Property investment/
— development
St Modwen Developments (Hillington) Ltd England and Wales 04150262 100 0% Property investment/
S . ___development
St Modwen Developments (Holdemess) Ltd England and Wates 05726955 1000% Property development
St Modwen Developments (Hul)Ltd England and Wales 05593517  1000%  Property development
St M Modwen Developments(—KTrEBy—E) Ltd _Tirl_élgna andWales 09746395  1000% _'_Property d@lﬂﬁr&i&r_ﬁt
St Modwen Developments (Longbridge) Ltd England and Wales 02885028 100 0% Property investment/
development
St Modwenﬁé\;e]t;pments {Queens Market) iLid England andWales 05289380  1000% Pro—pe_rmac_)r_)_ment
St Modwen Developments (Quinton) Ltd Engléttd andWales 01479159 100 0% Prope-rty development
St Modwen Developments (Siverstone) Ltd Englandand Wales 05594232  1000% Dormant
S5t Modwen Developments (Skelmersdale) itld  Eng England and Wales 06163591 100 0% ~ Dormant
5t Modwen Developmer;ts {St Helens) Lid EnéElrtd and Wale§ N 0572_6666 ©1000% Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Telford) Ltd England and Wales 05411357 100 0% Property investment/
development
St Modwen Developments (Walthamstow) Ltd éngland andWales 06163459 100 0% Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Weston) Ltd EngEnti andWales 05411348 100 0% Property development
St Modwen Developments (Wythenshawe 2)Lid ~ England and Wales 05851760 100 0% " Dormant
St Modwen Developments (Wythenshawe) Ltd England and Wales 05594279 100 0% Dormant
St Modwen Developments Lid England and Wales 00892832 100 0% Propérty Investment/
_development
St Modwen Holdings Lid England and Wales 01991339 100 0% Dormant
St Modwen Homes Ltd _ England and Wales 09095920 1000%  Property development
St Modwen Hungerford Ltd ) . England and Wales 06160323 1000%  Property development
St Modwen Investmenis Ltd - Englaﬂd‘ andWales 00528657 100 0%  Propertynvestment
St Modwen Neath CanalLtd EnglandandWales 06160309 1000% __ Holding company
St Modwen Pensions Ltd ___England and Wales 00878604 © 1000% T porman
St Modwen Propenreg 11 Siai T ) Luxembo-u—r__g_- 8199875 100 0% Property investrment
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Company
Country of registration Ultimate % Principal
Company name incorporation number holding activities
St Modwen Properties 1Sar| Luxembourg B154036 100 0% Property investment
St Modwen Properttes 1 Sar| Luxembourg B154040 100 0% Property investment
St Modwen Prope?t-:es M Sj‘il o Luxembourg B154089 100 0% Property nvestment
g_t Modwen Properties VS ar| _ _ Luxembourg B154061 100 0% Property investment
St Modwen Properties XS a7 | Luxembourg B154099 100 0% Property Investment
St Modwen PropertiesSarl Luxembourg B15333% 100 0% Property investrment
St Modwen Properties Securities (Jérsey) Lid Jersey 114977 100 0% Financng compér—&
St Modwen Properiies VS ar| Luxembourg B154141 1000%  Property mnvestment
St Modwen | Properties VISar| L Luxembourg B154133 ~ 1000% Property investment
St Modwen Properties VIl Sar | Luxembourg B154093 _— 100 0% Property investment
St Modwen Properties Vil Sar | Luxembourg  B154097 100 0% Property nvestment
St Modwen Prop;e_rnés Xsarl o B Lu_xemboarg CB154153  1000% fProEértyfugﬁve‘st-r;E;t_
St Modwen Residential Living Ltd England and Wales 09266033 ___ 1000%  Property management
St Modwen Services Ltd England and Wales 02885024 1000% Dormant
St Modwen VenturesLtd England and Wales 01486151 100 0% Property investment/
. ___ developmemnt
Statedale Ltd o o England and Wales 03656832  1000%  Holding company
Stoke on Trent ﬁegeneratlon {Investments) Ld Englaindiand Wales 04289476  500% Property investment
Stoke on Trent Regeneration Ltd England and Wales 02265579 50 0% Property invesiment/
development
Swan Business Park (Management) Ltd England and Wales 02424524 250% Dormant
The Company of Prc?pnetors of the Neath ) England andWales  2C000173 68 4% Proberty Investment
Canal Navigation _ o L o i )
Trentham Gardens Ltd England and Wales 00533242 100 0% Dormant
Trentham Leisure Ltd England and Wales 03246990 100 0% Property investment
Tukdev 11 Lid England and Wales 02885000 100 0% Dormant
Uttoxeter Estates Ltd _ England and Wales 02725709 810% Property investment
VSM (Mt HIIl 1) Ld England and Wales 05851870 500%  Property development
VSM (Mill Hill 2)Ltd o England and Wales 05851871 500%  Property development
VSM (Mill Hill 3) Ltd . R o Englabd gn_d_\fvfalgs_ 05851774 500%  Property develqp_rrﬂ
VSM (Wil Hill 4) Led i _ EnglandandWales 05867674 S00% _ Property development
VSM (Mil Hil 5) Ltd Englandand Wales 05867677 ~_ 500%  Property development
VSM (Mill Hill 6) Ltd _ o England and Wales 05867678 500%  Property development
VSMINCGM)Ltd L __EnglandandWales 08333203 500% Property development
VSM (Uxbridge 1} Ltd i o England and Wales 05851806 50 0% Property investment
VSM (Uxbridge 2) L " EnglandandWales 05851814  500%  Propertymvestment
VSM (Uxbridge 3) Ltd _ EnglandandWales 05851817  500%  Property investment
VSM (Uxbridge 4) Lid "~ EnglandandWales 05851821  500%  Property nvestment
VoM {Uxbridge S)kid England and Wales 05851830 50 0% Property investment
VSM (Uxbridge 6) Lid England and Wales 05851841 50 0% Property nvestment
VSM (Uxbndge 7) Lid England and Wales 05851862 500%  Property investment
VSM (Uxbridge 8) Ltd England and Wales 05851866 S00%  Property nvestment
VSM (West Ruislip 3) Ltd England and Wales 05867747 ) 50 0% Property rnvestment -
o - o ceased trading
VSM (West Ruislip 4) Lid  EnglandandWales 05867730  500% _Dormant
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for the year ended 30 November 2015

(F). Investments held as fixed assets (continued)

Company

Country of registration Ultimate % Principal

Company name incorporation number holding activities
VSM (West Ruislip 1) Ltd England and Wales 05732822 50 0% Dormant
VSM(WestRuslip)Llid England and Wales 05732818 50 0% Dormant
VSM (Wooiwich ﬁ[t?iﬁ 7 England and Wales 0586ﬁ7 56_0% N E’foperfy mvestmér?:
. . S _ ceasedtrading
VSM (Woolwich 2) Ltd England and Wales 05867692 50 0% Dormant
VSM Estates (Ashchurch) Ltd "~ Englandand Wales 09494284 500%  Property nvestment/
. ~ o development
VSM Estates (Holdings) Ltd England and Wales 05867718 S500%  Property development
VSM Estates (Uxbridge Holdings) Ltd "~ EnglandandWales 08030263 50 0% Dormant
VSM Estates (Uxbridge} Ltd Englang and Wales 08000629 500% Property investment/
_—_ - - development

VSM Estates Ltd EnglandandWales 05732806  500%  Property development
VSM Estates Uxbr—lage {Group) Ltd B —E—r:égnd andWales 08083799 500%  Property development
Walton Securities Ltd England and Wales 02314059 100 0% Dormant
Widnes Regeheratlon Ltd a England and Wales 03643210  810% 7|5r707pmé7r£y aéveiopm;ant
Woking Developments Ltd Englandand Wales 05411325  1000% Dormant
Woodingdean Estate Management Cc;rnpany Ltd  England and Wales 09293061 1000%  Property management
Wrexham Land Lid _ _ Englandand Wales 06748467 500%  Property development
Wrexham Power Ltd England and Wales 06762265 50 0% Property development

Many of the shareholder agreements for joint ventures and associates contain change of control provisions, as 1s common for

such arrangements
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{G). Debtors
2015 204
£m £m
Amounts falling due after more than one year: o
Amourts faling due from subsidaries 2066 _ _ 2066
Amounts due from joint venture and associated companies 6.0 60
212.6 2126
2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 03 01
Amounts due from subsidiaries 362.6 3042
Amounts due from joint venture and associated companies ) 343 228
Other debtors 07 19
Prepayments and accrued income 41 60
Derwvatve financial nstruments 0.8 10
Corporation tax 189 125
Deferred tax asset (see note ()) 27 22
424.4 3507
{H). Creditors
2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts falling due withinoneyear- ) o )
Bank overdrafts - 37
Trade crednors . - 09
Amounts due to subsidianies 38 2920
Amounts due to jomnt venture and assoclated comparues ) ) ) 155 47
Other tax and social secunty } 1.6 08
Other creditors o o i o o 1.2 _ 15
Accruals and deferred income _ 98 119
Derwatve financial instruments 170 130
356.9 3285
2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts falling due after more than one year o ] L
Bank loans . 182.5 1066
Other loans 1718 1800
354.3 286 6

All bank borrowings are secured by a fixed charge over the property assets of the Company and its subsidiaries

Other loans comprise an unsecured 6 25% fixed rate retall bond maturning In November 2019 and a 2 875% convertible bond

maturing March 2019
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 30" November 2015

(1). Borrowings
The maturity profile of the bank borrowings I1s as follows

2015 2014
£Em £m
Less than one year _ i o . - -
One to two years . e _ _ - .
Two to five years o _ o 316.8 2491
More than five years 375 375
Total 3543 2866
()). Deferred taxation
The amounis of deferred taxation provided and unprovided in the Financial Statements are
Provided Unprovided
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Other uming differences 2.7 22 139.1 935

The unprovided deferred taxation represents the amounts that would be payable should the Compariy sell all of its invesiments in

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies

Reconcihation of movement on deferred tax asset included in debtors

£m
Balance as at 30" November 2014 o . o ) 22
Profit and loss account 05
Balance as at 30* November 2015 27
Reconaliation of deferred tax hability included 1n pension scheme asset
£m
Balance as at 30" November 2014 e . - -
Profitand LossAccount. _ ) . L =
Staterment of Total Recognised Gains and Losses -
Balance as at 30* November 2015 -
(K). Share capital
Ordinary 10p
shares
Equity share capital Number £m
At start of year o S _ 221,376,988 221
Issue of share capital 500,000 01
At end of year 221,876,988 22.2

On 23 September 2015 the Company 1ssued 500,000 ordinary shares of 10p each at par The shares were allotied and issued to
The S5t Modwen Propertes PLC Employee Share Trust to satisfy the exercise of awards made under the Company’s share-based

inceniive arrangements

See note 3d of the Group Finanaal Statements for details of outstanding options to acquire ordinary shares
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(L). Reserves
Share Profit Share
premium Revaluation and loss incentive Own Other
account reserve account reserve shares reserves
£m £m £m Em £m £Em
Al 30" Novernber 2014 1028 5269 482 48 (18) 462
Surplus on revaluation of nvestments - 2404 - - - -
Retained (loss) for the year (note B) - - 27 - - -
Equity Issue - - - - () -
Share-based payment charge - - {8 6) 04 - -
Net share disposals - - 09) - 08 -
Dividends paid (note D) - - (111 - - -
Actuarial loss on pension scheme
{note M) o . - - - - - -
Movement on deferred tax relating to
pension asset (note J) - - - - - -
At 30™ November 2015 102.8 767.3 249 5.2 {10} 46.2

Own shares represents the cost of 680,274 (2014 460,427) shares held by The St Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust
The open market value of the shares held at 30" November 2015 was £2,985,435(2014 £1,763,435) In addiion the Employee

Benefit Trust has £0 1m (2014 £0 1m} of cash and an intercompany recerable of £13 8m due to the Company (2014 £2 8m due
to the Company), that can only be used for the benefit of employees

(M). Pensions

The Company's pension schemes are the principal pension schemes of the Group and detalls are set out In note 18 of the Group
Financial Statements The directors are satsfied that this note, which contains the required JAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ disclosures
for the Group, also covers the requirements of FRS17 ‘Retirement Benefits' for the Company

(N). Operating lease commitments
Operating lease commitments where the Company Is the lessee
Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2015 2014
Land and Land and
buildings Other buldings Other
£m £m £m Em
Operating leases which expire:
in one year or less ) ) - - - -
Between one and fiveyears o N 0.5 07 05 07
In more than five years 0.1 0.6 01 06
06 1.3 06 13

{0). Contingent liabilities

Details of contungent hlabiibies together with guarantees made in respect of certain subsidiaries in order that they qualify for the
exemption from audit under section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 are provided in note 21 to the Group Financial Statements
Further the Company guarantees the performance of its subsidianes in the course of therr usual commercial actvities Fe S
(P). Related party transactions

Details of related party transactions are provded in note 22 to the Group Financial Statements
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Five Year Record
201 202 2013 restated 2014 restated 2015
£m £m £m £m Em
Rental incornet 355 362 363 371 387
Property profits™@ 238 290 377 513 67.4
Revaluation surplus/{defici)?® 339 280 391 935 201.7
Profit before all taxt® 517 528 772 1354 258.4
Earnings per share (pence) 217 213 309 538 97.9
Dmdends paid per share (pence) 310 34 375 413 5.04
Dmdend cover (tmes) 70 62 82 130 194
Shareholders' equity net assets per share (pence) 2318 2508 2788 3251 4135
Increase on prior year 9% 8% 11% 17% 27%
Net assets employed ) . B .
Investment properties 8487 7704 7446 8568 10810
Investments ) o 503 752 1201 1272 227.3
Inventories 1911 1752 1997 2010 183.7
Other net Labilities (2670) (141 71) {112 9) (101 0) (68.4)
Net debt (3471) {366 0) {3349) (360 0) (502.1)
Minonity interests (11 6) (111} {4 5) (59) (6.8)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 464 4 5026 6121 7181 9147
Financed by o
Share capital 200 200 220 221 222
Reserves 4449 4831 590 4 6978 8935
Own shares {05) 05 (@ 3) (18) (1.0)
464 4 5026 6121 7181 914.7

(1) Including share of joint ventures
(2) Stated before net realisable value provisicns

(3) Including net reahsable value provisions and where applicable negative goodwill ansing on acguisiions as a result of far value adjustments to property assets

(4) Stated before joint venture tax

The figures above are all presented under [FRSs
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Glossary of terms

Active management - the component of property revaluations delivered as a direct result of management actions and inibatives,
for example obtaining planning consent, achieving remediauon milestones and improving lease terms

Adjusted gearing - the level of the Group’s net borrowings (at amoriised cost and excluding finance leases) expressed as a
percentage of net assets

Average lease length - the weighted average lease term to the first tenant break

EPRA - the European Public Real Estate Association, a body that has put forward recommendations for best practice in financial
reportng by real estate companies

EPRA net asset value (EPRA NAV) - the Balance Sheet net assets, adjusted {o include the fair value of inventories and exclude
deferred tax on capital allowances and revaluations, and mark-to-market of dervatve financial instruments

EPRA net asset value per share - EPRA net asset value dvided by the number of ordinary shares in ssue at the penod end
{excluding shares held by The St Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust)

Equivalent yield - a weighted average of the initial yield and reversionary yield and represents the return a property will produce
based on the tming of the income received

Estimated rental value (ERV) - the Group’s external valuers apinion as to the open market rent which, on the date of valuation,
could reasonably be expected to be obtained on a new letting or rent review of the property

Gearng - the level of the Group's net debt expressed as a percentage of net assets

Gross development value (GDV) - the sale value of property after construction

IFRIC - International Financial Reporting interpretations Committee

IFRSs - Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards

initial yreld - the annualised net rent of a property expressed as a percentage of the property’s valuation

Interest - net finance costs (excluding the mark-to-market of dervative financial Instruments and other non-cash items) for the
Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates)

Interest cover - the ratio of operating income less cverheads to interest for the Group (including its share of joint ventures
and associates)

Land bank - 100% of the fand and property owned and controlled by the Group together with joint ventures and associates
(including land under option and development agreements)

LIBOR - the London interbank offered rate 1s the interest rate which banks charge when lending to other banks

Loan-to-value (LTV) - the level of the Group’s net borrowings expressed as a percentage of the Group's property portfolio
excluding assets held under finance leases (representing amounts that could be used as security of that debt and excluding
assets held under finance leases) 1

Market value - an opinion of the best price at which the sale of an interest in the property would complete uncondiionally for
cash consideration on the date of valuation, as determined by the Group's external valuers In accordance with usual practice,
the Group's external valuers report valuations net, after the deduction of the prospective purchaser’s costs, Including stamp duty,
agent and legal fees

Net asset value (NAV) per share - equity attnibutable to owners of the Company dvided by the number of ordinary shares in
Issue at the penad end {excluding shares held by The 5t Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust}

Net borrowings - total borrowings (at amorused cost and excluding finance leases) less cash and cash equivalents and fair value
rmovernents on the Group's convertible bond

Net debt - total borrowings and finance leases including fair value movements in the Group’s convertible bond less cash and
cash equwalents

Net initial yield - a calcutation by the Group's external valuers as the yield that would be recewed by a purchaser, based on
the esumated net rental Income expressed as a percentage of the acquisition cost, being the market value plus assumed actual
purchasers’ costs at the reportng date The calculation 1s in line with EPRA guidance

Net rental income - the rental iIncome recevable in the period less non-recoverable property costs for the Group (including its
share of joint ventures and associates)
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Glossary of terms (continued)

Occupancy rates/levels - the ERV attributable to vacant units as a proportion of total ERV (including the Group's share of joint
ventures and associates)

Operating costs/business running costs - administrative expenses plus net finance costs (excluding the mark-to-market of
dervative financal instruments and other non-cash tems) for the Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates)

Operating income - the total of net rental Income, other income and property profits for the Group (ncluding its share of joint
venture and associates)

Other income - other rental type INncome generated from the operating assets of the Group (including its share of joint ventures
and associates)

Persimmon joint venture - 3 seres of commeraal contracts with Persimmon to develop residenual units on agreed sites within
St Modwen's land bank

Pre-sold properties under construction - those properties we are constructing that have been specified by and designed

for, or adapted by, a specific client under a specffic construction contract On such projects, profit 1s recognised using the stage
completion method

Profit before all tax - profit before tax stated before the deduction of tax payable by joint ventures and associates

Project MoDEL - Project MoDEL originally saw six former London-based RAF sites freed up for disposal and development as

the MoD relocated to an integrated site at RAF Northalt VINCI St Modwen (VSM) was appointed by the MoD 1n 2006 to secure
planning consent to redevelop the six sites of which VSM dispesed of four, retaining RAF Mill Hill and RAF Uxbnidge The latter was
removed from the MoD arrangement and transferred to a separate joint venture with VINC| in 2012

Property portfolo - investment properties and inventories of the Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates)
comprising Income producing properties together with residential and commercial land

Property profits - development profit (befare the deduction of net realisable value provisions) plus gains on disposals of
Investments/investment properties for the Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates)

Rent roll - the gross rent plus rent reviews that have been agreed as at the reporting date
Reversionary yteld - the anticipated yield to which the ininal yield will rise or fall once the rent reaches the ERV
RICS - Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

Section 106 agreement - planning obligations attached to a development, often improvements to local infrastructure and
facliwes, to ensure that wherever possible a development makes a positive contribution to the local area and cormunity

See-through loan-to-value (LTV) - the level of the Group's net borrowings expressed as a percentage of the Group's
property portfolio

SIC - Standards and Interpretations Committee
Trading profit - operating income less cperating costs

TSR - total sharenolder return, representing the growth in value of a sharehalding over a specified period, assuming that
dvidends are reinvested to purchase additional units of stock

Weighted average term of borrowings - each tranche of the Group's borrowings is multiplied by the remaining penod to its
matunty and the result s dvided by total Group borrowings at the period end

Weighted average interest rate - the Group's annualsed loan interest and dervatve ¢osts at the period end, dvided by total
Group borrowings at the period end
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 15 hereby given that the seventy fifth Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of St Madwen Properties PLC (the Company}
will be held in the Evolution Sutte, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon
Way, Longbridge Technology Park, Birmingham B31 2TS on
Wednesday, 23* March 2016 at 12 00 noon to consider and,
if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions Resalutions 1
to 15 inclusive will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and
resolutions 16 to 19 will be proposed as speaal resolutions

Ordinary business
1 That the Annual Report and Financial Statemenits for the
financial year ended 30" November 2015 be recewved

2 Thatthe Directors’ Remuneration Report, excluding the
part containing the directors’ remunerauon policy, set
out on pages 70 to 93 of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 30" November
2015 be approved

3 Thata final dwvdend for the financial year ended 30
November 2015 of 3 85p per ordinary share payable
on 1= April 2016 to those shareholders on the register
of members at the dose of business on 4 March 2016
be declared

That Rob Hudson be elected as a director
That lan Bull be re-elected as a director

That Steve Burke be re-elected as a director
That Kay Chaldecott be re-elected as a director
That Simon Clarke be re-elected as a director

W o N

That Lesley James be re-elected as a director

10 That Richard Mully be re-elected as a director
11 That Bill Olver be re-elected as a director

12 That Bill Shannon be re-elected as a director

13 That Deloitte LLP be re-appointed as auditor of the
Company to hold office unti the canclusion of the next
general meeting at which accounts are laid

14 That the Audit Committee be authorised to determing
the remuneration of the Company's auditor on behalf of
the Board

15 That, in substitution for all exisung authoriies and without
prejudice to previous allotments or offers or agreement
to allot made pursuant to such authonties, the directors
be generally and unconditonally authonsed in accordance
with section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the 2006 Act)
to exercise all the powers of the Company to

{8} allot shares in the Company or grant nghts to
subscribe for or to convert any secunty Into shares in
the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£7,395,899, and

(b} allot equity securities (withun the meaning of section
560 of the 2006 Act) up to a further aggregate nominal
amount of £7,359,899 in connection with an offer by
way of a nights 1ssue o

{ ordinary sharehaolders in proportion (as nearly as
may be practicable) to thewr existing holdings, and

{1} holders of other equity securiues, as required by the
nights of those securites or, subject 1o such nghts, as
the direciors otherwise consider necessary,

subject to such exclusicns or other arrangements as
the directors may deem necessary or expedient to
deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements or
legal or pracuical problems under the laws of, or the
requirements of any regulatory body or any stock
exchange In, any COUNiry or territory,

such authorities to expire ai the conclusion of the AGM of
the Company to be held after the date of the passing of this
resolutron or 22™ June 2017, whichever s the earlier, but,

in each case, so that the Company may make offers and
enter Into agreements before the expiry of such authority
which would or might reguire shares to be allotted or rights
to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares to be
granted after such expiry and the directors may allot shares
or grant such nights under any such offer or agreement as If
the authority had not expired

Special resolution
16 That, in substitution for all existing powers and subject to

the passing of resclution 15, the directors be generally
empowered pursuant to section 570 of the Cormpanies

Act 2006 (the 2006 Act) to allot eguity securities (within the
meaning of section 560 of the 2006 Act} for cash pursuant
10 the authonity conferred by resolution 15 and/or where
the allotment constitutes an allotment of equity securities
by wvirtue of section 560(3) of the 2006 Act, In each case free
of the restriction in section 561 of the 2006 Act, provided
that such power to be limited to

(a} the allotment of equity securities pursuant to the
authority granted by paragraph (a) of resolunon 15 and/
or an allotment which constitutes an ailotment of equity
securities by virtue of section 560(3) of the 2006 Act
(in each case otherwise than in the crcumstances set
out 1n paragraph {b) of this resolution} up to a nomwnal
amount of £2,218,769, and

b

Pty

the allotment of equity securities In connection with an
offer of equity securities (but in the case of an allotment
pursuant to the authornty granted by paragraph (b)

of resclution 15, such power shall be imited to the
allotment of equity securities in conneciion with an offer
by way of a nights issue only}

{ to ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as
may be practicable) to thewr existing holdings, and

{1 to holders of other equity secunities, as required
by the nghts of those securities or, subject to such
rights, as the directors otherwise consider necessary,

subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as
the directors may deem necessary or expedient to
deal with treasury shares, fracticnal entitternents or
legal or practical problems under the taws of, or the
reguirements of any regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any country or terntory,
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Special business (continued)

such power to expire at the concluston of the AGM of the
Company to be held afier the date of the passing of this
resolutron or 22™ June 2017, whichever 1s the earlier, but so
that the Company may make offers and enter into agreements
before the power expires which would or might require equity
securities to be allotied after such power expires and the
directors may allot equity securites under any such offer or
agreement as If the power had not expired

Special resolution

17 That the Company be generally and uncondiiionally
authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the 2006 Act) to make market
purchases (as defined In section 693 of the 2006 Act) of
ardinary shares of 10p each in its capital (Ordinary Shares)
onsuch terms and 1n such manner as the directors may
from ume to time determine prowded that

(3) the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares
hereby authonised to be purchased 15 22,187,698,

{b} the minmum price which may be paid for an Ordinary
Share 1s 10p (exclusive of expenses),

() the maximum price which may be paid for an
QOrdinary Share 1s the highest of (in each case exclusive
of expenses)

(1} an amount equal to 105% of the average market
value of an Ordinary Share for the five business
days immediately preceding the day on which the
Ordinary Share 1s contracted to be purchased, and

(1) the higher of the price of the last Independent trade
and the highest current independent bid for any
number of Ordinary Shares on the London Stock
Exchange, and

(d

—

this authority shall, unless previcusly renewed, expire
at the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be
held after the date of the passing of this resolution
or 22 June 2017, whichever 1s the earler, except in
relavon to the purchase of any Ordinary Shares the
contract for which was concluced before the date of
expiry of the authonity and which would or might be
completed wholly or partly after that date

Speaial resolution

18 That a general meeting other than an AGM may be called
on not less than 14 clear days’ notice

Special resolution

19 That the new Articles of Association of the Company
produced to the meeting and inwalled by the Chairman for
the purpose of identification be adopted as the Articles of
Association of the Campany in subsatution for, and to the
exclusion cof, its existing Aruicles of Assocation

Recommendation

The Board confirms that, in its opinion, all of the resolutions
are in the best interests of the Compary and its shareholders
as a whole The directors unarimously recommend

that shareholders vote In favour of each of the above
resolutions, as they intend to do in respect of their own
beneficial shareholdings

By arder of the Board

Tanya Stote
Company Secretary

18" February 2016

St Modwen Properties PLC
Registered number 349201

Registered Office Park Paint, 17 High Street, Longbndge,
Brrmingham B31 2UQ
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Explanatory notes to proposed resolutions
Ordinary resclutions

For a resolution proposed as an ordinary resolution to be
passed, more than half of the votes cast must be in favour of
the resolution

Resolution 1 - Annual Report and Financial Statements
Resolution 1 1s an ordinary resolutton to receive the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the financial year ended
30" November 2015 Copies will be available at the AGM

Resolution 2 - Directors’ Remuneration Report

Resolution 2 1s an ordinary resolution to approve the Directors’
Remunerauon Report, other than the part containing the
direciors’ remuneration policy Resolution 215 an adwvisory
resolution and does not affect the future remuneration

paid to any director A resclution to approve the directors’
remuneration policy (set out 1n full in the Annual Report and
Financial Statements for the year ended 30*" Navember 2013
which 1s available at www stmodwen co uk) was approved by
shareholders at the 2014 AGM

Resolution 3 - Declaration of final dvidend

Resolution 3 1s an ordinary resclution by which shareholders
are asked to declare a final dvidend The directors recommend
a final dwvidend for the financial year ended 30* Novernber
2015 of 3 85p per ordinary share If approved, this will be paid
on 1% April 2016 to shareholders on the register of members at
the dlose of business on 4" March 2016

Resolutions 4 to 12 - Election and re-election of directors
Resoluuons 4 to 12 are ordinary resolutions which deal with
the election and re-election of the directors

Following his appointment to the Board an 28" September
2015 and n accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, Rob Hudson will retire and offer himself for
election at the 2016 AGM All other directors will retire and offer
themselves for re-election n accordance with the 2014 UK
Corporate Governance Code

Biographical detals of all directors are set out on pages 48
and 49

The performance of the Board as a whole, as well as the
contnibution made by indwvidual directors, has been reviewed
duning the course of the year After considening this evaluation,
the Chairman has confirmed that the performance of every
executive and non-executive director continues to be effectve,
that they continue to demonstrate commitment to their
respective roles, and that their respective skills complement
one another to enhance the overali operation of the Board

Resolutions 13 and 14 - Auditor oppointment and
remuneration

At last year's AGM shareholders re-appointed Deloitte LLP

as auditor of the Company to hold office until the conclusion

of the 2016 AGM Deloitte has expressed a willngness ta
conunue in office and the Audit Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the audit process and recommends therr
re-appointment Therefore resolutions 13 and 14 are ordinary
resolutions to re-appomnt Deloiite LLP as auditor unul the
conclusion of the next general meeting at which accounts are
laid before the Company and to authorise the Audit Committee
to determine thewr remuneration on behalf of the Board

Resolution 15 - Authority to ollot shares

The authonty conferred on the directors at last year's AGM to
allot shares in the Campany expires at the conclusion of the
2016 AGM Resoluton 15 1s an ordinary resolution to renew
this authority

The investment Association {{A) guidelines on directors’
authority 1o allot shares state that IA members will permit,

and treat as routine, resolutions seeking authoriy to allot new
shares representing up to one-third of a company's issued
share capital In addition, they will treat as routine a request for
authority to allot shares representing an additional one-third of
a company’s issued share capital provided that it 1s only used to
allot shares pursuant to a fully pre-emptive nghts issue

Paragraph (a) of resclution 15 will, if resolution 1515 passed,
authorise the directors to allot shares up to a maximum
aggregate nominal amount of £7,395,899, which represents
one-third of the Company's 1ssued ordinary share capital as at
9t February 2016 (being the latest practicable date prior to the
publicauion of the notice of AGM) Paragraph (p) of resolution
15 proposes that, in accordance with 1A guidance, an additional
authonty be conferred on the directors to allot shares in
connection with a rights 1ssue up o a further maximum
aggregate nominal amount of £7,395,899

The authorities sought In paragraphs (a) and (b) of resolution
15 are in subsutution for all exsung authorities granted in the
Company's Articles of Association or otherwise, and are without
prejudice to previous allotments or agreements or offers to
allot made under such existing authorities The authorites will
each expire at the earlier of the conclusion of the next AGM of
the Company and 22™ June 2017

The directors have no present intention of exercising these
authorities other than to fulfil the Company's obligations
under its share incentive schemes approved previously by
shareholders, but believe thatitis in the best interests of

the Company to have the authorities available to respond to
markel developmenis and (o enable allotmentis to take place
without the need for a general meeting should they determine
that it i1s appropnate to do so

Special resolutions

For a resolution proposed as a special resolution to be passed,
at least three-quarters of the votes cast must be i favour of
the resolution
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Explanatory notes to proposed resolutions
{continued)

Resolution 16 - Authority to disapply pre-emption rights

If the directors wish to allot new shares and other equity
securities company law requires that these shares are offered
first to shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings

Resolution 16 1s a special resolution which seeks to renew the
authonty conferred on the directors at last year's AGM to issue
equity securiiies of the Company for cash without application
of the pre-emption rights as provided by section 561 of the
Companies Act 2006

Paragraph (a) of resolution 16 will, if resclution 16 1s passed,
authorise the directors to allot new shares pursuant to the
authority given in paragraph (a) of resolution 15 for cash up to
a maximurm aggregate nominal value of £2,218,769, equivalent
to 10% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at
9 February 2016 (being the latest practicable date prior to
the publication of the notice of AGM) without the shares first
being offered tc existing shareholders in proportion to their
existing holdings

In addinon, in light of the IA guidance described in the
explanation of resclution 15 above, paragraph (b) of resolution
16 will, If resolution 16 1s passed, authonse the directors to
allot new shares pursuani to the authonty gven by paragraph
{b) of resolution 15 for cash in connection with a nghts 1ssue
without the shares first being offered to existing shareholders
1 proportion to their existing heldings

This authority 15 1IN line with institutional shareholder guidance,
and in particular with the Pre-Emption Group's Statement of
Principles {the Pre-Emption Principles) revised in March 2015
to allow the authonty for an 1ssue of shares for cash otherwise
than in connecuon with a pre-emptive offer to be increased
from 5% to 10% of a company's issued ordinary share capial,
provided that the company confirms that it ntends to use the
addinonal 5% authority only in connection with an acquisition
or specified capital investment (within the meaning of the
Pre-Emption Principles) The directors therefore confirm, in
accordance with the Pre-Emption Principles

(a) that to the extent the authority in paragraph (a) of
resolutian 1615 used for an issue of ordinary shares with a
norminal value N excess of £1,109,384, representng 5% of the
Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at §* February
2016 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication
of the notice of AGM), they imtend that this authority will only
be used In connection with an acquisiion or specified capital
invesiment which 1s announced contemporaneously with the
1ssue, or which has taken place in the preceding six-month
pened and 1s disclosed In the announcement of the issue, and

(D) that, excluding any shares issued In connection with an
acquisiion or specified capital investment as described above,
they intend not to 1ssue more than 7 5% of the Company's
1ssued ordinary share capital for cash other than to existing
shareholders in any rolling three-year period without prior
consultation with shareholders

The authorities sought in paragraphs (a) and {b) of resolution
16 are in substitution for all existing authonties granted in the
Company's Articles of Associauion or otherwise, and are without
prejudice to previous allotments or agreements or offers to
allot made under such existing authorities The authorities will
each expire at the earher of the conclusion of the next AGM of
the Company and 22™ June 2017

The directors have no present intention of exercising this
authority other than to fulfil the Company’s obligations
under its share incentive schemes approved previously by
shareholders, but consider it prudent to abtain the flexibility
that this authonity provides

Resolution 17 - Authority to purchase shares

Resolution 17 1s a special resolution to renew ihe authority
granted to the directors at last year's AGM to make market
purchases of its own ordinary shares through the market as
permitted by the Companies Act 2006 and within institutional
shareholder guidelines No shares were purchased during the
year and the Company does not hold any shares in treasury

If passed, the resolunon gives authornity for the Company

to purchase up 1o 22,187,698 of its ordinary shares, which
represents 10% of the Campany's issued ordinary share capital
as at 9 February 2016 (being the latest pracucable date

prior to the publication of the nouce of AGM) The resolution
speciies the mimmum and maximum prices which may be
paid for any ordinary shares purchased under this authority
The authority will expire at the earlier of the conclusion of the
next AGM of the Company and 22™ June 2017

The directors have no present intention for the Company to
exercise the authority granted by this resolution to purchase its
own shares They would do so only after taking account of the
overall financial positon of the Company and 1n circumstances
where to do so would be regarded by the Board as being in
the best interests of shareholders generally and result in an
increase In earnings per ordinary share The Company may
either cancel any shares it purchases under this authorty or
transfer them into treasury (and subsequently sell or transfer
them out of treasury or cancel them)

As at 9" February 2016 (being the laiest practuicable date
prior to the publication of the notice of AGM), the Company
had options outstanding over 6,047,076 ordinary shares,
representing 2 73% of the 1ssued share capital on that date
If the Company was 0 purchase the maxirmum number of
shares permitted pursuant to this resolution, the options
outstanding at 9* February 2016 would represent 3 41% of
the ssued share capital
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Resolution 18 - Notice period of general meetings
Resolution 18 1s a special resolution 10 renew an awthority
granted at last year's AGM to allow the Company to hold
general meetings (other than AGMs) on not less than 14 clear
days notice

Changes made to the Companies Act 2006 by The Companies
(Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 increased the notce
period required for general meetings of the Company to

21 dear days unless shareholders approve a shorter notice
peniod, which cannot be less than 14 clear days This approval
will be effecive until the Company’s next AGM when it 15
intended that a similar resolution will be proposed

The shorter natice period would not be used as a matter of
routine for such meetings, but only where the flexibility 13
mented by the business of the meeting and 1s thought to be to
the advantage of shareholders as a whole AGMs will continue
to be held on at least 21 clear days’' notice

Resolution 19 - Adoption of new Articles of Association

The Company regularty reviews the suitability of its Artcles

of Association following developments in apphicable law and
regulation and UK market practice It 1s proposed that the
Company adopts new Articles of Association (the New Articles)
principally in order to reflect developments in Current practice,
and to provide clanfication and additional flexibility in relation to
certain matters The existing Articles of Association were most
recently updated and adopted by the Company on 26" March
2010 A summary of the principal changes being proposed in
the New Articles are summarised in the Appendix to this notice
of AGM Other changes, which are deemed to be of a minor,
non-substantive, technical or clarficatory nature (Including,
where relevant, to certain defined terms), have not been noted
in the Appendix A copy of the Company’s existing Articles of
Association, a copy of the New Articles and a copy marked up
to show the proposed changes will be available for inspection
at the registered office of the Company and at the offices of
Mayer Brown International LLP, 201 Bishopsgate, London’
EC2M 3AF during normal business hours from the date of this
notice of AGM until the close of the AGM, and at the place of
the AGM from 15 minutes before the start of the meeting until
the end of the meeting

Shareholder notes
1 Entitlement to attend and vote

To be entitled to atiend and vote at the AGM (and for the
purpose of determining the number of votes they may cast),
shareholders must be entered on the Company's register of
members at 6 00pm on Monday, 21 March 2016 (or, in the
event of any adjournment, at 6 00pm on the date which 1s two
days before the date of the adjourned meeting) Changes to
the regisier of members after the relevant deadhine shall be
disregarded in determireng the rights of any person to attend
and vote at the meeting in respect of the number of shares
registered in thewr name at that time It 1s proposed that all
votes on the resolutions at the AGM will be taken by way of
apoll

2 Appointment of proxies - general

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the notice of AGM 15 entitled to appoint a

proxy to exercise all or any of his or her nghts to attend

and to speak and vote on his or her behalf at the meeting

A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation to
the meeting prowided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise
the rights attached to a different share or shares held by

that shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder of the
Company but must attend the meeting in person

For the appointment to be effective, a proxy form (or electronic
appointment of proxy, see note 4 below) must be receved

by the Company's registrar not less than 48 hours before the
tume of the meeting, 1e not later than 12 00 noen on Monday,
21=March 2016 The appointment of a proxy will not prevent

a shareholder from subsequently attending the meeting and
voting In person If he or she 1s entitled to do so and so wishes

3 Appointment of proxies - proxy form

A proxy form which may be used to make such appointment

and give proxy instructions has been sent to shareholders

If you do not have a proxy form and believe that you should

have one, or If you require additonal forms to appoint more

than one proxy, please contact the Company’s registrars,

Equinit, on 0371 384 2198 (overseas callers should dial

+44 (0121 4157047 Lines are open from 8 30am to

5 30pm, Monday to Friday excluding UK bank holidays) |
Aliernatively photocopy the proxy form which has been sent to

you All forms must be signed and should be returned together !
tn the same envelope '

The notes to the proxy form explain haw to direct your proxy
1o vote on each resoluuon or withhold therr vote Please note
that the vote withheld option on the proxy form 15 provided
to enable you to abstain on any particular resolution, it 1s

not a vote in law and will not be counted In the calculation

of votes for or against the resolution If you sign the proxy
form and return it without any specific directions your proxy
will vote or abstain from voting at his or her discretion If you
wish to appoint a proxy other than the Chairman of the
meeting, please insert the name of your chosen proxy holder
In the space provided on the proxy form If the proxy is being
appointed in relation 1o less than your full voting entitlernent,
please enter in the box nexi to the proxy holder's name the
number of shares in relation toc which they are authorised to
act as your proxy If left blank your proxy will be deemed to
be authonised in respect of your full voting entitlerment {or if
the proxy form has been 1ssued in respect of a designated
account for a shareholder, the full voting entitlement for that
designated account}

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior joint holder
who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, in respect
of the holding will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of
the other joint holders For this purpose seniority 1s determned
by the order in which the names appear in the Company's
register of members in respect of the joint holding In the
case of a corporate shareholder, the proxy form must be
execuied under its common seal or signed on its behalf by a
duly authonsed officer or attorney In the case of an indvidual,
the proxy form must be signed by the appoinung shareholder
Any alierations made to the proxy form should be initialled
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4 Appointment of proxies electronically

Sharehalders who would prefer to register the appointment
of thewr proxy electronically via the internet can do so through
Equinit's website at www sharevote co uk using their personal
voung ID, Task ID and Shareholder Reference Number (which
are printed on the proxy form) Alternatively, shareholders
who have already registered with Equinit’'s online partfolio
service, Shareview, can appoint their proxy electronically by
logging on to their portfolio at www shareview co uk Full detalls
and instructions on these electronic proxy faciliies are given
on the respective websites A proxy appointment made
electranically will not be valid if sent to any address other than
those provided or if receved after 12 00 noon on Monday,
21* March 2016

5 Appointment of proxies through CREST

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies for
the AGM, and any adjournmeni(s} thereof, through the CREST
electronic proxy appointment service may do so by using the
procegures described in the CREST Manual CREST Personal
Members or cther CREST sponsored members, and those
CREST members who have appointed a voting service
provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting
service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate
acuon on their behalf

In order for a proxy appomtment or instruction made using
the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message
(a CREST Proxy Instruction) must be properly authenticated

In accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Ltd's (EUI)
specifications and must contain the information required for
such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual (avallable
at www euroclear com) Tne message, regardless of whether it
relates to the appontment of a proxy or an amendmernt to the
Instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order
to be valid, be transmitted so as to be recenved by Equiniti {ID
RA19) by the latest tme for receipt of proxy appomtments
specified above For this purpose, the time of receipt will be
taken to be the time (as determined by the time stamp applied
to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which
Equini 1s able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in
the manner prescnbed by CREST After this time any change
of instructions to proxtes appointed through CREST should be
communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where apphcable, their CREST sponsors
or voting service providers should note that EUI does not
make available special procedures in CREST for any parucular
messages Normal system timmgs and limitations wall therefore
apply i relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions

It 1s the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to

take (or, if the CREST member 15 a CREST Personal Member

or spensored member or has appoinied a voting service
provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary ta ensure
that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system
by any particular tme In this connection, CREST members

and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting senice
providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the
CREST Manual concerning practical imitations of the CREST
system and timings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction
in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5Ka) of the
Uncertficated Securities Regulations 2001

6 Changing and revoking proxy instructions

To change your proxy instruction simply submit a new proxy
appointment using the methods set out above The deadine
for receipt of proxy appomntments (see note 2 above) also
applies n relation to amended instructions Where two or more
valid separate appointments of proxy are receved in respect of
the same share and for the same meeting, those receved last
by Equinit will take precedence

In order to revoke a proxy instruction, a shareholder will need
to inform the Company by sending a signed hard copy notice
clearly staung his/her intention to revoke a proxy appomntment
to Equiniti Ltd, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lanang BNS9
6DA In the case of a corporate shareholder, the revocation
notce must be executed under its common seal or signed on
its behalf by a duly authorised officer or attorney Any power
of attorney or any other authority under which the revocation
notice Is signed (or a duly cerufied copy of such power

of attorney) must be included with the revocation notice

The revocation must be receved no later than 12 00 noon on
Monday, 21 March 2016 If a shareholder attempts to revake
hus or her proxy appointment but the revocation 1s receved
after the ume specified the ongmnal proxy appoiniment will
remain vahd Terminauon of proxy appointments made
through CREST must be made in accordance with the
procedures described in the CREST Manual

7 Corporate representatives

A corporate shareholder can appoint one or more corporate
represeniatives who may exercise on its behalf alt of iis powers
as a shareholder provided that they do not do so in relation

to the same shares Representatves of shareholders that are
corporations will have to produce evidence of their proper
appointment when attending the AGM Please contact Equiniti
for further guidance

8 Nominated persons

Any person to whom this notice 1s sent who S not a
shareholder but 1s a person nominated by a shareholder under
secuon 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy Information
rnghts {a Nominated Person) may, under an agreement with

the shareholder who nominated him/her, have a night 1o be
appointed, or have someone else appointed, as a proxy for the
AGM If a Norminated Person has no such right or does not wish
to exerase i, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a
nght to give voting INstructions to the shareholder

The staterment of the rights of shareholders in relation to the
appointment of proxies set out In notes 2 to 7 above does not
apply to Nominated Persons The rights descnbed in those
notes can only be exerased by shareholders of the Company
If you are a Nominated Person it s tmportant to remember
that your main contact In terms of your investment remains
the registered shareholder or the custodian or broker who
admirusters the nvestment on your behalf
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9 Shareholder participation

Any shareholder attending the AGM has the night to ask
questions relating to the business of the meetng and the
Company has an obligation to answer such questions unless

() to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the
meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential information, (i}
the answer has already been given on a website in the form of
an answer to a guestion, or (1) it 1s undesirable in the interests
of the Company or the geod order of the meeting that the
question be answered

10 Avallability of information on website

A copy of this notice of AGM, and other information required by
section 31 1A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found on the
Company's website at www stmodwen co uk.

11 Website publication of audit concerns

Shareholders satisfying the threshold requirements in section
527 of the Companies Act 2006 can require the Company to
publish a statement on its website setting out any matter that
such shareholder proposes (0 raise at the meeting relating to
(a) the audit of the Company's accounts (including the auditor’s
report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before
the AGM or (D) any circumstances connected with an auditor
of the Company ceasing to hold office since the last AGM

The Company cannot reguire the shareholders requesting the
publication to pay its expenses in complying with the request
Any statement placed on the website must also be sent to

the Company's auditor no later than the time the statement

1s made available on the website The business which may

be dealt with at the meeting includes any statement that the
Company has been required to publish on its website under
section 527 of the Companies Act 2006

12 Total voting nghts

As at 9" February 2016 (being the latest practicable date prior
to the publication of the notice of AGM), the Company's 1ssued
share capital consisted of 221,876,988 shares carrying one vote
each Therefore the total voting rights in the Company as at

9" February 2016 was 221,876,988

13 Documents available for inspection

The following documents are available for inspection at the
registered office of the Company duning normal business hours
and will be at the place of the AGM from 15 minutes before the
start of the meeting untl the end of the meeting

() copies of the directors’ service contracts with the Company,

(n) coples of the non-executive directors’ letters
of appointment,

() a copy of the Company's existing Articles of Association,
a copy of the New Articles and a copy of the existing Articles
of Assoaiauon marked up to show the proposed changes,
and

(v a copy of the Company's indemnity for directors

14 Communication with the Company

You may not use any electronic address provided In this notice
of AGM or any related documents (including the proxy form)
to communicate with the Company for any purposes other
than ihose expressly stated
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This appendix sets out a summary of the principal changes
proposed to be made to the Company's existing Articles
of Association

1 Share warrants

The Small Business, Enterpnise and Employment Act 2015
prohbits the creation of new bearer shares and requires
exisung bearer shares to be converted into registered
shares n hght of this, the provisions n the existing Articles of
Associauon relating to share warrants have been removed
from the New Articles

2 Retirement and re-election of directors

The New Articles have been amended to reflect the Company's
established practice, in ine with the UK Corporate Governance
Code and current best practice, that all directors be subject to
annual re-election by shareholders The New Articles provide
that at each AGM every director retires from office and each
director wishing to remain in office 1s required te stand for
election or re-election as appropriate

3 Directors betow minimum through vacancies

The New Articles include language to deal with a situation
where the number of directors required under the Aricles

of Association falls below the minimum Currently the Board's
powers in this regard are Imited The amended wording in the
New Artcles would allow the Board to remain fully functional in
this situation until additional directors have been appointed

4 Directors’ fees

The cap on the fees payable to directors for therr services In the
office of director has been increased in the New Articles from
£600,000 per annum 1o £800,000 per annum This increase
would provide the Company with sufficient headroom and
flexibility in order ta increase the number of directors and
maintain 1s directors’ fees in ine with the market Whilst the
Company does not anticipate any significant increase to
drectors’ fees or any significant increases to the size of the
Board, the directors beheve that it 15 prudent to maintain
flexibility In this regard Any Increase to fees will be in line
with the directors remuneration policy, last approved by
shareholders in 2014

5 Company name

The New Articles gve the directors the power to resolve to
change the Company's name, as permitted by the Companies
Act 2006

6 Dividend payrent procedure

The New Articles have been amended following guidance
published by the ICSA Registrars' Group in March 2014 to
provide the Company with additional fiexibility te prescribe the
manner in which dwvidends are pad Currently the Company
pays dwdends by electronic payment, cheque or simular
financial iInstrurnent The use of cheques and similar financial
instruments has reduced in recent years and there has been a
significant focus on the development of new payment methods,
which are intended to improve the security of payments to
shareholders and to reduce costs Although the existing Articles
of Association permit the payment of dmdends by electronic
means, the New Articles allow the directors to determine

how dvidends are paid to shareholders, which method shall

be the default method for paying dmdends and whether
shareholders may {or may not) make an electian for payments
t0 be made other than in the default manner 1015 not the
Board's intention to change the current methods of payment at
this time However, It 1s important that the Company 1s able to
cater for new developments and changes in pracuce, including
considening the efficency and costs saving that would flow
from a change to electronic only payment The New Articles
further specfy when a dvidend or other sum will be treated as
unclaimed for the purposes of the Articles of Association

7 Scrip dividends

The existing Aruicles of Association already enable the directors
to offer shareholders a scrip dmvdend scheme If authorised by
an ordinary resolution of the shareholders In line with recent
institutional investor guidance, the provision stating that a
resolution to authonse a scrip dwvidend for a penod of five
years has been removed

8 Indemnity and insurance

As permitted by the Companies Act 2006, provisions for the
indemnification of a director of an associated company against
habilties incurred in connection with that associated company’s
activities as trustee of an occupatonal pension scheme of the
Company have been included in the New Articles

9 Generally

Generally, the opportunity has been taken to bring clearer
language into the New Articles wherever appropriate
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Information for shareholders
Financial calendar Share dealing service
Ordinary shares quoted ex-dividend 3rd March 2016 If you are UK resident, you can buy and sell shares in
St Modwen through Shareview Dealing a telephone and
\iz]
2014/15 final dmdend record date 4" March 2016 internet based service provided by Equiniti Financial Services
AGM 23 March 2016 Lid For further detalls please visit www shareview co uk/dealing
or call Equiritt on 03456 037037 Equiniti Financia! Services Lid
2014715 final dmdend payment date 1% Apni 2016 1s authonsed and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority
Announcement of 2016 half year results 5™ july 2016 Other brokers and banks or building societies also offer share
fing facil
Announcement of 2016 final results February 2017 dealing facilives

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 23 March 2016 in the
Evolution Suite, innovation Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbridge
Technology Park, Birmungham B31 2TS, commencing at 12 00
noon The notice of meeting, together with an explanation of
the resglutions to be considered at the meeting, 15 set out on
pages 16710 174

Webslite

Information about St Modwen, iIncluding this and prior years'
Annual Reports, half year reports, results announcements and
presentatons, together wath the latest share pnce information,
15 avallable on our website at www simodwen co uk/
Investor-relations

Shareholding enquiries and Information

All general enquiries concerning holdings of shares in
St Modwen should be addressed to our registrar

Equiniti
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lanaing

West Sussex
BN99 6DA

Telephone 0371 384 2198* (+44 (0)121 415 7047 if calling
from outside the UK)

A range of shareholder information is available online at
Equiniti's website www shareview ¢o uk Here you can also view
information about your shareholding and obtain forms that
you may need to manage your shareholding, such as a change
of address form or a stock transfer form

Dividend mandate

If you are a shareholder who has a UK bank or bullding society
account, you can arrange to have dvidends paid direct via

a bank or building society mandate There 1s no fee for this
service and a tax voucher confirming detalls of the dwdend
payment will be sent to your regisiered address Please contact
Equinit on 0371 384 2198* or go to www shareview co uk for
further information

Overseas dividend payment service

If you are resident outside the UK, Equiniti (by arrangement
with Ciubank Europe PLC) can provide dividend paymenits
that are automatically converted into your local currency
and paid direct to your bank account For more infarmation
on this overseas payment service please contact Equiniti on
+44 (01121 415 7047 or download an application form at
www shareview co uk

* Lines are open 830 2m to 5 30 pm, Monday (o Friday exduding UK bank hobdays

Electronic communications

As an alternatve to receving documents in hard copy,
shareholders can elect to be notified by emall as soon

as documents such as our Annual Report are published

This notification includes detals of where you can view or
download the documents on our website Shareholders who
wish to register for email noufication can do so via Equiniir’s
website at www shareview o uk

Shareholder security

Shareholders are advised to ba very wary of unsolicited mail
or telephone calls offering free investment adwvice, offers

to buy shares at a discount or sell shares at a premium, or
offers of free company reports Such contact 1s typically from
overseas based ‘brokers' who target UK shareholders through
operations commenly known as ‘boller rooms’ These ‘brokers’
can be very persistent and extremely persuasive and often
have websites to support therr activities

To avod share fraud

Keep in mund that firms authorised by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) are unhkely to contact you out of the blue with
an offer to buy or sell shares

+ Do not get Inte a conversation, note the name of the person
and firm contacong you and then end the call

Check the Financial Services Register at www fca org uk to see
If the person and firm contacting you 1s authorised by the FCA

+ Beware of fraudsters claiming to be from an authorised firm,
copying its website or giving you false contact detalis

Use the firm's contact details listed on the Register if you want
to call it back

Call the FCA on 0800 111 6768 If the firm does not have
contact details on the Register or you are told they are out
of date

- Search the Iist of unauthorised firms to avoid at
www fca org uk/consumers/scams

+ Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised
firm you will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman
Service or the Financial Services Compensation Scheme

Think about getting independent financal and professional
advice before you hand over any money

Remember if it sounds too good to be true, it probably s!

if you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using
the share fraud reporting form at www fca org uk/scams, where
you can find out more about investment scams You can also
call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768

If you have already paid money to share you should contact
Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040

175
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Shareholder analysis
Holdings of ordimary shares as at 30" November 2015
Shareholders Shares
Number % Number %
By shareholder
‘ndvgyals 3020 7722 1066255 499
Directors and connected persons 39 100 28,646,452 129
Insurance companies, nominees and pensionfunds - 789 2017 181798329 @ 8194
Other imited companies and corporate bodies 63 161 365,952 016
3,911 100.00 221,876,988 100.00
By shareholding
Upto500 L ] i 1,027 2626 251400  0OM
501 to 1,000 657 16 80 508,579 023
1,001 to 5,000 1327 3383 3720496 141
5,001 t0 10,000 o 332 849  2431,890 110
10,001 to 50,000 254 752 6284582 283
50,001 to 100,000 o 74 189 5342913 241
100,001 to 500,000 114 291 27953106 1260
500,001 to 1,000,000 B N 34 087 25009105 1127
1,000,001 and above 52 133 150974917 68 04
3911 100.00 221,876,988 100.00
Disclaimer

This Annual Report and Financial Ststements has been prepared for the members of 5t Mogwen Properties PLC and should not be relied upen by any other party
or for any other purpose The Company, its directors and employees, agents and advisors do not accept or assurme responsibility to any other person to whom this
decument s shown or nto whose hands it may come and any such responsibility or hability is expressly disclaimed

The Annual Report and Financial Statements contains certain forward looking statements which, by their nature, invotve nsk and uncertainty because they refate

1o future events and crcumstances Actual outcomes and results may differ matenally from any outcomes or results expressed or imphed by such forward looking
staternents Any forward looking statements made by or on behalf of the Company are made 1n good faith based on the information availzble at the time the
statement s made, Na representation ar warranty 1S grven i relaton to them, wcluding as 1o thew completeness of accuracy or the basis onwhach they werea prepared
The Company does not undertake to update forward looking statements to reflect any changes in its expectations wiih regard thereto or any changes in events
conditicns or arcumstances on which any such statement 1s based Nothing in this Annual Report and Financial Statements should be construed as a profit forecast
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